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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

John Peyton, Mayor

April 17, 2006

To the Citizens of Jacksonville:

It is a pleasure to present you with the City of Jacksonville’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2004/2005.

This document details the city’s financial status and clearly reflects our
commitment to the highest standards of financial management, accountability and
efficiency. You may be assured that we will continue to seek ways to improve customer
service and to be the best possible stewards of taxpayer dollars.

I hope this guide is helpful to you, and I look forward to our continued work
together to help make Jacksonville the best place in America to live, work and raise a
family.

Sincerely,

Chkss,

John Peyton
Mayor

Docks i

Where Florida Begins,

117 W. Duval Street, Svite 400 | Jacksonville, FL 32202 | Phone: 904.630.1776 | Fax: %04.630.2391 | www.coj.net
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ADMINISTRATION ANDFINANCEDEPARTMENT OFFICE OF DIRECTOR

A

Where Florida Begins.

April 24, 2006

The Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
And Citizens of the City of Jacksonville

INTRODUCTION

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Jacksonville, Florida (the city),
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005 is hereby submitted.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the city. Management believes the data, as presented, is
accurate in all material respects and is presented in a manner designed to set forth fairly the
financial position and the results of operations of the city on a government-wide and fund basis.
Disclosure necessary to cnable the reader to gain an understanding of the city’s financial activities
have been included.

The city, which was founded in 1832, was consolidated with Duval County in 1968, has an
estimated population of 840,474 living within an area of 840.1 square miles. Within Duval County
there are four separate municipalities (the Cities of Jacksonville Beach, Neptune Beach and Atlantic
Beach and the Town of Baldwin) which represent a population of 42,151 within 15.9 square miles.
The city is the doorway to Florida (along the Atlantic coast) and the center of the five county
Jacksonville Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) which has an estimated population of 1,224,700.
The city operates under a charter adopted October 1, 1968 and a Mayot/Council form of
government.

The following discussion is intended to demonstrate the growth and vitality of the city (and the
MSA) and to address the challenges and concemns of the near future.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

Each fiscal year provides the city an opportunity to identify, address and resolve issues facing our
community and our citizens, both exclusively and as part of the MSA.

The city’s major challenges are to provide the infrastructure and both city and county services
needed to maintain the quality of life, which has attracted considerable growth to our community.
History has proven that significant emphases on support systems such as transportation, stormwater
management, potable water, wastewater and electric capacity must be balanced carefully with the
quality of life amenities which include parks, recreation, sports, entertainment and cultural
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opportunities to maintain the natural beauty and attractiveness of a community. For the city, these
natural attributes take shape as they relate to water (the St. Johns River and its tributaries, the
intercoastal waterway and the Atlantic Ocean), a tree canopy, and lush vegetation, which provide
the unique atmosphere/environment of Jacksonville MSA living.

Growth

The Jacksonville MSA, which includes Duval, Baker, St. Johns, Clay, and Nassau Counties, has
experienced significant growth over the last decade. Measures of growth come in many forms. The
following schedule is intended to demonstrate not only individual year growth but three, five and
ten year annual average trend.

ECONOMIC GROWTH
ACTUAL/ESTIMATES AND AVERAGE % GROWTH
ANNUAL AND THREE, FIVE AND TEN YEAR PERSPECTIVES

Average % Growth

2005 2004 2003 2002 2000 1995 Last 3 Last 5 Last 10
Population (in thousands)
City/County 840.5 837.0 827.0 807.0 791.5 732.0 1.4% 1.2% 1.5%
MSA 1,224.7 1,204.6 1,170.8 1,134.8 1,100.4 986.5 2.6% 2.3% 2.4%
Assessed Value (in billions)
City/County 45.6 40.7 37.6 35.1 304 21.5 10.0% 10.0% 11.2%
MSA 76.1 66.8 60.8 557 46.3 31.2 12.2% 12.9% 14.4%
Dollaxr Value of Building Permits (in millions)
City/County 3,654 2,147 1,971 1,797 1,716 908 N/A N/A N/A
MSA 6,174 4,082 3,547 3,025 2,680 1,443 N/A N/A N/A
Building Permits (in thousands of Units)
City/County 104.7 94.0 89.1 429 75.7 78.3 N/A N/A N/A
MSA 1233 109.2 101.4 53.7 854 85.8 N/A N/A N/A
Employment MSA (in thousands)
Selected Segments:
Manufacturing & Construction 102.6 97.4 91.6 88.1 90.5 80.7 5.5% 2.7% 2.7%
Wholesale & Retail 127.6 125.1 122.7 1204 125.9 114.5 2.0% 0.3% 1.1%
Service 260.0 259.2 252.9 257.5 256.0 204.3 0.3% 0.3% 2.7%
Government 73.9 727 71.6 70.5 693 68.0 1.6% 1.3% 0.9%
Other 27.5 26.6 25.7 24.9 23.8 19.9 3.5% 3.1% 3.8%
Total 591.6 581.0 564.5 561.4 565.5 487.4 1.8% 0.9% 2.1%
Retail Sales in MSA (in billions) 16.9 15.5 14.5 14.6 14.8 9.4 5.3% 2.8% 8.0%
Chamber/Job Recruitment
New Jobs (1) 10,572 9,674 8,035 10,165 16,928 N/A 1.3% -7.5% N/A
Corporate (2) 3,761 4,177 3,273 3,415 4,728 N/A 3.4% -4.1% N/A
Port (JPA) Activity
Cruise Passengers (in thousands) 86.0 50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 N/A N/A N/A
Tons of Freight (in millions) 8.4 7.7 73 7.1 7.5 5.7 6.1% 2.4% 4.7%
Airport (JAA) Activity
Passengers (in millions) 5.7 5.1 4.9 4.8 5.2 3.7 6.3% 1.9% 5.4%
Tons of Airfreight (in thousands) 85.1 83.2 76.2 74.5 68.9 57.3 4. 7% 4.7% 4.9%

(1) Total new jobs, both low and high wage
(2) New jobs - high wage
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The city and the MSA continue to demonstrate the benefits of being one of the identified emerging
sunbelt growth centers. Jacksonville is seen as having an attractive tax environment as well as
being a great place to live, work, and raise a family.

Limitation on Flexibility-State View

The State of Florida is the fourth largest state with over 17 million residents and is one of the fastest
growing, yet least taxed major state in the country. Local government revenue sources are restricted
to property taxes and a limited array of permissive additional revenue opportunities. Because a
personal income tax is constitutionally prohibited in Florida, state and local governments are
continually seeking new and broader revenue opportunities to meet the service delivery and
infrastructure requirements of our current and future population.

In 1985, the State Legislature passed significant growth management legislation, which requires
state and local governments to develop five-year financeable capital infrastructure and minimum
standard service level programs. The State, in an attempt to enhance the planning for the future,
which is projecting Florida to continue its recent growth patterns through the year 2010 and beyond,
was attempting through 1985 legislation to ensure that the quality of life is maintained and that
infrastructure and service delivery issues are reasonably addressed. The 1985 Legislature
knowingly failed to address new revenue flexibility that would have allowed the State and local
governments to develop financing for these five-year planning programs. Subsequently, the State
legislature has been preoccupied with other issues, principally the need for state involvement and
help to improve the quality of education in Florida. Currently, state budget balancing issues and
citizen-initiated referendum (e.g., court system funding, K-12 class size reduction, etc.) are
obviously requiring legislative primary attention and focus. As a result, other local governments’
(city and county) enhanced revenue flexibility has not been adequately addressed.

Local government’s need for transportation, green space, recreation and other infrastructure
improvements normally not associated with a paid-for-services fee, continues to place ever
tightening constrains on its ability to effectively plan for growth. Considerable attention needs to
be placed on the broadening of the Home Rule Powers Act, in connection with the broadening of
local government revenue flexibility, which would enable both individual city initiatives and, where
appropriate, collective efforts on the part of the local governments to address major regional
infrastructure programs.

Limitation on Flexibility- City/County View

Facing the needs of a rapidly growing metropolitan community typically places a burden on the
financial flexibility of any governmental unit. Broader revenue flexibility will be essential to
maintain Jacksonville’s traditionally strong financial condition and to address the challenges of
growth. The city, the Florida League of Cities, and the Florida Association of Counties are seeking
new optional local flexibility in an effort to match new revenues with capital objectives. Given the
diversity of size and local government agendas, cities and counties, if granted the latitude, might
elect to reduce or eliminate property taxes in favor of sales or other optional choices and/or revamp
or revisit various revenue/expenditure relationships to more equitably balance benefits and
recipients.

In 2000, the city initiated and the voters approved, by referendum the $2.25 billion Better
Jacksonville Plan (BJP). The BJP program proposed to address $1.5 billion roadway system
improvements and $750.0 million in vertical construction and other improvements. The program
proposed to (a) use excess capacity in a 2 cent sales tax previously approved to eliminate tolls in
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the city and to provide a recurring funding source for mass transit (bus and other) to fund $750.0
million in road projects, (b) authorize a second % cent ($1.5 billion in project) split equally between
road/transportation projects and vertical and other inniatives, (c) to separate the funding into an
unique and self contained accountability process and (d) to provide for citizen advisor committee
oversight.

Although the State has not addressed significant broadening of local government latitude, over the
last ten years the growth of the State and the city/county and related impact on revenue, has allowed
for a questionably inadequate effort to meet the demands of growth.

To understand the city, an observer must first understand the framework under which this
government operates.

Framework

Under the 1968 consolidation, the City of Jacksonville and Duval County have eliminated the
typical large dominate city/county conflict and is able to rechannel the related energy/efforts often
misfocused on these dialogue(s) to a more productive use. The county/city conflict with the
remaining four municipalities have largely been addressed in a series of relationship framing
Interlocal Agreements.

The city operates under a strong Mayor/City Council form of government. The 19 member City
Council 1s made up of 14 districts and 5 at large Councilmen/women. The 20 city elected officials
stand for election every 4 years (having no mid-term elections) and are subject to a 2 term
limitation.

By its Charter, the county continues to utilize the Florida County structured elected Constitutional
Officers (Sheriff, Tax Collector, Property Appraiser, Supervisor of Elections and Clerk of the
Court). The Sheriff operates the combined Police/Sheriff operation as well as the corrections/court
bailiff activities. The Clerk of the Court operates the court/record filing activities, but unlike the
majority of the other 67 counties the Clerk does not have financial accounting/reporting, which have
been transferred to the administration.

A number of traditional city activities are operated by independent authorities and/or Commissions.

JEA (electric, water and wastewater utilities)

Jacksonville Port Authority

Jacksonville Aviation Authority

Jacksonville Transportation Authority, (which also operates the bus/mass transit system)
Jacksonville Economic Development Commission* (which also operates the city/county CRA
districts)

Jacksonville Children’s Commission*

Jacksonville Library Commission*

Each of the Authority/Commission is subject to annual budget submission to/approval by the City
Council.

*Presented as part of the Mayor budget submission to City Council.
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CHALLENGES/CONCERNS

As the city addresses the various demands of growth, it is equally important that it identify the
challenges, which will face the community over the next 3 to 5 years.

Balancing the Budget

In 1993, the city by advisor referendum established a target to limit the growth in property tax
revenue, separate from new construction, to 3.0 % annually. While the General Counsel has
determined that the vote was advisory and not mandatory, each Mayor and City Council (from 1993
through 2005) have abided by the rollback. The collective impact of this inniative has had a $226
million impact (revenue reduction) on the 2004-2005 fiscal year.

Over the last 15 years, the city has experienced a recurring and growing use of one-time money
(reserves in various funds) to meet both one-time and recurring capital and/or operating cost.

The use of one-time moneys have come in several forms:

» Appropriations of reserves in the General Fund or other funds/sub-funds.

e Transfers to the General Fund or transfers to other funds in lieu of traditional General Funds
provided transfers

e Use of Pension Excess Contributions (PEC) as provided for in Florida statute, in lieu of General
or other operating fund contributions to either Pension Retirement System (General Employee
and/or Police and Fire).

The use of one-time money to address recurring operating costs (or a pay-as-you-go commitment to
capital) which should normally be addressed with recurring revenues tends to compound the next
and subsequent years budget balancing challenge. This type of structural imbalance (recurring
expenditures exceeding recurring revenues), while unfortunate, has been rather common across the
country over the last 3 to 5 years and must be addressed and eliminated in an orderly and timely
fashion,

Concurrent with the Mayor’s submission of the 2005-2006 budget to City Council the Mayor
proposed and the City Council agreed to:

e Not comply with the 3.0% local property tax growth limitation (to reduce the millage by 0.03
instead of 0.61) and thereby saving $23.3 million.

e Reduce the number of budgeted positions by 48 full time equivalents (FTE).

e Reduce the planned use of one-time money from $68.8 million in 2004-2005 to $25.0 million in
2005-2000.,

In addition, the Mayor proposal and the City Council agreed (approved the Ordinance changes) to:

e Require for 2006-2007 to balance the budget using only related year revenues.

e Establish a separate $40.0 million emergency reserve and a related special revenue (trust) fund
prior to use of the reserve, for the Mayor to declare and define the emergency and a two-thirds
vote of City Council to concur therein.

¢ Require an annual actuarial report for each pension plan (and thereby eliminating PEC) as well
as requiring a minimum 90% funded status prior to consideration of benefit enhancements.
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¢ Restructure of the city’s Capital Improvement Plan to require a financially feasible program
which equally address/estimates the resultant operating cost impact at the point of initial
planning.

Ash Settlement

During 2004-2005 the city was able to settle a long standing class action suit regarding land value
diminution and personal injury arising out of a practice prior to the early 1970’s use of Solid Waste
incinerator produced ash as a fill when mixed with soil in low lying areas prior to development.
The city agreed to pay $25.0 million and to allow the plaintiffs to pursue the city’s then insurance
providers related thereto. The city will issue debt and amortize the $25.0 million over a forward
period not to exceed 25 years.

Related thereto, the city is also in negotiations with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) regarding clean up which may involve removing 2 feet of soil around the homes and related
park land, putting down a mesh and replacing the removed top cover with new soil on an area of
1,300 or more homes. The preliminary estimate is between $63 to $252 million, of which $63
million was accrued. The initial $21.0 million will be provided by the BJP non-transportation
related authorized uses, but additional funding will need to be identified for the remainder. The
EPA has not responded to the city’s proposal.

Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

The intent of financially feasible CIP is to develop a multiple year planning agenda which can assist
the Planning, Public Works and User Department in scheduling both required and desired capital
projects. Theoretically, there should be a mix of recurring pay-as-you-go funding combined with
periodic borrowing related thereto. The process should allow for (a) the natural progression of a
project’s construction phase from year 3 to year 2 and so forth, (b) the breaking down of an
individual project into its elements (e.g. land and environmental consideration, conceptual design,
final design and construction), which can be funded incrementally over the scheduling period and
(¢) an annual revisiting of the project capital and related operating coast as part of the
planning/prioritization effort.

The city’s current 5 year CIP program focuses almost exclusively on the 1* year of the period. The
city has set forth an agenda to substantially restructure its 5 year CIP process and program as a
preferred business practice. Equally and separately, the State legislature, during the 2005 session
set forth a new requirement for local governments to develop a financially feasible 5 year CIP
program which must be in place no later than December 1, 2007.

Growth Management

As previously discussed, the State has adopted the Growth Management Planning Act which
requires local governments to develop a five-year plan, to install infrastructure support systems
needed for growth and to maintain the types and quality of services presently being provided. The
alternatives are to (a) adjust the service deliver standard or (b) implement a mandatory moratorium
on the issuance of new building permits. Each community is allowed to establish and periodically
revisit its infrastructure and service delivery standards and Jacksonville is considered to be in a
comparably attractive economic position to address this demand. However, the concept of a
financeable five-year plan for both capital and service delivery projections, which will not involve
periodically diminished standards, may require additional (statutorily authorized) flexibility in local



revenue options and a constructive atmosphere of state and local government cooperation/collective
effort.

New flexible revenue options will be essential in meeting the service and service delivery support
systems needs of state and local government. Delays in providing for new revenue flexibility, in
light of the strictly defined Growth Management Planning Act, could become a major inhibitor to
growth projected for the State, MSA, and city. More importantly, our ability to maintain the
quality of life that we have traditionally enjoyed may be critically impaired. While cities and
counties require the tools necessary to plan for and meet the challenges of growth, local officials are
not asking the State to impose a new tax. Rather, they are asking state legislators simply to broaden
local governments’ horizon by authorizing new permissive revenue options for discretionary use.

Transportation

The Metroplan Jacksonville 2030 Long Range Transportation Plan Update has indicated that the
2006 - 2030 needs of Northeast Florida for an improved transportation network are projected to cost
in excess of $6.3 billion to meet a 38% increase in vehicle miles traveled in the region. Regional
projected revenues over this 25 year period fund approximately $3.3 billion leaving a gap of $3
billion. Even with such expenditures, there are no guarantees that the quality of transportation and,
thus, the quality of life would not deteriorate further.

State and Federal Imposed Mandates

During the 1980’s the State, like the Federal government, elected to solve problems by imposing
mandates on local government. The use of mandates effectively allows legislators to report that
they have addressed and solved an issue but relieves them of the often-unpopular obligation to
finance or provide new revenue sources for the mandate. Local governments, who often support the
resolution of the problem, found it increasingly difficult to implement mandates without broadened
revenue flexibility or without negatively affecting the already existing operating and capital
agendas.

On November 6, 1990, the voters of Florida passed an amendment to the Constitution to limit the
state legislature’s ability to pass unfounded mandates imposing burdens upon local governments.
An extraordinary 2/3 majority of both chambers is necessary to approve an unfounded mandate.
Since the amendment, and at least partially as a result of these initiatives, there have been no clearly
identifiable new mandates placed directly on local government. Continued concemn exists regarding
unfounded mandates (both state and federal), which come in various forms and their financial
implications.

During the 1999 legislative session, in response to the efforts of statewide Police and Firefighters
unions the State, by an overwhelming vote, imposed significant changes/enhancements to the State
identified “minimum” for local Police and Firefighters Pension benefits. The State collects
insurance premiums to partially fund Police and Firefighter benefits and has determined that these
new enhancements are only required to be implements as incremental premium dollars become
available. Local governments have continually argued that since pension benefits are, by statute, a
subject of negotiations with the bargaining unit, it is inappropriate for the State as a third party to
enhance pension benefits. While the city’s benefits, in aggregate, are substantially better than the
State identified minimums, this form of indirect mandate and state bureaucratic interpretation
continues to be troubling.
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MAJOR INNIATIVES/PROGRAMS:
Mayor John Peyton’s Six Guiding Principles

To be the best possible steward of the taxpayers’ dollars, Mayor John Peyton developed six guiding
principles for operating and improving city government. The mayor and his administration are
commuitted to following these principles in order to provide Jacksonville’s citizens with the best
service at the lowest cost, and to help Jacksonville reach its full potential on every level.

1) Increasing economic opportunity and jobs, including full support for our military and
minority business ownership

Growing the economy and increasing jobs is one of Mayor Peyton’s top priorities. The City of
Jacksonville actively works with the Jacksonville Regional Chamber of Commerce, the Jacksonville
Economic Development Commission and other organizations and individuals to grow businesses
and attract and retain high-paying jobs in Jacksonville.

In 2005, Jacksonville hosted Super Bowl XXXIX, which the NFL estimates brought an estimated
$250 to $300 million into the local economy, showcased Jacksonville to 133 million viewers around
the world, and put the city in the minds of thousands of corporate decision-makers across the nation
as an option for relocation or expansion. Since the city hosted the big game, 20 companies have
relocated to or expanded their existing businesses in Jacksonville. These moves have resulted in a
$200 million capital investment and the creation of 5,000 new jobs, 80 percent of which pay higher
than the Florida average wage,

The city has also worked diligently to preserve and enhance the local military presence, which
contributes in excess of $8 billion to the local economy and is an important part of the nation’s
defense. In addition to historic outreach to the military community, Mayor Peyton has supported
infrastructure enhancements to benefit local military facilities. The mayor also worked closely with
local, state and national military and civilian leaders to ensure the city’s success in the 2005 round
of the Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) process, which will bring an additional 2,700
military personnel to Jacksonville.

Small business is big in Jacksonville. In fact, an estimated 96 percent of businesses with employees
in Duval County are small businesses. In order to help these businesses succeed and to strengthen
the local economy, Mayor Peyton worked with community leaders to create the Jacksonville Small
and Emerging Business (JSEB) program. This initiative helps small businesses grow by leveling
the playing field for applying for city contracts, providing additional access to capital and bonding
capacity, and pairing large businesses and corporations with small businesses in a mentoring
relationship. Since its creation, the program has certified 294 companies, 261 of which are minority-
owned, to do business with the City of Jacksonville. In its first year, the program awarded nearly 50
formal and informal contracts to JSEBs, totaling more than $80 million. In the first quarter of 2006,
31 percent of formal contracts have gone to certified small or emerging businesses.

The mayor also established a five-year commitment to the Blueprint for Prosperity, a collaboration
between the City of Jacksonville, the Jacksonville Regional Chamber of Commerce and
WorkSource to raise per capita income across the board in Jacksonville. The Blueprint process is
identifying ways to increase earnings and to attract and retain high income jobs and workers. It will
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help decrease the racial and ethnic income gap and address education, poverty, crime and other
issues that affect the city’s people and tax base.

2) Increasing public safety, including homeland security and emergency preparedness

Mayor Peyton made a historic commitment to public safety through the Safety First Initiative, a
three-year plan to provide increased funding for the Jacksonville Sheriff’s Office, the Jacksonville
Fire and Rescue Department and the Medical Examiner’s Office. Initiatives include modernizing
and replacing fire stations, replacing public safety equipment and vehicles to improve response
time, and providing equipment and personnel to the Medical Examiner to speed crime solving.

As aresult of efforts to improve connectivity between emergency responders and other proactive
emergency planning strategies, Jacksonville was one of the first municipalities in the nation to
receive emergency management accreditation,

3) Increasing early literacy

By some measurements, Jacksonville has an adult functional illiteracy rate as high as 47 percent, a
situation that adversely affects both individual success and regional economic development
prospects. In light of the vast body of research showing that early literacy is the greatest single
predictor of school success — and the awareness that the global economy is becoming more
knowledge-driven by the day — Mayor Peyton has implemented RALLY Jacksonville!, a
communitywide early literacy initiative.

The program’s goal is to reach out to the children of Jacksonville one year before they enter
kindergarten and provide them with the pre-literacy skills they need to read and succeed when they
enter school. RALLY uses a four-point approach: making reading a core value of the community
through advocacy, improving school readiness through intensive intervention in childcare centers,
developing neighborhood pilot projects in the city’s highest-risk areas, and measuring and reporting
results. The initiative has already reached thousands of children and families, including more than
16,000 children who have participated in the Mayor’s Book Club and nearly 8,500 children in
childcare centers. The initiative also incorporates a million-book giveaway to economically
challenged families and a concerted effort to improve the training of childcare workers.

4) Enhancing quality of life, including transportation, planning and parks

Mayor Peyton is committed to enhancing Northeast Florida’s exceptional quality of life by taking
Jacksonville’s park system from the biggest in the nation to the best, continuing the good work of
the infrastructure-building Better Jacksonville Plan (BJP), and increasing materials, programming
and access at Jacksonville’s libraries.

Following a year-long study of parks in Jacksonville and across the country, the mayor restructured
the city’s parks department to include a conservation program, empanel a parks advisory board to
raise money for maintenance and improvements, and create a security division to coordinate with
the Jacksonville Sheriff’s Office. Under the city’s FY 2005-06 budget, the mayor also modified a
previous bond issue to fund four new parks and upgrade nearly 60 percent of the city’s parks listed
in poor condition.
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Six years ago, the citizens of Jacksonville approved the BJP, a growth management strategy aimed
at improving the city’s public facilities and infrastructure. Some of the plan’s early successes
include the construction of the Jacksonville Memorial Arena, the Baseball Grounds of Jacksonville
and the Equestrian Center. To date, more than 1,600 miles of road have been paved through the
$1.5 billion countywide road improvement plan. Although the plan faces significant challenges as a
result of rising fuel and construction costs, Mayor Peyton and the City Council created a plan
solution to these issues while adhering to the vision of the BJP. In 2006, the city will begin
construction on 22 roads, and projects will continue in 2007 and 2008.

The last year has seen the completion of renovations at 12 branch libraries, construction of six new
libraries and the opening of a new Main Library - the largest in the state of Florida - downtown.
Now that the bricks and mortar of the library system are in place, Mayor Peyton has committed to
provide increased access to the city’s libraries. He has added Sunday hours at more locations than
ever before, offering citizens 1,100 hours of access to the libraries on a weekly basis. The mayor is
also working with the library to invest in additional books and materials, launch a volunteer
recruitment program, enhance technologies available to patrons and develop a virtual branch library
that will be accessible 24 hours a day.

5) Increasing infill housing

Mayor Peyton has charged the Jacksonville Housing Commission with developing a strategic plan
for eliminating substandard housing in Jacksonville over the next 20 years. In the last fiscal year,
the commission assisted 118 people in buying their first home, created 98 infill housing units and
funded an additional 208 units through unique partnerships with nonprofits, replaced failing septic
systems in 95 homes and made repairs to 103 homes. The commission will continue its mission of
creating affordable housing and eradicating substandard housing to develop and maintain healthy
communities.

The mayor has also turned his attention to the revitalization of downtown Jacksonville, and
increasing the housing population in the urban core is a key part of that effort. Currently residents
occupy 1,432 units downtown, This number is on the rise, with 690 units under construction and
2,874 additional units anticipated. Recent developments include Southbank projects The Strand and
The Peninsula and The Carling on the Northbank. The JEDC has refocused its efforts on
downtown, and they and the City Council have approved a number of projects that will soon be
reaching fruition, including the relocation of Macquarie Mortgages USA, which will move its U.S.
headquarters from Memphis and employ 50 people in the Downtown Enterprise Zone. In addition,
Fidelity National Financial has committed to its second major investment in the community, which
will add 800 new jobs and $23 million in private capital investment.

6) Streamlining government to facilitate business growth

Mayor Peyton is committed to providing citizens with top-notch customer service and making it
casier and more enjoyable to live, work and do business in Jacksonville. The mayor has brought a
business mentality to city government and instituted a number of best practices to streamline its
operations.

Capitalizing on the latest technologies allows the city to save taxpayers millions of dollars.

Implementation of the Citrix Initiative, which transfers the processing workload of computers to
centrally located servers, makes it easier and more cost-effective to deploy new computer programs
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as they become available. It can also cut the cost of replacing computers in half. Citrix is saving
money and improving the city’s ability to continue operating during emergencies, giving employees
access to files from any location at any time. The city is also using technology to allow citizens to
complete an ever-increasing number of transactions online, including permitting, paying tickets,
checking out books, reserving park facilities and playing fields, applying for jobs and requesting
city services.

In keeping with his business-oriented approach to government, Mayor Peyton has also initiated a
citywide organizational effectiveness review. This comprehensive assessment builds upon previous
steps taken to make city government more effective and efficient, identifying ways to do business
better while reducing recurring annual expenditures and putting more of the taxpayers’ money into
providing services rather than supporting administrative costs. The review of the Jacksonville
Children’s Commission (JCC), for example, yielded an estimated savings of $787,000, which will
be reinvested in programs serving Jacksonville’s children.

The organizational effectiveness review will also help to implement the financial policy changes the
mayor initiated in the 2005-06 budget: balancing the budget out of current-year revenues;
establishing operating and emergency reserves; carefully managing pension funds and creating a
financially feasible Capital Improvement Plan each year. These practices will provide for the long-
term financial stability and predictability for Jacksonville.

Better Jacksonville Plan — Update

During 2004-2005 substantial progress was made on various components of the program. The
following three topics demonstrate where significant emphasis was placed.

Restructuring Project Priorities within the Road Project Portion of the Program

During 2004-2005 the city, lead by the Mayor and the Public Works Department (a) reevaluated the
$1.5 billion project list, proposed project changes and/or substitutions (b) determined that the cost
estimates for the total program project list, if constructed, would be $800 million over the original
forecast. Since the $1.5 billion program budget was a hard cap, clearly some reprioritization would
be required. When addressing the list of planned but yet uninitiated projects there were two
categories, (a) city road project(s) which the city would need to build now or later, regardless, and
(b) state road project(s) where the program was designed to accelerate road projects on state roads
which, if unaddressed by BJP, would eventually become a part of the state road(s) construction
program. After a reprioritization to insure that city road projects were addressed, it was projected
that the BJP agenda could address approximately 25 to 30% of the remaining state road projects.
The city therefore proposed a partnering proposal with the State on projects for the residual BJP
project agenda.

In addition, based on revenue estimates it appears that the Jacksonville Transportation Authority
(JTA) % cent might provide for an addition $100.0 million of borrowing capacity (the initial JTA Y%
cent referendum is not limited by time or amount), in approximately 2011. At the city’s request, the
JTA placed on its future agenda the possibility of the additional $100 million borrowing to be used
within the BJP project agenda. The JTA ongoing concern is its ability to support its bus and other
mass transit initiatives.
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Courthouse Project Budget Constraints

The original BJP vertical and other $750.0 million agenda project for the Courthouse was budgeted
at $190.0 million. Additionally the non-road agenda included $35.0 million in contingency. The
project was initially increased by $21.0 million to $211.0 million as part of the $35.0 million
contingency distribution. A second proposal change increased the project budget (including non-
BJP dollars) to $230.0 million. At the point of an additional proposal (a $32.0 million increase),
Mayor Peyton pulled the plug, proposed to dismiss the outside project manager and architect and to
effectively start over.

Having already spent $57.8 million on land, site demolition, environmental issue and design, the
Mayor proposed to build what the available BIP project budget would allow (within the $211.0
million authorized). At this point, the Administration initiated an on-going dialogue with the
interested parties, convened a special task force (involving the interested parties) and after the
conclusion thereof continuing discussion with the Chief Judge.

The Task Force list of available solutions, within the Mayor’s charge to stay within the budget,
focus primarily on building a new Criminal Court Building, limited rehab to the existing courthouse
to serve as the Civic Court building and limited initial planning for a eventual new Civic Court
building adjacent to the Criminal Court building with the possibility of a common core element
address elevation and other central support functions.

As of November 30, 2005 the latest proposal would be a $261.5 million project (using the $211.0
million BJP funding and some additional Court related revenue short terms on a pay-as-you-go
basis and eventually including related borrowing) to build the Criminal Court, some existing
building (current Court House) rehab and substantial conceptual plans for the second Civic Court
building (including designed for both building to use a common core component). A request for
qualification will be initiated by the Public Works Director which could lead to construction
commencing by August 2007 and a targeted open by August 2010,

Library Component of the BJP program

The original library component of the BJP program provided for $95.0 million for a new main
Library (downtown) and $35.6 million for six new branch libraries and renovation to 11 of the
current branch libraries. Fiscal year 2004-2005 saw the opening of each of the six branch libraries,
completed renovation to all branch libraries and substantial completion of the new 297,000 sq ft
downtown Mail Library. On November 12, 2005 the city held the grand opening of its new Main
Library and the related 600 space parking garage.

To complete the Main (Downtown) Library initiative, the city needed to find an additional $6.3
million (reallocated within the Autumn bond program).
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Autumn Bonds

During 2004-2005 the Mayor and City Council developed the $141,251,200 Autumn Bond
initiative, with projects reallocated in October 2005, are briefly summarized as follows:

Building consolidation and renovation - $25,850,000

Main Library - $6,300,000

LaVilla/Brooklyn District Reserve - $15,000,000

Council Discretionary - $14,000,000

Urban Area Traffic Improvements and Community Development - $14,165,000
Replacement, construction and renovations of fire stations - $9,262,200
Improvement to the corrections facilities and jail facilities, including construction of a forensic
lab - $6,852,000

Water Resource Development Projects - $9,083,000

St. Johns River Bulkhead and Riverwalk Repair - $900,000

Sidewalk repair and replacement - $6,790,000

Improvements to the equestrian center- $2,000,000

Jacksonville Zoo improvements - $5,000,000

Senior Citizen centers expansion and land acquisition - $1,000,000

Parks and playground upgrades - $13,200,000

Miscellaneous other projects - $10,514,000

Contingency - $1,335,000

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

In addition to the Major Business Units (Parking System and Solid Waste) the following schedule
reflect the level of activities, operations and debt service picture for the city, cultural and
entertainment facilities which are presented in part in several special revenue funds (Alltel Stadium
Revenue, Sports Complex Trust Fund, Convention Development, Entertainment Facilities Trust
Fund, and Cecil Field Commerce Center) and in part in a non-major enterprise fund (business unit —
Sports Management Group (SMG)).
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Event Related Facility Operations Summary Information for Fiscal Year ending September 30,

2005.
Alltel Memorial Baseball  Performing Convention
Stadium Arena Stadium Arts Center
Seating capacity 75,000 15,000 10,000 4,000 4,000
Number of events 167 98 93 297 257
Attendees 999,175 431,840 414,001 315,814 233,517
Revenues
Rent & Naming Rights $2,706,907 § 667,282 $ 52,500 $ 503,300 § 589,559
Commission 259,806 1,093,920 57,444 224,641 361,127
Event related
reimbursement 2,199,015 5,998,401 1,137,760 1,801,896 1,195,793
Other 76,285 35,491 9,517 44.210 51,071
Operating Total Rev $5,242,013  $7,795,094  $1,257,221 $2,574,047  $2,197,550
Expenses
Event Related $2,003,350 $3,469,799 $§ 402,413 $1,079,240 $ 580,256
Operating
(excl. depreciation) 9,959,166 4,090,951 729.750 1,784,138 3,265,555
Operating Total Exp  $11,962,516  $7,560,750  $1,132,163 $2,863,378  $3,845,811
Net General Fund
Operating subsidy  $6,720,503  $ 0 S 0 $ 289,331 $1,648,261 *
Debt Service (D/S)
Expenses (P&I) $7,611,855 $8,159,963 $2,161,976 $1,823,562  $3,555,356
Revenues
Tourist Dev. Tax $5,107,721
Convention Dev, Tax $4,799,870
BJP sales tax $8,159,963  $2,161,976
State sales tax recapture _ 2,000,004
Total Revenue $7,107,725  $8,159,963  $2,161,976 $ 0 $4,799,870
Net General Fund
D/S subsidy $ 504,130 $ 0 S 0 $1.823,562 ($1,244.514)
Operating and
Debt Service subsidy $7,224.633  § 0 38 0 $2,112,893 $ 403,747
Total subsidy $9,741,273

* Excess Tourist Development, attributed to the Convention Center, can be used for debt service
and operation support.
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OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

Debt Administration

The city's sound financial condition is evidenced by the continuation of its long-held high-grade bond

ratings on indebtedness from the major credit rating services.

Moodys
General Government
Excise Tax Revenue Bonds Aa3
Local Government Half-cent Sales Tax Bonds Aa3
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Bonds A2
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Al
Capital Projects Revenue Bonds N/A
Special Program
Better Jacksonville Plan
Sales Tax Bonds Aa3
Transportation Bonds Aa3
Components Units
JEA
Electric Aa2
Water & Sewer Aa3
St. John’s River Power Park (SJRPP) Aa2
JAA A2
JPA A2

Cash Management

S&P

A+

N/A
N/A

A+

Fitch

4444

>3

> 222

N/A

The investment goal of the city is to invest public funds in a manner that will earn a competitive
yield on its portfolio, consistent with its primary function of safeguarding public assets by
minimizing credit and market risks. Safety of principal is regarded as the foremost objective of
the investment program. Maintaining sufficient liquidity is also an important investment
objective. These investments are stated at fair value. Cash, investments, and the city
collateralizing process are further explained in Note 3 of the Notes to Financial Statements.
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Pension Plans
The city sponsors two public employee retirement systems administered by two separate and distinct pension
Boards of Trustees that provide retirement, death, and disability benefits.

Jacksonville
Retirement System Police & Fire
Gen. Employees Correction  Retirement System

Active 5,078 577 2,731
Retired 4,338 12 1,765
Assets (in millions) $1,566 $61 $924
Earning Percentage

Market 9.34% 9.34% 11.30%

Actuarial 8.21% 8.38% 11.15%
Contribution (in millions) $33.4 $5.2 $36.7
Benefits (in millions) $95.8 $0.1 $82.9

In addition, certain city employees (less than 1% of total payroll) and elected officials participate in the
State of Florida Retirement System.

Risk Management

The city administers a comprehensive risk management and loss-control program, the primary objectives of
which are to (1) identify potential exposures to loss, (2) evaluate the frequency and severity of losses, (3)
reduce or eliminate risks or losses through established procedures and practices, and (4) determine the most
efficient use of financial resources to satisfy losses.

The city's risk management policy is to rely primarily on the concept of self-insurance, supplemented by
excess insurance coverage, when dealing with its various loss exposures, including workers' compensation,
automobile liability, and general liability. Participants in the risk management pool include the city and
independent agencies electing to be included. The city funds its risk retention losses dollar-for-dollar on an
actuarially computed basis.

Unlike commercial insurance, establishment of a self-insurance fund, accounted for by the participant, does
not result in the pure transfer of risk. The program’s self-insured liability remains among and between the
participants in varying degrees of risk sharing. State sovereign immunity statutes limit the liability to the
participants for certain general liability risk exposures to $100,000 per individual and $200,000 per
occurrence. There is a $1 million retention for workers' compensation and no excess insurance for
automobile liability and general liability. Various cost containment measures, such as managed care, are
utilized by the workers' compensation self-insurance program in order to appropriately minimize medical
claim costs,

Commercial insurance has been purchased for other risk exposures, including aviation, marine, property,
fidelity bonding and employee benefits (medical, disability, dental, vision, prescription drug, and life).
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Accounting

The city's accounting system is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined as an independent
fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The types of funds to be used are
determined by generally accepted governmental accounting principles and the number of individual funds
established is determined by sound financial administration and statutory and ordinance requirements of the
Council.

Budgeting

Detailed provisions regulating the city's budget, tax levies, and appropriations are set in the Laws of Florida,
in the City Charter, and in the city's Ordinance Code. The Mayor is required to submit his appropriations
budget, called "The Mayor's Proposed Budget," to Council by the second Tuesday in July of each year, The
Mayor's Proposed Budget is to comply with state and local legal requirements for a balanced financial plan
of operation for the government which coincides with and is limited to the city's fiscal year. As a financial
plan, the Mayor's Proposed Budget identifies revenues and other financial resources which are anticipated to
be available for appropriations, makes recommendations for appropriations, expenditures and uses of
financial resources, and otherwise presents concise policy direction and guidance for the continuing financial
operation of the city. At the beginning of each new fiscal year the Council adopts a balanced annual budget
in the form of an ordinance which contains estimated revenues and other financing sources, appropriations,
authorizations of full time positions and temporary employee hours, and any amendments to the Ordinance
Code which relate to the annual budget.

Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity includes all funds of the primary government (Consolidated Government City
of Jacksonville/Duval County), as well as all of its component units. Component units are legally separate
organizations for which the city is financially accountable and, for financial statement purposes, are either
blended with the activities of the city or discretely presented. The criteria used to determine whether an
organization should be a part of the City of Jacksonville's reporting entity are outlined in note 1.

Report Format

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: (1) the Introductory Section
includes general information about the city and summarizes financial activity for the fiscal year; (2) the
Financial Section includes the Independent Certified Public Accountants Report on the city’s Basic Financial
Statements, Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements, Notes to Financial
Statements, Required Supplementary Information, and the Combining and Individual Fund Financial
Statements and Schedules; and (3) the Statistical Section, containing unaudited financial and other data of an
economic, financial and demographic nature for prior and current years. The Notes to Financial Statements,
in the financial section, are necessary for an understanding of the information included in the statements.
They include the summary of significant accounting policies and other necessary disclosures of matters
relating to the financial position of the city.

Independent Audit

The Report fulfills the requirements set forth in the City Charter, Section 5.11; Chapter 166.241,
Florida Statutes and Chapter 10.550 Rules of the Florida Auditor General, requiring publication of
basic financial statements which have been audited by independent auditors. The independent
auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. The
financial statements of certain component units were audited by other auditors as described in the
Ernst & Young LLP audit opinion.
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Reporting Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Jacksonville for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards.
Such comprehensive annual financial reports must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Jacksonville has received
this Certificate for twenty-five consecutive years (fiscal years 1980 through 2004). We believe our current
report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting
it to the GFOA.

Use of the Report and Acknowledgments

The Report represents the thirty-seventh (1969 - 2005) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the city
audited by a nationally recognized firm of certified public accountants, since the City of Jacksonville and
Duval County Governments were consolidated on October 1, 1968. Approximately 350 copies of this report
will be distributed. In addition to citizens of the community, the recipients will include city, state, and
federal officials; university students; schools; libraries; newspapers; investment banking firms; banks and
rating agencies.

The Report will be made available to any person or organization requesting it. The extensive effort of
preparation and distribution of this report fulfills the Department of Administration and Finance's goal of full
disclosure of the city's finances. We are committed to issuing reports that are informative and meet the
highest standards of governmental accounting and financial reporting. Reports that meet these standards
provide the reader with an opportunity to make more informed judgments about the government's financial
position and changes in financial position.

The 2005 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report represents our commitment to this goal and could not
have been prepared without the efficient and dedicated efforts of the entire staff of the Department of
Administration and Finance - Accounting Division and Treasury Division, who devoted many hours in
compiling and assembling the report. We also wish to express our appreciation to all other city personnel
who have contributed to its preparation. In addition, we thank the city's independent certified public
accountants, Emst & Young LLP and the Office of the Council Auditor for their efforts and professional
conduct throughout the audit engagement.

Special acknowledgment is due Mayor John Peyton, Council President Kevin Hyde, and Councilperson
Daniel Davis, Finance Committee Chair, and other members of the City Council, for their strong and
effective leadership and continued support in the coordination and planning of the financial affairs of the
City of Jacksonville in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submii;t”cd,,:’} Lo "

Lo £ g ey ) et
W, ] 1 /ﬁ}/{(’/ﬁi,.?/?( LN

'G. Michael Miller, CPA, CGFO, Kevin G. Stork, CPA, CGFM

CIA, CGFM City Comptroller
Director, Department of Chief, Accounting Division

Administration and Finance
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Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Jacksonville, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, the
Jacksonville Retirement System fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Jacksonville, Florida (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2005, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the Jacksonville Port Authority, Jacksonville Transportation Authority, and
Downtown Vision, Inc., which collectively represent 12 percent, 35 percent, and 4 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented
component units. In addition, we did not audit the financial statements of the police and fire
pension trust fund, which represent 33 percent of the assets and net assets of the pension trust
funds. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the
aforementioned component units and the pension trust fund, are based solely on the reports of the
other auditors. The prior year summarized comparative information has been derived from the
City's 2004 financial statements and, in our report dated December 30, 2004 which refers to the
reports of other auditors, we expressed unqualified opinions on the respective financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
City’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, the Jacksonville Retirement System fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2005, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 29, 2005 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of revenue, expenditures and changes in
fund balance — budget and actual — general fund, and the schedules of employer contributions and
funding progress listed under required supplemental information in the table of contents are not a
required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We and the other auditors have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However,
we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other
auditors, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The information presented in the introductory and statistical sections has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

St ¥ MLLP

December 29, 2005
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Jacksonville’s discussion and analysis is designed to provide an objective and easy to read
overview analysis of the city’s financial activities, focus on significant financial issues, identify material
deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), identify changes in the city’s financial position (its
ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges), and identify individual fund issues or concerns.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year’s activities,
resulting changes and currently known facts. The information contained within this MD&A should be
considered only a part of the entire report

Financial Highlights

General Fund revenues and transfers in completed the year at $804.2 million as compared to $806.8
million budgeted, exclusive of transfers from fund balance. This resulted in a negative variance of
$2.6 million. Earnings on investments under performed budget by $14.5 million. This was partially
offset by positive variances in property taxes of $11.2 million and Intergovernmental revenues of
$3.1 million. For the tenth consecutive year the Ad Valorem millage rate was decreased.

General Fund expenditures, and transfers out completed the year at $830.4 million (excludes
encumbrances and carryforwards) as compared to $851.5 million budgeted (excludes $40 million
cash reserve), resulting in a positive $21.1 million variance,

Capital assets were $2.3 billion at September 30, 2005, resulting in a $175 million, 8.3% increase
over last fiscal year,

The City of Jacksonville’s total net assets at the close of the 2005 fiscal year decreased by $91
million from the prior fiscal year primarily due to increases in Solid Waste expense for increased
closure/postclosure liability at the landfill of $12.9 million, a $25 million ash settlement and an
initial $63.0 million estimate of a related cleanup. The city was able to settle a long standing class
action suit regarding land value diminution and personal injury arising out of a practice prior to the
early 1970’s of using Solid Waste incinerator produced ash as a fill when mixed with soil in low
lying areas prior to development. The city is also in negotiations with the U,S, Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) regarding clean up. A preliminary minimum of the range estimate of
$63.0 million was accrued at year end. Additional information regarding this pollution remediation
may be found in Note 15 D Litigation, Contingencies, and Commitments — Environmental Matters
of these statements.

City Highlights

The city continued to implement the Better Jacksonville Plan (BJP) 2000 initiative. The initiative
provided for $1.5 billion in transportation improvements and $750 million in vertical and other
projects. The citizen referendum approved a second ¥ cent sales tax and additional uses of an
earlier approved ' cent sales tax. During 2005 in addition to working on a number of road projects,
the city completed renovations on a number of existing libraries, opened six new regional libraries
and in November 2005, opened the new 297,000 square foot main library downtown.

In February 2005 Jacksonville hosted the National Football League’s (NFL) Superbowl XXXIX.
The city spent $5.5 million on security, sanitation, and clean up. During the Superbowl, Fire and
Rescue Department reported zero injuries or fires in commercial structures due to Superbowl
preparations or activities.



OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Jacksonville’s basic
financial statements. As indicated in the following graphic (Figure A-1), the City of Jacksonville’s basic
financial statements comprise three components: 1) city-wide basic financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains supplementary and statistical

information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Figure A-1
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City-Wide Basic Financial Statements

The citywide basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of
Jacksonville’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The focus of the Statement of Net Assets is designed to be similar to bottom line results for the city and its
governmental and business-type activities. This statement combines and consolidates governmental funds
current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long term obligations.
The Statement of Activities distinguishes functions of the City of Jacksonville that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities such as; police, fire, public works,
recreation, and general administration) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities such as: solid waste, sports
complex, public parking, and ferry operations).

Component Units, which are other governmental units over which the city can exercise influence and/or may
be obligated to provide financial subsidy, are presented as a separate colurmn in the city-wide statements. The
City of Jacksonville’s component units are as follows: the Jacksonville Electric Authority, Jacksonville
Transportation Authority, Jacksonville Aviation Authority, Jacksonville Port Authority, Water Sewer
Expansion Authority, Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority, Downtown Vision, Inc. and Jacksonville
Economic Development Commission. The Jacksonville Electric Authority, Jacksonville Transportation
Authority, Jacksonville Aviation Authority, Jacksonville Port Authority and Downtown Vision, Inc. all
publish separately issued financial statements. For more information, see footnote 1.B. The focus of the
statements is on the Primary Government and the presentation allows the user to address the relationship with
the Component Units,

The two statements (Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities) demonstrate how the city’s net
assets have changed. Increases or decreases in net assets are good indicators of whether the city’s financial
health is improving or deteriorating over time. Other non-financial factors such as changes in the city’s
property tax base are important considerations to assess the city’s overall financial condition.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Fund
Financial Statements presentation more familiar. The focus is on Major Funds, rather than fund types, as
reported in the previous financial models. The City of Jacksonville, like other state and local governments,
uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financial requirements imposed by law, bond
covenants, and local administrative and legislative actions. All of the city’s funds can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Govermnmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the city-wide basic financial statements. However, unlike the city-wide basic financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing
requiremments.

Since the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the city-wide basic financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the city-wide basic financial statements, This
allows readers to better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions.



Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Governmental fund information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and
in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the
General Fund, Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund, Special Bonded Debt-Better Jacksonville
Plan Obligations Fund, Bond Projects Fund, General Projects Fund, and Better Jacksonville Project
Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Information from other non-major funds is
combined into a single, aggregated presentation.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the business-type activities in the city-
wide basic financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements can
be found in the Fund Financial Statements section of this report.

The City of Jacksonville maintains two major types of proprietary funds,

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities
in the city-wide basic financial statements. The city uses enterprise funds to report
separate information on operations such as solid waste and public parking, which are major
funds and sports complex activities, motor vehicle, and ferry operations which are non-
major.

The internal service finds are used to account for activities that provide goods and services
to the city’s other programs and activities. Since the internal service funds predominantly
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within
governmental activities in the city-wide basic financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds

The City of Jacksonville is the trustee, or fiduciary, for trusts such as the city employee’s retirement
plan. Because of a trust arrangement, these assets can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The
city is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purposes. All of the City of Jacksonville’s fiduciary activitics are reported in a separate statement of
fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. These activities are excluded
from the city-wide basic financial statements because the assets cannot be used to support or finance
the city’s programs or operations. The Fiduciary Funds Statement of Changes in Net Assets can be
found in the Fund Financial Statement section of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of

the data provided in the city-wide and fund financial statements. The notes can be found as a part of the
Basic Financial Statements section of this report.



Other Information

This report additionally includes required supplementary information (RSI) containing budgetary
comparisons with related notes and the progress of the city’s employee pension obligations.

The combining statements in connection with non-major governmental and enterprise funds, internal service
funds, fiduciary funds and nonmajor component units are presented following the required supplementary
information.

Additional statistical information is presented to give report users a better historical perspective and assist in
assessing current financial status and trends of the governmental unit,

Economic data is presented to allow a broader understanding of the economic and social environment in
which the city government operates.

CITY-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of government’s financial position.

As of September 30, 2005, the City of Jacksonville is able to report positive balances in overall net assets
(See Table A-1)

Table A-1
Summary Statement of Net Assets
(In Thousands)
as of September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2004

Governmental Business Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Cash and Investments $ 729916 $ 924,176 § 354317 8 52,400 784,233 $976,576
Other Current Assets 182,533 176,609 34,728 36,701 217,261 213,310
Capital Assets 2,235,368 2,055,728 47,555 51,947 2,282,923 2,107,675
Total assets 3,147,817 3,156,513 136,600 141,048 3,284,417 3,297,561
Current Liabilities 161,986 151,064 38,649 13,309 200,635 164,373
Long-term obligations 2,241,747 2,272,098 173,412 101,320 2,415,159 2,373,418
Total liabilities 2,403,733 2,423,162 212,061 114,629 2,615,794 2,537,791
Net assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 641,558 575,598 13,742 12,289 655,300 587,887
Restricted 194,929 182,608 15,497 13,591 210,426 196,199
Unrestricted (92,403) (24,855) (104,700) 539 (197,103) (24,316)
Total net assets (deficit) $§ 744,084 $ 733,351 $§ (75461) 3 26419 668,623 3 759,770

Note: FY2004 Net Assets are restated to provide for comparability to the FY2005 Net Asset categorization. See Note 20 for additional
information.
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The largest portion of the city’s net assets reflects its capital projects, investments and capital assets. The city
maintains a cash and investrnent pool that is available for use by all funds except for monies which are legally
restricted to separate administration (i.e., pension plan custodians and deferred compensation plan
administrators). The “Equity in cash and investments” consist of cash and investments owned by each fund
and defined as resources that can be liquidated without delay or penalty.

The negative unrestricted net assets in the governmental activities is primarily due to non-asset related debt
issued for various capital projects that belong to other entities, but the debt is a liability of the City.

The decrease of unrestricted net assets in the business type activities is primarily due to a $25 million liability
for an ash site settlement, a $63 million accrual for additional ash site liability (see Note 15 D for further
discussion) and a $12.9 million increase in liability for landfill closure costs.

Governmental activities: The city’s general governmental revenues increased to $1.3 billion (see Table A-
2). More than half of the city’s revenue comes from taxes. Utility service tax revenues increased by $4
million and Ad Valorum tax revenues increased by $22 million in 2005. Over a quarter of the revenues come
from program revenues, the largest being the contribution from the JEA. Intergovernmental revenues from
the State provide a major portion of the remainder. In fiscal year 2004 Article V required separation of court
operations revenues, in fiscal year 2005 these revenues were required to be reported and are reflected as $24
million of the total fines and charges for services. Cash accumulations and supplemental rent revenue from
the Jacksonville Jaguars resulted in an increase in miscellaneous revenues.

Total expenses increased $193 million for services provided for the citizens. Increases in Public Safety at
both the Jacksonville Sheriff’s Office and Fire Rescue Department accounted for $47 million of the increase.
The city entered into an agreement with JTA to pay 1/12 of the annual Sales Tax Subsidy for Mass Transit
operation costs. Additionally, an agreement between BJP and JTA to fund widening and expansion projects
for State owned street construction projects located within the City of Jacksonville in the amount of $67
million was completed in fiscal year 2005.

-11 -



The following Table A-2 provides a summary comparison of the ¢ity’s operations for the 2004 and 2005

fiscal year ends.

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Fines & Charpes for services
Operating grants/contributions
Capital grants/contributions
General revenues:
Property/utility service/sales taxes
Intergovernmental
Unrestricted earnings on investrrents
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenses
General governiment
Human Services
Public safety
Cultural and recreational
Transportation
Economic & physical enviromment
Interest on long term debt
Parking system
Sports complex
Motor vehicle inspections
Solid Waste
Fery
Total Expenses
Increases (decreases) in net assets
before special iterrs and transfers
Special itemrefunded state bonds
Special itemenvironmental settlernent
& remediation
Transfers

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year - restated

Net assets, end of year

(In Thousands)
as of September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2004
Governmental Business Type Total Prinary
Activities Activities Government
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

5 136273 § 105084 & 62,166 S 57472 % 198439 § 162,556
175,722 166,837 - 220 175,722 167,057
50,241 67,970 - - 50,241 67,970
649,001 602,606 - - 649,001 602,606
202,510 190,917 - - 202,510 190,917
23,759 33,741 3,368 2,594 27127 36,335
43,610 26,771 1,488 2,132 45,008 28,903
1,281,206 1,193,926 67,022 62,418 1,348,228 1,256,344
160,341 191,705 - - 160,341 191,705
107,588 100,120 - - 107,588 100,120
414,490 367,308 - - 414,490 367,308
88,875 60,955 - - 88,875 60,955
236,998 129,734 - - 236,998 129,734
135,929 119,621 - - 135,929 119,621
90,738 92,477 - - 90,738 92,477

- - 5116 4,298 5,116 4298

- - 25,088 21,995 25,088 21,995

- - 555 451 555 451

- - 83,506 77,588 83,500 77588

- - 1,943 2,063 1,943 2,063
1,234,959 1,061,920 116,208 106,395 1,351,167 1,168,315
46,247 132,006 (49,186) 43,977 (2,939) 88,029
- (79,218) - - - (79,218)

(87,995) (87.995)

(35,301) (25,723) 35301 25,723 - -
10,946 27,065 (101,880) (18,254) (90,934) 8811
733,138 706,286 26419 44,673 759,557 750,959
S 744,084 § 733351 $ (75461) $ 26419 $ 668623 $ 759,770
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Business-type activities: Operations were stable except for the following items: the $25 million ash site
settlement and $63 million ash site remediation noted above is recorded as a special item — environmental
settlement & remediation in the Business Type Activitics and an additional $12.9 million expense was
recognized for closure/post closure liability at the landfill.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS

As noted carlier, the City of Jacksonville uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the City of Jacksonville’s governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing
the city’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of fiscal year 2005. The City of Jacksonville
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Jacksonville’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $708 million. Approximately 34.6% of this total amount constitutes unreserved fund
balance. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending
because it has already been committed to pay for encumbrances, to provide for prepaid items, to pay for debt
service, and to provide for advances to other funds.

All non-major funds of each governmental fund type with legally adopted annual budgets are included in the
Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual. The
General Fund Budget and Actual Schedule is included as RSI following the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Jacksonville. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $48.3 million, with $40 million designated by City Council
as an emergency reserve in next year’s budget. The General Fund’s total fund balance is $63 million.

Key factors affecting the general fund’s fiscal 2004/2005 operations are as follows:

¢  Property taxes account for 47.7%, almost half of the general fund revenue and increased 6.4% over
the previous year. The Ad Valorem millage rate was reduced for the tenth consecutive year of
millage cuts, resulting in a 1.53 mill decrease over the ten years. This represents savings to
taxpayers of approximately $59.9 million in the fiscal year 2005 and cumulative savings of $226.1
million over the ten-year period.

e The contribution to Shands Hospital/Jacksonville in support of indigent care has been maintained at
$23.8 million, An additional transfer of $5 million has been provided for debt relief.

¢ The city continued its commitment to Public Safety by increasing funding by $22 million for 45 new
positions for on-scene firefighting capability and support staff, as well as to staff the newly opened
Station #18. The Jacksonville Sheriff’s Office received 62 new positions for the Corrections
Division (13), Investigations and Homeland Security Division (12), Police Operations (19), Personal
and Professional Standards Division (11), and Administration Division (7). Additionally, 38 part-
time positions were converted to permanent full-time positions. Funding was also provided for a
replacement helicopter, automated fingerprint machine, and other technological equipment.

*  The new main public library was completed in fiscal year 2005, along with six new branch libraries
at a total cost of approximately $130 million. Additional funding for 129 new library positions was
appropriated by Council.

¢ The early literacy program managed by the Jacksonville Children’s Commission began and provided
$5 million in services.

e Aging computer systems at the Tax Collector, Property Appraiser, and Clerk of the Courts were
replaced with new systems. Additional positions (25) for these County Constitutional operations
were funded.
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Proprietary Funds: The City of Jacksonville’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Public Parking continues its progress
towards having positive net assets with a positive change of $923 thousand this year, although ending year
net assets are negative $4.6 million. The other major proprietary fund is Solid Waste. Factors concerning
this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Jacksonville’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: The City Council Finance Committee performs detailed reviews of
each area of the Annual Budget. The Council Finance Committee began its work shortly after the Mayor
delivered his proposed budget on July 13®, and completed its review and made final recommendations on
September 20", During the review period, the Finance Committee held hearings with the individual
departments, heard from a variety of community organizations and concerned citizens, and discussed matters
of particular interest with the Council Auditor’s staff and the Administration. All meetings were open to the
public. The Budget was ultimately adopted on September 28th and was signed into law by the Mayor on
October 1st.

The City Council amends and supplements the budget appropriations throughout the year. Major
supplemental appropriations were made to fund the Fire Department for FEMA related reimbursed costs
($9.1 million) from the four hurricanes that struck in the late summer of 2004 and to fund the Office of the
Sheriff for $1.1 million for SuperBowl related costs.

The budget has a final amendment called the Ommnibus BT, which aligns departmental budgets with
departmental expenditures, and is a zero sum expenditure appropriation.

The actual charges to appropriations (expenditures, transfers out, and carryover encumbrances) were $6.3
million below the final budgeted amount. This does not include the $40 million budgeted, but not used, cash
carry forward emergency reserve.

Resources available for appropriations were $1.9 million below the final budgeted amount. Actual interest
revenue was $14.5 million below budget. In June 2005, the city elected to reverse the $450 million in
invested swaps (with a remaining life of 3.5 years) at a cost of $4.2 million. Over the 18 months the swaps
were in place, the city experienced a net gain of $9.7 million. Due to rising interest rates any attempt to
reverse the swaps later would have been increasingly more expensive,

Positive variances occurred with $11.2 million additional property tax revenue and $3.1 intergovernmental
Communication Service Tax revenue.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
The City of Jacksonville’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2005, amounts to $2.3 billion (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, infrastructure, and construction in

progress (see Table A-3). Additional information on the City of Jacksonville’s capital assets can be found in
Notes to the Financial Statement, Footnote 6 of this report.
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Table A-3
Capital Assets

Net of Accumulated Depreciation

(In Thousands)

as of September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2004

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Land $ 278944 % 270,698 $7,074 $ 7,074 $286,018 $277,772

Buildings and improvements 938,080 847,172 74,483 74,137 1,012,563 921,309

Furniture & Equipment 65,467 55,960 8,137 9,173 73,604 65,133

Construction in progress 117,573 143,692 - - 117,573 143,692

Infrastructure 1,195,888 1,074,057 - - 1,195,888 1,074,057
Captial assets reported in

Internal Service Funds, net 80,739 61,798 - - 80,739 61,798

Less accumulated depreciation (441,323) (397,649) (42,139) (38437 (483,462) (436,086)

Total $ 2,235,368 $ 2,055,728 $ 47,555 $51,947 $ 2,282,923 $ 2,107,675

Major project costs in fiscal year 2005 included the following:

Debt Administration

Library Projects

Public Works Road Projects
Countrywide Resurfacing
Drainage Projects
Infrastructure Projects
Park Department Projects
Building Projects

Fire Department Projects
Shipyards Project

Septic Tank Remediation
Courthouse Project
Miscellaneous Projects

$ 32.2 million
20.3 million
7.7 million
7.4 million
4.5 million
4.3 million
3.9 million
3.4 million
2.5 million
2.3 million
2.2 million
1.7 million

Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, interest and principal
on most general governmental obligations. Individual debt service funds are described below.

The Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, principal and interest on the city’s special and limited bonded obligations payable solely from
and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the revenues under the respective bond ordinances.

The Special Bonded Debt - Better Jacksonville Plan Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the city’s special bonded obligations payable,
which are related to the Better Jacksonville Plan,

The Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, principal and interest on other non-bonded debt obligations including the U. S. Government
Guaranteed Notes Payable (HUD 108 loans).
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At year-end the city had $2.2 billion in bonds and notes outstanding as shown in Table A-4. Additional
information on the City of Jacksonville’s long term-debt can be found in Notes to the Financial Statement,
Footnote 8 of this report.

Table A-4
Bonds and Notes Payable
Outstanding Debt at Year End

(In Thousands)
Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total
005 2004 2003 004 2005 004
Special Obligation Bonds 5 955,206 § 1,035,101 $ - 3 - 3 955,206 § 1,035,101
Special Obligation-BIP 1,081,805 1,093,855 1,081,805 1,093,855
Revenue Bonds Payable - - 67,990 72,109 67,990 72,109
Notes Payable 67,085 8,980 - - 67,085 8,980
Notes Payable-BIP 18,319 - - - 18,319 -
Deferred Amounts 5,237 6,095 {2,343) (2,644) 2,894 3,451
Total $ 2,127,652 $ 2,144,031 $ 65,647 $ 69,465 $2,193,299 $ 2,213,496

The City of Jacksonville’s debt decreased by $20 million as compared to fiscal year 2004. The decrease was
primarily due to $99 million in debt reduction and $83 million in new debt. The new debt included $65
million of commercial paper issued to support an internal loan pool and $18.3 million borrowed from the
state to support the Better Jacksonville Plan projects. The city anticipates future debt activity to continue
funding the Better Jacksonville Plan, refinancing various bonds, and additional needs for drainage and park
improvements,

New indebtedness of the City of Jacksonville consists of}

Closing Date Par Amount Lien Primary Use
Nov 2004 $65,000,000 Excise Local Government Internal Loan Pool
Feb 2005 $18,319,000 SIB-Infra 2 Cent Sales Tax BIP roadwork projects

At September 30, 2005, the City of Jacksonville had $955 million in special obligation bonds payable from
specific revenue sources other than ad valorem taxes, $1.1 billion in special obligation bonds payable from
other specific revenue sources (Better Jacksonville Plan), $68 million in bonds payable from Enterprise
Funds, and $8.5 million in U.S. Government Guaranteed Notes.

All required principal and interest payments on outstanding debt were remitted timely and in full. The
reserve requirements and sinking fund remittances mandated by the bond covenants remain funded at the
prescribed levels at September 30, 2005.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The State of Florida, by constitution, does not have a state personal income tax and therefore the State
operates primarily using sales, gasoline and corporate income taxes. Local governments (cities, counties and
school boards) primarily rely on property and a limited array of permitted other taxes (sales, gasoline, utilities
services, etc.) and fees (franchise, occupational license, etc.) for their governmental activities. There are a
limited number of state-shared revenues and recurring and non-recurring (one-time) grants from both the state
and federal governments.

The FY2006 General Fund budget appropriations include $46.5 million appropriated from the Fund Balance
of the General Fund, of which $40 million will be put in to an emergency reserve fund. The emergency
reserve shall not be used except as initiated by the Mayor through written communication to City Council,
explaining the emergency, and subsequent approval by two-thirds vote of all City Council members.

Other Economic Factors:

®  The unemployment rate for the City of Jacksonville is less than 3.5%. This compares favorably to
the state’s average unemployment rate (3.5%) and the national average unemployment rate (5.1%).
Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.
The majority of the city’s job growth comes from Jacksonville based businesses.
Jacksonville has the largest Empowerment Zone in the nation.
Jacksonville has a major port, home to the National Football League’s (NFL) Jacksonville Jaguars, is
the insurance and financial center of Florida, and is the site of key U.S. Navy bases,

Budget Highlights for fiscal 2005-2006:

s Ad Valorem millage rate was reduced for the eleventh consecutive year of millage cuts, resulting in
a 1.67 mill decrease over the eleven years. This represents savings to taxpayers of approximately
$63.4 million in the current year and cumulative savings of $289.4 million over the eleven-year
period. This is the lowest ad valorem millage rate for a major combined city/county in Florida.

o  General Fund revenues are up $55.9 million excluding transfers, which represents an 8.19%
increase.

* A separate fund (Emergency Reserve) was established. The initial goal for the Emergency Reserve
is $40 million. The goal of this Reserve is equal to approximately 7% of the total General
Fund/General Services District budgeted expenditures. All other one time reserves and General
Fund revenues in excess of expenditures in subsequent fiscal years shall be set aside in a reserve
account until the reserve is equal to 5% of the total General Fund/General Services District budgeted
expenditures.

Established a budget stabilization reserve of $5 million,

Funding to the Jacksonville Children’s Commission for $21.5 million includes $5.13 million for the
Mayor’s Early Literacy Initiative. The Comumission provides all local governmental services to
children.

The contribution to Shands Hospital/Jacksonville in support of indigent care is $23.8 million.
Funded the Cultural Council with $3.75 million.

The Office of the Sheriff received additional funding for overtime of approximately $3.2 million as
well as $2.7 million for inmate health care and food service contract increases. Thirty positions were
transferred from COPS Ahead grant funding into the General Fund-GSD at a cost of approximately
$1.2 million.

®  The Supervisor of Elections received $480,000 for staffing at early voting sites used prior to the
election. Additional monies totaling $300,000 was provided for warehouse improvements needed
for storage of equipment as well as $271,000 to bring all polling locations into HAVA compliance.
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CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the city’s finances and to demonstrate the city’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Department of

Administration and Finance, Accounting Division, 117 West Duval Street, Suite 373, Jacksonville, Florida
32202, or call (904) 630-1250.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2005 (in thousands)

ASSETS:

Equity in cash and investments.......co.ooneeveincemnneniecrcreenes
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents...
Securities 1ending........vvvaveereenerrs

Receivables, Net .o v .
Due from independent agencies and other governments.......
INVENIOTIES..cviiictcnisi e e s e
Prepaid expenses and other assets......
Deferred charge - landfill related costs........ -
Other deferred charges........cocoovvererirr v e censeeneens

CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land and work in Progress.........ccccovicvciececccvvrvmnaecvnvensenens
Other capital assets, net of depreciation........ccocovvveevvvircrcncn.

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........cocvevririncrininnes
Contracts payable.......ceevnrererrrinires
Due to component units..
Due to independent agencies and other governments .
DEPOSILS. oottt i e s
Accrued interest payable..........coini e
Unearned revenue..........
Securities lending.....c.ooevevvreiiseennnninnccinnnne
Liabilities payable from restricted assets................
Other current [abilities. ... e,
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Due within one year.. ... enenn
Due in more than one year.......oioiinienenncceeiennnnn

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debi............cc.........

Restricted for:
Debt ServiCe. ..iviiriiiir e
Capital projects.
Permanent fund, non-expendable..... .
OLher PUIPOSES......coervrererriiminserseeteriesss e ssisseseenssasassanes
Unrestricted. . vt

TOTAL NET ASSETS (deficit)

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
TOTALS
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES 2005 2004 UNITS
$ 661,695 $ 54,317 $ 718,012 $ 872,156 $ 1,001,833
68,221 - 68,221 104,420 -
16,305 - 16,305 - -
40,295 4,507 44,802 42,667 251,194
104,326 20 104,346 116,715 52,392
3,354 5 3,359 2,724 130,663
18,253 309 18,562 15,316 380,804
- 29,463 29,463 31,692 -
- 424 424 4,296 -
397,930 7,074 405,004 421,522 1,500,359
1,837,438 40,481 1,877,919 1,686,153 5,587,260
3,147,817 136,600 3,284,417 3,297,561 8,904,505
53,647 31,774 85,421 88,744 154,036
5,315 1,341 6,656 10,723 -
- - - 2,200 -
30,068 - 30,068 597 27
1,689 3,518 5,207 3,590 25,317
46,969 1,682 48,651 51,339 92,375
7,993 334 8,327 7,180 26,361
16,305 - 16,305 - -
- - - - 12,682
- - - - 92,633
89,935 4,766 94,691 81,698 121,819
2,151,812 168,656 2,320,468 2,291,720 5,665,198
2,403,733 212,061 2,615,794 2,537,791 5,190,448
641,558 13,742 655,300 587,887 1,930,215
74,106 - 74,106 64,384 7,213
120,700 12170 132,870 130,030 88,517
123 123 123 -
- 3,327 3,327 1,662 309,341
(92,403) {104,700) {197,103} (24,316) 378,771
$ 744,084 $ (75.461) $ 668,623 $ 759,770 $ 2714057

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES -

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)
PROGRAM REVENUES PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
FINES AND
CHARGES OPERATING CAPITAL BUSINESS- TOTALS
FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERNMENTAL TYPE COMPONENT
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES  CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES 2005 2004 UNITS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental activities:
General governmen| $ 160,341 $ 87,297 $ 97,262 $ - $ 24,218 $ 24,218 ($50,684)
Human services.......... 107,588 1,367 11,696 - (94,525) (94,525) (82,741)
Public safety. 414,490 40,517 8,283 164 (365,5286) (365,526)  (317,196)
Culture and recreation 88,875 5,550 3,565 2,748 (77,022) (77,022) (49,496)
Transportation.... 236,998 220 - 43,021 (193,757) (193,757) (80,336)
Economic environment.. 83,832 - 51,298 4,269 (28,265) (28,265) (8,861)
Physical environment.... 52,097 1,322 3,628 39 (47,108) (47,108) (40,238)
Interest on long term debt. ... 90,738 - - - {90,738) (90,738) (92,477)
Total governmental activities.... 1,234,959 136,273 175,722 50,241 (872,723) (872,723) _ (722,029)
Business-type activities:
Parking system... 5,116 3,013 - - (2,103) (2,103) (1,650)
Sports complex... 25,088 16,605 - - (8,483) (8,483) (8,480)
Motor vehicle inspection: 555 481 - - (74) (74) (63)
Solid Waste. 83,506 41,120 - - (42,386) (42,386) (37,465)
Ferry . 1,943 947 - - (9986) (996) (1,045)
Total business-type activities.... 116,208 62,166 - - (54,042) (54,042) (48,703)
Total primary government.... $ 1,351,167 $ 198,439 $ 175,722 $ 50,241 (872,723) (54,042) (926,765) (770,732)
COMPONENT UNITS:
Governmental activities.......... $ 76780 § 1,516 $ 10,640 $ 60,553 $ 4,071)
Business-type activities 1,634,170 1,310,978 59,917 6,745 156,530)
Total component unitS......... $1,610,950 §1,312,404 $ 70,557 $ 67,298 (160,801)
General revenues:
Property taxes. 365,466 - 365,456 343,870 -
Utility service taxes....... 99,463 - 99,463 95,629 -
Sales and tourist taxes 184,172 - 184,172 163,107 71,717
Intergovernmental - unrestricted 202,510 - 202,510 190,917 -
Unrestricted earnings on investment 23,759 3,368 27127 36,335 37,364
Gain on disposition of fixed assets....... - - - - 1,020
Miscellaneous. . 43,610 1,488 45,098 28,903 55,640
Special item - refunded state BONds......nrvcim s - - - (79,218) -
Special item - environmental settlements and remediations............cooee.... - (87,995) (87,995) - -
Transfers (35,301) 35,301 - - -
Total general revenues, special items, and {ransfers. ... e 883,669 (47,838) 835,831 779,543 165,741
Change in net assets. ... 10,946 (101,880) (90,934) 8,811 5,140
Net assets, beginning of year........... 733,351 26,419 759,770 750,959 2,707,267
Prior period adjustment (213) - (213) - 1,650
Net assets, beginning of year, as restated 733,138 26,419 759,557 750,859 2,708,917
Net assets (deficit), end of year....... $ 744,084 ($75.461) $668,623 $759,770 $2,714,057

See accompanying notes.
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MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to account for all activities
not included in other funds. The General Fund accounts for the normal recurring activities of
the City (i.e, police, fire, public works, courts, general government, etc.). These activities are
funded principally by property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and licenses and fees.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the City’s special and limited bonded
obligations payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the revenues under
the respective bond ordinances.

The Special Bonded Debt - Better Jacksonville Plan Obligations Fund accounts for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the City's special
bonded obligations payable, which are related to the Better Jacksonville Plan.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Bond Projects Fund receives proceeds from the sale of bonded debt issued by the City
to fund major capital improvement projects.

The General Projects Fund receives monies appropriated from the General Fund and other
sources including proceeds from non-bonded debt for general capital improvements,

The Better Jacksonville Plan Construction Projects Fund receives revenues from the two
local option sales tax programs and proceeds from the sale of bonded debt issued by the City
to fund projects under the Better Jacksonville Plan.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

SPECIAL
BONDED DEBT-
BETTER
SPECIAL JACKSONVILLE
GENERAL BONDED DEBT PLAN BOND
FUND OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS PROJECTS
ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments....., $ 30,208 $ 68,376 $ 60,611 $ 63,421
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents.......c..ooveevvvriinniinicnenne 329 25,650 34,355 276
Receivables {net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes..oon. - - .
Accounts and interest.. 7,176 - -
Mortgages.. 43 N .
Other.............. 1,314 - -
Due from other funds...........coceoveeerermrronnrcrsnneenns - - -
Due from independent agencies and other governments.. 55,424 - -
Inventories... 1,439 - -
Prepaid items - .
TOTAL ASSETS $ 96,023 $ 94,026 $ 94,966 $ 63,697
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities.......ccoreverererivcorvcrninnes $ 23,852 $ - $ $ 3,200
Contracts payable. .....ovvveiinreriinn 7 - - 2,567
Due to other funds.., - B - 968
Due to component units...... - - -
Due to independent agencies and other govermnments.. 3,938 - - -
Due 10 IndivIAUALS......coviimeiimriic e e - - - -
DEPOSIIS ..o sesc st e sn e e mr st s e eme b enae e earens 640 - - -
UNEarned TEVEIUE. ..........orvirerereeirirrereieeereeeieeeseeeeteeeeesieserenasesseens 4,591 - - -
Advances from other funds..,.......ccveenienriensincene sy - - . .
TOTAL LIABILITIES 33,028 - - 6,735
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
ENCUMBIANCES. .. ovvicrrieeeieeirevieeee st saerstesressetessesseresmseanessevestanes 12,917 - - 19,042
Imprest cash and cash N ESCIOW.....vciiisc s 329 25,650 34,365 276
Mortgages TeCEIVADIE.....vevieeereccriiev e eecre v eresennteen 43 . -
INVENLOTIES .o tieiveeeite ettt ettt se e s enee e e 1,439 . - -
DIEDL SEIVICE. .o eorvivienree s v eenre et b et e e s e - 58,376 60,611 -
Unreserved:
Designated for capital Projects....cc e iennennreneceereneniareees 5,059 - 37,644
Reported in nonmajor special revenue funds.......cocveecenne - - -
Designated for subsequent years' budget
Reported in nonmajor special revenue funds............cooceeee - - - -
Designated for changes in fair value of investments - - - -
Reported in nonmajor special revenue funds.........covene - - - -
Reported in nonmajor capital projects funds.......c.ceevvenenens - - - .
Designated for next year's budget appropriation.......ccecoveeren. 41,490 - - R
Undesignated (deficit).......cviirerinereerivnnrsensresesesseessrsseens 1,718 - - -
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor;
Special revenue funds........oooviiecren e - - B
Capital projects FUNdS.......covveevievriviereisnicenesnesoresieseeie s - - - R
Permanent fund.........coconennceereeersseeersressesssnsesseseneecens - - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 62,995 94,026 94,966 56,962
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.......cocveeen $ 96,023 $ 94,026 $ 94,966 $ 63,697

See accompanying notes.
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BETTER

JACKSONVILLE
PLAN NON MAJOR TOTALS
GENERAL CONSTRUCTION GOVERNMENTAL
PROJECTS PROJECT FUNDS 2005 2004
$ 24,277 $ 199,848 $ 145,261 $ 592,092 $ 759,555
. . 7,611 68,221 104,420
- . - - 28
- - 2,974 10,150 6,913
. - 10,650 10,693 10,413
- - 1,314 2,618
629 - 629 .
) . 45,615 101,039 113,483
- . 66 1,505 1,270
- - - - 1,384
$ 24,908 $ 199,848 _8$212177_ $785643  $ 1,000,084
$ 1,868 $ 6,934 $ 11,024 $ 46,878 $ 66,024
364 2,183 194 5315 9,395
- . 629 1,597 3,027
- - . . 2,200
. - 1,044 4,082 164
. - 270 270 416
- - 1,047 1,687 1,563
. - 1,505 6,096 5,770
10,991 . 10,991 11,548
13,223 9,117 15,713 77,816 100,107
5,124 190,731 31,983 259,797 456,517
- 2,717 63,327 104,710
- 9,525 9,568 9,213
- . 1,439 1,270
. - 146 129,133 143,457
6,559 - - 49,262 104,358
. . 878 878 701
) . 34 34 39
- - - . 282
. - - . 108
- - - 7
. . 41,490 65,045
. 1,718 (103,793)
. 147,142 147,142 112,213
- 3,861 3,861 5,674
- 178 178 176
11,683 190,731 196,464 707,827 899,977
§ 24,906 $ 199,848 $212,177 § 785643 $1,000,084
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City of Jacksonville, Florida
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2005
(in thousands)

Total fund balances- governmental funds $ 707,827

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds 2,154,629

Long term liabilities - liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
are not reported in the funds:

Bonds and notes payable (2,064,619)
Unamortized bond discounts 3,783
Unamortized bond premium (14,560)
Unamortized loss on advance refunding of debt 5,540
Total bonds and notes payable (2,069,856)

Certain assets and liabilities reported in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Compensated absences (other than internal service funds) (51,526)
Interest payable (46,969)
Umamortized bond issuance costs 14,205

Excess funds distribution to component unit (22,459)
Estimated settlement for Shipyards project (2,500)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,

such as fleet maintenance and insurance, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities

of internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement

of net assets. This amount represents net assets of the internal service funds. 60,733

Net assets of governmental activities $ 744,084

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

SPECIAL
BONDED DEBT-
BETTER
SPECIAL JACKSONVILLE
GENERAL BONDED DEBT PLAN BOND
FUND OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS PROJECTS
REVENUE:
Property taxes........oocoimvninmmersioninn o $ 360,768 $ - $ - $ -
Utility Service taxes....... 99,463 - - -
Sales and tourist taxes.... . - - - -
Licenses and permitS.......c.ccevvvrrieresreviomsnrssseresesrons 9,045 - - -
Intergovernmental........c...ccooeoviiniciimneciecnenee e, 152,249 - 10,810 -
Charges for services.... 65,257 - - -
Fines and forfeitures 5135 - - -
Payment in lieu of taXes......c..coviverevrvvininensrecarersrereesns 85,938 - - -
Interest. e veeveineirincrsienns 5,049 2,878 3,919 1,458
OIHET...c..octineceeinrier e et sse e 15,756 - - -
Total Revenue.......cccooeivciceivnnimrer e s seere ey 788,660 2,878 14,729 1,458
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General govVernment.........coveevvevivevenieeesseerersenienans 107,987 - - 1,846
Human services 73,454 - - -
Public safety.....cvevnevieciinne e 385,310 - - -
Culture and recreation.............oceeviveeceseecsrsvesrenciseens 68,546 - - -
Transportation 35,259 - - -
Economic environment.........cccccovenenniiniecicnenn 18,477 - - -
Physical environment.............c.coovveercrenerecnreresieenens 12,990 - - -
Capital Outlay...coeeeceererineniere s e, - - - 48,615
Debt service:
Principal.......ccooceneninnneen - 40,810 12,050 -
Interest and fiscal charges... - 44,514 48,016 -
Other - cost of ISSUANCE. ......ccvivirievtisrsrrerren s - - - 487
Total EXPERdItUIes....c.cerevvireeeriersreereremrireeeresseieeniecns 702,023 85,324 60,066 50,948
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 86,637 (82,446) (45,337) 49,490)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Long term debt issued.......ccovvvvvnrcrenre e - - - -
Discount on special obligation bonds payable.......... - - - -
Payment to escrow agent - refunded bonds............... - (40,668) - -
Transfers in.......coooooninnvecrire e e 15,588 78,018 35,840 -
Transfers out.........ocoeoecrvernienincriinne ... _(128,339) - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (112,751} 37,350 35,840 -
SPECIAL ITEM:
Payment to escrow agent - refunded state bonds....... - - - -
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES......c.....  (26,114) (45,096) (9,497) (49,490)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING
OF YEAR, a8 restated........coevemeueerevrrcneenemereeieereenens 89,109 139,122 104,463 106,452

Change in reserve for inventory of supplies..............

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR.....ccocccsevsniese

$ 62,995

$ 94,026

$ 94,966

$ 56,962

See accompanying notes.

-32-



BETTER

JACKSONVILLE
PLAN NON MAJOR TOTALS
GENERAL CONSTRUCTION  GOVERNMENTAL

PROJECTS PROJECT FUNDS 2005 2004
$ - $ . $ 4,688 $ 365,456 $ 343,870
. . - 99,463 95,629
. - 184,172 184,172 163,107
- - - 9,045 8,524
1,104 41215 98,835 302,213 297,639
- . 65,779 121,036 85,789
- - 1,057 6,192 10,771
. . - 85,938 83,188
558 4,665 3,149 21,676 34,489
3,650 280 23,923 43,609 26,771
5,312 46,160 379,603 1,238,800 1,149,777
- - 29,259 139,092 117,428
- - 33,650 107,104 100,212
- - 26,744 412,054 358,964
. - 9,520 78,066 78,392
- - 105,936 141,195 130,473
- - 59,846 78,323 68,675
- - 8,225 21,215 19,271
14,317 185,615 10,531 259,078 337,896
- - 460 53,320 47,415
- - 544 93,074 79,183
- 1,286 - 1,773 4,033
14,317 186,901 284,715 1,384,294 1,341,942
__(9,005) 140,741 94888 (145,494) (192,165)
- 18,319 - 18,319 371,775
- - - - (2,778)
- - - (40,668) -
893 42,923 34,853 208,115 232,249
(6,580) - (97,290) (232,209) (232,721)
(5,687) 61,042 (62,437) (46,443) 368,525
. - - - (79,218)
(14,692) (79,499) 32,451 (191,937) 97,142
26,375 270,230 164,013 899,764 802,833
- - - - 2
$ 11,683 $ 190,731 $ 196,464 $ 707,827 $ 899,977
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City of Jacksonville, Florida

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For The Year Ended September 30, 2005
(in thousands)

Net change in fund balances- total governmental funds:
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense. Also, certain capital assets are contributed
to the City upon completion, requiring recognition of income not reported in the funds.
Capital assets acquired by use of financial resources
Capital assets contributed by developers
Capital assets transferred from proprietary funds of the city
Current year depreciation
Loss on disposition of assets

Governmental funds report certain bond transactions as resources or uses. However, in the
statement of activities these transactions are reported over the life of the debt as expenses.
Payment to escrow agent
Amortization of issuance costs
Amortization of bond discounts
Additional current year interest expense, bond premiums
Amortization - loss on refunding

40,668
(696)
(155)

1,019
(409)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in governmental funds, but the repayment
results in a reduction of long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Issuing debt
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Long term debt issued
Principal repayment

(18,319)
54,052

Some revenues and expenses reported in the statement of activities did not require the use of
or provide current financial resources and therefore are not reported in governmental funds:
Accrued interest expense
Reduction in accrued interest receivable
Increases in compensated absences payable
Arbitrage rebate payable
Excess funds distribution to component unit
Estimated settlement for Shipyards project

Changes in reserves for inventory
Internal service funds are used to charge the cost of certain activities to individual funds. The
net revenue (expense) and transfers are reported with governmental activities.
Interest income
Other operating expenses
Loss from operations
Transfers out

Change in Net Assets - Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes.
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175,017

40,322
178

(53,578)

(2,306)

40,427

35,733

2,577
(8)
(754)

1,846
(22,459)
(2,500)

2,091

(4,554)
2,235

(11,384)

$

$

(191,937)

159,633

54,362

(11,612)

10,946



MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises and where the costs of providing goods or services to the
general public are recovered primarily through user charges; or where the city has decided
that determination of net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other purposes. Individual major enterprise funds are
described below.

The Public Parking System Fund accounts for the City's on-street, off-street, and parking
garage facility operations, including revenue collection and enforcement.

The Solid Waste Disposal Fund accounts for collection, recycling, and disposal of
commercial and residential garbage services throughout the City, including operation of three
municipally owned landfill sites, two of which are closed.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments.......c.vwiiennrinnnnon
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
Accounts

Due from independent agencies and other governments..
Advances to other funds....
Inventories

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Sinking fund cash and investments........cccecereerercerereernnnes
Construction fund cash and investments...........cceeveereerennn,
Accounts and interest receivable............cvceiieeeiiceinnn,
Other recEiVables.. it inisersreeresseres.

CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land and work in progress..........ccceveeeerenmrreenenenerirenneae
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Deferred charge - Landfill related costs......vovueeercenrenn.
Other deferred charges

Total NONCUITENt ASSEtS....ccuviiriiiiiiieiiiicecieerirrrrserssinneesens

TOTAL ASSETS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

PUBLIC SOLID TOTALS INTERNAL
PARKING WASTE  NONMAJOR SERVICE
SYSTEM __ DISPOSAL ENTERPRISE 2005 2004 FUNDS
S 1,558 $ 35336 $ 1,025 $ 37919 § 37,481  § 69,603
23 1,924 2,297 4,244 3,891 83

- - . - - 2,221

- - - - - 968

- 8 12 20 122 3,287

- - - - - 10,991

- - 5 5 10 1,849

- - 309 309 415 4,048

1,581 37,268 3,648 42,497 41,919 93,050

- . 3,064 3,064 1,662 -

- 13,334 - 13,334 13,257 -

- . 263 263 208 -

- - - - - 15,834

4,573 1,859 642 7,074 7,074 1,413
8,088 28,433 3,960 40,481 44,873 79,326

- 29,463 - 29,463 31,592 -

) 424 - 424 463 -

12,661 73,513 7,929 94,103 99,129 96,573
$ 14,242 $ 110,781 $ 11,577 $ 136,600 _$ 141,048 $ 189,623
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
PUBLIC SOLID TOTALS INTERNAL
PARKING WASTE NON MAJOR SERVICE
SYSTEM  DISPOSAL ENTERPRISE 2005 2004 FUNDS
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..........coocerrennees $ 117 $ 28,574 $ 3,083 $ 31,774 7,728 $ 6,500
CONracts PAYADIE......cvvciiceir e e seeene - 1,341 - 1,341 1,328 -
Due to independent agencies and other governments....... - - “ - 7 127
Capitalized lease obligations, current portion.................. - - - - - 78
DEPOSIES. ..cvviericicreisrerir i oo trstoreresnsensaneessare e sesenens 87 104 3,327 3,518 2,025 2
Accrued Interest payable.....ovvrieecinivreeinenieres s enrensennes 417 1,265 - 1,682 1,793 -
Current portion of bonds payable. 1,460 3,085 - 4,525 4,643 -
Deferred revenue........ccvercerierriencererennans - - 334 334 428 1,897
Accrued compensated absences, current portion 41 178 12 231 225 895
Total Current Liabilities.........ccuveeeveieieveieeiereeeresresesenenns 2,122 34,527 6,756 43,405 18,177 9,499
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Estimated liability for self-insured 108S€s....c..couevvviererenne - - - - - 58,595
Estimated liability for ash sites remediations........... - 62,995 - 62,995 - -
Liability for landfill closure and postclosure care.... - 44,003 - 44,003 31,104 -
Accrued compensated abSENCes........ccveevcerpirrirrernens 95 414 27 536 526 2,088
Capitalized lease obligations........c.vrmrvsmerieiiiiinne e, - - - - - 143
NOtEs PaYable....vviiiiieiriiieeeievee e eres s srenssrens - - - - - 58,565
Bonds Payable...c.cv e e 16,723 44,399 - 61,122 64,822 -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities....c.cc.oeoer v icirirvnninnsesnnns 16,818 151,811 27 168,656 96,452 119,391
TOTAL LIABILITIES 18,940 186,338 8,783 212,061 114,629 128,890
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.................... 6,364 2,776 4,602 13,742 12,288 46,715
Restricted for:
Capital..ocorcirererrrrnnnne. 880 11,290 - 12,170 11,929 -
Restricted - others - - 3,327 3,327 1,662 -
UDLESIRCIE. 1ovvo oot seesereeeaeee s (11,942) {89,623) (3,135) (104,700) 539 14,018
TOTAL NET ASSETS (deficit) $ (4,698) $ (75,557) $ 4,794 $ _(75461) § 26419 $ 60,733
See accompanying notes. -37 -
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
PUBLIC SOLID TOTALS INTERNAL
PARKING WASTE NON MAJOR SERVICE
SYSTEM DISPOSAL ENTERPRISE 2005 2004 FUNDS
OPERATING REVENUE:
Charges fOr SErViCes.....oiviireriereerersenrsesrernsrenscsnens $ 3,013 $ 41,120 $ 18,033 $ 62,166 $ 57472 $179,082
Charges for services for independent authorities.... - - - - - 13,702
- - - - - 5,152
3,013 41,120 18,033 62,166 57,472 197,936
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personal SErvICES...uvieinrierrieieieereeeeeereereesrvsraanee 1,485 6,528 13,506 21,519 19,824 27,321

Supplies and materials..........occocerivvrcicirininrnnennn, 65 1,453 3,712 5,230 4,700 18,431

CRITAl SEIVICES. vvererrrvrerirrrreseriinnerrsrnresesrnesseensiones 922 1,828 301 3,051 2,102 4613

Interdepartmental charges 57 33t 1,819 2,207 1,646 -

Other services and charges.........cc.coeevvececrvrnevnnrinens 1,388 66,766 7,885 76,039 70,163 29,403

Depreciation and amortization..........eereerienirinene. 366 4,070 363 4,799 4,559 23,114

Court reporter services - - - - - 50

Claims and 108SES....c.ccceerreriererrecrereneresenr e - - - - - 21,817

Insurance premiums and participant dividends......, - - - - - 70,952
Total Operating EXPenses........cocovennianinsncncnrannnn,s 4,283 80,976 27,586 112,845 102,994 195,701
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)....ccucmmrrsesnesnes (1,270) (39,856) (9,553) (50,679) (45,522) 2,235
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):

Interest TeVENUE......cocooco v ecsrer e 2,611 735 22 3,368 2,594 2,041

Interest expense........ .- (833) {2,530) - (3,363) (3,401) -

Operating grants... - - - - 220 -

Oher ..oty 8 1,480 - 1,488 2,132 (4,554)
Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses).........ov. 1,786 (315) 22 1,493 1,545 (2,463)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS......... . 516 (40,171) (9,531) (49,186) (43,977) (228)
TRANSFERS:

Transfers iN....ioveiviinienire e s 1,369 25,825 9,312 36,506 40,683 4,266

Transfers OUL......cciivioieennicr e e (1,021) (184) - (1,205) (14,960) (15,650)
Total Transfers 348 25,641 9,312 35,301 25,723 (11,384)
SPECIAL ITEMS:

Environmental settlements and remediations.......... - (87,995) - (87,995) - -
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 864 (102,525) {219) (101,880) (18,254)  (11,612)
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT),

BEGINNING OF YEAR (5.562) 26,968 5,013 26,419 44,673 72,345
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT),
END OF YEAR (% 4,698) ($ 75,557) $4,794 ($ 75,461) $ 26,419 $ 60,733

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
PUBLIC
PARKING
__SYSTEM _
CASH FI.LOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts fTOM CUSTOMETS. .. ... ot et sb s snsssssesesesssssans cesessasissessssssnssens $ 2,990
Payments t0 SUPPLETS. oo e rcreeecrererseeeeeetriet et tere s e srasress st e cen s srssnn e (2,357)
Payments t0 €MPIOYEES ....coviiriieirinrinicnisienen s rsssesnsssssasss e s assnssnsrsssnssons (1,485)
Internal activity- payments to other funds.........c.coveeivierieieeieicreecireres e enens -
Other 18CEIPLS (EXPEIISEE)uvitrurriereerarerrinserrseriisissstesessstesensseressstosssssesserasessssaresesssessaes 8
Other operating cash PAYIMEIES. .....cccoeeerriririrceiete e sae s sescese s esensesnseenes 302
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.............. {1,146)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating grants reCEIVEd......cvvmmiiriiiiiissiimitien s srsesesseressssesssessssens -
Cash received through transfers from other funds..., 1,369
Cash received from capital contributions........ceveeren. -
Cash payments through transfers to other funds. ... mieer s vsreeseseeenres (1.021)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES ..ottt sesseneeseene s n e e saene 348
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and eqUIPMENL....ccoovrrevrireisrerermecrnieirs s (366)
Additions to land & IMPrOVEMENTS. i ueiieiminirerieirssesreseesteiesieseseessesssesesseseses -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment.........ccoucueeeeeevereceeeveeiesiesenenns 263
Increase in construction fund cash and iInVesStMENtS.......cccveeeviiveeccvesncreee e -
Principal paid on long-term obligations......c.occceeerrevnarmmmen i (756)
Increase in capitalized lease obligations (1)
Proceeds from Notes PayabIC........ccvic v e snes e resenanes -
Interest and payments to refunded bond €sCrow agent...........ccoocevvievverrcenirnrserecerenenes 833
NET CASH (USED IN) CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES.........cccoivtrrinerirsinrnesieessaressersssssessevessesassssnesssessenes (1,693)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and dividends ON INVESHNENES........oiiiviiiiiciciieeeeerrieressreeserssnessraesseessasssresnes 2,611
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES......c..cocviier e, 2,611
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS........ocvoven. 120

Cash and cash equivalents at October 1, 2004..........ccovevvineevminirenieenie et seeisssesaens 1,438

Cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2005............cocevimremrrervreererseereeeeseenns $ 1,558
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

SOLID TOTALS INTERNAL
WASTE NON MAJOR SERVICE
DISPOSAL ENTERPRISE 2005 2004 FUNDS
$ 41,892 $ 16,991 $ 61,873 $ 56,795 $ 197,167
(45,487) (9,196) (57,040) (75,211) (130,101)
(6,516) (13,501) (21,502) (19,892) (27,354)
(1) - M - -
1,480 - 1,488 2,132 (4,554)
(12,276) (3,689) (16,267) 5,268 (15,944)
{20,908) (9,395) (31,449) (30,908) 19,214
- - - 220 -
25,825 9,312 36,506 40,683 4,266
(184) - (1,205) (14,960) (15,650)
25,641 9,312 35,301 25,943 (11,384)
(4,070) (363) (4,799) (4,559) (40,700)
- - - - (1,355)
6,217 80 6,560 6,566 -
(77) (1,402) (1,479) (69} -
(2,944) - {3,700) (4,343) (13,479)
- - () 96 (3,550)
- - - (73) 58,565
{2,530) - (3,363) (3,401) -
(3,404) (1,685) (6,782) (5,783) 519
735 22 3,368 2,594 2,001
735 22 3,368 2,594 2,091
2,064 (1,746) 438 (8,154) 9,402
33,272 2,771 37,481 45,635 60,201
$ 35,336 $ 1,025 $ 37,919 $ 37,481 $ 69,603
(continued)

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands; continued)

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

PUBLIC
PARKING
__SYSTEM _

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS}....cecosmeerreeererersseieesaiceseuetssresesssenssessesssssessasesssss ($ 1,270)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization..........cocvveevrvverereenivnviensioneneas e oo 366

Other non-operating revenue/(expenses) 8
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other current assets, net.... (23)
Decrease in due from other funds...........cccooovviieicecrciennn s -
Decrease (increase) in due from independent agencies and other governments... -
Decrease in due from other ZOVETNMENTS.......ccceirveerrrrneivenrieierieserssesesessaessssnnes -
Decrease (InCrease) in INVENTOTIES. ..criceirererv i irnssssisisisssiesesessssberesmesssesssnenns -
(Increase) in receivables-NON-CUITENL. .......civcrerveierinsrererensienirssssieessnssesseresessnsteraees -
Decrease (increase) in prepaid SXPEISES.. .o riveereeieireieeeireeerieseesssessnesssseseseeesanes -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses 65
(Decrease) in due 10 other fUnds......ccccieniecicrcsrscien e e reressseseesenes -
Increase (decrease) in CONLracts PAYADIC......cvecimerrirrinisrisissiene s e steerirarsrreresns -
Increase (decrease) in due to independent agencies and other governments......... (7)
INCIEASE I AEPOSILS...oviiiiiiiie et et cert et esne bbb s e snarabesans 5
(Decrease) in interest payable..........cocevvecrveniirniicioiiine s st saeneraes (47)
Increase in current portion of bond payables (243)
Increase (decrease) in deferred TEVENUE. ....vvviniii e e e -
Increase in estimated liability for ash sites remediations .........oceeeveeiveriiieni e, -
Increase in liability for landfill closure and postclosure care -
(Decrease) in liability for self-insured 10sses......ccccvveceerecrienrnne, -
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences............... -
TOTAL ADIUSTMENTS..c.oiininiivisresinritnsinnninsesssssssrssesessesssssssesssrenens 124
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES.....cctioeirineeereeereceee s rers s srssnsnsesssaesasens ($ 1,146)
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Change in the fair vallle Of INVESUMENTS...uiiiiiciceeceeeeeeeee e e srarssasresesnesees ($ 14)
Change in capital lease ObliZations.....ccoccvi e rec i e esene e ene et senes -

TOTAL NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES.....co oot enr et et vsnsbas s st as s b a b st asberasnenenn $ 14
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

SOLID
WASTE
DISPOSAL

($ 39,856)

4,070
(86,515)

669
M
103

13

31
(64)
125
62,995
12,899
— 12
18,948

($ 20,908)

NON MAJOR
ENTERPRISE

($ 9,553)

363

(1,054)

($_9,395)

TOTALS

2005 2004
($ 50,679) ($ 45,522)
4,799 4,559
(86,507) 2,132
(408) (843)
(M -
103 151
- 10
5 (6)
106 (174)
27,373 1,576
13 68
7 1
(1,834) 15
(111) 116
(118) 518
(94) 179
62,995 .
12,899 6,380
17 (68)
19,230 14,614
($ 31,449) ($ 30,908)
($ 349) ($ 111)
($  343) $ 111)

INTERNAL
SERVICE

FUNDS

$§ 2,235

23,114
(4,554)

101
2,616
(177)

(405)

349
(1,599)
(6,247)

(346)

3,198
33
16,979

$ 19,214

$ 270
(17,047)

(§ 17,317)

See accompanying notes.
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FIDUCIARY FUND LEVEL
STATEMENTS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS are funds administered by independent boards for which the
City performs a fiduciary role under a defined benefit program. The participant's retirement
annuity is based on a statutory formula utilizing such factors as age, average salary, length of
service and others.

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND is used to report all trust arrangements, other than
those properly reported in pension trust funds, under which principal and income benefit
individuals. The City reports its James Brady Disabled Scholarship, Michael Jackson Music
Scholarship, J.B. Smith Memorial Scholarship, and Lex Hester Memorial Scholarship funds
as private purpose trusts.

AGENCY FUNDS are funds which hold monies in an agency capacity for various
government units, individuals or funds.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments.................coovvvrreivenne

Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):

Interest and dividends

ACCOUNS...overeriiainnn

Investments, at fair value:

U.S. Government obligations............ccvvevaveevernsnsereens
Municipal Bonds.........cc.ccovviiveniiinininniecrvreenrsinenns
Domestic corporate bonds.......ccveverreineeeeeesisvienenns
Commercial PAPEL..ic.irivcerrreriervrrsrseresienesssensesrens
Domestic St0CKS. it cevervr e e rennea
International stocks..
Real EState....cccecuveirrieveeiericrrercereerieeseeess s e nreneas

Total INVEStIMENLS...c..ecvviierieccreevresriereeee et s erennas

CAPITAL ASSETS
Other capital assets, net of depreciation...........oevverene.
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, Net.. i ceeeeeeonens

Securities Lending Collateral........cccecveernnncninmnonenoiena

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Obligations Under Securities Lending Agreement.......
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............cccvens.
Due to independent agencies and other governments...
Due to individuals.........ccoievinonerineierenrneninssesseneesenies

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued compensated absences........oovuvereereeeerereerirenns
Terminal Leave - Group Care....
Terminal Leave - Pending.........ovvvvviviincreonneinveenens
Due 10 Drop participants........coceveeeeseeiminnerisiscnsiseninnas

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS IELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION
BENEFITS AND OTHER PURPOSES........civniran.

PRIVATE
PENSION PURPOSE
TRUST TRUST AGENCY
FUNDS FUND FUNDS
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
$ 152,422  $ 108,963 $ 212 $ 210 $ 38,602 $ 18,767
8,541 9,395 - . . )
164 238 - - 3,993 3,408
8,705 9,633 - - 3,993 3,408
533,006 476,897 - - .
7,310 2,556 - _ .
332,401 371,162 . . - -
37,999 25,672 - . . _
1,200,970 1,145,358 . . .
222,479 257,620 - - . .
61,900 8,560 - . .
2,396,065 2,287,825 - . _
2,557,192 2,406,421 212 210 42 595 22,175
161 175 - . .
161 175 . - - N
236,285 - . . .
2,793,638 2,406,596 212 210 $ 42595 _$ 22,175
236,285 . . . . .
5,401 3,279 - - 64 318
. . . - 20,702 11,573
- - - . 2,382 740
- - - - 19,447 9,544
241,686 3,279 - - 42,595 22,175
32 57 - . . .
909 812 . - . .
250 242 . . . .
127,555 115,666 - . . .
370,432 119,856 - - $ 42,505  $ 22,175
$ 2423206 § 2,286,740 $ 212 $ 210

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

ADDITIONS

Contributions:
EMPIOYET ..ot s s s
Plan members
Total CONtHDULIONS. ... c.veveeveeeececeiceee e e

Other additions:

State insurance CONtribUtIONS. ...c.cccvvrrvriien e e

Court fines & penalties........ccovvereinienine i ree e

Parking revenues.........c.cccccccvvvcoevvnrersanens

Miscellaneous..............

Operating transfer in..............

Loss on sale of fixed assets....
Total other additions.........vvivrrirriinviire e ereerrere e e

Investment income:
Net appreciation
in fair value of investments.......ccceveveiiieeieiiceeereeirneenn
Interest

Less investment expense
Less rental expense...........
Net investment INCOMIC. ... e sneesenenns

From Securities Lending Activities:
Securities Lending.........cccoooveeeciremisiinrienses i
Securities Lending EXPenses......cc..voveeveerninenceniesvennsenreniens

Interest Expense (returned to borrower).......cc.cooveeeeeevennne.
Agent Fees.......coorvvnvccicecne e
Total securities lending activities

TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS

Benefits PaymeEnts......c.cccreeernirirerc e cmeereesreenne s e prees
Refunds of contributions.......cccoecvveenrnnn, e,
Transfers OUL......oooiviiiiieiee e e
Administrative eXPenSeS. .. oo eiviieeiniereerese s esseeesessenses
OPErAtiNE EXPEIISES. .o.vecvvrnrieirereriiisierieseseeseranssessesresesessecresessiosssans

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS......ooiverenncenrcnrissnnssessasnr e

PENSION PRIVATE
TRUST PURPOSE
FUNDS TRUST

2008 2004 2005 2004
$ 40764 $ 20,336 $ - $ -
32,813 29,515 . .
73,577 49,851 - -
7,187 6,655 - -
1,663 2914 - .
- 156 - -
4,080 47 - -
- 25,587 3 5
- () . .
12,930 35,357 3 5
172,491 175,440 - .
44,865 46,009 5 4
22,273 17,734 - -
2,144 461 - .
809 535 - -
369 729 - -
242,951 240,908 5 Z
(9,953) (7.744) . .
(648) (152) - -
232,350 233,012 5 7
5,579 - - .
(4,931) - . -
(163) . . -
485 - - -
319,342 318,220 8 9
177,127 166,773 - -
3,317 3,124 - .
2,432 2,216 - -
- - 6 3
182,876 172,113 6 3
136,466 146,107 2 6
2,286,740 2,140,633 210 204
$2423206  $ 2,286,740 $212 $ 210

See accompanying notes.
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COMPONENT UNITS

Component Units are legally separate organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting majority of the
component unit's governing body with certain exceptions, and either (a) the ability to impose will by
the primary government, or (b) the potential for the organization to provide financial benefits to, or
impose financial burdens on the primary government. The city's major component units follow:

MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS:

The JEA manages and operates an electric utility system and a water and sewer utility
system in the Consolidated City of Jacksonville/Duval County area.

The Jacksonville Transportation Authority is responsible for construction, improvement,
and maintenance of the Jacksonville Expressway System and operation of the City’s mass

transit systems, including bus and automated skyway express throughout Duval County.

The Jacksonville Aviation Authority manages and operates the City’s aviation/airport
facilities.

The Jacksonville Port Authority manages and operates the City’s marine port facilities.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -

COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
JACKSONVILLE
TRANSPORTATION
JEA AUTHORITY
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents................cooeiivnirenenns § 428,247 $ 33,937
INVESLIENES.....ovcvvvirererieerierre e ereeeeeea 316,698 106,587
Due from other governmental agencies...............c........ - 45,887
Accounts and interest receivable........ccooiieiviiivinniinnrin 195,669 1,694
Mortgages receivable - -
Other receivables........... - 174
INVENIOTIES. ..cvviviiiiiciii i e e 126,300 2,343
[0 11T T - O 371,460 507
Bond issuance COoStS, Nl .....ooivereciniirar et rrarrneens - -
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress.........coccvverevereenne 900,866 332,835
Buildings and improvements............ - 82,411
Vehicles.......oooooooeiiiiieenn, - 38,622
Equipment.................... - 31,853
Utility plant in service..... 7,323,713 -
Other capital assets..........c.c..ceuue. - -
Less: accumulated depreciation.................. (2,406,780) -
Total capital assets, net of depreciation..... 5,817,799 485,721
TOtAl ASSELS...cvever et crerner et 7,256,173 676,850
LYABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses............c.coovveen 134,707 4,422
Deposits....cvirevnene 24,767 -
Deferred revenue - 4,020
Due to other governmental agencies - 27
Interest payable........ccceiiin e 90,271 -
Other current liabilities.........cocvvecemnnnrcnn e 90,000 -
Other noncurrent liabilities............c.cooeee. 131,835 -
Liabilities payable with restricted assets - 12,682
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year:
Estimated liability for injury and
damage ¢claims........ccovevvivcrivorinn e - 944
Bonds, notes payable, capital leases
and COMTACES ..o 104,880 -
Compensated absences........ouiieeninneioneneees - 68
Due in more than one year:
Estimated liability for injury and
damage claims.....co.ooveviciniii s - 4,495
Bonds, capital leases and
COMMEIcial PAPET......ccoirriiciei e 5,296,634 -
Compensated absences - 764
Total Habilties......covvivveeer et cen e 5,873,094 27,422
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt................ 884,796 485,722
Restricted for:
Capital projects and grants.................ccccoceivvrennnnnnn - 88,517
Debt service.....oniciviiieene. - -
Other purposes.... 267,696 3,765
Unrestricted..........v..... 230,587 71,424
1Otal NET ASSEIS. ..ot ieriercarrrreevrrerririitirri s erereerreesnes 383, X

See accompanying notes.
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MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

JACKSONVILLE
AVIATION
AUTHORITY

§ 49,312
25,602

4,857
13,262
741
3,164

123,562
488,397

1,510
(185,229)
428,240
525,178

9,280

2,104

691

9,331

150,127

171,533

289,098

37,668
26,879

JACKSONVILLE

PORT

AUTHORITY

$ 18,094
1,517
5,841
3,438
3,994
1,279
2,796
1,861

142,503
296,128
98,405

(181,842)
355,194
394,014

4,101

5,237

2,633

6,596

200

80,452

99,219

269,974

7,213
212
17,396
2 /9D

NON MAJOR

COMPONENT

UNITS

$ 21,839
664

594
10,407
17,105

1,016

593

1,526
550
17,104

(continued)

TOTAL

§ 551,429
450,404
52,392
206,252
10,407
34,535
130,663
378,943
1,861

1,500,359
866,936
38,622
130,609
7,323,713
1,510
(2,774,130)

7,087,619

8,904,505

154,036
25317
26,361

27
92,375
92,633

132,526

12,682

944
120,807
68
4,695

5,527,213
764

6,190,448

1,930,215

88,517
7,213
309,341
378,771

s >
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES -
GOVERNMENTAL COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

PROGRAM REVENUES
CHARGES OPERATING CAPITAL
FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS

MAJOR COMPONENT UNIT

Jacksonville Transportation Authority......c..cccoveeeuene, $ 62,983 $ - $ 1,542 $ 59,544
NON MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS.....cccoceererennnee 13,797 1,518 9,098 1,009
Total component units - governmental activities........... $ 76,780 $ 1,518 $ 10,640 $ 60,553

General revenues:
Sales taxeS. .o
Unrestricted earnings on investments........
Other non-tax general revenues.................
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS.....cccccerrvrareerans
BEGINNING NET ASSETS.........cooovemvervrccrenene

ENDING NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes. -52 .



NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
JACKSONVILLE NON MAJOR
TRANSPORTATION COMPONENT
AUTHORITY UNITS TOTAL
$ 1,897) $ - ($ 1,897)
—— 2174 —(2174)
(1,897) (2,174) (4,071)
71,717 - 71,717
2,187 652 2,839
153 5,283 5,436
72,160 3,761 75,921
376,990 28,753 405,743
$ 449,150 $ 32,514 $ 481,664

{continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

OPERATING REVENUE:

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal SeTVICES.. .o e
Supplies and materials..........
Other services and charges.......
Depreciation and amortization..
Total Operating EXPenSes.... ...t ssssesses

OPERATING GAIN (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
INLEreSt TEVENUE. ..cievieirriiiiireiecesieesverenrerieesseseereessesatenstensesssnresmesssassenens
Interest EXPENse....c.verreerrercreernersenseeesrnnans
Payments (to) from other governments...........
Contributions (to) from other governments
Gain (Loss) on sales Of GSSelS......couviiieiieernrieciinrcieense e e e e seneneen

GAIN (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS

COMTTBULIONS. ...t ecei ettt btk e st e b eetn e eae e v rmnernryeene

Priotr Period AdJUSHMENL......ccooevceiriiciniresi et eee e nrenrens

TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED........

TOTAL NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
JACKSONVILLE
TRANSPORTATION
JEA AUTHORITY
$ 1,199,883 $ 21,960

1,199,883

671,677
95,934
322,672

1,090,283

109,600

31,842
(239,700)

34,335

(173,523
(63,923)
(27,312)

(91,235)

1,474,314

1,474,314

$ 1,383,079

21,960

38,947

9,402
30,489
15,359
94,197

(72,237)

387

55,617

56,004

(16,233)

13,942

(2,291)

202,569

202,569

$ 200,278

See accompanying notes.
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MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

JACKSONVILLE JACKSONYILLE NON MAJOR
AVIATION PORT COMPONENT
AUTHORITY AUTHORITY UNITS TOTAL
$ 56,115 $ 33,020 $ - $ 1,310,978
1,686 2,952 2 4,640
57,801 35,972 2 1,315,618
16,598 11,997 238 67,780
11,728 3,237 5 696,049
8,238 9,814 59 144,534
21,726 14,5562 - 374,309
58,290 39,600 302 1,282,672
489 (3,628) 300 32,946
1,784 512 - 34,525
(6,989) (4,809) - (251,498)
318 3,982 - 59,917
116 - - 116
- 1,020 1,020
11,482 369 45,448
6,711 336 - (110,472)
6,222 (3,292) 300 (77,526)
17,172 2,047 896 6,745
23,394 (1,245) 596 (70,781)
330,251 294,390 - 2,301,524
- 1,650 - 1,650
330,251 296,040 - 2,303,174
3353645 5294795 — 5596 _$2,232,393
{continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of Jacksonville, Florida (the city) conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applicable to governments. The
following is a summary of the more significant policies. Notes 1.C. through 18 are note
disclosures of the primary government with significant disclosures for major component
units incorporated within. Additional significant component unit disclosures are presented in
Note 19.

A. Basis of Presentation:

The accompanying financial statements of the city have been prepared in conformity with
GAAP as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), and the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA). Under the auspices of GASB Statement No. 20, the city
does not apply FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989, for proprietary
activities, unless the GASB amends its pronouncements to specifically adopt FASB
pronouncements issued after that date. GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles for units of local
government.

B. Financial Reporting Entity:

The city is a consolidated city/county political entity created by Chapter 67-1320 of the
Laws of Florida. When consolidation occurred on October 1, 1968, all existing
municipalities, authorities, and public agencies within Duval County, except for the
Duval County School Board, were merged into a single new corporate and political entity
also known as the City of Jacksonville. At the same time, however, the cities of
Jacksonville Beach, Atlantic Beach, Neptune Beach, and the Town of Baldwin elected to
retain local autonomy for certain municipal purposes and were reconstituted as separate
and distinct urban service districts. The consolidated city government, which is
comprised of an elected City Council (19 members) and Mayor, provides, under the
administration of the appointed Chief Administrative Officer, services to approximately
840,000 residents living in an 840.1 square mile area.

To conform to the traditional county organization of government in the State of Florida,
the city retained the offices of the Sheriff, Property Appraiser, Tax Collector, Supervisor
of Elections, and Clerk of the Circuit Court, which are also elected by the citizenry.
These officers are considered to be not only county officers, but also officers of the
consolidated government as well, and therefore are considered as part of the primary
government. The three beach cities and the Town of Baldwin continue to function as
separate municipal governments.

This report includes all funds, departments, agencies, boards and commissions, and other
organizational units that are administered by the Mayor and/or controlled by or dependent
upon the City Council as set forth in the City Charter. The city, a primary government,
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

has also considered for inclusion all potential component units for which it may be
financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of
their relationship with the city are such that exclusion would cause the city's financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14,
The Financial Reporting Entity, the GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in
determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority
of an organization's governing body and (1) the ability of the city to impose its will on
that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the city.

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the City of Jacksonville (the
primary government) and its component units. The city has identified and included
within the financial reporting entity, as its component units, legally separate
organizations for which the city is financially accountable or for which a significant
relationship with the city exists such that exclusion would cause the city's financial
statement to be misleading or incomplete.

The Jacksonville Public Library Board has been classified as a dependent special district
by the State of Florida Department of Community Affairs. Per GASB Statement No. 14,
the Library Board is not considered a component unit as it is not a legally separate
organization. Therefore, its activity is included as part of the primary government.

Blended Component Unit. There is one component unit, which is legally separate from
the city, but is so intertwined with the city that it is, in substance, the same as the city. It
is reported as part of the city and blended into the appropriate funds.

The Jacksonville Police and Fire Pension Board of Trustees, created under Article
22 of the City Charter, provides retirement services and benefits to eligible
employees of the Office of the Sheriff and the Department of Fire and Rescue. The
city appoints two of the five-member board; one member is a police officer; one
member is a firefighter; and the remaining member is appointed by the other four
members. As sponsor, the city has the ability to modify the plan and to approve the
defined benefit contribution to the Police and Fire Pension Board of Trustees in the
city's annual budget. The Police and Fire Pension Board of Trustees issues separate
financial statements on the fund, which may be obtained from its administrative
office at One West Adams Street, Suite 100, Jacksonville, Florida 32202-3616.
These transactions are blended in the Fiduciary Funds.

Discrete Component Units. These component units are entities which are legally
separate from the city, but are financially accountable to the city, or whose relationships
with the city are such that exclusion would cause the city's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The component units are reported separately to emphasize that
they are legally separate from the primary government and are governed by separate
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

boards. The footnotes include the financial data of these entities. Each component unit
listed below has a September 30 fiscal year end.

Major Component Units

JEA (formerly known as the Jacksonville Electric Authority) was created by Chapter
67-1569 of the Laws of Florida to own, manage, and operate an electric utility system
and a water and sewer utility system in the city and any or all counties adjacent
thereto. The governing body of the JEA consists of seven members appointed by the
Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. The city has the ability to impose its will
on the JEA manifested principally through formal budgetary approval. The JEA
engages only in business-type activities and issues separate financial statements,
which may be obtained from its administrative office in the JEA Plaza at 21 West
Church Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32202.

The Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA) was created by Resolution 2000-1104-A,
and was initially called the Jacksonville Seaport Authority. This Resolution
abolished what was the former Jacksonville Port Authority and created new Seaport
and Airport Authorities. However, during fiscal year 2003, the Seaport Authority
changed its name back to Jacksonville Port Authority. The governing body of the
JPA consists of seven members, four of whom are appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the City Council, and three of whom are appointed by the Governor.
The city can impose its will on the JPA through modification and approval of its
budgets, which ensures strong accountability to the local constituent citizenry. The
JPA engages only in business-type activities and issues separate financial statements,
which may be obtained from its administrative office at 2831 Tallyrand Avenue,
Jacksonville, Florida 32206.

The Jacksonville Aviation Authority (JAA) was created by Resolution 2000-1104-
A, which abolished what was the former Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA). The
former JPA was created in 1963 by Chapter 63-1447 of the Laws of Florida, to own
and operate marine and aviation facilities in the Consolidated City/County
Government of Jacksonville/Duval County. These state laws were repealed and
separate seaport and airport authorities were established. The governing body of the
JAA consists of seven members, four of whom are appointed by the Governor, and
three of whom are appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. The
JAA is fiscally dependent upon the city because the City Council approves and
modifies the JAA budget. The JAA engages only in business-type activities and
1ssues separate financial statements, which may be obtained from its administrative
office at P.O. Box 18018, Jacksonville, Florida 32229-0018.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

The Jacksonville Transportation Authority (JTA) is a public body politic and
corporate agency of the State of Florida under Chapter 349 of the Florida Statutes.
The governing body of the JTA consists of seven members, three of whom are
appointed by the Governor of Florida, three of whom are appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the City Council, and the seventh member is the district engineer of the
Florida Department of Transportation. The JTA is empowered to construct, improve,
operate, and lease the Jacksonville Expressway System. The JTA is, however, fiscally
dependent upon the city under Section 14 of the City Charter through approval of its
budgets which ensures strong accountability to the local constituent citizenry. The
JTA engages in both governmental and business-type activities and issues separate
financial statements, which may be obtained from its administrative office at 100
North Myrtle Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida 32203,

Non-major Component Units

The Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority (JHoFA), formerly known as the
Duval County Housing Finance Authority (or DCHFA), was created by City
Ordinance 2003-1058, to alleviate a shortage of housing and capital investment for
the people of Duval County, pursuant to Florida Statutes, Section 159.604. The
Mayor appoints 3 of the 5 board members. The city has the ability to impose its will
on the JHoFA. The JHoFA operates in conjunction with the Jacksonville Housing
Commission, also created by Ordinance 2003-1058, and has the rights and duties
necessary under Florida Statutes, Chapter 159, Part IV, to preserve outstanding debt,
issue new debt and to shield the city from financial liability. The bonds issued and
outstanding are included in Note 8.G. Conduit Debt. The JHoFA engages only in
governmental activities. There are no separately issued financial statements for the
JHoFA, whose financial activity is accounted for by the city as a single special
revenue fund during the year. For financial reporting purposes, fund financial
statements for JHoFA are presented in the Combining Individual Fund Statements
and Schedules section of this report.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Commission (JEDC), created July 1,
1997, under Chapter 92-341, Laws of Florida, provides a focal point for economic
development in the city that results in a centralization of economic development
programs under the auspices of one agency, thus ensuring a more efficient and
practical means of addressing the goals, objectives and strategies for future economic
development in the city. The JEDC operates with all the powers and authority
of a community redevelopment agency under Part 11T, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes
and as an industrial development authority under Part III, Chapter 159, Florida
Statutes. The mayor appoints the board members and a chairman, who are confirmed
by the City Council, and the city has the ability to impose its will. The JEDC engages
only in governmental activities. There are no separately issued financial statements
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

for the JEDC, whose financial activity is accounted for by the city as a single special
revenue fund during the year. For financial reporting purposes, fund financial
statements for JEDC are presented in the Combining Individual Fund Statements and
Schedules section of this report.

The Downtown Vision, Inc. (DVI), was established as a not-for-profit corporation
under the Laws of Florida in 1997. DVI was created to provide community
enhancements in the downtown area, with associated costs assessed to the properties
benefited. The assessment is levied and collected by the city in accordance with the
Enhanced Municipal Services Agreement, and was approved by City Ordinance
1999-1175-E. Therefore, DVIis fiscally dependent on the city. The DVIis governed
by a 15-member Board of Directors, of which two are city representatives. The
enhanced services are provided to property owners within several of the city's
Downtown Community Redevelopment areas, including some properties owned by
the city. DVI engages only in governmental activities and issues separate financial
statements, which may be obtained from its main office at 220 East Bay Street, 14™
Floor, Jacksonville, Florida 32202.

The Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority (THFA), created under Chapter 490 of
the City Ordinance Code pursuant to Chapter 154 Part III, Laws of Florida, provides
appropriate additional means to assist in the development, improvement and
maintenance of the public health. The JHF A provides a method for the financing and
refinancing, on a tax-exempt basis, of projects on behalf of private corporations and
organized not-for-profits that are authorized by law to provide hospital or nursing
home services, thus providing facilities at favorable interest costs with a resultant
decrease in health care costs for the users of health facilities within the city. All five
members are appointed by the City Council, and the city is able to impose its will on
the JHFA.

The bonds issued by the JHFA are special limited obligations of the JHFA and the
principal and interest are payable from rental payments. The principal and interest on
the bonds shall never constitute an indebtedness of the City of Jacksonville, Duval
County, the State of Florida or any municipality or political subdivision thereof.
Accordingly, the bonds issued and outstanding are included in Note 8.H. Conduit
Debt. During the fiscal year presented, JHFA had no financial transactions or assets

and liabilities to report. Therefore, there are no separately issued financial statements
for JHFA.

The Water and Sewer Expansion Authority (WSEA) was created by City
Ordinance 2003-586-E to allow property owners an opportunity to finance water
and/or sewer infrastructure in their existing developed neighborhoods on a voluntary
basis. The governing body of the WSEA consists of seven members
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. The city has the ability to
impose its will on the WSEA principally through the Mayor’s ability to remove board
members with two-thirds approval vote from the City Council, and the City Councils
authority to review and approve the WSEA annual budget. The WSEA engages only
in business-type activities and issues separate financial statements, which may be
obtained from its administrative office 21 West Church Street, T - 16 Jacksonville,
Florida 32202.

Related Organizations

The Jacksonville Housing Authority (JHA) is governed by a seven member Board,
whose members are appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by City Council.
However, the city does not have the ability to impose its will on JHA. The city cannot
remove appointed members of the JHA Board at will. JHA managers are appointed
by the JHA Board of Directors. The Board approves the operating budget and
amendments to the budget. The city does not exercise influence in JHA management
or operations. It does not approve JHA budgets, and does not provide or collect major
revenues of the JHA. Accordingly, the financial activities of the JHA are not included
in the city's financial statements.

The Duval County Research and Development Authority (Authority) is governed
by a five member Board whose members are appointed by the City Council.
However, the city does not have the ability to impose its will on the Authority. The
city does not exercise influence in the management or operations of the Authority and
is not financially accountable for the actions of the Authority. Accordingly, the
financial activities of the Authority are not included in the city's financial statements.

Jointly Governed Organization

The Jacksonville Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) was previously
reported by the city as a blended component unit. An Interlocal Agreement was
entered into on February 27, 2004, by and between the Florida Department of
Transportation, the Counties of Clay, Duval, and St. Johns, the Cities of Jacksonville,
Atlantic Beach, Jacksonville Beach, Neptune Beach and Saint Augustine, the
Jacksonville Aviation Authority, the Jacksonville Port Authority, the Jacksonville
Transportation Authority, and the St. Augustine/St. Johns County Airport Authority
to redesignate the First Coast Metropolitan Planning Organization (FCMPO).
Pursuant to Section 339.175(3), Florida Statutes, by letter to Mayor John Peyton, the
Governor agreed to the apportionment plan of newly proposed members. The City
Council no longer serves as the MPO Board. The Mayor, 3 Jacksonville City
Council Members and various other leaders of the involved agencies, make up the 16
member board, with 3 members being non-voting,

-65 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity: (continued)

The city does not have an ongoing financial interest or responsibility to the FCMPO.,
However, since the board includes members from each of the governments that
created it, the FCMPO is considered a jointly governed organization of the city. The
former MPO is reported as a special revenue fund for fiscal year 2005.

C. Basic Financial Statements:

The basic financial statements include both city-wide and fund level statements. The
city, as the primary government, is reported separately from its component units. The
city-wide statements report on all of the activities of the city and its component units
except those that are fiduciary in nature. Statements for fiduciary activities, such as
employee pension plans, are presented in a separate section of this report. Both the city-
wide and fund level statements classify primary activities of the city as either
governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, or business type activities, which are primarily supported by user fees and
charges.

The city-wide statement of net assets reports all assets and liabilities of the city, including
both long-term assets and long-term debt and other obligations. The statement of
activities reports the degree to which direct expenses of city functions are offset by
program revenues, which include program specific grants and charges for services
provided by a specific function. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or program. The net cost of these programs is funded from
general revenues such as taxes, intergovernmental revenue, and interest earnings.

The fund level statements report on governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund
activities. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund level financial statements.

Since the fund level statements for governmental activities are presented using a different
measurement focus and basis of accounting than the city-wide statements governmental
column (as discussed under Basis of Accounting in this summary of significant
accounting policies), a reconciliation is presented on the page following each fund level
statement which briefly explains the adjustments necessary to convert the fund level
statements into the city-wide governmental column presentations.

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the city-wide
financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Fund Structure:

The city's accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting
to ensure compliance with limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources
available to it. Under fund accounting, individual funds are established for the purpose of
carrying on activities or attaining objectives in accordance with specific regulations,
restrictions, or limitations. Each individual fund is a self-balancing set of accounts
recording assets and other financing resources, together with liabilities and residual
equities or balances, and changes therein. For financial statement presentation, funds
with similar characteristics, including those component units referenced above, are
grouped into generic classifications as required by GAAP. A brief description of these
classifications follows:

Governmental Funds. These funds report transactions related to resources received and
used for those services traditionally provided by city/county government. The following
are major governmental funds used by the city:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the city. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

Debt Service Funds:

Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund — The Special Bonded Debt Obligations Fund
accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest
on the city’s special and limited bonded obligations payable solely from and secured by a
lien upon and pledge of the revenues under the respective bond ordinances.

Special Bonded Debt — Better Jacksonville Plan Obligations Fund — The Special Bonded
Debt - Better Jacksonville Plan Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the city’s special bonded
obligations payable, which are related to the Better Jacksonville Plan.

Capital Project Funds:

Bond Projects Fund - The Bond Projects Fund receives money from the sale of bonded
debt issued by the city to fund major capital improvement projects.

General Projects Fund - The General Projects Fund receives monies appropriated from
the General Fund and other sources including proceeds from non-bonded debt for general
capital improvements.

Better Jacksonville Plan Construction Projects Fund - The Better Jacksonville Plan
Construction Projects Fund receives revenues from the two local option sales tax
programs and proceeds from the sale of bonded debt issued by the city to fund projects
under the Better Jacksonville Plan.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. Fund Structure: (continued)

Other Governmental Funds - This is the aggregate of all of the non-major governmental
funds. Individual fund statements for these funds are included in the Combining
Individual Fund Statements and Schedules Section.

Proprietary Funds. These funds report transactions related to activities similar to those
found in the private sector. Major proprietary funds include:

Public Parking System Fund - This fund accounts for the city's on-street, and parking
garage facility operations, including revenue collection and enforcement.

Solid Waste Disposal Fund - This fund accounts for the collection, recycling, and
disposal of commercial and residential garbage services throughout the city, including
operation of three municipally owned landfill sites, two of which are closed.

Other Enterprise - This is the aggregate of all of the non-major enterprise funds.
Individual fund statements for these funds are included in the Combining Individual
Fund Statements and Schedules Section.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
revenues and expenses. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the funds'
principal ongoing operation, The principal operating revenues for the city's enterprise
funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses include direct
expenses of providing the goods or services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
non-operating revenues and expenses.

In addition, the city reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds - These funds account for services provided primarily to various
departments of the city and to other governmental agencies. Since these funds
principally service city departments, internal service fund statements are consolidated
into the governmental activities column in the city-wide presentations. These activities
are fleet management, copy center, data processing, legal, various risk management
activities and internal loan pool. Services provided to other governmental agencies are
not considered to be material.

Private-purpose Trust Funds - These funds account for resources legally held in trust
for the benefit of individuals pursuing higher education in music and urban studies.
Earnings on invested resources may be used to support these activities but no expenditure
may be made from the principal of these funds.

Pension Trust Funds - These funds account for the activities of the general employees
and the police and fire pension funds, which accumulate resources for pension benefit
payments for qualified employees.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. Fund Structure: (continued)

Permanent Fund - This fund is used to account for activities of the city relative to
cemetery maintenance at specified locations. All resources of the fund, including
earnings on invested resources, may be used to support these activities. There is no
requirement that any portion of these resources be preserved as capital.

Agency Funds - These funds account for monies held as an agent for other governmental
units or individuals,

. Basis of Accounting:

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. The city-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurcment focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary
and fiduciary fund financial statements. Under this method, revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year in which they
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue when all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider are met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using a current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement
focus only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance
sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e. revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (i.e. expenditures and other financing uses) in net
current assets,

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual (i.e. when they become both measurable and available).
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available"
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. Major revenues that are determined to be susceptible to
accrual include property taxes, taxpayer-assessed tax revenues including sales and
utilities services taxes, state shared revenue, intergovernmental revenue, charges for
services and investment income. Federal grants collected on a reimbursement basis are
recognized as revenue when reimbursable expenditures are made, and the city considers
amounts received within one year as available.

Revenues collected on an advance basis, including certain federal grant revenue, to which
the city does not yet have legal entitlement, are not recognized as revenue until the
related commitment arises. Generally, the city considers a 60-day availability period for
revenue recognition.

Property taxes billed but uncollected as of the end of the fiscal year are reflected in the
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
E. Basis of Accounting: (continued)

accompanying financial statements as due from individuals offsetting a liability due to
other governments in the Tax Collector Agency Fund. These amounts are not considered
to be available by the city to finance current operations. Accordingly, property taxes are
recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in which they are collected and remitted to the
city's General Fund by the Tax Collector Agency Fund. (See Note 5.)

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for items
that are not planned to be liquidated with expendable available resources. Exceptions to
the general modified accrual expenditure recognition criteria include principal and
interest on general long-term indebtedness and capital lease obligations, which are
recognized when paid and payments for compensated absences and claims and judgments
which are recognized when due,

Agency funds are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Agency funds are
custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities) and do not measure the results of
operations.

The city's policy is to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, when both
are available for use to fund an activity.

. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments:

Cash, cash equivalents and investments and related accrued investment earnings are
reported in the financial statements as "Equity in cash and investments" under the city's
"pooling" concept. (See Note 3.) All monies, which are not legally restricted to separate
administration, are pooled together for investment purposes while each individual fund
and/or account is maintained on a daily transaction basis by the city Treasurer.
Investment earnings are distributed in accordance with the participating funds' relative
percentage of investments. All Fund Types deposit monies into the Equity in Cash and
Investments Pool of the city. The Proprietary Fund Types use this pool as a demand
deposit account, and accordingly all amounts in the pool are considered cash and
equivalents for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows. Investments are stated at fair
value. Increases and decreases in the fair value of investments are reported as investment
income.

The City of Jacksonville’s swap policy allows for the use of interest rate swaps and other
financial instruments to manage the city’s financial exposure. This policy went into
effect on October 1, 2003 and was revised on March 1, 2004, The city utilizes interest
rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk associated with various assets. The city
continuously works toward developing the optimal capital structure, including the
amounts and types of variable rate exposure, in view of the city’s risk tolerance to market
fluctuations, capital market outlook, future capital funding needs, rating agency
considerations, counterparty credit profiles, and competition. Interest rate swaps are one
instrument used in achieving an optimal capital structure.
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G. Receivables:

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible amounts, which are
determined based on past collection experience and current economic conditions, except
for mortgages receivable which are reported as a reservation of fund balance because they
are not considered a current financial resource available for expenditure. Types of
receivables include amounts that are principally due from the State of Florida for state-
shared revenues. Receivables in other funds have arisen in the ordinary course of
business.

. Inventories:

Inventories of materials and supplies are determined by both physical counts and through
perpetual inventory systems stated at cost, which approximates market, using the average
weighted costing method. Reported inventories in governmental funds are equally offset
by a reservation of fund balance since they are unavailable for appropriation. In
proprietary fund types, inventories are expended when consumed.,

Capital Assets:

All purchased capital assets are recorded at cost where historical records are available
and at estimated cost where no historical records exist. Donated capital assets are valued
at their estimated fair market value on the date received. Generally, capital assets costing
more than $750 and having a useful life of more than one year are capitalized.
Infrastructure is capitalized based on the accumulated amounts charged to specific capital
projects on an annual basis. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add
to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Capital assets
are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type column in the city-wide
financial statements, and in the Proprietary Fund Level Statements.

Depreciation on all capital assets is calculated using the straight line method over the
following useful lives:

Infrastructure - Other 12 - 50 years
Infrastructure - Bridges 100 years
Buildings and improvements 12 - 45 years
Furniture, equipment and library books 3 -10 years
Software Development 10 years

The city capitalizes collections, such as artwork and library books. The city has a
collection of artwork in various sites throughout the interior and exterior of public
facilities. The value of the art is expected to either remain the same or increase over
time, so it is not depreciated. Software development is capitalized if over a threshold of
$30,000.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

J. Contributions:

Contributions in the form of cash and capital assets to the governmental activities of the
city are recognized on the Statement of Activities as revenues in the period they are
received. Contributions of capital assets, primarily completed infrastructure from
developers, are recognized at the fair value at the date of donation. All contributions are
reported on the Statement of Activities as program revenues, with operating contributions
reported separately from capital contributions.

. Interfund Activity:

Interfund activity within and among the city’s three fund categories (governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary) are classified as reciprocal interfund activity and nonreciprocal
interfund activity.

Reciprocal interfund resource flows between funds with an expectation of repayment are
reported as interfund receivables and payables. Reciprocal interfund resource flows,
without an expectation of repayment within a reasonable time, are reported as transfers
between funds. Interfund services provided and used are sales and purchases of goods
and services between funds for a price approximating their external value and are
reported as revenues and expenditures (or expenses) in the funds.

Nonreciprocal interfund activity are flows of assets between funds without an equivalent
flow of assets in return or without a requirement for repayment are reported as transfers
in governmental funds and nonoperating revenues and expenses in proprietary funds.

. Restricted Assets:

Assets are reported as restricted in the city-wide Statement of Net Assets and the
enterprise fund level statements when constraints are placed on net asset use. The
constraints are either: (1) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments; or (2) imposed by law or through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation,

. Compensated Absences:

City employees may accumulate earned personal leave benefits (compensated absences)
at various rates within limits specified in collective bargaining agreements. For all funds,
this liability reflects amounts attributable to employee services already rendered,
cumulative, probable for payment, and reasonably estimated in conformity with GASB
Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences.

Compensated absences liabilities are accrued when incurred in the city-wide financial
statements, and the proprietary and fiduciary fund level financial statements. No
expenditure is reported in the governmental funds for these amounts until the payment is
made. No liability is recorded for nonvesting, accumulated sick pay benefits.
Compensated absences liability is determined based on current rates of pay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

N. Risk Financing:

The City is self-insured for general and automobile liability and up to $1.2 million per
occurrence for workers compensation. The liability for self-insured losses is based on
individual case estimates for reported claims, historical loss data and valuations
performed by independent actuaries at September 30, 20035, for incurred but not yet
reported claims and claims development. The liability for self-insured losses is
accounted for in the Self-Insurance Fund (internal service fund) that pays for claims
made against the city. The City has an excess liability policy which provides coverage
for general liability at limits of $1 million per occurrence and $3 million in the aggregate,
subject to a $5 million self-insured retention; and employers liability at limits of $1
million per occurrence and $3 million in the aggregate subject to a $1.2 million self-
insured retention.

. Pension Costs:

Substantially all permanent, full-time employees of the city are covered under two city
sponsored defined benefit pension plans. Employer contributions are recorded as pension
expenditure/expenses when the related payroll is accrued based on an actuarially
determined rate in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by
State and Local Governments.

. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs:

The city recognizes municipal solid waste landfill closure and postclosure care costs
under the State of Florida's Solid Waste Management Act of 1988 (the "1988 Act"),
regulations of the Federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and GASB
Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and
Postclosure Care Costs. For those landfills that stopped accepting solid waste prior to
final implementation of the 1988 Act and EPA regulations, the estimated total cost of
municipal solid waste landfill (MSWLF) closure and postclosure care is recognized as a
deferred charge and a corresponding liability in the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise
Fund, in accordance with FASB Statement No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regulation, (FAS 71). The city issued bonds to pay for closure costs on closed
landfills. Post-closure care costs on closed landfills are recorded as a liability based on
engineer’s estimates. The City Council establishes rates that are designed to recover costs
and believes it is reasonable to assume that such rates, which will recover the costs, can
be charged to and collected from customers. Accordingly, the provisions of FAS 71 are
applied. The city intends to recover these MSWLF costs through future operating
revenues of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund. Accordingly, MSWLF costs are
recognized as expense each year to match the flow of revenue and bonds principal
payments, thereby reducing the deferred charge. Expenses for closure and postclosure
care costs are recorded each year and the liability is adjusted to the engineer’s estimate.
MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs incurred for landfills accepting solid waste
after final implementation of the 1988 Act and EPA regulations are recognized as an
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
P. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs: (continued)

expense. A liability is recorded based upon the landfill capacity used during that year
applied to the engineer’s estimate of closure and postclosure care costs. (See Note 13.C.)

. Long-Term Obligations:

In the city-wide financial statements, and proprietary funds in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary funds
statement of net assets.

Special obligation bonds, which are supported by certain general revenues (other than ad
valorem taxes), do not constitute a debt of the city within the meaning of any
constitutional or statutory limitation or provision, and the city is not obligated to pay the
bonds except from revenues pledged for such purposes.

Each governmental fund that has long-term liabilities, such as, compensated absences
and pension liabilities, is responsible for liquidating the same.

Non Assets Bonds are created when the city issues debt and either (a) constructs an asset
which will become the asset of another entity (e.g. State of Florida), (b) contributes
proceeds to another entity (e.g. Shands Jacksonville Hospital) to participate in a
construction project, or (c) provides an economic incentive to a development or
redevelopment project. Part of the Better Jacksonville Plan (BJP) referendum was to
make improvements to state roads and/or interchanges with/between state roads. While
these projects enhance traffic movements in and around Jacksonville, the constructed
assets and the future maintenance responsibility are transferred to the Florida Department
of Transportation. Additionally, under the BJP program, the city provided for non-
capital expenditures, such as septic tank remediation and ash clean up, from debt
proceeds, which will not result in a capital asset of the city. The city has also provided
grants to Shands Jacksonville Hospital, a provider of health care for indigents, from debt
proceeds. The city and/or its Community Redevelopment Authority (CRA) districts, to
encourage target development, will enter into incentive agreements (including grants and
loans) which are in some instances designed to be repaid by either the CRA’s tax
increment revenues and/or the developer.

. Reservations and Designations of Fund Equity:

In the fund level statements, reservations of fund balance are established to identify the
existence of assets that have been legally segregated for specific purposes. Assets of
legally restricted budgetary funds are an example of this type of reservation. Reservations
are also established for assets that are not current in nature, such as long-term advances,
mortgages receivable, appreciation in market value of investments, and inventories.
Designations of fund equity reflect management's plans for financial resource allocation
in a future period. Such plans or intentions are subject to change and may never result in
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
R. Reservations and Designations of Fund Equity: (continued)

expenditures.
Explanations of significant designations include:

(1) Fund Balance Designated for Capital Projects - Tentative plans for utilization of fund
balances in future periods for capital projects designated in the city's Annual Budget
for the coming fiscal year.

(2) Fund Balance Designated for Subsequent Years’ Budget - Tentative plans for
utilization of fund balances for expenditures designated in the city's Annual Budget
for upcoming fiscal years, primarily associated with multi-year grants.

(3) Fund Balance Designated for Budget Stabilization - The General Fund's fund balance
not otherwise appropriated as a source of funding in future periods to be designated
as a financial resource to prevent budgetary deficits.

(4) Fund Balance Designated for Next Year’s Budget Appropriation - Tentative plans for
utilization of fund balances for other expenditures designated in the city's Annual
Budget for the coming fiscal year.

. Bond Discounts, Premiums and Issuance Costs:

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond discounts,
premiums and issuance costs in the current period. The face amount of debt issued and
bond premiums are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuance
are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

In the city-wide financial statements and for proprietary funds, material bond discount,
premium and issuance costs are deferred and amortized as a component of interest
expense over the term of the bonds using the straight-line method, which approximates
the effective interest method. Issuance costs are recorded as deferred charges and bond
discount/premium are included in Long-Term Liabilities - Revenue Bonds.

. Deferred Loss on Debt Refundings:

Losses resulting from advance refundings of debt in the city-wide and proprietary fund
statements are deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the new debt or the
remaining life of the old debt. The amount deferred is reported as a component of Long-
Term Liabilities in the accompanying financial statements and is amortized and reported
as a component of interest expense.

. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements, in accordance with GAAP, requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U.

Use of Estimates: (continued)

statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassification:
Certain amounts in the separately issued financial statements of component units have
been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the primary government.

. Summarized Comparative Information:

The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not at the level of detail required for a presentation in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be
read in conjunction with the city’s financial statements for the year ended September 30,
2004, from which the summarized information was derived.

BUDGETARY DATA

The city presents a Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund as Required
Supplementary Information. For this reporting period, no special revenue funds met the
major fund criteria. The city’s budgetary comparison reporting and Notes to Required
Supplementary Information containing descriptions of the city’s budgetary policies and
processes are included in the Required Supplementary Information section of this report.

CASH, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES LENDING

A,

Equity in Cash and Investments:

The city maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds except
for monies which arc legally restricted to separate administration (i.e, pension plan
custodians and deferred compensation plan administrators). This gives the city the ability
to invest large amounts of idle cash for short periods of time and to maximize earnings
potential. The "Equity in cash and investments" consist of cash and investments owned
by each fund and defined as resources that can be liquidated without delay or penalty. In
addition, cash and investments separately held and individually accounted for by several
of the city's funds where contractual arrangements and bond covenants provide for and
require such arrangements are classified as "restricted assets."

Investment carnings are allocated to the individual funds as provided by statute; carnings
for all other participants are credited to the General Fund.

Cash on Deposit:

At September 30, 2005, the city's cash on deposit in its bank accounts was $182.1 million
including interest bearing accounts, all of which was insured by federal deposit insurance
or collateralized pursuant to Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. The related book balance was
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3.

CASH, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES LENDING
B. Cash on Deposit: (continued)

$508 million. Monies which are placed on deposit with financial institutions in the form
of demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit are defined
as public deposits. All of the city's public deposits are held in qualified public
depositories pursuant to State of Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, "Florida Security for
Public Deposits Act" and covered by federal depository insurance and, for the amount in
excess of such federal depository insurance, by the Act. Under the Act, all qualified
public depositories are required to pledge eligible collateral having a market value equal
to or greater than the average daily or monthly balance of all public deposits, times the
depository's collateral pledging level. The pledging level may range from 50% to 125%
depending upon the depository's financial condition and establishment period. The Public
Deposit Security Trust Fund has a procedure to allocate and recover losses in the event of
a default or insolvency. When public deposits are made in accordance with Chapter 280,
no public depositor shall be liable for any loss thereof. Any losses to public depositors
are covered by applicable deposit insurance, sale of securities pledged as collateral and, if
necessary, assessments against other qualified public depositories of the same type as the
depository in default.

All cash deposits of the city are placed with qualified financial institutions and are
classified as Category 1 credit risk, which means they are insured or collateralized. Credit
risk is the exposure to the default of another party to the transaction (the counterparty).

. Investments and Investment Practices:

The city is authorized to invest in securities consistent with the guidelines established by
Chapter 17, Section 57 (17.57) Florida Statutes, the limitations established by the
Investment Policy, and the Investment Policy of the Florida State Treasury Intermediate
Core Portfolio. The city’s Investment Policy was amended and restated effective March
1,2004. Only securities, which are specifically listed as authorized, may be purchased.
The City of Jacksonville’s amended and restated Investment Policy resolves any conflict
between the state’s and city’s investment policies. The pension trust funds are also
authorized to invest in obligations of the City of Jacksonville, of the State of Florida,
commercial paper rated A-1 or P-1 by a nationally recognized rating service, bankers'
acceptances, corporate bonds, including collateralized mortgage obligations, preferred
stocks, common stocks, and real estate limited trusts.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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3. CASH, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES LENDING
C. Investments and Investment Practices: (continued)

As of September 30, 2005, the city’s investment portfolio consisted of the following: (in

thousands):
In-house Management External Managers
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Fair Value Maturity (Years) Fair Value Maturity (Years)
US Treasuries $ 15,944 7.56
US Agencies 143,559 2.36 18,558 5.68
Corporate 41,653 5.11
Mortgage Backed Securities 61,970 3.63
Asset Backed Securities 10,643 1.91
Other (Yankee) 1 604 12.42
Non-Corporate Credit 2 539 8.57
Other (US Agencies DUS - Delegated 568 3.20
Underwriting & Servicing)
Other (CMBS - Commercial Mortgage 7,348 4.20
Backed Securities)

Other (Non-US Govt/Agency) 692 5.80
Other (Mortgage) 3 431 4.80
Total Fair Yalue $ 143,559 $ 158,950
Portfolio Weighted Average

to Maturity 2.36 4.62

!: Foreign bonds denominated in U.S. dollars and issued in the United States by forei gn banks and corporations.
% Includes securities issued by supranationals, sovereigns, foreign agencies and regional governments.
*Includes TBA contracts for the purchase or sale of an MBS to be delivered at an agreed-upon future date

that is recorded as cash.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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3. CASH, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES LENDING (continued)

C. Investments and Investment Practices: (continued)

Cash Management Pool / Portfolio Characteristics
As of September 30, 2005, the City's investment portfolio consisted of the following: (in thousands)

Total Portfolio In-House Management External Managers
Actual Actual Actual Actual
Year End Year Year Year
Value End End % End %
US Treasuries $ 15944 521% 0.00% 521%
US Agencies 162,117 52.99% 46.92% 6.07%
Corporate 41,653 13.61% 0.00% 13.61%
Mortgage Backed Securities 61,970  20.25% 0.00% 20.25%
ABS 10,643  3.48% 0.00% 3.48%
Other (Yankee) 1 604  0.20% 0.00% 0.20%
Non-Corporate Credit 2 539 0.18% 0.00% 0.18%
Other (US Agencies DUS) 568 0.19% 0.00% 0.19%
Other (CMBS) 7,348  2.40% 0.00% 2.40%
Other (Non-US Govt/Agencies 692  0.23% 0.00% 0.23%
Other (Mortgage) 3 431  0.14% 0.00% 0.14%
Other Cash 3,453 1.13% 0.00% 1.13%
Total Fair Value $ 305,962 100.00% 46.92% 53.08%

': Foreign bonds denominated in U.S. dollars and issued in the United States by foreign banks and corporations.
*: Includes securities issued by supranationals, sovereigns, foreign agencies and regional governments.
*: Includes TBA contracts for the purchase or sale of an MBS to be delivered at an agreed-upon future date that is recorded as cash.

Credit Risk: City codes and investment policy limit investments to certain categories of credit quality ratings.
The following shows the credit quality ratings by active investment category as of September 30, 2005.

Credit Quality .

Rating Total Portfolio In-House Management External Managers
US US Treasuries 4.90% 0.00% 9.33%

US Agencies 59.22% 84.40% 36.45%

Aaa 19.57% 15.60% 23.17%

Aa 1.95% 0.00% 3.71%

A 12.26% 0.00% 23.34%

Baa 2.10% 0.00% 4.01%
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3. CASH, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES LENDING (continued)

C. Investments and Investment Practices: (continued)

Operating Portfolio by Manager

As of September 30, 2005, the City's investment portfolio consisted of the following: (in thousands)

In-House Management
US Agency
Total Fair Value

Monev Manager 1

US Treasuries

US Agencies

Corporate

Mortgage Backed Securities

Other (Yankee) !
Total Fair Value

Money Manager 1 (Landfill)
US Treasuries

US Agencies

Corporate

Mortgage Backed Securities

Other (Yankee) :
Total Fair Value

Money Manager 2

US Treasuries

US Agencies

Corporate

Mortgage Backed Securities
ABS

Other (US Agencies DUS)
Other (CMBS)

Other (Non-US Govt/US Agencies)

Total Fair Value

Money Manager 3

US Treasuries

US Agencies

Corporate

Mortgage Backed Securities
ABS

Non-Corporate Credit 2
Other (Mortgage) 3

Total Fair Value

Year End Value Year End % Max During Year Effective Duration

$ 143,559 100% 100% 2.36

5 143,559 2.36
Year End Value Year End % Max During Year Effective Duration

$ 3,565 7.20% 7.30% 7.30

10,824 22.00% 22.60% 5.13

19,355 39.30% 41.40% 4.30

12,488 25.40% 27.80% 3.97

261 0.50% 0.60% 11.88

$ 46,493 4.41
Year End Value Year End % Max During Year Effective Duration

$ 885 7.60% 9.50% 7.17

2,904 24.90% 25,10% 2.60

4,104 35.10% 38.80% 4.00

2,757 23.60% 26.20% 4.13

343 2.90% 3.10% 12.95

$ 10,993 3.95
Year End Value Year End % Max During Year Effective Duration

$ 5,079 10.00% 13.00% 9.70

2,777 6.00% 10.00% 5.00

8,630 17.00% 20.00% 5.50

21,284 42.00% 45,00% 3.20

3,773 8.00% 8.00% 2.40

568 1.00% 1.00% 3.20

7,348 15.00% 15.00% 4,20

692 1.00% 1.00% 5.80

$ 50,152 4.46
Year End Value Year End % Max During Year Effective Duration

$ 6,414 12.50% 12.50% 6.08
2,052 4.00% 5.28% 10.00

9,565 18.64% 22.99% 6.65

25,440 49.58% 52.19% 3.21

6,871 13.39% 14.30% 1.42

539 1.05% 1.20% 8.57

431 0.84% 6.06% 4.76

$ 51,312 4.31

L Foreign bonds denominated in U.S. dollars and issued in the United States by foreign banks and corporations.

2 . . . . . . .
: Includes securities issued by supranationals, sovereigns, foreign agencies and regional governments.

*: Includes TBA contracts for the purchase or sale of an MBS to be delivered at an agreed-upon future date that is recorded as cash.
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3.

CASH, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES LENDING (continued)
C. Investments and Investment Practices: (continued)

Interest rate risk: In accordance with the city’s investment policy, the city manages its
exposure to declines in fair value of its investments by limiting the weighted average
maturity of its investments to less than six years.

Custodial Credit Risk: Investments are subject to custodial credit risk if the securities
are uninsured, not registered in the city’s name, are held by the party that either sells to or
buys for the city. During the year, investments in overnight reverse purchase agreements
exposed the city to custodial credit risk. No investments held at year end were subject to
custodial credit risk.

. Securities Lending: As of September 30, 2005, the City of Jacksonville Retirement System

participates in securities lending transactions through a contract for a custodial relationship with
The Northern Trust Company. Additionally, the city’s general government participates in
securities lending transactions through a contract for a custodial relationship with Dresdner
Kleinwort and Wasserstein. Securities are loaned versus collateral that may include cash, U.S.
government securities and irrevocable letters of credit. U.S. securities are loaned versus collateral
valued at 102% of the market value of the securities plus any accrued interest. Non-U.S.
securities are loaned versus collateral valued at 105% of the market value of the securities plus
any accrued interest. Non-cash collateral cannot be pledged or sold unless the borrower defaults.
Types of securities lent include Global Equities, US Agencies, US Corporate Fixed, US Equities
and US Government Fixed. The market value of Jacksonville Retirement System securities on
loan against cash collateral and non cash collateral at September 30, 2005 was $209,659,225, and
$26,626,158, respectively. The total market value of securities on loan was $236,285,383. The
market value of city general government securities on loan against non cash collateral at
September 30, 2005 was $16,304,641.

All securities loans can be terminated on demand by either the lender or the borrower, although
the average term of the overall loans as of September 30, 2005 was approximately 118 days. Cash
open collateral is invested in a short term investment pool, which had an average weighted
maturity of 30 days as of this statement date. Cash collateral may also be invested separately in
“term loans,” in which case the investments match the loan term. These loans can be terminated
on demand by either the lender or the borrower.

There were no violations of legal or contractual provisions, and no borrower or lending agent
default losses known to the securities lending agent. There are no dividends or coupon payments
owing on the securities lent. Securities lending earnings are credited to participating clients on
approximately the fifteenth day of the following month,

Indemnification deals with the situation in which a client’s securities are not returned due to the
insolvency of a borrower and Northern Trust has failed to live up to its contractual responsibilities
relating to the lending of those securities. Northern Trust’s responsibilities include performing
appropriate borrower and collateral investment credit analyses, demanding adequate types and
levels of collateral, and complying with applicable Department of Labor and Federal Financial
Institutions Examination Council regulations concerning securities lending. For the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2005, the plan received net income of $.5 million from securities lending
activities for its pension portfolio.
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4. ACCOUNTS AND MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE
The accounts and mortgages receivable balances in the funds listed below, in thousands, are
shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. No other funds had an allowance for
doubtful accounts at September 30, 2005.

Accounts Allowance for Net Amount Shown
Fund Receivable Doubtful Accounts on Balance Sheet
General Fund $21,630 ($14,454) $7,176
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds:
Sports, Convention & Tourism Develop. 7 3 4
Budgeted General Government 1,510 (25) 1,485
Major Enterprise Fund:
Solid Waste Disposal 1,946 (22) 1,924
Non-Major Enterprise Funds:
Sports Complex, Convention Center 2,329 (63) 2,266
Mortgages Allowance for Net Amount Shown
Fund Receivable Doubtful Accounts on Balance Sheet
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds:
Community Development Block Grant 3,311 (1,915) 1,396
Jacksonville Housing Commission 12,447 (5,956) 6,491
State Initiative Housing Progam 4,380 (1,617) 2,763

S. PROPERTY TAXES

A. Ad Valorem Property Taxes:
Property tax collections are governed by Chapter 197, Florida Statutes. The Duval
County Tax Collector bills and collects all property taxes levied within the consolidated
city/county. Discounts of 4, 3, 2, and 1% are allowed for early payment in November,
December, January, and February, respectively. The total millage rate levied by the city
was 9.6879 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005,

The Florida Constitution, as amended under Article VI, Section 4, limits the increase in
homestead property valuations for ad valorem tax purposes to a maximum of the lesser of
(1) three percent (3%) of the assessment for the prior year, or (ii) the percent change in the
Consumer Price Index for the preceding calendar year. The first tax year in which the
limitations of these constitutional provisions apply is January 1, 1995, Calendar year
1995 is the base year upon which assessed just value of the homestead property is
determined.
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5. PROPERTY TAXES (continued)

B. Property Tax Calendar:
The Tax Collector remits collected taxes at least monthly to the city. The city recognizes
property tax revenue as it is received from the Tax Collector since virtually all taxes
levied will be collected through the tax collection process. The calendar of events is as

follows:

January 1 Property taxes are based on assessed value at this date as
determined by the Duval County Property Appraiser.

July 1 Assessment roll approved by the state.

September 30 Millage resolution approved by the City Council.

October 1 Beginning of fiscal year for which taxes have been levied.

November 30 Last day for 4% maximum discount.

April 1 Unpaid property taxes become delinquent,

May 31 Tax certificates are sold by the Duval County Tax Collector.

This is the first lien date on the properties.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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6. CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2005, was as follows (in thousands):

Primary Government

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Land reported in Internal Service Funds
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings

Furniture and equipment and Library books

Immprovements
Infrastructure
Capital assets reported in Internal
Service Funds, net
Total assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Fumniture and equipment
Improvements
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

Primary Government

Business-type activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment

Total assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Fumiture and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Beginning Balance Dispositions/ Ehding Balance

October 1, 2004 Additions Reclassifications Septemnber 30, 2005
$ 270,698 $ 8,315 (5 69) $ 278,944
143,692 26,107 (52,226) 117,573

58 1,355 - 1,413

414,448 35,777 (52,295) 397,930
732,250 70,258 (3,729) 798,779
55,960 17,919 (8,412) 65,467
114,922 24,379 - 139,301
1,074,057 121,831 - 1,195,888
61,740 31,636 (14,050) 79.326
2,038,929 266,023 (26,191) 2,278,761
176,119 14,844 (3530) 187,433
43,258 30,231 (6,374) 67,115

20,243 3,616 - 23,859
158,029 4,887 - 162,916
397,649 53,578 (9,904) 441,323
1,641,280 212,445 (16,287) 1,837,438

$ 2,055,728 $ 243,222 (5 68,582) $ 2,235,368

Beginning Balance Ending Balance

October 1, 2004 Increases Decreases September 30, 2005
$7,074 - - $7,074

7,074 - - 7,074

74,137 346 74,483

9,173 65 (1,101) 8,137

83,310 411 (1,101) 82,620

31,941 4,520 36,461

6,496 279 (1,097) 5,678

38,437 4,799 (1,097) 42,139

44,873 (4,388) (&) 40,481

$ 51,947 (5 4,388) ($4) $ 47,555
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6. CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY  (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions of the primary government as follows (in thousands):

Governmental activities:

General government $ 2,373
Human services 788
Public Safety 5,088
Culture and recreation 14,587
Transportation 87
Economic environment 52
Physical environment 30,603
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 53,578

Depreciation expense was charged to the business-type activities as follows (in thousands);

Business-type activities:

Parking system $§ 366
Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium 1
Motor vehicle inspections 48
Solid waste 4,070
Ferry 314
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities T §. 4,799

( The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

A summary of interfund balances follows (in thousands):

DUE TO QT F AMOUNT DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS PURPOSE

MAJOR FUNDS:

Capital Projects

Bond Projects $ 968  Self Insurance Temporary interfund loan
Building Inspection 629  General Projects Temporary interfund loan
TOTAL $ 1,597

ADVANCES FROM OTHER FUNDS  AMOUNT ADYANCES TO OTHER FUNDS

MAJOR FUNDS:

Capital Projects Interfund loan for Redevelopment
General Projects $ 10,991 Self Insurance Agreement

TOTAL $ 10991

The city makes routine transfers between its funds in the course of the fiscal year. The principal purposes of these transfers are to allocate
resources for debt service, construction or other capital projects, and to provide operating subsidies. These transfers are consistent with
the activities of the funds involved. A summary of interfund transfers follows:

TRANSFERS IN AMOUNT TRANSFERS OUT
MAJOR FUNDS:
General Fund
General Fund 5 66  Air Pollution Control and Monitoring
General Fund 109  General Government - Budgeted
General Fund 1,580 General Capital Projects
General Fund 6,146  Self Insurance
General Fund 137 Community Development Block Grant
General Fund 300 Maintenance, Parks and Recreation
General Fund 232 Grant Capital Improvement Projects
General Fund 1,500 Information Technologies
General Fund 5,518  Fleet Management/Motor Pool
Total 15,588
Debt Service
Special Bonded Debt Obligations 63,818 General Fund
Special Bonded Debt Obligations 11,167  Sports, Convention and Tourism
Special Bonded Debt Obligations 2,012 Tax Increment Districts
Special Bonded Debt Obligations 1,021 Public Parking System
Special Bonded Debt Obligations-BJP 35,840 Better Jacksonville Plan Trust Fund
Total 113,858
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

TRANSFERS IN
MAJOR FUNDS: (continued)

Capital Projects

General Projects

General Projects

General Projects

Better Jax Construction Project Trust Fund

Better Jax Construction Project Trust Fund
Total

Enterprise Funds
Public Parking System
Solid Waste Disposal

NON-MAJOR FUNDS:

Special Revenue
Concurrency Management
Air Pollution Control and Monitoring
General Government - Budgeted
Tax Increment Districts
Jacksonville Children's Commission
Community Development Block Grant
Community Development Block Grant
Maintenance, Parks and Recreation
Other Federal, State & Local Grant Funds
Other Federal, State & Local Grant Funds
Other Federal, State & Local Grant Funds
Other Federal, State & Local Grant Funds
General Government - Non-Budgeted
General Govemnment - Non-Budgeted
Jacksonville Housing Commission
Jacksonville Housing Commission
Jacksonville Housing Commission

Total

Debt Service

Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations

Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations
Total

Capital Projects
Grant Capital Improvement Projects
Total

TRANSFERS OUT

Sports, Convention & Tourism Dev
General Government-Non Budgeted

Better Jacksonville Plan Trust Fund

Tax Increment Districts

Jacksonville Children's Commission
General Government-Non Budgeted
Fleet Management/Motor Pool

Community Development Block Grant

Tax Increment Districts

AMOUNT
388  General Fund
503
2
5,086 Transportation
37,837
43,816
1,369 General Fund
25,825  General Fund
27,194
3 General Fund
409  General Fund
201 General Fund
0600  General Fund
16,839  General Fund
9  General Fund
75
1,612  General Fund
5,288 General Fund
129
18
2
17  General Fund
106  General Fund
510 General Fund
1,692
5,000 General Projects
32,510
86  General Fund
1,064
1,150
1,193  General Fund
1,193
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

T \SFERS 1

NON-MA JOR FUNDS: (continued)

Enterprise Funds

Sports Complex, Convention Center
and Auditorium

Sports Complex, Convention Center
and Auditorium

Sports Complex, Convention Center
and Auditorium

Mayport Ferry

Total

Internal Service Funds
Fleet Management
Fleet Management
Fleet Management
Purchasing
Information Technology
Legal
Self Insurance
Self Insurance
Self Insurance
Group Health
Group Health
Insured Programs

Total

Fiduciary Funds
Private Purpose Trust
Total

TOTAL

1,578

845

150
739
9,312

b 112
23

525
30
1,077
500
1,858

126

4,266

$ 248,890

AMOUNT TRANSFERS OUT

General Fund
Sports, Convention and Tourism
Development

Maintenance, Parks and Recreation
General Fund

General Fund

Other Federal, State and Local Grants
Solid Waste Disposal
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund

Group Health
Insured Programs
General Fund
Insured Programs
General Fund

General Government - Non-Budgeted

In the fund financial statements, total transfers out are greater than total transfers in by $178.
This is due to the treatment of transfers of capital assets from Public Parking and Solid Waste to
the general government in the amount of $27 and $151, respectively. No amounts were reported
in the governmental funds as the amount did not involve the transfer of financial resources.
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7.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

During fiscal year 1999, the self-insurance fund advanced $14,000,000 to the capital projects
fund for the purpose of fulfilling city obligations under a redevelopment agreement for a new
900-room hotel with substantial convention and business space. The total capital investment
for the project is $126.0 million. The City Council passed an ordinance to treat the funding
from the self insurance fund as a loan which will be repaid from general fund revenues
commencing on May 1, 2000 in equal annual installments over 20 years, plus simple interest
0f4.45%. The balance of this advance was $10,990,535 at September 30, 2005.

In fiscal year 2003, the city passed an ordinance to enter into a redevelopment agreement
with Vestcor Companies and its subsidiaries for the redevelopment of the Lynch Building
and the Roosevelt Hotel into apartment buildings with associated retail space. The ordinance
designates the two buildings as city historic landmarks.

In fiscal year 2003, the city used internal self-insurance funds, in an amount of $17,818,000,
to provide permanent financing for the project. The self-insurance fund will be repaid on an
annual basis with funds from the Northbank Downtown Tax Increment District. The terms
of the repayment will be a 30-year amortization, with a 20-year term at a fixed interest rate of
six percent (6%) per year. Annual payments are $1,294,313 which includes both principal
and interest with a balloon payment of $8,290,400 at the end of the 20-year period. The
balance of the loan at September 30, 2005 was $16,158,956.

Vestcor will repay the city an amount of $17,816,000 to the Downtown Economic
Development fund as created by ordinance 2000-1079-E. The terms of the repayment will be
a 40-year amortization, with a 20-year term at a fixed interest rate of 1.525% per year.
Annual payments are $595,248 which includes both principal and interest with a balloon
payment of $10,291,719. The balance of the loan at September 30, 2005 was $17,103,717.

During fiscal year 2005, the city had financial transactions with its discretely presented
component units classified as follows for financial reporting purposes:

JEA:
Enhanced Joint Agency Financing Program - On November 5, 1996, JEA and the city
executed a Financial Agreement in relation to the use of an ‘““enhanced joint agency
financing program” (the “EJ Program™) in conjunction with the issuance of $57,150,000
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B for the benefit of various marine facilities
for the Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA). The city and JEA have agreed that annual
contributions from JEA to the city under Article 21 of the City Charter and Section
106.202(c) of the City Ordinance Code will be supplemented to offset any shortfall in
certain cash flows in the city revenues dedicated for the benefit of the JPA (See
discussion below concerning the allocation of three sources of revenue by the city to the
JPA). As of September 30, 2005, revenues dedicated for the support of debt service
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7.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)
JEA: (continued)

requirements of the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds have been sufficient so as to avoid
the need to call upon supplemental contributions from JEA in support of the EJ Program.

Payment in Lieu of Taxes — The JEA is required by the city’s charter to contribute
annually to the general fund of the city an amount not to exceed 7.5 mills per kilowatt per
hour sold. October 1, 1968, the city turned its electrical department over to the newly
created Jacksonville Electric Authority (JEA). The JEA makes contributions to the city’s
general fund in accordance with the city’s charter. For the fiscal year ended September
30, 2005 the JEA contributed $68,676,624.

On June 1, 1997, the JEA assumed the operation and all related assets and liabilities of
the water and sewer system from the city. The water and sewer system is also required
by the city’s charter to contribute annually to the city’s general fund. For the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2005 the JEA contributed $17,260,920.

These contributions are based on calculations contained within Section 21.07 of the city’s
charter. JEA reports a contribution to the city’s general fund of $85,938,000.

Jacksonville Port Authority:

Interlocal Agreement - In connection with a major port and marine facilities capital
improvement project (the Project), the city and the Jacksonville Port Authority (JPA)
entered into an Interlocal Agreement upon the issuance of $43,605,140 Excise Taxes
Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. Subsequent to this transaction, the parties entered into an
Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement in conjunction with the issuance of
$57,150,000 Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B. Under the Amended and
Restated Interlocal Agreement, the city agreed to issue the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B
Bonds to finance the port and marine facilities capital improvement project, and the JPA,
in consideration therefore, agreed to reimburse the city for debt service payments on the
1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds from certain revenues allocated to the JPA. Any
insufficiency in the extent of such revenues allocated to the JPA under the Amended and
Restated Interlocal Agreement or any changes in the Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement does not affect in any manner any obligation of the city pursuant to the terms
of the 1993 Bonds or the 1996B Bonds. The Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement is not for the benefit of the holders of the 1993 Bonds or the 1996B Bonds
and the JPA has no obligation under that Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement to
any third party bondholder. The revenues allocated to the JPA and supplemental
contributions to the city from the JEA in conjunction with the EJ Program are not
pledged as security for the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds.
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7.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)
Jacksonville Port Authority: (continued)

The Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement provides for the allocation of three
sources of revenue (collectively referred to as the “pledged revenues™) by the city to the
JPA. The first source of revenue relates to the allocation of half of the increased revenues
in the Telecommunications tax, which is 85% of the Communication Services Tax
("Authority Allocation No. 1"). The second source of revenue relates to the amount
calculated by multiplying one quarter (.25) mills by the gross kilowatt hours (as defined
in Article 21 of the City Charter) sold by JEA during the twelve month period ending
May 31 of the prior fiscal year (the “Authority Allocation No. 2"). The third source of
revenue relates to the $800,000 annual contribution remitted to the JPA as described in
Section 5(a) of the JPA act. Such pledged revenues are to be applied by the city to the
payment of debt service on the 1993 Bonds and the 1996B Bonds for such fiscal year
prior to being paid to the JPA. To the extent that the debt service on the 1993 Bonds and
the 1996B Bonds in any fiscal year exceeds the allocation of revenues to the JPA for such
fiscal year, then the amount of such deficiency shall be paid by the JEA to the city. The
1996B bonds were refunded by the Excise Taxes Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 A.

The 1993 Bonds were refunded by the Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and
Improvement Bonds, Series 2003C. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, the
allocation of revenues from the city to the JPA exceeded the debt service requirements of
the 1993 Bonds, 1996B Bonds, 2001 A Bonds and the 2003C Bonds by the amount of
$3.7 million. In FY 04/05, $2.3 million was distributed to the JPA. $3.5 million will
remain in reserves to be applied to any future debt service shortfalls of the 1993 Bonds,
1996B Bonds, 2001 A Bonds and the 2003B Bonds and the remaining amount will be
expended on capital projects. At September 30, 2005, the cumulative balance after the
distribution to JPA is $4.9 million.

In previous years, the city expended $43.1 million on the Project from proceeds of the
1993 Bonds for the benefit of the JPA under the Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement, which completed the 1993 Bond Program. In previous years, the city
expended $64 million on the Project from proceeds of the 1996B Bonds for the benefit of
the JPA under the Interlocal Agreement. The city accounts for these expenditures in the
Capital Projects Funds. The city does not capitalize these capital outlay expenditures.

Jacksonville Transportation Authority:

Local Option One-Half Cent Sales Tax - On August 11, 1989, Jacksonville citizens
voted removal of all tolls from county/city bridges and certain roads and replaced the
revenue with a local option one-half cent sales tax that provides a permanent funding
source for the construction and maintenance of the city's roads and bridges; the operation
and maintenance of the bus system and the refinancing of existing bonds issued for the
construction of such bridges and roads. All collections from the one-half cent sales tax
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7.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)
Jacksonville Transportation Authority: (continued)

are statutorily required to be remitted to the JTA. Accordingly, the city remitted all
collections from the one-half cent sales tax to the JTA in the amount of $71.7 million in
fiscal 2005. Such collection and payment by the city of this local option one-half cent
sales tax is recorded in the Transportation Special Revenue Fund as revenue and a
transportation expenditure in an equal amount. The JTA reports the $71.7 million
transfer from the city as sales tax revenue.

In fiscal year 2000, the City of Jacksonville and the Jacksonville Transportation
Authority entered into an interlocal agreement for the purposes of jointly exercising the
separate powers of each to the maximum extent allowable by law in the development,
scheduling, financing, planning, permitting, design, construction, and implementation of
a $750 million Road, Bridge and Drainage Capital Improvement Work Program. The
term of the agreement commenced on October 1, 2000 and continues in effect until all of
the Bonds have been duly paid in full or defeased in accordance with their terms. The
city and JTA agreed to pledge the Sales Tax and the Constitutional Gas Tax to the
payment of Bonds issued to implement the Program. Monies available above debt
service would be collected in a Pay-as-you-Go fund to assist with the payment of
Program expenditures. The city is making available the Local Option Gas Tax for the
operation of the JTA’s Mass Transit Division.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2005, are comprised of the following (in thousands):

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE INTEREST
FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES RATES PRINCIPAL

OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1993

payable in semi-annual installments to 2016 5.00-6.30% $ 7545
Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Series 1994 Variable Rate
payable in monthly instaliments to 2006 Assumed at 9.20% 995

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995
payable in semi-annual installments to 2026 5.00 - 5.875% 25,100

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1995
payable in semi-annual installments to 2006 5.00 - 6.00% 3,900

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010 4.875 - 5.125% 7,580

Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Series 1995A
payable in semi annual installments to 2012 4.75 - 5.65% 8,380

Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Series 1995B (AMT)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2016 4.60 - 5.75% 8,950

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1996
payable in semi-annual installments to 2019 4.35 - 5.50% 6,270

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996C
payable in semi-annual installments to 2007 4.35-4.85% 1,020

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1997

payable in semi-annual installments to 2026 4.20 - 5.25% 7,105
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-1 Variable Rate

payable in monthly instaliments to 2018 Assumed at 7.81% 23,975
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-2 Variable Rate

payable in monthly installments to 2023 Assumed at 8.89% 41,000
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS {continued)

A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2005:  (continued)

SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS PAYABLE
FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES (continued)

Capital Improvement and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998
payable in semi-annual installments to 2026

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds,
Series 1999A payable in semi-annual installments to 2020

Local Government Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2001 payable in semi-annual installments to 2019

Excise Taxes Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2010

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B
payable in semi-annual installments to 2033

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds,
Series 2002A payable in semi-annual installments to 2014

Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding and Improvement
Bonds, Series 2002 payable in semi-annual installments to 2033

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A
payable in semi-annual installments to 2031

Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Crossover Series 2002B payable in semi-annual
installments to 2020

Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Crossover Series 2002C payable in semi-annual
installments to 2026

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2002B
payable in semi-annual instaliments to 2027

Local Government Sales Tax Refunding and
Improvement Bonds, Series 2002 payable

in semi-annual installments to 2019

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds,
Series 2003B payable in semi-annual installments to 2012

-04 .-

INTEREST
RATES

3.90 - 5.00%

3.30 - 5.00%

3.00 - 5.00%

5.00%

4.000% - 5.125%

4.250% - 5.500%

3.000% - 5.375%

2.375% - 5.000%

2.000% - 5.250%

2.375% - 5.250%

2.500% - 5.375%

3.000% - 5.375%

3.000% - 5.000%

PRINCIPAL

$ 35685

42,360

103,165

33,845

46,735

47,235

111,205

54,135

42,170

26,920

65,995

57,990

14,990



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2005;  (continued)

SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS PAYABLE

FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES INTEREST
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES (continued) RATES
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003C (AMT)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2021 2.000% - 5.250%
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-3 Variable Rate
payable in monthly installments to 2026 Maximum Assumed at 7.90%

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A

payable in semi-annual installments to 2024 3.000% - 4.500%
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2002-1 Variable Rate
payable in monthly installments to 2035 Maximum Assumed at 7.588%

Total Special Obligation Bonds Payable From Specific
Revenue Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes

Add: Deferred amounts on Special Obligation Bonds

Total Special Obligation Bonds Payable From Specific
Revenue Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes, plus deferred amounts

SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS PAYABLE FROM
SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES OTHER THAN AD
VALOREM TAXES - BETTER JACKSONVILLE PLAN:

Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2001
payable in semi-annual installments to 2032 3.00-5.25%

Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001
payable in semi-annual installments to 2031 3.00 - 5.50%

Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2003

payable in semi-annual installments to 2031 2.00-5.25%
Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 Auction Rate Securities
interest is reset and payable every 35 days to 2021 Assumed at 4.01%
Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A Auction Rate Securities
interest is reset and payable every 35 days to 2033 Assumed at 4.81%
Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B Auction Rate Securities
interest is reset and payable every 35 days to 2033 Assumed at 4.81%

Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004
payable in semi-annual installments to 2031 2.00 - 5.00%

-95.

PRINCIPAL

$ 34,210

24,000

18,746

54,000

$ 955,200

5,237

$ 960,443

$ 174,590

205,845

204,125

44,990

76,825

76,800

218,755
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

8, LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS(continued)
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2005:  (continued)
SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS PAYABLE FROM
SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES OTHER THAN AD
VALOREM TAXES - BETTER JACKSONVILLE PLAN: (continued)

INTEREST
RATES

Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2004
interest is reset and payable every 35 days to 2027

Total Special Obligation Bonds Payable From Specific Revenue
Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes - Better Jacksonville Plan

TOTAL SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS

BONDS PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A

payable in semi-annual installments to 2010 4.25-5.125%

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996A

payable in semi-annual instaliments to 2017 4.00 - 5.50%

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds,

Series 1999B payable in semi-annual installments to 2017 4.20-575%

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds,

Series 2003B payable in semi-annual installments to 2012 3.00 - 5.00%

TOTAL BONDS PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS

TOTAL BONDS PAYABLE
NOTES PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE:

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1995 (Coach)

payable in semi-annual installments to 2014 3.09 - 5.19 (Taxa

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996 (Sally Beauty)

payable in semi-annual installments to 2012 6.46-6.88%
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996-B (Hilton Hotel)

payable in semi-annual installments to 2015 6.46-7.03%
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Lavilla)

payable in semi-annual installments to 2016 6.46-7.08%
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (HTV Associates)

payable in semi-annual installments to 2010 6.46-6.78%
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Auction Rate Securities
Assumed at 3.455%

(Taxable)

(Taxable)

(Taxable)

(Taxable)

(Taxable)

PRINCIPAL
$ 79,875
$ 1,081,805
$ 2,042,248

10,820
16,075
32,720
8,375
$ 67,990
$ 2,110,238
$ 3270
540
2,305
975
335



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS(continued)
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2005:  (continued)

NOTES PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE:  (continued)

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Armor Holdings)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2016 6.46-7.08% (Taxable)

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Hampton Inns)
payable in semi-annual installments to 2015 6.46-7.03% (Taxable)
TOTAL NOTES PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE

NOTES PAYABLE FROM BJP REVENUE:

State of Florida Infrastructure Bank
payable in semi-annual installments to 2024 2.00%

NOTES PAYABLE FROM INTERNAL SERVICE OPERATIONS:

Commercial Paper Notes with interest rates ranging from 2.45% to
2.70%, maturing no later than 270 days after date of issuance, and in
no event later than December 31, 2034; renewable annually, at the city's option,
per credit agreement dated November 4, 2004.

TOTAL BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

CAPITALIZED LEASE OBLIGATIONS:

General Fund:

Installment lease purchase of office equipment with lease maturity
2008 with effective interest rates ranging from 4.00 to 5.00%

Internal Service Fund:

Installment lease purchase of office and communications equipment with lease maturity
dates through 2010 with effective interest rates ranging from 4.13 to 6.40%

Total Capitalized Lease Obligations

ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES:

Represents the vested portion of accrued vacation and sick leave. See Note 1.M.
for a summary of the City's policy regarding compensated absences.

Governmental and Internal Service Funds

Business-type Funds

(Fiduciary - Pension Funds have compensated absences of $ 57 which are not
presented on the City-wide Statements)

Total Accrued Compensated Absences
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$ 645

450

$ 8,520

$ 18,319

58,565

$ 2,195,642

$ 771

220

$ 991

$ 54,509
767

$ 55276
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS{continued)
A. Long-term Obligations at September 30, 2005:  (continued)

OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT:

Estimated Liability for Self-Insured Losses
Liability for Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care

Total Other Long-Term Debt

TOTAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Less Unamortized Discount/Premium and Deferred
Loss on Advance Refunding

Total, less Unamortized Discount/Premium
and Deferred Loss on Advance Refunding

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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$ 58595
44,003

$

102,598

$ 2,354,507

(2,343)

$2,352,164
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8.LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

B.Debt Service Requirement to Maturity:

Debt service requirement to maturity on the city's Long-Term Obligations at

September 30, 2003, are as follows (in thousands):

General Long-Term Bonds

Bonds Payable Total
Fiscal Year Special From Other Long-Term Long-Term _
Ending Special Obligation Obligation BJP Enterprise Funds Obligations Obligations
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest  Principal  Interest Principal Interest And Interest
2006 $ 42,795 $ 49,322 $ 15720 $ 48753 $ 4525 $ 3302 $ 14637 § 1922 S 180976
2007 44,870 47,297 18,100 48,212 5,905 3,089 14,477 1,865 183,815
2008 45,775 45,273 18,600 47,623 7,410 2,778 14,616 1,487 183,562
2009 49,000 43,168 21,615 46,941 7,680 2,429 14,765 1,100 186,698
2010 47,315 41,343 19,470 46,242 7,990 2,047 14,914 707 180,028
2011 - 2015 185,966 191,279 122,950 218,233 24,130 5,956 11,785 1,195 761,494
2016 - 2020 204,839 128,109 167,970 187,119 10,350 567 210 15 699,179
2021 - 2025 138,375 75,564 224,765 143,198 - - - - 581,902
2026 - 2030 124,555 39,903 306,500 79,502 - - - - 550,460
2031 - 2035 71,716 9,966 166,115 7,744 - - - - 255,541
Total Principal and
Interest 955,206 671,224 1,081,805 873,567 67,990 20,168 85,404 8,291 3,763,655
Less: Interest to
be paid - (671,224) - (873,567) - (20,168) - (8,291)  (1,573,250)
Total Principal 955,206 - 1,081,805 - 67,990 - 85,404 - 2,190,405
Deferred amounts 5,237 - - - - - - - 5,237
Unamortized Discount/Premium
and Deferred Loss on Advance
Refunding (1) - - - - (2,343) - - - (2,343)
Totals $960,443 $ - $1.081,805 3% - $65647 § - $85404 % - $2,193299
Long-Term Obligations Not Included Above:
Accrued Compensated Absences 55,276
Capitalized Lease Obligations 991
Estimated Liability for Self-Insured Losses 58,595
Liability for Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care 44,003

TOTAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

(1) Public Parking System $ 1,012 and Solid Waste Disposal $1,331
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
C. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities:

Changes in long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, are
summarized as follows (in thousands):

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30, Due within
2004 Additions Reductions 2003 one year
Governmental activities:
General long-term obligations:
Special Obligation Bonds $ 1,035,101 $ - $ 79,895 $ 955,206 $ 42,795
Special Obligation -BJP 1,093,855 - 12,050 1,081,805 15,720
Notes Payable- BIP - 18,319 - 18,319 2,399
Notes Payable 8,980 - 460 8,520 525
Notes Payable - Loan Pool Program - 65,000 6,435 58,565 11,713
Deferred amounts:
Loss on Advance Refunding (5,546) - (6) (5,540) -
Issuance premiums 15,579 - 1,019 14,560 -
Issuance discounts (3,938) - (155) (3,783) -
Total bonds and notes payable 2,144,031 83,319 99,698 2,127,652 73,152
Accrued Compensated Absences 53,788 30,894 30,173 54,509 16,352
Capitalized Lease Obligations 18,882 771 18,662 991 431
Estimated Liability for Self-

Insured Losses 55,397 21,817 18,619 58,595 -
Governmental activity long-term obligations 2,272,098 136,801 167,152 2,241,747 89,935
Business-type activities:

Revenue Bonds 72,109 - 4,119 67,990 4,525
Less: Unamortized Discount/Premium and,
Deferred Loss on Advance Refunding (2,644) - (301) (2,343) -
Total Revenue Bonds, less Unamortized
Discount/Premium and, Deferred
Loss on Advance Refunding 69,465 - 3,818 65,647 -
Accrued Compensated Absences 751 56 40 767 231
Liability for Landfill Closure
and Postclosure Care 31,104 12,899 - 44,003 -
Business-type activity long-term
liabilities 101,320 12,955 3,858 110417 4,756
TOTAL LONG-TERM
LIABILITIES $ 2,373,418 $ 149,756 $ 171,010 $ 2,352,164 $ 94,691

Internal Service Funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities of $2,983 for
compensated absences payable and $220 for capital leases are included above in the totals for governmental activities.
Compensated absences for governmental activities are generally liquidated by the general fund.
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

D. New Indebtedness and Refundings Issued by the City:

On November 4, 2004, the City closed on the sale of $65,000,000 Commerical Paper
Notes, Series A, with a true interest cost of 4.009%. The Notes carry initial coupon rates
ranging from 1.80% to 1.83% with initial rollover dates ranging from January 20, 2005 to
March 8, 2005. The proceeds will be used to fund short-term financing of the vehicle
replacement fund, vendor contracts for equipment purchases, small capital projects, and
other installment purchases. The creation of an internal service loan funds would
substitute and eventually climinate any outside vendor contracts to help reduce the higher
interest rates agreed upon in the original contracts. The fund will also provide a uniform
tracking system for services purchased under the program. The issuance provided net
proceeds of $64,808,000.00 (after payment of $192,000.00 for costs of issuance) to fund
short-term financing of capital projects.

On February 25, 2005, the City entered into a loan agreement with the State of Florida
Department of Transportation for the state funded State Infrastructure Bank loan
program. The total amount of the loan will be $40,000,000 with an interest amount of
2%. The proceeds will be used to finance or refinance the construction and
improvements of transportation facilities that are a part of the State Highway System
currently associated with the Better Jacksonville Infrastructure Program. The proceeds
will be issued on a reimbursement basis as projects progress through completion.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

E. DEFEASED DEBT:

The city has defeased certain serial bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust
to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets
and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the city's financial statements.

The city presently has outstanding the following serial bonds, which are legally defeased (in thousands):

INVESTMENT
PRINCIPAL BALANCE WITH
BALANCE AT ESCROW AGENT AT
ISSUE (a) REFUNDED BY SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 (b)

Excise Taxes Revenue 1984 C Excise Tax Revenue

Refunding Bonds, Series 1977 Refunding Bonds $ 14,400 $ 14,858
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, 2001 Local Government Sales Tax

Series 1995 & Series 1996 Revenue Refunding Bonds 103,980 105,916

(a) Special Obligation Bonds payable from Specific Revenue Sources Other Than Ad Valorem Taxes

(b) Source: Escrow Agent's Records

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

F. Lease Obligations:

At September 30, 2005, the city has several capital lease agreements in place. The leases
meet the criteria of a capital lease as defined by FASB Statement No. 13, Accounting for
Leases, which defines a capital lease generally as one which transfers benefits and risks
of ownership to the lessee. The lease agreements contain options that allow the city to
cancel the leases if sufficient funds are not appropriated. Since cancellation of the leases
is not foreseen, the leases have been capitalized. Further, upon satisfaction of the lease
obligations, asset title will pass to the city.

The city has computers which were acquired through a capital lease (recorded in the
General Fund for the Library). Depreciation was $295 thousand in fiscal year 2005.

The city has a voice mail system, software, storage arca network, two telephone switches
and wiring systems and Motorola radios which were acquired through capital leases
(recorded in the Information Technologies Internal Service Fund). Depreciation of the
items acquired through these capital leases was $879 thousand in fiscal year 2005 and
was included in depreciation expense of capital assets,

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows (in thousands):

Internal Service Fund -

General Fund Information Technologies
Asset:
Furniture and Equipment S 1,066 $ 1,099
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (295) (879)
Total S 77 $ 220
The future mimimum lease obligations as of September 30, 2005, were as follows (in
thousands):
Information Technologies
Fiscal Year Ending September 30, General Fund Internal Service Fund
2006 $ 380 $ 85
2007 380 85
2008 49 64
2009
Total minimum lease payments 809 234
Less: Amount representing interest (38) (13)
Present value of minimum lease
Payments $ 7 S 220
Classified as:
Current § 353 5§ M
Non-current 418 143
Total g S 220

The city does not have any material operating leases.
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
G. Conduit Debt:

The city issued certain conduit debt in the form of industrial development revenue bonds
(IDB's) and private activity bonds (PAB's) to provide financial assistance to private-
sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities
deemed to be in the public interest. Conduit debt refers to certain limited-obligation
revenue bonds or similar debt instruments issued by the city for the express purpose of
providing capital financing for a specific nongovernmental third party. Although conduit
debt bears the name of the city as issuer, it is collateralized by the resources provided by
the loan with the third party on whose behalf they are issued. The city acts solely as a
conduit issuer with respect to the debt.

Conduit debt is collateralized by the property financed and is payable solely from
payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the IDB's and
PAB's, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by
the bond issue. None of the assets or revenues of the city are pledged to the payment of
IDB's or PAB's and under the constitution and laws of Florida, the city may not legally
pledge any of its revenues or assets to the payment thereof. Neither the city, the state, nor
any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements.

Effective January 1, 1983, the city pursuant to Chapter 159, Florida Statutes, assumed
responsibility for approving applications for IDB's and PAB's. As of September 30, 2005,
the city had authorized $1,776,178,120 in IDB's and PAB's, of which $1,377,286,902
have been issued. From time to time, certain of such conduit debt may be in default or
under investigation as to tax-exempt status of interest on such debt, however, this has no
effect on the city's financial position.

As of September 30, 2005, the city has authorized a total of $644,371,000 Jacksonville
Housing Finance Authority (JHoFA), formerly Duval County Housing Finance Authority
(DCHFA), Single Family and Multi-Family Bonds of which $483,356,142 have been
issued. The amount of Single Family Housing Revenue Bonds authorized and issued are
$480,000,000 and $329,876,142, respectively, with a total amount outstanding of
$86,415,222. The amount of Multi-Family Housing Bonds authorized and issued is
$164,371,000 and $153,480,000, respectively, with a total amount outstanding of
$135,765,000. There were no Single Family Housing Revenue Bonds authorized or
issued during the fiscal year ended 2005. However, there were $125,000,000 of
Homeowner Revenue Notes authorized for the preservation of single family bond
allocation, of which $15,000,000 have been issued to date. The amount of Multi-Family
Housing Bonds both authorized and issued during the fiscal year ended 2005 is
$14,300,000. Refundings of previous issues make up $68,595,000 of the total amount
authorized, $68,350,000 of the total amount issued, and $36,455,222 of the total amount
outstanding.

- 104 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
G. Conduit Debt: (continued)

As of September 30, 2005, the city has authorized $681,765,000 of Jacksonville Health
Facilities Authority (JHFA) Bonds, of which $605,446,184 have been issued. In 20035,
the Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority issued $50,000,000 of revenue bonds for a
Baptist Medical Center project. Of the total amount of JHFA Bonds, refundings of
previous issues make up $403,365,834 of the authorizations and $328,074,166 of the
issuances.

. Interest Rate Swaps with Better Jacksonville Plan:

Terms - Effective July 1, 2003, the City of Jacksonville entered into a 17 year floating
receiver swap with Wachovia Bank rated A+. The notional amount of the swap as of
September 30, 2005 was $46,410,000 and has a termination date of QOctober 1, 2020.
There were no payments at the initiation of the swap. The city receives a floating rate of
the BMA Index and pays a fixed rate of 4.01%. The city receives payments monthly and
makes payments semi-annually. The swap is related to the $47,775,000 Transportation
Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 (Auction Rate Securities). The swap was structured as an
integrated hedge with the same amortization as the bonds, which resulted in synthetic
fixed rate debt. For purposes of credit, the swap is secured by the city’s transportation
sales tax and constitutional gas tax with a lien on parity to the bonds. The counterparty
does not have the right to terminate this transaction unless a termination event occurs.
The threshold for posting collateral is when the market value of the swap exceeds $20
million; above $20 million the counterparty shall post $1 million of collateral. Collateral
is in the form of cash. A lower credit rating will also increase the amount of collateral
required. The city retains the right to terminate this swap agreement at the market value
prior to maturity.

Fair Value - As of September 30, 2005, the underlying swaps had a fair value of
$(1,576,824). This fair value was obtained by the counter-parties’ mark to market reports
submitted to the City.

On September 30, 2004, the City of Jacksonville entered into a 23-year floating-to-fixed
interest rate swap with Wachovia Bank rated Aa2/A+. The notional amount of the swap
as of September 30, 2005 was $80,275,000 and has a termination date of October 1,
2027. There were no payments at the initiation of the swap. The City pays Wachovia a
fixed rate of 3.455% and receives floating based on 67% of 1-month LIBOR, which
could result in a basis risk if there are changes in the tax laws. The swap is related to the
$80,275,000 Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A (Auction Rate Securities).
The swap was structured as an integrated hedge with the same amortization as the bonds,
which resulted in synthetic fixed rate debt. For purposes of credit, the swap is secured by
the city’s transportation sales tax and constitutional gas tax with a lien on parity to the
bonds. The counterparty does not have the right to terminate this transaction unless a
termination event occurs. The threshold for posting collateral is when the market value
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
H. Interest Rate Swaps with Better Jacksonville Plan: (continued)

of the swap exceeds $20 million; above $20 million the counterparty shall post $1
million of collateral. Collateral is in the form of cash. A lower credit rating will also
increase the amount of collateral required. The city retains the right to terminate this
swap agreement at the market value prior to maturity.

Fair Value - As of September 30, 2005, the underlying swaps had a fair value of
$(2,551,963). This fair value was obtained by the counter-parties’ mark to market reports
submitted to the city,

Credit Risk- As of September 30, 2005, the city was not exposed to credit risk (the risk
of economic loss due to a counterparty default on the swap agreements) because each had
a negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the fair values of the
swaps become positive, the city would then be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the
swap’s fair value.

Basis Risk- As of September 30, 2005, the swaps expose the city to basis risk. The
agreement dated July 1, 2003 calls for the city to pay a fixed rate and receive a variable
payment based on the BMA index. The city will pay or receive the difference between
the fixed rate and the BMA index. If the fixed rate is greater than the rates on the BMA
index the city will be liable for the difference. The agreement dated September 30, 2004
calls for the city to pay a fixed rate and receive a variable payment based on the one
month LIBOR. The city will pay or receive the difference between the fixed rate and
variable rate. If the fixed rate is greater than the rates on the LIBOR index the city will be
liable for the difference.

Termination Risk- The city or the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other
party fails to perform under the terms of the respective contracts. If at the time of the
termination the swap has a negative value, as each does at September 30, 2005, the city
would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swaps’ fair value,

Swap payments and associated debt — See maturity schedule for Better Jacksonville
Transportation Series 2003 and 2004A.

Effective April 29, 2004, the City of Jacksonville entered into a 5 year fixed receiver
swap with Bear Sterns Financial Products rated Aaa/AAA. The notional amount of the
transaction is $50,000,000. The City receives a fixed rate of 3.947% and pays 1-month
LIBOR. The city receives payments semi-annually and makes payments monthly. For
purposes of credit, the swap is secured by the city’s infrastructure sales tax with a lien on
parity to the Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds. The counterparty does not
have the right to terminate this transaction unless a termination event occurs. The
threshold for posting collateral is when the market value of the swap exceeds $25
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
H. Interest Rate Swaps with Better Jacksonville Plan: (continued)

million; above $25 million the counterparty shall post $1 million of collateral. Collateral
is in the form of cash. A lower credit rating will also increase the amount of collateral
required. The city retains the right to terminate this swap agreement at the market value
prior to maturity. On June 2, 2005 the city terminated this swap and realized a gain of
$220,000.

Swap Payments and Associated Debt

Using rates as of September 30, 2005, debt service requirements of the variable-rate bonds and the swap
payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for their term, were as follows.

Net Swap
Fiscal Year Variable-Rate Bonds Payments/

Ending Sept. 30 Principal Interest Total (Receipts) Total
2006 $ 1,875 3 3,099 3 4,974 3 1,427 3 6,401
2007 1,940 3,053 4,993 1,401 $ 6,394
2008 4,385 3,005 7,390 1,369 3 8,759
2009 4,495 2,896 7,391 1,324 $ 8,715
2010 4,695 2,785 7,480 1,272 $ 8,752

2011-2015 27,330 12,061 39,391 5,490 $ 44,881
2016-2020 45,745 7,744 53,489 3,369 § 56,858
2021-2025 23,600 3,164 26,764 1,196 h 27,960
2026-2027 10,800 408 11,208 154 $ 11,362

$ 124,865 S 38,215 $ 163,080 $ 17,001 $ 180,081

City of Jacksonville $47,775,000 Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2003
The Auction Rate Securities (ARS) 35-day rate as of September 30, 2005 was 2.45%
The BMA rate for swap payments received as of September 30, 2005 was 2.519%

City of Jacksonville $80,275,000 Transportation Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2004A
The Auction Rate Securities (ARS) 7-day rate as of September 30, 2005 was 2.5%
The 67% of LIBOR rate for payments received as of September 30, 2005 was 2.4744%

1. Interest Expense:
Total interest expense for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005 was $103.8 million
for governmental activities and $3.4 million for business-type activities.

J. JEA - Long-Term Debt:
The Electric System, SJRPP, Water and Sewer System and District Energy System
revenue bonds (JEA Revenue Bonds) are cach governed by one or more bond
resolutions. The Electric System bonds are governed by both a senior and a subordinated
bond resolution, the Water and Sewer Systems bonds are governed by both a senior and a
subordinated bond resolution, and the STRPP and District Energy System bonds are each
governed by a single bond resolution. In accordance with the bond resolutions of each
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
J. JEA - Long-Term Debt: (continued)

system, principal and interest on the bonds are payable from and secured by a pledge of
the Net Revenues of the respective system. In general, the bond resolutions require JEA
to make monthly deposits into the separate debt service sinking funds for each System in
an amount equal to approximately one-twelfth of the aggregate amount of principal and
interest due and payable on the bonds within the bond year. Interest on the fixed rate
bonds, other than the STRPP capital appreciation bonds, is payable semi-annually on
April 1 and October 1, and principal is payable on October 1. In accordance with the
requirements of the STRPP bond resolution and the Agreement for Joint Ownership and
Construction and Operation of St. Johns River Power Park Coal Units #1 and #2 between
JEA and FPL, FPL 1s responsible for paying its share of the debt service on the STRPP
bonds. The various bond resolutions provide for certain other covenants, the most
significant of which (1) requires JEA to establish rates for each system such that net
revenues with respect to that system is sufficient to exceed (by a certain percentage) the
debt service for that system during the fiscal year and any additional amount required to
make all reserve or other payments required to be made in such fiscal year by the
resolution of that system and (2) restricts JEA from issuing additional parity bonds unless
certain conditions are met.

The following JEA long-term debt presentation contains highly summarized data. A
more detailed debt presentation is available in JEA’s separately issued financial report,
which may be obtained from its administrative office in the JEA Plaza at 21 West Church
Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32202.

Long-term debt activity for the year ended September 30, 2005 was as follows (in

thousands):
Bonds and Accretion of Bonds and
Commercial Par Amount of SIRPP Issue 2 Commercial
Paper Payable Bonds Series 7 Capital Paper Payable Current Portion
September 30, Par Amount of Refunded or Principal Appreciation ~ September 30, September 30,
2004 Bonds Issued Defeased Payments Bonds 2005 2005
Electric System Revenue
Bonds and
Commercial Paper $ 2,181,966 $ 601,810 $ (416,330) S (6,455) $ - $ 2,360,991 $ 16,320
SIRPP System Revenue
Bonds 1,382,738 - - (78,610) 1,981 1,306,109 79,440
Water and Sewer System
Revenue Bonds 1,634,895 477,215 (228,090) (93,875) - 1,790,145 9,120
District Energy System - 47,800 - - - 47,800 -
Total $ 5,199,599 $ 1,126,825 S (644,420) $ (178,940) $ 1,981 $ 5,505,045 $ 104,880
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

K. JAA - Long-Term Indebtedness:

A summary of noncurrent liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2005 was

as follows (in thousands):

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Increases  Decreases  Balance one year
Revenue bonds $ 81,870 - (3 42,645) $ 39,225 $ 790
Revenue refunding bonds 75,065 41,815 (4,265) 112,615 4,355
Revenue notes 6,655 - (259) 6,396 276
Notes payable 1,875 - (1,275) 600 600
Line of credit - - 50 50
Total 165,515 41,815 (48,444) 158,886 $ 6,071
Unamortized deferred loss on bond
refunding (6,672) (1,587) 521 (7.738)
Unamortized bond discount (240) (68) 240 (68)
Unamortized bond premium 5,544 - (426) 5,118
Total bonds and notes payable $ 164,147  § 40,160 ($ 48,109) $ 156,198

The above JAA long-term debt presentation contains highly summarized data. A more
detailed debt presentation is available in JAA’s separately issued financial report, which
may be obtained by contacting the JAA Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 18018

Jacksonville, FLL 32229-0018.

JPA - Long-Term Debt, Capital Leases and Other Noncurrent Liabilities:

A summary of noncurrent liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2005 was as

follows (in thousands):

Amounts Due

Beginning Ending within one
Balance Additions Reductions Balance year
Bonds payable, notes payable and
capital leases:
Revenue bonds $ 22,305 $ - ($ 890) §$ 21,415 $ 1,045
Revenue refunding bonds 58,615 - (1,301) 57,314 1,380
Capital leases 9,810 - (805) 9,005 840
90,730 - (2,996) 87,734 3,265
Less original issue discounts and
deferred loss on refunding (4,302) - 285 (4,017) -
Total noncurrent liabilities $ 86,428 3 - ($ 2,711) $83,717 $ 3,265

The above JPA long-term debt presentation contains highiy summarized data. A more
detailed debt presentation is available in JPA’s separately issued financial report, which
may be obtained from its administrative office at 2831 Tallyrand Avenue, Jacksonville,

Florida 32206.
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

M. JTA — Long-Term Debt:
Accrued compensated absences at September 30, 2005 consisted of the following (in
thousands):
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental
Activities:
Compensated
absences $ 214 $ 221 $ (153) $ 282 g 23

Ati— —————— e e——— " iemeeeeeeremme
L —————

Business-type
Activities:
Compensated
absences $ 649 b 1,028 $  (1,127) 3 550 b 45

el e — e——————————— e—— " e—————————
I ]

PENSION PLANS

The city sponsors two employer public employee retirement systems (PERS), administered
by two separate and distinct pension boards of trustees, that provide retirement, death, and
disability benefits: the City of Jacksonville Retirement System and the Police and Fire
Pension Plan. Substantially all employees of the city participate in one of these two plans. In
addition, less than 1% of city employees participate in the State of Florida Retirement
System.

The City of Jacksonville Retirement System, as amended, encompasses the Corrections
Officers Retirement Plan which was established by the Laws of Florida 2004-411, and covers
all certified Corrections Officers. Currently, both the General Employees Retirement Plan
and the Corrections Officers Retirement Plan, have the same benefits. Both are governed by
the same Board.

Under both the City of Jacksonville Retirement System and Police and Fire Pension Plans,
the State of Florida requires Plan contributions be made based upon an actuarial valuation
and any contribution shortfalls are the responsibility of the city to fund.

The City of Jacksonville Retirement System and Police and Fire Pension Plan are considered
to be a part of the city’s financial reporting entity, as discussed in Note 1.B. Effective for the
fiscal year ending September 30, 1997, these PERS adopted GASB Statement No. 25,
Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans, intended to provide information
needed to assess (1) funding status of a PERS on a long-term, going-concern basis; (2)
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due; and (3) whether
employers are making actuarially determined contributions. These PERS also follow GASB
Statement No. 25, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Emplovers,
which require measurement and disclosure of an amount for annual pension cost on the
accrual basis of accounting, regardless of the amount recognized as pension expenditures.
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(D

2

Basis of Accounting -The city's pension trust financial statements are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized
in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to each
plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment
to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of each plan,

Method Used to Value Investments - Investments are reported at fair value.
Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.
Securities, traded on a national or international exchange, are valued at the last
reported sales price at current exchange rates. Mortgages are valued on the basis
of future principal and interest payments, and are discounted at prevailing interest
rates for similar instruments. The fair value of real estate investments is based on
independent appraisals. Investments that do not have an established market are
reported at estimated fair value.

B. City of Jacksonville Retirement System:

(1)

Plan Description - The City of Jacksonville Retirement System is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer contributory defined benefit pension plan. All full-time city
employees, the employees of JEA, and the employees of JHA are eligible to
participate in the General Employees Retirement Plan upon employment, All
certified Corrections Officers employed by the city are eligible to participate in
the Corrections Officers Retirement Plan upon employment. There are no
separately issued financial statements for the City of Jacksonville Retirement
System. The System 1s administered by a seven-member board of Trustees that
makes recommendations to the City Council. The City Council is responsible for
establishing or amending the pension plan provisions,

The payroll for members covered by the System was $253.1 million during the
2005 fiscal year, consisting of $149.1 million City of Jacksonville payroll, $98.7
million JEA payroll and $3.9 million JHA payroll. The total 2005 payroll was
$372.4 million for the city, $108.3 million for the JEA, $8.2 million for JHA,
$8.2 million for JPA and $12.7 million for JAA, for a total of $509.8 million.

The City of Jacksonville Retirement System provides for retirement, survivor,
death and disability benefits. Under normal retirement provisions, a member may
retire after reaching the age of 55 with 20 years of credited service or at 65 with 5
years or more of credited service. The requirements for early retirement are: (1)
when an employee reaches age 50 and has 20 years of service, reduced 1/2% per
month for retirement prior to age 55; (2) any age after 25 years of service
adjusted to a benefit accrual rate of 2% per year; and (3) any age after 30 years of
creditable service at an unreduced rate of 2 1/2% per year.
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. City of Jacksonville Retirement System: (continued)

Benefits vest after 5 years of credited service equal to 2 1/2% of a member's
average earnings for each year of credited service up to 32 years with a maximum
of 80%. Average earnings is the average monthly salary or wages for the highest
36 months of employment within the ten years preceding retirement. The regular
benefit is increased by 3% on the April 1 nearest the fifth anniversary of the
initial benefit commencement date, and on each April 1 thereafter. A monthly
supplement is payable equal to $5 times the number of years of creditable service
to subsidize retiree's health insurance. However, only that portion of the increase
in excess of the supplement is payable. Members who terminate covered
employment with less than five years of credited service shall be paid a refund of
100% of their contributions to the Plan. All members of the City of Jacksonville
Retirement System are required to contribute 8% of their earnings actuarially
determined and required by City Ordinance effective October 1, 1993. There is
no mandatory retirement age.

At September 30, 20035, the Plan's membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits

and terminated employees with future benefits General Corrections
Employee Officer Total
4,338 12 4,350

Current employees:

Vested 3,481 449 3,930
Nonvested 1,597 128 1,725
Total Current Employees 5,078 577 5,655
Total Membership 9,416 589 10,005

2)

Contributions - The city's funding policy provides for contributions at actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are
adequate to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Level
percentages of payroll employer contribution rates are determined using the
"entry age" actuarial cost method. Under this method, the cost of each member's
projected retirement benefit is funded through a series of payments, determined
as a level percentage of each year's earnings, from age at hire to assumed exit age.
The level-percentage-of-payroll method is also used to amortize the unfunded
liability and changes in Plan provisions, actuarial assumptions and gains and
losses over a period of 30 years. If the Plan is in a surplus position, the surplus is
recognized as an amortization credit in a level dollar amount over 10 years. The
amortization period is closed.
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9.

PENSION PLLANS
B. City of Jacksonville Retirement System: (continued)

€)

“

City contribution requirements are, as part of the funding policy, met through two
sources; cash payments from the city, and allocations from the Past Excess
Contribution account, maintained as part of the pension fund in accordance with
State requirements to track prior payments made in excess of the actuarially
required amounts. Contributions from all sources during fiscal year 2005 totaled
$38.5 million. The city contributed $14.5 million from the Past Excess
Contributions account and $16.3 million in cash. Employees paid $21.9 million.
Contributions during fiscal 2004 and 2003 were $45.5 million and $39.0 million,
respectively. These contributions were made in accordance with contribution
requirements determined through an actuarial valuation performed March 2005.
The actuarial methods used for this purpose are the same as those used in
determining funding progress.

Trend Information - Trend information gives an indication of the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Six-year historical
trend information is being developed on a year by year basis and is included in
the accompanying required supplemental information. The Schedule of Funding
Progress — Actuarial Assumptions for this pension plan are as follows:

Actuarial Accrued Liability - Present values are determined under the Individual Entry Age Actuarial

Cost Method.
Investment rate of return 8.4%
Projected salary increases 4.0% to 7.5%
Includes inflation at: 3.5%
Cost-of-living adjustments 1.00% and Def. 5yrs.
Amortization method Level percent open
Remaining amortization period 25 to 30 years
Asset value method 5 year smoothing

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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9. PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. City of Jacksonville Retirement System: (continued)

(4) The Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — General Employees Pension Plan is as
follows (in thousands) at September 30, 2005:

ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments $ 126,965
Receivables (net, where applicable, of allowances for
uncollectible):
Interest and dividends 5,391
Total receivables 132,356
Investments, at fair value:
U.S. Government obligations 362,421
Municipal Bonds 4,106
Domestic corporate bonds 223,706
Commercial paper 37,999
Domestic stocks 649,851
International stocks 222,479
Total investments 1,500,562
Capital assets:
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 18
Net capital assets 18
Securities Lending Collateral 236,285
TOTAL ASSETS 1,869,221
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,097
Obligations Under Securities Lending Agreement 236,285
TOTAL LIABILITIES 241,382

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS $1,627,839

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. City of Jacksonville Retirement System: (continued)

)

The Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets — Jacksonville Retirement
System is as follows (in thousands) at September 30, 2005:

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer $ 14913
Plan Member 21,929
Total contributions 30,842
Other additions:
Miscellaneous 338

Investment income:
Net appreciation in fair value of investments

Interest and Dividends 141,730
TOTAL ADDITIONS 178,910
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits payments 94,416
Refunds of contributions 3,137
Administrative expenses 882
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 98,435

Net change in net assets 80,475
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,547,364
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 1,627,839

C. Police and Fire Pension Plan:

(D

Plan Description - The Police and Fire Pension Plan (the “Plan”) is a single-
employer contributory defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time civil-
service members of the City of Jacksonville’s Sheriff’s Office and Fire and
Rescue Departments. The Plan is administered solely by a five-member board of
trustees. The city’s payroll for members covered by the Plan was $130.4 million
during the fiscal year, excluding DROP participants. The Plan, as amended
effective April 1, 2001, provides, in general, retirement benefits afier twenty
years of credited membership, regardless of age, with a minimum benefit of 60%
of the average salary received for the fifty-two pay periods immediately
preceding retirement. An additional 2% for each completed year over twenty up
to a maximum of 80% may be earned. There is no mandatory retirement age.
Effective April 1, 2000, the Plan provides for a cost of living increase to
pensioners and their beneficiaries of 3% per annum. The plan uses a level
percent open amortization method with 24.5 years remaining in its’ amortization
period.
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
C. Police and Fire Pension Plan: (continued)

)

3

Pension benefits may be vested after a minimum of five years of membership.
Benefits are computed based on average salary for the fifty-two pay periods
immediately preceding vesting multiplied by 3% times the number of credited
years of service. Employees, in this category, may alternatively select a 100%
payout of member contributions to the Plan without interest, upon withdrawal
from the Plan.

At September 30, 2005, the Plan's membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits

and terminated employees with future benefits 1,765
DROP Participants 281
Active plan members 2,450
Total current employees 2731
Total membership 4,496

The city is currently contributing 18.55% of Plan members’ salaries. The Plan
members contribute 7.00% of salaries, and DROP participants contribute 2.00%.
Additional contributions are comprised of court fines and forfeitures, State
premium tax refunds (insurance contributions) and transfers from the Combined
Reserve Account. Investment costs of the Plan are financed through investment
earnings. Other administrative costs are included in the annual required
contribution amount .

The State of Florida requires funding of pension contributions to be made based
upon an actuarial valuation; the most recent valuation is as of October 1, 2003.
The City Council has the authority to amend its contribution to the Plan to not
less than the minimum state requirement.

Net Assets Available for Benefits - Net assets available for benefits are
designated pursuant to an agreement between the Police and Fire Pension Plan
Board of Trustees and the city effective April 1, 2000, consisting of the following
actuarially computed components as of September 30, 2005 (in thousands):

Combined Reserve Account $ 12,610
Base benefits fund 782,757
Total net assets available for benefits $ 795,367

M The value of the Combined Reserve Account is composed of the value of
the City Budget Stabilization Account and the Enhanced Benefit Account.
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9.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
C. Police and Fire Pension Plan: (continued)

4

The city stabilization reserve account was established for the purpose of
cushioning actuarial losses in the base benefits fund and giving the city greater
flexibility in its funding of the Plan. The enhanced benefits account was
established to hold any remaining State premium tax refunds not assigned to
offset city contribution requirements. The base benefits fund consists of the assets
pledged to provide fund benefits. The combined balances as of September 30,
2005, have been calculated under the terms of the 2000 agreement between the
Plan and the City of Jacksonville.

Trend Information - Trend information gives an indication of the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Six-year historical
trend information, on a year by year basis, is included in the accompanying
required supplemental information. The Schedules of Funding Progress —
Actuarial Assumptions for this pension plan are as follows:

Actuarial Accrued Liability - Present values are determined under the Entry Age Normal Actuarial
Cost Method for the October 1, 2005 valuation.

Net investment rate of return 8.4%
Projected salary increases 5.0%
Includes inflation at: 3.5%
Cost-of-living adjustments 3.0%

See Note 1.B. concerning financial statement availability.

D. Florida Retirement System:

(1)

Plan Description - The city also participates in the Florida Retirement System
(FRS), a multiple-employer cost-sharing retirement system which covers less
than 1% of the city’s full-time employees. FRS is a defined-benefit contributory
retirement plan, administered by the State of Florida, Division of Retirement. The
city payroll for employees covered by FRS was $3.3 million during the fiscal
year; the city’s total payroll for all employees was $402.3 million.

The System provides vesting of benefits after six (6) years of creditable service.
Members are eligible for normal retirement after they have met one of the
following; (1) after thirty years of service regardless of age; (2) six years of
service and age 62; or (3) twenty-five years special risk service (age 55 if not
continuous). Early retirement may be taken any time after completing six years
of service; however, there is a 5% benefit reduction for each year prior to normal
retirement. Benefits are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation
and service credit. Average final compensation is the average of the five highest
years of earnings. The System also provides death and disability benefits.
Benefits are established by State statutes.
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9.

10.

11.

PENSION PLANS (continued)
D. Florida Retirement System:

(2)  Contributions - During the years ended September 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003, the
city contributed $499 thousand, $543 thousand, and $362 thousand, respectively,
to the System for covered employees. For the fiscal year ended September 30,
2005, this contribution represented less than 1% of the total contributions
required by all participating employers. Contributions in both fiscal 2004 and
2003 were less than 1% of the total contributions required by all participating
employers, which amounted to approximately $1.9 and $1.8 billion per year. The
funding methods and the determination of benefits payable are provided in
various Acts of the State Legislature. These Acts provide that employers make
required contributions actuarially determined at the rates in effect at
September 30, 2005, of 7.83% of the compensation for regular members, 18.53%
for special risk members, 15.23% for elected county officials, 10.45% for senior
management and 9.33% for DROP Plan members.

3) Trend Information - Ten-year historical trend information showing the System’s
progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented
in the System’s June 30, 2004 annual financial report. The report may be
obtained from the State of Florida, Department of Management Services,
Division of Retirement at 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee, Florida
3315-9000.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM AND 401A PLAN

The city offers its employees a deferred compensation program created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 and Chapter 112.215, Florida Statutes. During the
year ended September 30, 1999, the city complied with the requirements of subsection (g) of
IRC Section 457 and, accordingly, all assets and income of the plan are held in trust for the
exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. Pursuant to the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code
Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans, the financial statements do not display deferred
compensation balances in an Agency Fund.

The city also provides a defined contribution plan under the Internal Revenue Code, Section
401(a). The plan provides an employer-paid, pre-tax allowance for employees under certain
union contracts, managerial and confidential, and some appointed personnel. It also allows
employees to participate on a post-tax basis. This benefit does not replace a pension plan, or
serve in lieu of a qualified pension plan. For the year ended September 30, 2005, the city
contributed $156,842 for 401 A plan benefits.

POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The city does not provide any post-retirement benefits for retired employees, such as health
care or life insurance, other than those disclosed in Note 9.
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12.

RISK FINANCING

The city is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage to and destruction of
assets, and natural disasters. The Risk Management Division (“Division’) administers the
public liability (general liability and automobile liability) and workers’ compensation self-
insurance program (“Program”) covering the activities of the city general government, JEA,
Jacksonville Housing Authority, Jacksonville Port Authority, and the Jacksonville Aviation
Authority.

The Program’s self-insurance fund provides coverage for the workers’ compensation and tort
liability of the city, its officers, employees, or agents. It is established pursuant to
Jacksonville City Ordinance, Chapter 128. The Program is a combination of self-insurance,
coupled with a layer of excess coverage to mitigate aberrant and substantial unexpected
losses. For dishonesty and first party property damage, the city purchases primary coverage.

The following schedule indicates the types of insurance and reinsurance acquired, the
deductible or retention level (per occurrence) and where appropriate the limit of the
reinsurance coverage acquired (per occurrence):

Retention Level Coverage Policy Limit
$5,000,000 General Liability $1,000,000"
$1,200,000 Employer’s Liability $1,000,000tV
$1,200,000 Workers® Compensation Statutory
$100,000 Property (Real & Personal) $300,000,0009
$50,000 Employee Dishonesty Bond $3,000,000

(includes computer fraud)

Under the General Liability, and Employer’s Liability policies there is an annual $3,000,000
aggregate limit. In addition to the deductible amounts, the city is responsible for the excess payments
above the policy per occurrence and aggregate limits.

@The property retention and limits are on a per occurrence basis.

The retention level for named windstorm losses is equal to 2% of total values of the locations involved
in the occurrence and subject to a minimum retention of $500,000 and a maximum of $15,000,000
each and every occurrence.

The Division performs all loss prevention and workers’ compensation claims management
activities. General Liability and Automobile Liability claims management activities are
conducted by a third party administrator under the supervision of the Division.

Annually, as of September 30, the Program has a third party actuary review of the claim
history for all open claim years. The actuary projects the ultimate claim payment obligation
(including the incurred but not reported claims) for each years claim experience and the
probable loss fund cost for the new year. These projections are provided as a range of
estimates (low, middle and high), with a discounted alternative for each of the three
estimates. The liability is established at the middle undiscounted range. The following table
reflects the discounted and undiscounted estimates:
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12.

RISK FINANCING (continued)

Estimated Risk Management Liability ¥
(in thousands)

Discounted ¥ Undiscounted
Low $45,385,071 $52,533,464
Middle $50,623,290 $58,577,897
High $55,861,509 $64,622,330

) Actuarial projection excludes property liability.

OF

% yield on investments assumption

The probable loss fund estimate is used to budget the self-insurance fund for general liability,
automobile liability, and workers’ compensation. As an internal service fund, charges are
billed to the various funds and component units of the city. If an adjustment is necessary to
increase the reported fund liability to reflect the actuary’s estimated ultimate claim payment,
then the self-insurance fund will either draw upon its accumulated net assets or initiate a
year-end billing to the city itself and component units of the city. The city’s practice of cash
funding the projected ultimate claims payment is intended to temporarily accumulate net
assets, which can be used to meet changes in estimates over time. Projected ultimate claims
payment experience is as of the end of each fiscal year, even though some payments may not
be made until a later date.

The city maintains separate fiscal year accounting, which allows any excess revenues
available to be returned to the city itself and component units, As of September 30, 2005, the
city has available net assets in the Self-Insurance fund of $5,319 (in thousands). In the
Supplemental Section of the city’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, is a trend
information schedule for general/auto liability and workers’ compensation, entitled
“Schedule of Self-Insurance Ten Year Claims Development Information,” which reflects the

claims paid and liability projection development of each of the most recent ten years as of
September 30, 2005.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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12, RISK FINANCING (continued)

The following schedule presents the changes in aggregate claims liabilities for the past two
years of the self-insurance fund’s general liability, automobile liability, and workers’
compensation.

SELF-INSURANCE FUND

CHANGES IN AGGREGATE CLAIMS LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30
(in thousands)

General/Auto Workers
Liability Compensation Totals
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Unpaid claims and claims adjustment
expenses at beginning of fiscal year §f 8862 § 9,067 % 46,535 $ 43,931 §$ 55,397 S 52,998
Incurred claims and claim adjustment
€Xpenses:
Provisions for insured events of the current
fiscal year 3,480 2,030 7,065 5,934 10,545 7,964
Increases (decreases) in provision for
insured events of prior fiscal years 1,987 410 9,285 7,360 11,272 7,770
Total incurred claims and claim adjustment
Expenses 5,467 2,440 16,350 13,294 21,817 15,734
Payments:

Claims and claim adjustment expenses
attributable to insured events of current

fiscal year 1,148 735 3,260 2,332 4,408 3,067
Claims and claim adjustment expenses

attributable to insured events of prior

fiscal year 3,849 1,910 10,362 8,358 14,211 10,268
Total Payments 4,997 2,645 13,622 10,690 18,619 13,335
Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment

expenses at end of fiscal year $§ 9332 § 8,862 § 49,263 § 46,535 § 58,595 % 55,397

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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13.

OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
A. Compliance With Finance Related Legal and Contractual Provisions:

In the opinion of management, the city has no violations of finance related legal and
contractual provisions.

. Fund Deficits and Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations:

The following individual funds had a fund deficit at September 30, 2005, (in thousands):

Fund Balance/
Net Asset

Major Enterprise Fund: $ (4,698)
Public Parking $ (75,557)
Solid Waste Disposal

Non-Major Internal Service Fund:
Group Health $ (50)

The Public Parking deficit is due to the transfer of the Daniel Building Parking Garage to
the Adams Mark Hotel in 1999 as part of an economic development incentive given by
the city. A loss of approximately $9.6 million was recognized by the Public Parking
Fund due to the net book value of the parking garage at the time of the transfer. It is
anticipated that future revenues will eliminate this fund deficit.

The Solid Waste Disposal fund deficit is partially due to the increase of closure
construction cost estimates associated with the Trail Ridge Landfill, Ttis anticipated that
future revenues will eliminate the deficit. The remaining deficit is due to the $25 million
liability for ash site settlement and the $63 million accrual for remediation. Bonds will
be issued to return adequate cash to the fund and rate revenue or transfer from the
General Fund will be made annually to pay principal and interest. The deficit will
eventually be eliminated over the life of the bonds.

The Group Health deficit is due to increased health care premiums. This deficit will be
corrected in fiscal year 2006.

The city had no funds with an excess of expenditures over appropriations for the year
ended September 30, 2005.

. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs:

The State of Florida's Solid Waste Management Act of 1988 (the "Act") and regulations
ofthe U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the State of Florida Department
of Environmental Protection (FDEP) require the city to be responsible for constructing
and maintaining the final landfill cover, monitoring ground water and methane gas, and
continuing leachate management thirty years after its municipally owned landfills stop
accepting solid waste and are closed. The estimated total costs of municipal solid waste
landfill (MSWLF) closure and postclosure care costs reported by the city are based upon
professional consulting engineers' studies prepared annually pursuant to rules
promulgated by EPA and FDEP. However, existing EPA and FDEP closure and
postclosure regulations may change which might require the city to revise its MSWLF
cost estimates used in the future,
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13. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
(continued)
C. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs: (continued)

MSWLF costs, for open landfills, are recognized in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care
Costs. A liability of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund (the "Fund") is recorded
based upon landfill capacity used at fiscal year-end and a current operating expense of the
Fund in the fiscal year in which the MSWLF costs are recovered through earned,
operating revenue.

The estimated liability for MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs at September 30,
2005, is (in thousands):

Balance, Accrual  Payment Balance,
October 1, of of September 30,
2004 Costs Costs 2005

Closed Landfills -

Postclosure care costs $ 14,708 (§ 851) $- $ 13,857
Operating Landfill -

Closure and Postclosure care costs 15,365 13,839 - 29,204
Total Landfill Postclosure

Care Costs 30,073 12,988 - 43,061
Waste Dump Site -

Long Term Care Costs 1,031 (89) - 942
Total Liability for Landfill Closure,
Postclosure, Decontamination and

Long Term Care Costs $31,104 $ 12,899 $- $ 44,003

At September 30, 2005, the closure and postclosure care costs for the closed landfills
(North and East sites) had been fully accrued as these two landfills both stopped
accepting solid waste in April 1992. Of the total MSWLF closure and postclosure care
cost liability, $45.1 million had been paid for the cost of closure and $12.9 million had
been accrued for postclosure care costs through September 30, 2005.

Funding MSWLF costs for these two closed landfills will be provided from future
operating revenues of Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund activities. As discussed in
Note 1.P., after adjustments for the current year change in estimate, the $61.2 million in
MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs recorded for the city's two closed landfills,
North and East, and the $9.1 million in Waste Dump Site decontamination costs has been
capitalized and recorded as a deferred charge in the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise
Fund. Through fiscal 2004, $31.6 million of this deferred charge had been expensed to
solid waste disposal operations. Additionally, during fiscal 2005, $2.1 million of this
deferred charge was expensed to solid waste operations, resulting in a balance at
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13. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND AND COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURES
(continued)
C. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs: (continued)

September 30, 2005, of $29.5 million. It is the intent of the city that these costs be
recovered from future operating revenues of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund,
and accordingly will be recognized as operating expense as such revenue is earned.

The total closure and postclosure liability for the operating landfill (Trailridge) is $29.2
million. This total is based on the estimated capacity used of 60.184% or 10,557,916
tons used with a total estimated capacity of 17,542,735 tons. The city will recognize the
remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure costs of $28 million as the remaining
capacity is filled. These amounts are based upon what it would cost to perform all
closure and postclosure care in 2005. The city expected to close the landfill in
approximately seven years (2012); however, it is presently extending the life of the
landfill by increasing the capacity (Phase III) and the life to 4 more years (2016). As
mentioned, actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes
in environmental regulations,

The liability for the Waste Dump Site at September 30, 2005, of $0.9 million is based on
the most recent estimate by the Federal Government of the city's allocated share of the
clean-up and long term care cost of the site under a Participation Agreement and Consent
Decree with the Environmental Protection Agency. The city was identified as a
responsible party, sharing 65% of the total clean-up costs.

Annually, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) requires the city
to meet a proof of financial responsibility for its two closed (East and North) and one
open (Trailridge) municipally owned landfills. This proof of financial responsibility
provides assurance to FDEP that future closure and postclosure care costs will be
adequately funded by the city. At September 30, 2005, this proof of financial
responsibility has been met by the city under Rule 62-701.630(5)(c) of the Florida
Administrative Code by $25.8 million in deposits made to a restricted cash escrow
account of the Solid Waste Disposal Enterprise Fund.

The amount to be deposited into the escrow account is based on estimates made annually
by a registered Professional Engineer. The escrow account was comprised of the
following estimated components at September 30, 2005 (in thousands):

Trail Ridge North East Total
Current cost of closure S 22,504 b - $ - $ 22,504
Annual cost of postclosure care - 802 343 1,145
Total estimated closure and
postclosure care costs $ 22,504 3 802 $ 343 § 23,649
Balance in escrow account $ 24,632 $ 802 $ 343 $ 25,777
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14.

LESSOR OPERATING LEASE
A. Jacksonville Jaguars, Inc.

The city has entered into a lease dated September 7, 1993, pursuant to which the city
leases the ALLTEL Stadium and adjacent practice facilities to the Jacksonville Jaguars,
Inc. (Jaguars) for a period of thirty years from the first NFL regular season play in 1995;
amendment 5, executed September 6, 2002, extends the lease an additional five years.

The lease entitles the Jaguars to use the Stadium on game days, for practices and summer
training camp, and for the period necessary before game days. During other periods of
time, the city has the right to use the Stadium, except for certain administrative spaces,
training facilities, suites, and other areas that are for the exclusive use of the Jaguars.

For the first five years, rent is deferred in the amount of $250,000 per year; in years 6-10
rent is $500,000 per year; in years 11-20 $1,000,000; and in the final fifteen years $1.25
million, including the lease extension. However, amendment 8, executed January 2006,
reduces the Jaguars rent obligations by six equal installments of $1,433,333 ($8,600,000)
beginning with the yearly scheduled November 2005 payment through the June 2008
payment. Amendment 8 also reduces supplemental lease obligations, with the city’s
acceptance of payment from the Jaguars in the amount of $10,197,891 for the full
satisfaction of amounts due for Super Bowl net revenues. Rents from years eleven
through the end of the lease are subject to escalation based on one-half of any increase in
the Consumer Price Index, but not to exceed 2.5% per year. In addition, the Jaguars are
obligated to pay supplemental rent in an amount equal to the annual debt service incurred
by the city for certain costs of renovation of $53.1 million requested by the Jaguars over a
thirty-year period with interest computed on a tax-exempt basis; inclusive of Amendment
7 executed May 27, 2004.

The lease generally permits the city to retain revenues from city events at the stadium,
with some exceptions. Amendment 8 outlines provisions for advertising revenue
generated from electronic signage for different stadium functions. The city is required to
provide electricity, water and sewer services for the stadium at its expense. The city must
maintain the Stadium and all leasehold improvements. Per amendment 8, the City agreed
to provide $1,000,000 for additional electronic signs. The city is required to pay for
game day personnel, excluding concessions, on the days of Jaguar games. Amendment 8
gives the Jaguars the responsibility to provide concessions to all events within the
concessions area. The Jaguars retain all net revenues from concessions and similar sales
on NFL game days. The lease obligates the Jaguars to maintain its franchise at the
Stadium in Jacksonville and to not relocate unless it pays the city certain guaranteed
amournts.
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14,

15.

LESSOR OPERATING LEASE (continued)
B. Shands Jacksonville

Under an agreement with a not-for-profit corporation, Shands Jacksonville, formerly
known as University Medical Center, the city leases to Shands certain capital assets,
principally land and buildings, over a term to September 30, 2027 with an option to
renew for an additional forty years to 2067 at $1 per year. In addition, Shands is to be a
full service hospital in support of the indigent care programs of the City of Jacksonville
and Duval County under the agreement. Shands is to maintain, in good condition, and
make improvements and betterments to the Hospital as necessary over the life of the
lease. At termination of the lease, all leased property shall revert to the city.

LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS
A. Litigation:

The city 1s named as party in legal proceedings which occur in the normal course of
government operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted
against the city arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of contract, condemnations
proceedings and other alleged violations of State and Federal laws.

It is not possible at the present time to estimate the ultimate outcome or liability, if any,
to the city for these proceedings. However, it is the city's opinion that any ultimate
liability is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the city's financial position.

. Grants and Contracts:

The city participates in various federal and state assisted grant programs that are subject
to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Entitlement to these resources is generally
conditional upon compliance with the terms and conditions of grant agreements and
applicable federal and state regulations, including the expenditure of resources for
allowable purposes. Any disallowance resulting from a federal or state audit may become
a lhability of the city.

All city agencies and departments are required to comply with various federal regulations
issued by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget if such agency or department is a
recipient of federal grant, contracts, or their sponsored agreements. Certain agencies and
departments may not be in total compliance with these regulations. Failure to comply
may result in questions concerning the allocability of related direct and indirect charges
pursuant to such agreements. It is believed that the ultimate disallowance pertaining to
these regulations, if any, will be immaterial to the overall financial condition of the city.

. Self-Insurance:

Through the city’s Risk Management Division, the City maintains an insurance and self-
insurance program (See Note 12). The Division administers the public liability (general
liability and automobile liability) and workers’ compensation self-insurance program
covering the activities of the city general government, JEA, Jacksonville Housing
Authority, Jacksonville Port Authority, and Jacksonville Aviation Authority under the
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15. LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS (continued)
C. Self-Insurance: (continued)

City’s Ordinance Code Chapter 128. The city purchases commercial insurance for
workers’ compensation claims in excess of $1.2 million. Under the laws of the State of
Florida, the city has limited sovereign immunity for certain self-insured losses in excess
of $200,000. The city retains coverage on all other types of insurance including real and
personal property damage. The self-insured programs of the city, which are included in
the Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund, are funded on a dollar-for-dollar basis
determined actuarially for the estimated losses for incurred but not reported claims and
development liabilities,

D. Environmental Matters:
There are claims pending against the city as a potentially-responsible party (PRP) for
cleanup of hazardous and other contaminated waste sites under federal and state
superfund and other environmental laws as follows:

Several years ago, the city and other PRPs completed remedial action at the Pickettville
Road Landfill Superfund Site pursuant to a consent decree with the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (USEPA). During the post-construction monitoring phase,
contaminants were discovered in monitoring wells beyond the site, including the Realco
Wrecking Company construction and demolition debris landfill across Pickettville Road.
Following a remedial investigation and feasibility study, the PRPs recommended
constructing an iron reactive impermeable barrier between the landfill and Pickettville
Road and further monitoring on the other side of the landfill along Six Mile Creek. The
cost of the remedy is about $800,000, which the PRPs have deposited with the Site
Trustee. The PRPs are awaiting USEPA's approval of the proposed action which the
Agency advises may require an amendment to the Record of Decision, At the request of
USEPA, the PRPs conducted a focused feasibility study to address groundwater
contamination on the other side of the landfill. The PRPs await USEPA’s decision on
that study.

The city and other PRPs settled with the USEPA which had sought reimbursement of
its cost of a removal action in 1995, regarding the Bill Johns Waste Qil Site. The city's
liability is based on contracting with the waste oil service to empty used oil collection
points operated under a recycling grant from the State. The Florida Department of
Environmental Protection (FDEP) has submitted a demand to the PRPs to assess the site
further to determine the extent of contamination that may remain after the removal
action. Liability to FDEP is being assessed, but the site may be eligible for the state-
funded clean up program, relieving the city of any financial exposure.

USEPA investigated a former dump site known as Doeboy Dump. This site is not,
primarily, an ash dump site, but may have been an open dump that received some waste
for which the city may be liable. The city, the U.S. Navy, Millennium Specialty
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15.  LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS (continued)
D. Environmental Matters: (continued)

Chemical Co., LLC, Kerr-McGee Chemical Co., Benjamin Moore Paint Co., and Waste
Management, Inc., were identified by USEPA as PRPs. The FDEP has assumed lead
agency responsibility from USEPA. The city has negotiated a Consent Order with FDEP
to investigate the extent of contamination and remediate it. The city has hired an
environmental consultant who has completed an environmental overview of the site, and
will be collecting soil, sediment and groundwater samples. Until the field work is
finished and the results are analyzed, the cost of remediation cannot be estimated. The
city, however, anticipates that other PRPs will join in the work, either voluntarily or as
the result of contribution action.

Because of the uncertainty as to the amount of any environmental cleanup costs which
may ultimately be paid by the city no accrual has been made in the accompanying
financial statements at September 30, 2005, except as disclosed in Note 13.C. Funding
for such payment, if any, will be from general revenue sources, environmental protection
trust fund monies, third-party recoveries, Federal assistance and earnings,

Incinerator Ash Site Pollution Remediation: The City has identified four sites that were
used for incinerator ash waste. The common practice during the 1950s and 1960s was to
incinerate garbage and then mix the residual ash waste with other soil and use it as fill
dirt. The city and the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) signed an agreement
in 1999 to develop a plan to remediate the four sites. In order to make the sites and
surrounding areas safe from a variety of residual pollutants, the city has proposed to the
EPA a plan to clean up the areas by removing the top two feet of soil, placing a barrier,
and then replacing the topsoil with untainted dirt. The project is estimated to take several
years to complete once started and an order of magnitude cost estimate based on similar
remediation sites resulted in a range of $63 million - $251 million. The lower of the
range estimate of $63 million has been accrued per FASB Interpretation/FIN#14. The
final plan has not been approved by the EPA. The Better Jacksonville Plan contains $21
million for Ash Sites, but other sources of funds will need to be identified for the
amounts above the $21 million.

E. Shipyards Project:
In previous fiscal years, the city provided economic development grant monies to a
developer totaling approximately $36.5 million, funded by tax exempt bond proceeds
(City of Jacksonville, Florida Excise Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B). The grant was
to provide for certain public improvements related to a project titled “Shipyards”. The
original developer did not complete the improvements anticipated in the public offering,
and a city review of the project determined that the developer had inappropriately spent
city grant proceeds (financed by the bonds) on private use elements of the overall
project and/or business expenditures not related to the project, and therefore was in
default under the Redevelopment Agreement. The city also determined that the original
developer’s default resulted in the private use portion of the bond proceeds exceeding
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15.

LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

E.

F.

Shipyards Project: (continued)

limits allowed by the tax code. On June 28, 2005 the city reached agreement with a new
replacement developer to provide the anticipated public improvements with some
modifications.

The city anticipates this agreement over time will preserve the tax exempt status of
interest on the bond issue. To the extent the replacement developer does not provide the
modified public improvements, the city will be required to make additional public
improvements from public funds other than tax exempt bond proceeds. The city elected
to notify the Internal Revenue Service of the problem and enter into voluntary
negotiations intended to preserve the tax exempt status of interest on the bonds and
provide for a city settlement payment. The settlement is anticipated to address the time
period between the point of misuse and the substitution of appropriate public uses, and
the incremental cost between tax exempt and taxable debt. The city estimates that the
eventual settlement payment could be as much as $3 million. The arrangement with the
replacement developer provides for an eventual repayment of this amount from excess
tax increment revenues after certain priority uses thereof.

Other Litigation:
There are other claims pending against the city, as follows:

The city is involved in an eminent domain case, in which the city took 19.1 acres of
property to build a retention pond. The city valued the property at $760,000, which has
already been deposited, and the owner’s appraiser valued the property at $3,400,000.
A proposed settlement, pending council approval, would require the city to pay an
additional $1.44 million to the owner. Council could vote on this settlement as soon as
the end of February 2006. Although it is possible that a jury will agree with the owner’s
appraiser, a more likely result at trial would be a verdict requiring the City to pay an
additional estimated $1.5 - $1.9 million. Trial is set for mid January 2006. There is an
additional excessive force/ civil rights claim by a prisoner of the jail who became violent
and was restrained by jail personnel and subsequently went into respiratory arrest.
Liability is possible, exposure is $1,000,000.

A threatened litigation with exposure to the city includes a police negligence, excessive
force and civil rights claim. Exposure is estimated at $800,000.

There are a number of small dollar value litigation claims in which City General Counsel
believes a liability is probable or a scttlement is likely. While individually, the estimated
dollar value of possible liability is minor, ranging from $100,000 - $200,000, the
aggregate amount of estimated exposure for these claims is approximately $1 million.
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15. LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS (continued)
E. Other Litigation: (continued)

In accordance with FAS 5, no accrual has been made in the accompanying financial
statements for these cases because relevant criteria has not been met. Funding for these
payments, if any, will be from general revenue sources and earnings.

F. Construction Commitments:
At September 30, 2005, the city had major construction appropriations for the
following projects:

Courthouse Improvements $155.2 million
Septic Tank Remediation $51.1 million
Countywide Drainage $37.4 million
Countywide Road Resurfacing $13.3 million
Main Library $7.2 million
Fire Stations Renovations & Replacements $12.9 million
Collins/Rampart to Blanding $12.3 million
McDuff Ave/Beaver to Edgewood $10.2 miltion
Spring Park Rd./Emerson St. to University $8.3 million
Hood Rd/Sunbeam to St. Augustine $8.8 million
Lenox Ave/Lane to Normandy $6.7 million
Old Middleburg/103™ — Branan Field $6.6 million
St. Augustine Rd/SR 13 to I-95 $6.2 million
Morse Ave/Shindler — Ricker $5.8 million
Cahoon Rd./Normandy Blvd to Beaver St. $5.5 million
Greenland Rd/Coastal Lane to US 1 $5.2 million
New Animal Control Center $9.7 million
Clerk of the Courts Records Center $3.5 million

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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16.

CHANGES IN REPORTING ENTITY
Changes in reporting entity- restatement of beginning net assets/fund balances
The city determined that certain operations of the Clerk of Courts, previously omitted
from the city's financial statements should be reported as a special revenue fund. Also, it
was determined that the Public Records Modernization special revenue fund should be
included in the Clerk of Courts fund. The Public Records Modernization Fund had

previously been reported in the General Government Non-Budgeted special revenue
fund.

As aresult, city-wide net assets and governmental fund balances as of September 30,
2004 have been restated as follows:
Total
City-wide = Governmental
Net Assets Fund Balances

Net assets/fund balances as reported at

September 30, 2004 $ 733,351 $ 899,977
Clerk of Courts net assets/fund balances (213) (213)
Beginning net assets/find balances as restated $ 733,138 $ 899,764

Clerk of Court Special Revenue Fund

Fund balances as reported at
September 30, 2004 -
Reclassification Public Record Modernization

find balance 1,319
Clerk of Courts net assets/find balances (213)
Begining fimd balance as restated $ 1,106

Non-Budgeted General Government Special Revenue Fund
Fund balances as reported at

September 30, 2004 6,763
Reclassification Public Record Modemization
find balance (1,319)

Beginning fund balance as restated $ 5,444
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17.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
A. City of Jacksonville Debt

Subsequent to year end, the City closed on the sale of $44,820,000 Excise Taxes
Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A with a true interest cost of 4.747%. The 2005A bonds
carry coupon rates ranging from 3.5% to 5% with maturity dates ranging from October 1,
2009 through October 1, 2032. The proceeds of the 2005A Bonds will be used to fund
capital improvements within the City and to fund the RAMCO Jacksonville, LLC Airport
Center Drive road and utility improvements. The issuance provided net proceeds of
$44,707,933.14 (after payment of $734,261.46 for underwriter’s discounts, insurance,
and costs of issuance) to fund construction and capitalized interest.

Subsequent to year end, the City closed on the sale of $36,540,000 Excise Taxes
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2006A with a true interest cost of 4.559%. The
2006A bonds carry coupon rates ranging from 3.75% to 5% with maturity dates ranging
from October 1, 2011 through October 1, 2032, The proceeds of the 2006 A Bonds will
be used to fund capital improvements, the acquisition of the Ed Ball Building and to
refund the city’s outstanding Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Tax-
Exempt Revenue Bonds, Serics 1995A. The issuance provided net proceeds of
$37,234,542.31 (which includes a net premium of $1,147,999.45 less the payment of
$453,457.14 for underwriter’s discounts, insurance, and costs of issuance) to fund
improvements, acquisititions and the escrow deposit. As a result of the refunding, an
economic gain was realized (difference between the present values of the old and new
debt service payments) of $362,141.69 or 5.03% as a percentage of bonds refunded.

Subsequent to year end, the city closed on the sale of $9,255,000 Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2006B with a true interest cost 0f 4.169%. The 2006B bonds
carry coupon rates ranging from 3.625% to 4% with maturity dates ranging from October
1, 2011 through October 1, 2015. The proceeds of the 2006B Bonds will be used to
refund the city’s outstanding Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission, Tax-
Exempt Revenue Bonds (AMT), Series 1995B. The issuance provided net proceeds of
$9,047,657.19 (after payment of $207,343.41 for original issue discount, underwriter’s
discounts, insurance, and costs of issuance) to the escrow deposit. As a result of the
refunding, an economic gain was realized of $782,858.94 or 8.75% as a percentage of
bonds refunded.

Subsequent to year end, the City closed on the sale of $23,555,000 Excise Taxes
Revenue Bonds (Taxable), Series 2006C with a true interest cost of 5.228%. The 2006C
bonds carry coupon rates ranging from 4.88% to 5.22% with maturity dates ranging from
October 1, 2011 through October 1, 2019. The proceeds of the 2006C Bonds will be
used to fund taxable capital improvements, including the Carling Hotel Project. The
issuance provided net proceeds of $23,263,335.59 (afier payment of $291,664 for
underwriter’s discounts, insurance, and costs of issuance) to fund the taxable
improvements.
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17.

18.

19.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

B. Interlocal Agreement with JTA

On December 19, 2005 the city amended its Interlocal Agreement with JTA for funding
of the Better Jacksonville Plan, eliminating the sharing of excess revenues between the
city and JTA. As of September 30, 2005 the excess revenues of $40,117,983 were to be
distributed $22,458,931 to JTA (reported on the city-wide financial statements),
$15,774,584 to be retained by the city, and $1,884,468 to be paid into an escrow account
and held in reserve. The amended agreement calls for JTA to receive all excess revenues,
eliminating the reserve requirement. As a result, the city will distribute an additional
$17,659,052 in excess revenues to JTA in fiscal year 2006.

SHORT-TERM DEBT

Mayport Ferry, one of the city’s nonmajor enterprise funds, had a balance of $98 thousand in
Notes Payable at September 30, 2004. This debt was retired. Short-term debt activity for the
year ended September 30, 2005, was as follows (in thousands):

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Note Payable $ 98 $ - $ 98 $ -

MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - ADDITIONAL
DISCLOSURE

A. JEA/City of Jacksonville

JEA is a separately governed authority and is also considered to be a discretely presented
component unit of the City of Jacksonville. JEA provides electric, water and sewer
service to the city and its agencies and bills for such service using established rate
schedules. JEA utilizes various services provided by departments of the city, including
insurance, legal and motor pool. JEA is billed on a proportionate cost basis with other
user departments and agencies. The revenues for services provided and expenses for
services received by JEA for these related-party transactions with the city were as follows
(in thousands):

Revenues Expenses
Fiscal year 2005 $ 19,866 $ 13,669
Fiscal year 2004 $ 16,987 $ 12,165

For fiscal year 2004, the calculation of the city contribution was reconsidered. The
approved calculation formula is based on 9.8% of the revenues, as defined, of the Electric
System and Water and Sewer System. This calculation is subject to a minimum average
annual increase of $2.75 million per year using 2004 as the base year for the combined
assessment for the Electric System and Water and Sewer System. There will also be a
maximum annual assessment for the combined Electric System and Water and Sewer
System.
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19. MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - ADDITIONAL
DISCL.OSURE (continued)
A. JEA/City of Jacksonville (continued)

Beginning i fiscal year 2004, the JEA Electric System was required to contribute
annually to the General Fund of the city an amount not to exceed 5.5 mills per kilowatt
hour delivered by JEA to retail users in JEA’s service area, and to wholesale customets
under firm contracts having an original term of more than one year, other than sales of
energy to FPL from JEA’s St. Johns River Power Park System. The contributions for
fiscal years 2005 and 2004 amounted to $68,677 thousand and $67,385 thousand.

Beginning in fiscal year 2004, the JEA Water and Sewer System was required to
contribute annually to the General Fund of the city an amount not to exceed 2.149 mils
per cubic foot of potable water and sewer service provided, excluding reclaimed water
service. The contribution for fiscal years 2005 and 2004 amounted to $17,261 thousand
and $15,802 thousand respectively.

Although the calculation for the annual transfer of available revenue from JEA to the city
is based upon formulas that are applied specifically to each utility system operated by
JEA, JEA may, in its sole discretion, utilize any of its available revenues regardless of
source to satisfy its total annual obligation to the city.

In addition to the contributions described above, JEA is also obligated to make semi-
annual payments with respect to a portion of the debt service for the city’s Excise Tax
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A and 1995A through fiscal year 2009. In fiscal years 2005
and 2004, JEA made principal and interest payments to the city of $3,156 thousand and
$3,164 thousand respectively. The total remaining principal amounts due to the city as of
September 30, 2005 and 2004 was $7,077 thousand and $9,979 thousand.

Risk Management

JEA insures its risks related to general liability, automobile liability, and workers’
compensation through the city’s self insurance program. The city’s Director of
Administration and Finance manages the self-insurance program, estimates the liabilities
through actuarial and other methods, and assesses the user departments and agencies.
JEA purchases property insurance separate from the city for its insurable assets. In
addition, JEA purchases property, liability and workers’ compensation insurance for its
St. Johns River Power Park facility, including ownership interest of Florida Power and
Light Company, as an additional insured.

Better Jacksonville Plan

The city 1s providing funding for sewer improvements as a part of the Better Jacksonville
Plan. The city receives sales tax revenues, a portion of which are used for capital
contributions to JEA for sewer improvements. These contributions amounted to $385
thousand and $9,118 thousand in fiscal years 2005 and 2004,
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19. MAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - ADDITIONAL
DISCLOSURE (continued)

B. JPA - Prior Period Adjustments:
In 2005, a $1,108,000 calculation error was discovered which resulted in the
understatement of Shared revenue from primary government for the periods 1997 through
2004. The most significant year was 2004, which comprised $677,000 of the total. The
2004 Shared revenue from primary government and Due from primary government
accounts have been restated to reflect the increased amount due from the city of
Jacksonville.

Additionally, 2004 amounts have been restated by approximately $542,000 due to the
reversal of estimated land remediation expenditures recorded in error. This decrease has
been reflected in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets in the
Services and supplies and related accrued expenses accounts.

20. REALLOCATION OF NET ASSETS:
The presentation of fiscal year 2004 net assets amounts were reallocated for
comparability purposes with fiscal year 2005 net asset amounts. Changes for fiscal year
2004 net assets presented on the 2005 Statement of Net Assets are as follows (000s):

Reallocation Original
Net Assets Net Assets Change
FY2004 Net Assets(000s)
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt............oeo....... $587,887 $250,776 $ 337,111
Restricted for:
DEDt SEIVICE. 1vvivericiiet ettt s st sr et s eerenn 64,384 176,987 (112,603)
Capital ProJECtS.... .o ierrriirrirrerreiereerecveeeeeeete et
Capital ProjJects.........cocenviiiicirccvnre e s, 130,030 130,030 -
Permanent Fund, Non-expendable.......cccoornvereccnricaonniin, 123 - 123
Other PUIPOSES.........coevvrieeriiesesiiisrreseresssssesesssesessanesas 1,662 1,662 -
UNTestricted. v e et (24,316) 200,315 (224,631)
Net Reallocationu. st $759,770 $759,770 $

The government —wide and business-type Fund Financial Statements utilizes a net assets
presentation. Net assets are categorized as invested in capital assets (net of related debt),
restricted, and unrestricted.

Invested in Capital Assets (nets of related debt) - is intended to reflect the portion of
net assets which are associated with non-liquid, capital assets less outstanding capital
asset related debt. The net related debt is the debt less the outstanding liquid assets and
any associated unamortized cost.

Restricted Assets — are liquid assets (generated from revenues and not bond proceeds),
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20.

REALLOCATION OF NET ASSETS: (continued)

which have third-party (statutory, bond covenant or granting agency) limitations on their
use. The City would typically use restricted assets first, as appropriate opportunities
arise, but reserves the right to selectively defer the use there of to a future project or
replacement equipment acquisition.

Unrestricted Net Assets — typically represents unrestricted liquid assets. While City
management may have categorized and segmented portions for various purposes, the City
Council has authority to revisit or alter these managerial decisions.

While the Unrestricted Net Assets balance is a single number in accordance with GASB
Statement 34, the impact of non-asset debt will appear to reduce the year-end
discretionary balance available to the government. However, in the City’s case, given
that a portion of these non-asset bonds/loans reported in the Governmental Activities
column have a dedicated revenue source (to amortize the debt over time) the year-end
available portion of the Net Assets to the city is greater than is apparent. The following
schedule illustrates these differences (000s):

Governmental Unrestricted Net Assets
(per statement — page 22) $ (92,403)

Impact of Better Jacksonville Plan’s
(BJP) bond financed capital expenditures incurred by
component units and other entities. Includes refinancing
of state held debt for associated component unit. 190,763

98,360

Economic Incentives to be repaid by
TIF revenue and/or Developer 34,000

Governmental - Unrestricted Net Assets
(adjusted for dedicated revenue funded portions) $ 132,360

Because the BJP program has dedicated sales tax revenue sources which will be used to
repay the related debt service and either the CRA’s tax increment financing (TIF)
revenue or the Developer repayments are anticipated to address the related debt service
principal and all or a portion of the interest, the Government Unrestricted Net Assets
(adjusted for dedicate revenue funded portions of non-assets debt) more truly reflect the

General Government’s available (although partially tentatively targeted) portion of net
assets.

- 136 -



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

GENERAL FUND

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET-
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES _ ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE:
PrOperty taxes ... cwrcecnns $ 340,522  § 349,522 § 360,788 $ - $ 360,768 $ 11,246
Utility service taxes 99,429 99,429 99,463 - 99,463 34
Licenses and permits.......... 9,336 9,336 9,045 - 9,045 (291)
Intergovernmental 139,654 149,118 152,249 - 152,249 3,131
Charges for services ) 52,440 54,507 55,257 - 55,257 750
Fines and forfeitures.. . ..o e sns st st saveeane 5,867 5,867 5,135 - 5,135 (732)
Payment in lieu of taxes..... 85,938 85,938 85,938 - 85,938 -
Interest. 19,587 19,587 5,048 - 5,049 (14,538)
16,064 17,220 15,756 - 15,756 (1,464)
Total REVENUE....cevrariernsieremsrnrsnesrenessrereenes 777,837 790,524 788,660 - 788,660 (1,864)
EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES:
Administration and Finance... 13,335 12,620 11,677 861 12,538 82
Agriculture 1,612 1,353 1,318 35 1,351 2
City Council.... 7,972 7,950 7,738 150 7,888 62
Clerk of the Courts..... 3,719 4,654 4,543 2 4,545 109
Courts... 2,488 2,462 2,332 114 2,446 16
Commumty Servwes . 32,243 37,900 37,612 209 37.821 79
Environmental Resource Management ................... 9,975 9,766 9,187 405 9,592 174
Fire/Rescue............. 115,021 124,372 124,066 308 124,372 -
General Counsel.. 332 363 363 - 363 -
Health Administrator...... 3,586 3,380 3,379 - 3,379 1
Jacksonville Economic Development Commission. 8,349 8,447 8,446 - 8,446 -
Jacksonville Human Rights Commission 1,205 1,157 1,118 39 1,157 -
Mayor.... 2,580 3,267 3,189 13 3,202 65
Mayor's Boards and Commlssmns 430 493 489 2 491 2
Medical Examiner... 2,253 2,098 2,037 31 2,068 30
Metropolitan Planmng Orgamzanon. 14 14 - 14 14 -
Department of Neighborhoods.. 21,183 20,655 19,361 1,236 20,597 58
Property Appraiser...... 8,294 8,373 7,243 207 7,450 923
Public Defender.............. 849 802 797 5 802 -
Planning and Development 7,466 6,682 5,733 713 6,446 236
Pension Funds......... 15 15 10 - 10 5
Public Libraries......overvennree. . 32,141 31,430 30,946 460 31,406 24
Parks, Recreation and Entertainment, 28,081 28,204 25,298 2,629 27,927 277
Procurement & Supplies.... 5,055 4,555 3,269 423 3,692 863
PUDIIC WOTKS. cuverveviecmnecaecamr e encsansseniesss s ssssesesressenas 65,991 63,857 61,594 1,819 83,413 244
State Attorney.. 2,090 849 844 2 846 3
Supervisor of Elections...... 5,100 7,311 7,195 116 731 -
Office of the Sheriff...... 250,366 255,862 254,191 1,480 265,671 191
Tax Collector 13,678 13,092 12,701 149 12,850 242
Federal Program Reserve 4,023 526 - - - 526
Contribution to Shands-Jacksonville.... 23,776 23,778 23,776 - 23,776 -
Cash Carryover Reserves.., 40,000 40,000 - - - 40,000
Jacksonville Misc. Cxtywxde Actlwtles 39,362 35,542 31,573 1,497 33,070 2,472
Total EXPenditires.........coverereruereresieeeesssessessssiesrereseersneecns 752,454 761,627 702,023 12,917 714,940 46,687

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES. 25,383 28,897 86,637 (12,917) 73,720 44,823

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers in......... 9,776 16,246 15,588 - 15,588 (658)

Operating transfers out....... (128,200) (129,919) (128,339) - (128,339) 1,580
Total Other Financing Sources (USes).........ccovvcrveerverierenrenn: (118,424) (113,673) (112,751) - (112,751) 922
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)} OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (93,041) (84,776) (26,114) (12,817) (39,031) 45,745
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 89,109 89,109 89,109 - 89,109 -

Change in reserve for inventory of supplies............. - - - - - -
FUND BALANCES - ENDING ($ 3,932) $ 4,333 $ 62,995 ($ 12,917) $ 50,078 $ 45,745

- 138 -



CITY OF JACKSONYVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

1.

BUDGETARY DATA

The city uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements.

A. The city adopts its budget in accordance with Chapters 129 and 200, Florida Statutes,
the City Charter and Municipal Ordinance Code.

(1) The Mayor's Proposed Budget is presented to the City Council on the second
Tuesday in July; the budget ordinance, millage levy ordinance, and related
resolutions are introduced.

(2) During the first Council meeting in September, public hearings are held on both
the budget and the millage rate. Following the public hearings, the Council adopts
a tentative budget and tentative millage rate. A final budget and millage is
adopted by full Council to be in effect on October 1.

The city presents a Budgetary Comparison Schedule as Required Supplementary
Information for the General Fund and each major special revenue fund with a legally
adopted budget. For the fiscal year 2005, no special revenue funds met the criteria to
be reported as a major fund. The city has opted to make this presentation in the
format and classifications of the budget document. These schedules report actual
expenditures using generally accepted accounting principles as well as expenditures
on the budgetary basis, which include amounts encumbered for future spending.

B. All funds of each governmental fund type with legally adopted annual budgets are
included in the Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual.

C. The city adopts annual budgets for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds,
and Proprietary Funds. The city reports Budgetary Comparisons for its General Fund
and Major Special Revenue Funds in the Required Supplementary Information
section of this report. Proprietary Fund budgets arc adopted for management control
purposes. The city is not required to include Budgetary Comparisons for Proprietary
Funds in this report. Project or program budgets, which may not coincide with the
city's fiscal year, or which may exceed a single annual period, are adopted by separate
ordinance for most Special Revenue Funds and Capital Project Funds. Budgets are
not formally adopted for Debt Service Funds as internal spending controls are set by
compliance with bond covenants. The Special Revenue Funds which are not budgeted
annually include the following: Community Development Block Grant, Job Training
Partnership Act Grant, Maintenance, Parks and Recreation, Metropolitan Planning
Organization, Other Federal, State and Local Grants, Better Jacksonville Trust Fund,
Jacksonville Housing Commission and Non-Budgeted General Government.

D. Level of Budgetary Control - Expenditures may not exceed appropriations and are

controlled in the following manner:

(1) The budget is adopted by Ordinance which sets the legal level of control at the
fund level by department.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

1.

BUDGETARY DATA (continued)

(2) The city has adopted more stringent administrative policies that control
expenditures at the major category (Personal Services, Operating Expense,
Capital Outlay, Debt Service) level within divisions within individual funds.

(3) The city, additionally, has adopted a Municipal Ordinance Code Policy that
provides transfer authority to the Mayor, without City Council approval, within an
individual fund.

. The FY2006 General Fund budget appropriations included $41.5 million appropriated

from the Fund Balance of the General Fund, which includes $40 million appropriated
to an emergency reserve fund. Due to revenue shortfalls, the fiscal year 2005 General
Fund was originally over appropriated by $3.9 million. The over appropriation was
addressed and corrected later in fiscal year 2005.

. Supplemental Appropriations - The City Council may, through passage of an

ordinance, amend the budget in any manner permissible under State and Local Law,
with one exception. Bond covenants, trust and agency agreements, and certain clauses
of ordinances in effect may restrict certain budgetary items in terms of amount or use.

In certain instances the city may supplement the appropriations in a fund due to
unexpected high levels of receipts or under estimates of carry forward balances.
Supplemental appropriations to the Fiscal Year 2005 Annual Budget Ordinance were
made throughout the year, the effects of which were not material.

. All appropriations in annually budgeted funds, except for amounts corresponding to

outstanding encumbrances, lapse at year-end or at the close of the authorizing
project/program, unless specifically carried forward by ordinance.

. Formal budgetary integration is used as a management control device for all funds of

the city, except certain Debt Service Funds as explained in Note to RSI 1.C.

The City’s Annual Financial Plan, or published budget document, may be obtained
from the city’s Budget Office located at 117 West Duval Street, Suite 325,
Jacksonville, Florida 32202.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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CITY OF JACKSONYVILLE, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
(in thousands)
Plan Year Annual City Allotted from Total
Ending Required Cash Past Excess Employer Percentage
September 30 Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributed
1999 § 17,673 $ 16,081 $ 1,592 $ 17,673 100%
2000 12,429 11,681 748 12,429 100%
2001 12,235 125 12,110 12,235 100%
2002 12,724 - 12,724 12,724 100%
2003 19,003 8 18,995 19,003 100%
2004 25,775 23,773 2,002 25,775 100%
2005 30,957 16,394 14,563 30,957 100%

Certain adjustments are made to the annual required contribution if the plan carries a net pension obligation. The net
pension obligation (asset) is defined in GASB Statement No. 27 as the cumulative difference at date of adoption (or
transition) between annual requirements and actual contributions plus the cumulative difference between the requirements
and contributions after that date. Because the plan has no net pension obligation, no other adjustments were made to
determine expense this year.

Note that the net pension asset is not the same as "past excess contributions,” which stand for the difference, including
interest, between the City's contributions for a plan year and that year's funding requirement determined as though the

fund's assets did not include any contributions made in a prior year in excess of that year's requirement.
M p Y ¥ q
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

(in thousands)

Plan Year Annual City Alloted from Court Fines and Total Total
Ending Required Cash Contribution Premium-Tax Employer Member Percentage
September 30 Contribution (1) Contributions Reserves Refunds (2) Contributions Contributions Contributed
2000 32,146 $ 9,187 $ 8,144 $ 6,830 $ 24,161 $ 7,985 100%
2001 26,875 9,058 3,170 6,881 19,109 7,766 100%
2002 35,585 9,896 10,389 7,185 27,470 8,115 100%
2003 36,311 9,734 10,882 7.426 28,042 8,269 100%
2004 39,295 22,098 769 7,654 30,521 8,774 100%
2005 (3) 50,727 25,851 8,753 6,541 41,145 9,582 100%

(1) Excess contributions from all sources are accumulated in the combined account which is drawn upon if actual contributions fall
below the annual required contribution.

(2) Includes refunds from premium tax under Florida Statutes Chapters 175 and 185.

(3) The financial statement expense requirement for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005 was equal to the annual required
contributions of $50,727. The Plan has no net pension obligation.

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

(in thousands)

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Annual UAAL
Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered asa % of
Valuation Assets (2) (AAL) (1) AAL Ratio Payroli Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (9] ((b-a)/c)
* 09/30/99 $ 1,324,736 $ 1,321,083 ($3,653) 100.28% $ 197,781 N/A
09/30/00 1,426,926 1,426,745 (181) 100.01% 202,321 N/A
* 09/30/01 1,459,649 1,511,829 52,180 96.55% 234,684 22.2%
09/30/02 1,425,708 1,528,742 103,034 93.26% 243,440 42.3%
*09/30/03 1,426,783 1,611,958 185,175 88.51% 237,373 78.0%
09/30/04 1,496,315 1,810,451 314,136 82.65% 236,540 132.8%
09/30/05 1,569,816 1,810,148 240,332 86.72% 253,074 95.0%

(1) Actuarial Assumptions provided in the notes to the financial statements

(2) Net of the unassigned past-excess contributions separate account

*  Minor adjustments made for consistency
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

(in thousands)

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Annual UAAL
Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered as a % of
Valuation Assets (AAL) (1) AAL Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) () ((b-a)/c)
09/30/00 814,889 939,802 124,913 86.71% 97,207 128.50%
09/30/01  (2) 760,414 1,012,577 246,163 75.69% 96,199 255.89%
09/30/02 725,416 977,779 252,363 74.19% 101,698 248.15%
09/30/03 732,526 1,146,459 413,933 63.89% 109,637 377.55%
09/30/04 727,955 1,222,355 494,400 59.55% 118,510 417.18%
09/30/05 765,180 3 1,314,424 549,244 58.21% 130,392 421.23%

(1) Actuarial Assumptions provided in the notes to the financial statements

(2) The values were revised with the release of the October 1, 2001 Actuarial Report.

(3) This account was redefined by the Restated Agreement effective April 1, 2000.

As of September 30, 2005, the value of the City Budget Stabilization Account was

54,219,482, and the Enhanced Benefit Account was $8,390,505. These amounts
are not included in the actuarial value of assets as of September 30, 2003,

See accompanying notes.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
SPECTAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
expendable trusts and major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for
specific purposes as described below.

The Concurrency Management Fund provides funding for maintenance and update of the
Concurrency Management System which is the basis for ensuring compliance with the 2010
Comprehensive Plan.

The Air Pollution Control and Monitoring Fund receives revenue from licenses and fees,
and contributions from the federal government to monitor and control environmental
problems related to the air quality in Jacksonville,

The Sports, Convention and Tourism Development Fund collects revenues from tourist
and convention development taxes and sales tax rebate revenue from the State to support
ALLTEL Stadium and surrounding sports complex and convention center facilities and to
fund tourism programs sponsored by the Tourist Development Council through the City.

The Clerk of the Circuit Court Fund receives revenue collected on behalf of the state and
city by the courts system for various judgments, fines, bonds, fees and licenses, and other
miscellaneous amounts.

The Transportation Fund accounts for revenue from the City's six cent local option gas tax,
the state shared 5th and 6th cent gas tax, and the one-half cent local option sales tax used to
fund major road and related capital infrastructure construction and maintenance and the
City's mass transit and automated skyway express system operations.

The Budgeted General Government Fund accounts for numerous smaller accounts whose
revenues are dedicated to a variety of specific purposes.

The Public Safety Fund funds specific public safety programs through user fees and
intergovernmental revenue for emergency management planning and disaster medical
services provided by the Office of the Sheriff and the City Department of Fire and Rescue.

The Emergency 9-1-1 Fund receives revenues from a fee added to the telephone bill of
telephone customers that may be used for system operations and improvements.

The Tax Increment Districts Fund receives a distribution of ad valorem tax revenue levied
and collected in the City's four tax increment districts used to promote future commercial
business development that expands property tax base values in the City's core downtown
arcas and the northwest region.



The Jacksonville Children's Commission Fund receives City funds, and various grants, to
serve as the community coalition for children. The autonomous board has the ongoing
responsibility of improving the lives of Jacksonville's children by serving as the central focus
for the evaluation, planning and distribution of funds for children's services that are
consistent with City programs and goals.

The Community Development Block Grant Fund receives monies from the federal
government in the form of community development block grants made available to specific
targeted areas of Jacksonville to assist in rehabilitation and revitalization in support of the
area's future economic growth and stability.

The Job Training Partnership Act Grant Fund accounts for direct federal assistance to
the Private Industry Council of Jacksonville in providing employment and training services
to the economically disadvantaged and displaced citizens of Jacksonville through cooperative
efforts with local private sector businesses.

The Maintenance, Parks and Recreation Fund receives revenues from user fees and
charges from parks and recreation facilities that are dedicated to parks maintenance and
improvements, and acquisition of new recreational facilities.

The Metropolitan Planning Organization Fund receives funds from the Federal Highway
Department and the Federal Urban Mass Transportation Administration, and the Florida
Department of Transportation for planning the future of Jacksonville's metropolitan area,
principally in the area of transportation.

The Other Federal, State and Local Grants Fund records all other miscellaneous grants
administered by the City from federal, state and local sources not specifically accounted for
by other funds covering diverse programs such as: day care, adult homemaker, beach erosion,
base conversion and redevelopment, economic capital development, aids treatment care,
senior services and nutrition, crime prevention and drug abuse, teenage pregnancy and
childhood development, foster grandparents, and waste tire disposal.

The Better Jacksonville Plan Trust Fund receives revenue from the half-cent infrastructure
sales tax. All monies placed into this trust are appropriated for Debt Service requirements
and contributions to the Better Jacksonville Capital Projects Fund.

The Jacksonville Housing Commission was designated as the housing agency for
Affordable Housing, State Housing Initiative Partnership funds, and all other matters related
to housing, with the exception of those matters which fall within the responsibility of the
Jacksonville Housing Authority.

The State Housing Initiative Partnership Fund accounts for revenue collected by the
Clerk of the Circuit Court on certain property transactions in Duval county passed from the
State earmarked for housing assistance and financial incentive programs to increase the
availability of affordable housing in Jacksonville including down payment assistance, home
owner repair and rehabilitation and acquisition of existing single family dwellings for home
ownership.



The Non-Budgeted General Government Fund accounts for the Public Records
Modernization activity which receives revenues from a service charge authorized by Florida
Statute 28.24(15)(d) to be held in trust and used exclusively for equipment, personnel
training, and technical assistance in modemizing the official public records system of the
Clerk’s office and also accounts for numerous smaller funds whose revenues are dedicated to
a variety of specific purposes.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
interest and principal on most general governmental obligations. Individual debt service
funds are described below.

The General Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of, principal and interest on the Duval County Certificates of
Indebtedness of 1972 General Obligation Bonds of the construction of the Police
Administration Complex.

The Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations Fund accounts for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest on other non-bonded debt
obligations.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources segregated for the construction or
acquisition of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds). Descriptions of individual funds in this fund type follow.

The Grant Projects Fund accounts for monies received by the City under various federal,
state and local grants restricted to expenditure of specific capital improvements funded under
the grant program.

The River City Renaissance Project Fund accounts for proceeds of a comprehensive
capital improvement initiative (the "River City Renaissance") for projects concerning the
environment, children, health and social services, economic development, neighborhoods and
downtown, parks and recreation, and the arts.

PERMANENT FUND

The Permanent Fund is used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that
only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that benefit the government or its
citizenry. The City accounts for its Cemetery Maintenance Funds as a Permanent Fund.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

ASSETS

Equity in cash and investments.............

Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents

Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):

ACCOUNLS 1.ttt esise st estesas e s seseseseseenn
IMOTEZALES e rrvverrveierreneeenreresseresrssrrsresassarsresessesasssiasrante
Due from independent agencies and other governments......
Assets held Tor resale.......oooeivcviiiicinc e

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...........ceeerennn.e.

Contracts payable
Due to other funds

Due to other EOVErNMENLS......couvereeieeierernerreeenrrneenssssseres

Due to individuals
Deposits.....cicevinviins

Deferred FEVENUE. .....ccvievveveerierreeree e earsee s e seseseesens

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:

ENCUMDIANCES. ..ccvvverirerverenecerrnrenresesssersessesesessnsnsnnns

Mortgages receivable.......iiiiiiiiiie e

DEDE SEIVICE...cuerrcvicieeneierisemrerereseenerersseresesmaseasessenaes
Unreserved:

Designated for capital projects......oveererrvseerrensinreerens

Designated for subsequent years' budget

Designated for changes in fair value of investments.....

Undesignated ......ceeveeeriericeenicnierceesseceeersesessesserearasnens

Total Fund Balances..........covvreeceremerssiosisniesemsssienmsnenn

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES............

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SPORTS,

AIR POLLUTION CONVENTION AND  CLERK
CONCURRENCY CONTROL AND TOURISM OF THE
MANAGEMENT _MONITORING DEVELOPMENT COURT

$ 29,065 $ 497 $ 16,792 $ -
- . 100 4,855

. ; 4 1,045

. 332 250 -

$ 29,065 $ 829 $17,146 $ 5,900
$ 50 $ 34 $ 767 $ 897
4 - . .

- . - 1,044

362 . - .

418 34 767 1,941

465 7 2,037 103

. . 100 -

30 - . -
28,154 788 14,242 3,856
28,649 795 16,379 3,959
$ 29,065 $ 829 $ 17,146 $ 5900
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

BUDGETED JACKSONVILLE

TRANSPORTATION GENERAL PUBLIC EMERGENCY TAX INCREMENT CHILDREN'S

FUND GOVERNMENT SAFETY 9-1-1 DISTRICTS COMMISSION
$15,192 $ 26,348 $ 522 $ 4,412 $439 $ 4,410
- 1,485 - - - -
16,728 610 - 204 - 4,488
$ 31,920 $28,443 $ 522 $ 4,616 $ 439 $ 8,898
$ 556 $ 946 $ 46 $ 144 $ 157 $2,322
. - - - 12 -
629 - - - -
572 - - - -
556 2,147 46 144 169 2,322
1,440 2,151 28 576 270 3,527
- 4 - - - -
29,924 24,141 448 3,896 - 3,049
31,364 26,296 476 4,472 270 8,576
$ 31,920 $ 28,443 $ 522 $ 4,616 $ 439 $ 8,898

(continved)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALLANCE SHEET -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands; continued)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT JOB TRAINING MAINTENANCE, METROPOLITAN
BLOCK PARTNERSHIP PARKS AND PLANNING
GRANT ACT GRANT RECREATION ORGANIZATION
ASSETS
Equity in cash and InVeStmMents.......coeu.ieeieerverivsinrseesensnsseessnernns $ 596 $ 521 $ 3,299 $ 130
Cash in escrow and with fiscal AZEnts......ccovvimreenresrerssarvenionines 369 - - -
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
ACCOUNES Lvitiiiineeerereintetrsen s seresiesarersesssssssessssesesssesessesessosens - - - -
Mortgages 1,396 - - -
Due from independent agencies and other governments............ - - 78 24
Assets held for 1esale......ooovvreiecimene s esseseeresennn - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,361 $ 521 $ 3,377 $ 154
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.........c.coccccciiecnrnen $ 506 $ - $ 130 $ -
Contracts payable........ocenieiiieveeeeeceereeereee e e esrensereen e 45 - - -
Due to other funds........cccovoeienmciennnieinoesrenen. - - - -
Due to other ZOVEIMINENLS......ccceivieveriererieernsniisnrsaresessasersereeraes - - - -
Due to individuals.......coocvvvene.n. - - - -
DEPOSILS. .c.eereemrerecerccrses e ere st sttt seae s e e en s 6 - - -
Deferred revenue.........ccivereernenicc e e 1,125 - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,682 - 130 -
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
ENCUMDBIANCes. . vivicr e sevsessnisnensese s resessesesonins 39 - 384 78
Cash il ESCIOW...uvvivismmsisoriirensseese s sessaseneeressesnsersressssenn: 369 - - -
Mortgages receivable.... an - - -
DIEDL SEIVICE. 1ovevieiiieireeece et e seseses s sesensee et esasnns - - - -
Unreserved:
Designated for capital projects... i, - - 878 -
Designated for subsequent years' budget............ccovrvercrenees - - - -
Designated for changes in fair value of investments............ - - - -
Undesignated w.voevreeeiceiveeeerenr oot eesressesaesesensens s - 521 1,985 76
Total Fund BalancCes..........ccoovirreeriarisereesierseressses s envesennens 679 521 3,247 154
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.....co.ctennenn $ 2,361 $§ 521 $3,377 $ 154
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

OTHER FEDERAL, BETTER JACKSONVILLE STATE HOUSING NON-BUDGETED TOTALS
STATE AND JACKSONVILLE HOUSING INITIATIVE GENERAL
LOCAL GRANTS PLAN TRUST COMMISSION PROGRAM GOVERNMENT 2005 2004

$ 9,689 $ - $ 7,157 $ 11,564 $ 7419 $ 138,052 $ 99,678
40 - 2,102 - - 7,466 3,944
- - - - 440 2,974 544
- - 6,491 2,763 - 10,650 10,369
2,475 12,205 789 - 202 38,385 49,249
- - - 66 66 -
$ 12,204 $ 12,205 $ 16,539 $ 14,393 § 8,061 $ 197,593 $ 163,784
$ 1,826 $ - $ 1,594 $ 86 $ 521 $ 10,382 $ 9,626
- - - - - 61 128
- - - - - 629 738

- - - - - 1,044
R - - 270 270 416
- - 76 - 31 1,047 968
- - - 380 1,505 1,200
1,626 - 1,670 86 1,202 14,938 13,076
4,394 - 5,967 971 28 22,465 24,634
40 - 2,102 - - 2,611 3,944
- - 6,491 2,763 - 9,525 9,169
- - - - - 878 701
- - - - - 34 39
- - - - - - 108
6,144 12,205 309 10,573 6,831 147,142 112,213
10,578 12,205 14,869 14,307 6,859 182,655 150,708
$ 12,204 $ 12,205 $ 16,539 $ 14,393 $ 8,061 $ 197,593 $ 163,784

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands; continued)

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
OTHER
GENERAL NON-BONDED TOTALS
BONDED DEBT DEBT
OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS 2005 2004
ASSETS
Equity in cash and inVestmMeNnts.............ceeverevnnesnsrrerererseesaessenses § - $ 146 $ 146 5 -
Cash in escrow and with fiscal agents.......cvrnmiiieimeinen. 39 - 39 39
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):
ACCOUNLS 1ot et rcesre s sas e s eenmrenrenssnsresessessasnnnse - - - -
Mortgages - - - -
Due from independent agencies and other governments.............. - - - -
Assets held for Te8ale.......cocvivrneerierrei s s asnnes - - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS __ 8 39 $ 146 $ 185 $ 39
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities..............c..ccocoreerereno, $ 39 $ - $ 39 $ 39
Contracts payable.......cccuiiieeeinr v e e - - - -
Due to other funds............ - - - -
Due to other governments.... - - - -
Due to individuals............... - - - -
Deposits....cooerecene - - - -
Deferred TEVENUE. ...c.ccicvrrercerereee e et s s s reren st sesaneen, - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 39 - 39 39
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
BNCUMBIANCES. .1 cviviiiiiiiimtien e e s essssseses s e s enee - - - -
Cash IN ESCIOW ...uvrviireinnienrimsisnssaien e snsssn s - - - -
Mortgages receivable. - - - -
DEDE SEIVICE. .vivienreisiicecrinsisiereesitnee s emien s e s sene e eeson e - 146 146 -
Unreserved:
Designated for capital PrOjeCtS.... uimrsineinimesmrsorerisiansn: - - - -
Designated for subsequent years' budget........cocvvrcvrieecirennnn, - - - -
Designated for changes in fair value of investments.............. - - - -
UndesigZnated ovvvvoiricrvreers s ecieeniee s e s sareetaa e senesanens - - - -
Total Fund Balances.........couueeiniiicncnsrene v seneep e escseaes - 146 148 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES...ccicnvssiesens 3 39 $ 146 $ 185 $ 39
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PERMANENT TOTAL NONMAJOR

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS FUND GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS
CEMETERY
MAINTENANCE
RIVER CITY TOTALS FUNDS TOTALS
GRANT RENAISSANCE

PROJECTS PROJECT 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
$ 3,006 $ 3,879 $ 6,885 $ 7,185 5 178 $ 176 $ 145,261 $ 107,039
106 - 106 106 - - 7,611 4,089
- - - - - 2,974 544
- - - - - - 10,650 10,369
7,230 - 7,230 9,813 - - 45,615 59,062
- - - - - - 66 -
3 10,342 $ 3,879 $ 14,221 $ 17,104 $ 178 $ 176 $ 212,177 $ 181,103
$ 598 $ 5 $ 603 $ 2,727 $ - $ - $ 11,024 $ 12,392
133 133 1,035 - - 194 1,163
- - - - - . 629 738
- - - - - - 1,044 -
- - - - - 270 416
- - - - - 1,047 968
- - - - - 1,505 1,200
731 5 736 3,762 - - 15,713 16,877
9,505 13 9,518 7,555 - - 31,983 32,089
106 - 106 106 - - 2,717 4,050
- - - - - - 9,525 9,169
- - - - - - 146 -
- - - - - - 878 701
- - - - - - 34 39
- - - 7 - - - 115
- 3,861 3,861 5,674 178 176 151,181 118,063
9,611 3,874 13,485 13,342 178 176 196,464 164,226
$ 10,342 $ 3,879 $ 14,221 $ 17,104 $178 $ 176 $ 212,177 $ 181,103

{continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SPORTS,
AIR POLLUTION CONVENTION AND CLERK
CONCURRENCY CONTROL AND TOURISM OF THE
MANAGEMENT MONITORING DEVELOPMENT COURT
REVENUE:
Property tAXES. ..o miumirreeivnnirnsis s serssssns $ - $ $ - $ -
Sales and tourist taxes - - 15,015 -
Tntergovernmental.....,...ccooceeiiceinnane - 2,341 2,000 -
Charges for services...... 12,251 - 2,316 24,215
Fines and forfeitures..... - - - -
442 7 85 -
- - 13,338 476
12,693 2,348 32,754 24,691
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General BOVEIMMENL........cccviiiiiiiiiiie e, 1,087 - 21,838
Human services........... - - -
Public safety........ceerneen. -
Culture and recreation..... - - 4,022 -
Transportation................ 1,965 - - -
Economic environment... - - 5,210 -
Physical environment,...., s v, 2,576 - -
Capital QULIRY ..o - - -
Debt service:
Principal....ooceeiccineee s e - - - -
Interest on fiscal Charges...vuvevvorecrirrvesrersvesneresnine e ereens - - - -
Total EXPenditures........ccovrrrveririnrccnsioeemomsmrnmrsrecsierensoneresesassene. 3,052 2,576 9,232 21,838
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 9,641 (228) 23,522 2,853
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TrANSTETS IMueiuieeerricreiceeieeseerrereesrn s erenr e e sanaesrernerseeessnanseeseneane 3 409 -
Transfers OUL. ... e - (66) {12,515)
Total Other Financing Sources (USes)......ocvivcneennnsnieniceninnnens 3 343 {12,515) -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 9,644 115 11,007 2,853
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED 19,005 680 5,372 1,106
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 28,649 $ 795 $ 16,379 $ 3,959
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

BUDGETED JACKSONVILLE
TRANSPORTATION GENERAL PUBLIC EMERGENCY TAXINCREMENT CHILDREN'S
FUND GOVERNMENT SAFETY 9.1-1 DISTRICTS COMMISSION
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 4,688 $ -
99,820 - - - - -
7,424 1,263 308 - . 34,603
- 19,340 - 3,883 - 39
- 824 - - - -
280 335 9 67 - 190
- 2,522 - - 255 308
107,524 24,284 317 3,950 4,943 35,140

- 4,323 - - - -

i 1,101 - - - 22391

- 10,657 302 3,998 - -

103,971 - - - . -

- - - - 3,071 31,588

- 4,081 - . - -

103,971 20,162 302 3,908 3,071 53,979
3,553 4,122 15 (48) 1,872 (18,839)

- 201 - - 600 16,839
(5,086) {109) - . (3,152) (129)
(5,086) 92 - - (2,552) 16,710
(1,533) 4,214 15 (48) (680) (2,129)
32,897 22,082 461 4,520 950 8,705

$ 31,364 $ 26,296 $ 476 $ 4,472 $ 270 $ 6,576
(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands; continued)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT JOB TRAINING MAINTENANCE, METROPOLITAN
BLOCK PARTNERSHIP PARKS AND PLANNING
GRANT ACT GRANT RECREATION ORGANIZATION
REVENUE:
Property taxes..........cco.... . $ $ - $ - $ -
Sales and tourist taxes... - - - -
Intergovernmental......... 5,745 - - -
Charges for ServiCes....ccnurrririvrrenrisenionee - - 1,686 -
Fines and forfeitures - - -
Interest e 2 9 58 -
OTRET ettty bbb en e 1,360 - 349 -
Total REVENUE.....c..icrieiiriiiirici e e re s sassass e sasee s nenvees 7,107 9 2,093 -
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government...... - - - 82
Human services............. - - - -
Public safety.......c.ccoenun. - - 30 -
Culture and recreation... - - 3,542 -
Transportation. ........ceceveee. - - - -
Economic environment...., 4,872 - - -
Physical environment.. ... e eeesennens - - - -
Capital Outlay......cociviiivniii e s e - - - -
Debt service:
PriNCIPAL..cvvticsrrnirsrerererriresenreses e sssseseseisesssiesescessasessesnens - - - -
Interest on fiscal Charges. . crierevnicccreeesereerenesens ceeeeenes - - -
Total EXPenditures....c..oeiviiiinniniii e eessssessessnen. 4,872 - 3,572 82
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 2,235 9 (1,479) (82)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TranSTers iMuuuiecvivinirieere s iercsresessesceesreesrstres s e nrnssnernetronsisnns 84 - 1,612 -
Transfers out... (1,829) - (450)
Total Other Financing Sources (USEs)...vvvrmmninriimsnem s (1,745) - 1,162 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 490 9 (317) (82)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED..,, 189 512 3,564 236
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 679 § 521 $ 3,247 $ 154
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

OTHER FEDERAL, BETTER JACKSONVILLE STATE HOUSING NON-BUDGETED TOTALS
STATEAND  JACKSONVILLE  HOUSING INITIATIVE GENERAL
LOCAL GRANTS _PLANTRUST _COMMISSION PARTNERSHIP GOVERNMENT 2005 2004
s - $ ; ; . - $ 4688 $ 5112
- 69,337 - . - 184,172 163,107
18,271 - 6,898 8,188 209 87,250 89,041
. - - - 2,049 65,779 28,054
- - - . 233 1,057 2,477
60 1,185 272 - 18 3,019 3,625
160 - 474 875 3,806 23,923 11,690
18,491 70,522 7,644 9,063 6,315 369,888 303,106
291 . - - 1,638 29,259 8,428
9,607 - - - 551 33,650 34,399
9,558 - - - 2,199 26,744 20,375
1,356 . - - 600 9,520 24,128
. - - - - 105,936 94,948
381 - 9,714 5,004 6 59,846 54,304
1,561 - - . 7 8,225 7,155
22,754 - 9,714 5,004 5,001 273,180 243,737
(4,263) 70,522 (2,070) 4,059 1,314 96,708 59,369
5,437 . 7,202 - 123 32,510 38,958
(23) (73,677) - - (22) (97,058) (86,250)
5414 (73,677) 7,202 - 101 (64,548) (47,292)
1,151 (3,155) 5,132 4,059 1,415 32,160 12,077
9,427 15,360 9,737 10,248 5,444 150,495 138,631
$ 10,578 $ 12,205 $ 14,869 14,307 6,859 $ 182,655 $ 150,708




CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands; continued)

REVENUE:
Property taxes. i see s sna ey
Sales and tOUriSt tAXES.....vcciviirien i e,
Intergovernmental...........
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General OVEINIMENT.. . iiiiiiiniieniennrieninienrresersressssisreeiaesssssesiens
Human services...............
Public safety........c..cveverne
Culture and recreation
Transportation....uiieorennenneas
Economic enVIFONMENL...........coiiveitireererreseneresereneesasressnessnssnens
Physical enVIrONMENL....cuieiviierier oo reesresese s
Capital OUtlaY........coceviiiriirerer i e e
Debt service:
Principal........ooo e
Interest on fiscal charges

Total EXPenditures.......c.cooiniiiiicrieiier et v ene e eabe s eos

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TrANSTELS IMuvivveerrsererirn v s iesb s s rrterueeaneeteerr e ras

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED.............

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
OTHER
GENERAL NON-BONDED TOTALS
BONDED DEBT DEBT
OBLIGATIONS  OBLIGATIONS _ 2005 2004
$ - $ - $ $
. 460 460 395
; 544 544 707
- 1,004 1,004 1,102
- (1,004) (1,004) (1,102)
- 1,150 1,150 1,102
- 1,150 1,150 1,102
- 148 146
$_ - $ 146 $ 146 $
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PERMANENT TOTAL NONMAJOR
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS FUND GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS
CEMETERY
MAINTENANCE
RIVER CITY TOTALS FUNDS TOTALS
GRANT RENAISSANCE
PROJECTS PROJECT 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

s - $ - s - s - $ - s - $ 4,688 $5,112
- - - - - - 184,172 163,107

9,585 - 9,585 22,609 - - 96,835 111,650

- - - - - - 65,779 28,054

- - - - - - 1,057 2477

58 70 128 51 2 2 3,149 3,678

- - - - - - 23,923 11,690

9,643 70 9,713 22,660 2 2 379,603 325,768

- - - - - - 29,259 8,428

- - - - - - 33,650 34,399

- - - “ - - 26,744 20,375

- - - - - - 9,520 24,128

- - - - - - 105,936 94,948

. - - - - - 59,846 54,304

- - - - - - 8,225 7,155
10,265 266 10,631 25,791 - - 10,531 25,791
- - - - - - 4860 395

- - - - - - 544 707
10,265 266 10,531 25,791 - - 284,715 270,630
622 (196) (818) (3,131 2 2 94,888 55,138
1,193 - 1,198 1,038 - - 34,853 41,098
232 - (232) - - - (97,290) (86,250)
961 - 961 1,038 - - (62,437) (45,152)
339 (196) 143 (2,093) 2 2 32,451 9,986
9,272 4,070 13,342 15,435 176 174 164,013 154,240
$ 9,611 $ 3,874 $ 13,485 $ 13,342 $ 178 $ 176 $ 196,464 $ 164,226

{continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAIL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

CONCURRENCY MANAGEMENT

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE:

Charges for services........coiveerrrninrennnnnonns $ 500 $ 12,096 $ 12,251 $ - $ 12,251 $ 155

INLETESE.cvviiecerirerirerviereeeesrt et reesnennereesreennenne 32 34 442 - 442 408
Total REVENUE.......ccoceviciiirinnninrsineriersaisee s 532 12,130 12,693 - 12,693 563
EXPENDITURES:

Planning and development.........ccovvennnnnene 10,265 21,862 450 53 503 21,359

PUblic WorkS. oo iiicieeereriercvrcecenerer e scnnenns 6,055 6,058 2,602 412 3,014 3,044
Total Expenditures..............ooeieieiincsivcnnnens 16,320 27,920 3,052 465 3,517 24,403
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES.......... (15,788) (15,790) 9,641 (465) 9,176 24,966
OTHER FINANCING (USES):

Transfers iN......cocecceneeceecreercenercneeeresnsees e sene 3 3 3 - 3 -

Transfers OUl....c.ccovciniiicercreservnnreesvecsneriierens - - .
Total Other Financing (Uses)........ccocueeinerrenens 3 3 3 - 3 .
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES......., (15,785) (15,787) 9,644 (465) 9,179 24,966
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING.................... 19,005 19,005 19,005 - 19,005 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING......ccoevsemsarsanssee $ 3,220 $ 3,218 $ 28,649 ($ 465) $ 28,184 $ 24,966
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

REVENUE:
Intergovernmental...........couveereererreserecineieneas
TREBTESE, i viiiinece e e

Total REVENUE.......covivvisrierrarriniersssssnreronssnsres

EXPENDITURES:
Environmental Resource Management..........

Total EXpenditures..........cocvevveeiicncrnnencineneenes

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfers in.......
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources........co.ovreverenn.
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING........cc.cecce...

FUND BALANCE, ENDING.......ccommmersnsarerss

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL AND MONITORING

VYARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
$ 3,007 $ 3,228 $ 2,341 $ - $ 2,341 ($ 887)
8 8 7 - 7 )
3,015 3,236 2,348 - 2,348 (888)
3,907 3,914 2,576 7 2,583 1,331
3,907 3,914 2,576 7 2,583 1,331
(892) (678) (228) (7) (235) 443
409 409 409 - 409 -
(114) (114) (66) - (66) (48)
295 295 343 - 343 (48)
(597) (383) 115 @ 108 395
680 680 680 - 680 -
$ 83 $ 297 $ 795 (8 7) $ 788 $ 395
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

SPORTS, CONVENTION AND TOURISM DEVELOPMENT

YARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE:

Sales and toUTriSt tAXES...uvevvvreererreeineererirereenns $12,302 $ 13,500 $ 15,015 $ - $ 15,015 $ 1,515

Intergovernmental....... 2,000 2,000 2,000 - 2,000 -

Charges for services.... 2,688 2,688 2,316 - 2,316 (372)

131753 3] 82 129 85 - 85 {44)

Other e e e sennenes 2,441 3,046 13,338 - 13,338 10,292
Total Revenue.....cvrvminirrieson. 19,513 21,363 32,754 - 32,764 11,391
EXPENDITURES:

City Council....oecvevee e 8,147 7,949 4,611 1,655 6,266 1,683

Neighborhoods 924 1,576 481 21 502 1,074

Sports COMPLEX....ccereeimiinrvneereerioeinesrresserenes 3,907 4,530 4,140 361 4,501 29
Total EXpenditures...........cocererrcervarerervenereressens 12,978 14,055 9,232 2,037 11,269 2,786
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES 6,535 7,308 23,522 (2,037) 21,485 14,177
OTHER FINANCING (USES):

Transfers iMoo cecnreeeresiree e ee e eneenen, - - - - - -

Transfers OUl.......covvveveererecieneveern e eeeeeenen, (12,515) (12,515) (12,515) - (12,515) -
Total Other Financing (USes)..ivuverersireemarrsrens (12,515) (12,515) (12,515) - (12,515) -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........ (5,980) (5,207) 11,007 (2,037) 8,970 14,177
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING.......ccccccenuen. 5,372 5,372 5,372 - 5,372 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING..c.covvenmssrerrernene __ (8 608) $ 165 $ 16,379 (&_2037) $ 14,342 $ 14,177
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

TRANSPORTATION FUND

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE:

Sales and LOULISE EAXES. vevvereeeriseersrieeesiseseisesisrenssn $ 100,693 $ 100,693 $ 99,820 $ - $ 99,820 ($ 873)

INtergovernmental. ... .o rcsneer e 6,831 6,831 7.424 - 7,424 593

TOLETESL. e vveererireee e e eneveer e e seebesnb s ansas seseresenner 243 243 280 - 280 37
Total ReVENUE....coiviirvriimminisrme e 107,767 107,767 107,524 - 107,624 (243)
EXPENDITURES:

PUublic WOrkS...cvoeveveennnenenenieennreeinr et smsnnes 36,806 36,806 29,049 1,440 30,489 6,317

Jacksonville Misc. Citywide Activities........c.vcereuee. 92,377 92,377 74,922 - 74,922 17,455
Total EXpenditures.........c.orueeereiemeriesnnrerersienne 129,183 129,183 103,971 1,440 105,411 23,772
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (21,418) (21,416) 3,553 (1,440) 2,113 23,529
OTHER FINANCING (USES):

Transfers iN....ooovconeieenecnriniesse e eereeseesoenes - - - - - -

Transfers out (6,513) (8,513) (5,086) - {5,086) (1,427)
Total Other Financing (Uses)......ccccevvivvereerennen, (6,513) (6,513) (5,086) - (5,086) (1,427)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........ (27,929) (27,929) (1,533) (1,440) (2,973) 22,102
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING.......cccccecenen. 32,897 32,897 32,897 - 32,897 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING......csc0ns vnrrnransana $ 4,968 $ 4,968 $ 31,364 % 1,440) $ 29,924 $ 22,102
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

BUDGETED GENERAL GOVERNMENT

VYARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAIL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE:
Intergovernmental........ceceeveveeiurvencnsinerrenennans $ 1,125 $ 3,178 $ 1,263 $ - $ 1,263 ($ 1,915)
Charges fOr Services....cvvmmmiveneveneeneereniennnne 14,781 16,003 19,340 - 19,340 3,337
Fines and forfeitures...........cccveveevnienreeriennnn, 522 655 824 - 824 169
INEEIESt.iiviriririnrrren e ene e 39 99 335 - 335 236
L0 4T SO OO 108 114 2,622 - 2,522 2,408
Total REVENUE.....ovvivriiiciviiin ittt eeereesee e svnne s 16,575 20,049 24,284 - 24,284 4,235
EXPENDITURES:
Clerk of the Courts.......ccvcvvieiecvinereiisinerienns 944 1,458 878 - 878 580
Court Administration............eeecvemnrinierevennenne 2,423 2,699 1,898 336 2,234 465
Community Services.......oeuviveerecnvereereerannans 1,164 1,696 1,180 96 1,276 420
Environmental Resource Management.. 2,642 4,539 2,234 154 2,388 2,151
Fire / Rescue - 396 326 2 328 68
Mayor Board.........cooeviiiienn e - 6 4 . 4 2
Neighborhoods.... 126 126 93 . 923 33
Public Defender.....ovovieevevecvenceis e - 64 53 - 53 11
Parks, Recreation & Enertainment................. - 30 30 - 30 -
Public Works 17,984 17,620 12,148 2,202 14,350 3,270
State AtOINEY.,wiuucrmrniiineresssrereneniesrensereen: - 1,267 1,233 - 1,233 34
Tax Collector.. i 143 143 85 7 92 51
Total EXpenditures........oceveecemsrensnnionnsnnnns 25,428 30,044 20,162 2,797 22,959 7,085
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (8,851) (9,995) 4,122 (2,797) 1,325 11,320
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TTANSTETS IMuerrricrecerr e eereve e 201 201 201 - 201 -
Transfers out (16) (109) (109) - (109) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses).............. 185 92 92 - 92 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........ (8,666) (9,903) 4,214 (2,797) 1,417 11,320
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING.......ccccoovve. 22,082 22,082 22,082 - 22,082 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING.......... S $ 13,418 $ 12,179 $ 26,296 ~($ 2,797) $ 23,499 $ 11,320
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

PUBLIC SAFETY
VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE:

Intergovernmental.......coovevevceinerrneririenns $ $ 308 $ 308 $ - $ 308 5 -

Interest - 9 - 9 9
Total REVENUE...coovrriiiricrecrer e cs e rirsrereer e 308 317 - 317 9
EXPENDITURES:

Fire and Rescue.....oovvevveveviiivericreeeeeecene 234 549 302 28 330 219

Jacksonville Misc. Citywide Activities.......ccooreennne - - - - - -
Total Expendifures.......c.cceeveeervivecimrecrenrerienens 234 549 302 28 330 219
EXCESS OF REVENUE (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (234) (241) 15 {28) {13) 208
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........ (234) (241) 15 (28) (18) 228
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING..........cco...... 461 461 461 461
FUND BALANCE, ENDING......ccccoemsieirrsrnes $ 227 $ 220 $ 476 ($ 28) $ 448 $ 228
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

EMERGENCY 9-1-1

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE:

Charges for Services...coovnvnmionneiniienn $ 3,698 $ 3,698 $ 3,883 $ - $ 3,883 § 185

INEEIEST..cer v reviirrrs s e ereee e resene et eereeerens 14 14 67 - 67 53
Total Revenue.......o.covieivieriircrenrenenieneesnsnnnnins 3,712 3,712 3,950 - 3,950 238
EXPENDITURES:

Office of the Sheriff........ccocooveicvvieiiecenn 7,241 7,241 3,998 576 4,574 2,667
Total Expenditures........occoevvevviecirenniceinrennenns 7,241 7,241 3,998 576 4,574 2,667
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (3,529) (3,529) (48) (576) (624) 2,905
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........ (8,529) (3.529) (48) (576) (624) 2,905
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING.................... 4,520 4,520 4,520 - 4,520 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING....cccoceereeresreanenes $ 991 $ 991 $ 4,472 ($ 576) $ 3,896 $ 2,905
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

TAX INCREMENT DISTRICTS

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL  ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE:
Property taxes...o..oeereeeceeeieneeeneeneeevvnsneenns $ 8,995 $ 8,995 $ 4,688 $ $ 4,688 ($ 4,307)
Otheru ettt crens v ereesaeens - - 255 - 255 255
Total REVENUE......vcvvverervrirressrnseeiniosissiseaeane 8,995 8,995 4,943 - 4,943 (4,052)
EXPENDITURES:
Jaksonville Citywide Activities.........c.ccovurrens 2,944 2,944 2,009 20 2,029 915
Jacksonville Economic
Development COmMMISSiON.........uecurvvenrenns 3,659 4,241 1,062 250 1,312 2,929
Total EXpenditures........ovvveeeeeveenrerierevenieeiensens 6,603 7,185 3,071 270 3,341 3,844
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENDITURES 2,392 1,810 1,872 (270) 1,602 (208)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers ... ocecee e eeseens - 600 600 . 600 -
Transfers OUt.....cccoovicveveece s e (3,359) (3,359) (3,152} - (3,152) (207)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)............. (3,359) (2,759) (2,552) - (2,552} (207)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........ (967) (949) (680) {270) (950) 1
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING.................... 950 950 950 - 950 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING....ccvcvnmmnrsssnsenss $_17) $ 1 $ 270 ($ 270) 5 - ()
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

JACKSONVILLE CHILDREN'S COMMISSION

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET -
BUDGETARY POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE:

Intergovernmental.........ccccreeicvrevvernensrenereerees $ 30,196 $ 40,925 $ 34,603 $ - $ 34,603 (% 6,322)

Charges for Services........coecveneveereneverenerenns - - 39 - 39 -

INEEIEST..1eteiectieeiecteee e cre e e e seae e - 100 190 - 190 90

OLhET . vttt es et e st 184 94 308 . 308 214
Total REVENUE...ccvirvriiveecnrr e snre e 30,380 41,119 35,140 - 35,140 (5,979)
EXPENDITURES:

Jacksonville Children's Commission.............. 53,209 62,076 53,979 3,527 57,508 4,570
Total EXpenditures.........ooocveericeieereennerenesreenenes 53,209 62,076 53,979 3,627 57,506 4,570
EXCESS OF REVENUE (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (22,829) (20,957) (18,839) (3,527) (22,366) (1,409)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers iM......c.coeaieecieenenr s, 16,839 16,839 16,839 - 16,839 -

Transfers OULb........ceoocnmieieniecieerienreniveessmennene, (84) (129) (129) - (129) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses).............. 16,755 16,710 16,710 - 16,710 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........ (6,074) (4,247) (2,129) (3,527) (5,856) (1,409)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING......cccvevenes 8,705 8,705 8,705 - 8,705 -
FUND BALANCE, ENDING....ceeveerrerenenne $ 2,631 $ 4,458 $ 6,576 {$ 3,527) $ 3,049 ($_1,409)
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NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises and where the costs of providing goods or services to the
general public are recovered primarily through user charges; or where the city has decided
that determination of net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other purposes. Individual non-major enterprise funds
are described below.

The Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium Fund accounts for the
operation of the ALLTEL Stadium, the Baseball Park and Veterans Memorial Arena sports
complex, the Prime Osborn Convention Center and Performing Arts Center.

The Motor Vehicle Inspection Fund accounts for the operations of the City's motor vehicle
inspection stations.

The Mayport Ferry Fund accounts for the operation of the City’s ferry across the St. Johns
River at Mayport.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments........c.coceevcrerrveenrenes
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):

ACCOUNTS. et eeeseresnene e
Due from other ZOVEITMmENtS.....c...cocveeerierercererenenas
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets,.......covvrverrerivones

Total Current ASSEIS....eevveervrererrrrereesieeereesseeseesaeereens

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Sinking fund cash and investments..........oovevvviriinns
Accounts and interest receivable...........covvivinninenns

CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land and work in progress........c.ccovrvieveeerceresresrenis
Other capital assets, net of depreciation.......c.vei.

Total NONCUITENL ASSELS..cviiererieeeiereerereeineeeeeseeeseeenes

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.................
Accrued compensated absences, current portion......
Deposits held for construction and events................
Deferred revenue.........o.ocei et peceesrunneressenessirrsines

Total Current Liabilities......ccvvvreeeiicneiirenrinee e sveerees

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued compensated absences.....iiieniiiin

Total Noncurrent Liabilities......oveveeeeriicirceiiecreenrennn.

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...........
Restricted - others
URIESLHCIEd. ....vevveieerisicereeseeeaesiesceseenersrenee s ressesnes

TOTAL NET ASSETS

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
CONVENTION  MOTOR TOTALS
CENTERAND VEHICLE  MAYPORT
AUDITORIUM INSPECTION  FERRY 2005 2004
$ 908 $ 43 $ 74 1,025 2,771
2,266 31 - 2,297 1,298
. 12 . 12 12
- 5 - 5 10
290 - 19 309 415
3,464 91 93 3,648 4,506
3,064 - - 3,064 1,662
263 . - 263 208
- 32 610 642 642
211 118 3,631 3,960 4,040
3,538 150 4,241 7,929 6,552
7,002 241 4,334 11,577 11,058
2,943 8 132 3,083 3,713
- 12 - 12 10
3,327 . - 3,327 1,870
308 - 26 334 428
6,578 20 158 6,756 6,021
- 27 - 27 24
. 27 - 27 24
6,578 47 158 6,783 6,045
211 150 4,241 4,602 4,682
3,327 - - 3,327 1,662
(3,114) 44 (65) (3,135) (1,331)
$ 424 $ 194 $ 4,176 $ 4,794 $ 5,013
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
CONVENTION MOTOR TOTALS
CENTER AND VEHICLE MAYPORT
AUDITORIUM INSPECTION FERRY 2005 2004
OPERATING REVENUE:

Charges for services....,...... $ 16,605 $ 481 $ 947 $ 18,033 § 14,921
Total Operating REVENUE.........ooiiiiiiiii e 16,605 481 947 18,033 14,921
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personal SEUVICES...iuvvmeniiiiiiiiniiiins it cernersassaersestaessanans anes 12,274 341 891 13,506 11,745

Supplies and materials 3,488 15 209 3,712 3,611

CENITAL SEIVICES. ..ovricterriririreiserenreeserentcereriasesserasesenresnessestorassnsassnsee 255 46 - 301 11

Interdepartmental Charges......c.coeveecvcrieeinens e 1,683 4 132 1,819 1,147

Other services and charges 7,387 101 397 7,885 7,603

Depreciation and amortization..............ccocovreecrnnren e 1 48 314 363 392
Total Operating EXPENSes..... ...t ieereriorveeriineniessesiessissesersssensessservenns 25,088 555 1,943 27,586 24,509
OPERATING LOSS (8,483) (74) (996) {9,553) (9,588)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):

Interest revenue 15 2 5 22 5

Other....cccovvvienerinnrnene. - - - - (19)
Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) 15 2 5 22 (14)
LOSS BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS......cccreeeue. (8,468) (72) (991) {9,531) (9,602)
TrANSTEIS TN itieeiteerr ettt eeee e e et se e sae st st ee s sme s nean 8,573 - 739 9,312 9,002
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS....civuiiminiiioniinnmsoniesesesesonns 105 (72) {(252) (219) (600)
TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR.........covnvvniiiin, 319 266 4,428 5,013 5,613
TOTAL NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $424 $194 $4,176 $ 4,794 $5,013
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
ReCeipts tO CUSLOMETS. ....vioiiimiriincreneesinenseses e st e ane
Payments to suppliers......cccoeiin.
Payments to employees...
Other receipts (expenses).. ..
Other operating cash PayITINLS.......o.civereerrerriaresrinereninresresseseresnraneens

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES.........ocovvie.,

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received through transfers from other funds..........ccceeeiverennns
Cash payments through transfers to other funds........ccoovveeeriviivevenen,

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES.........ccoceiiiinincineccncccrrvarnnns

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and equipmeEnt......c.coovveerereeveeieeenenen s
Increase in construction fund cash and investments....
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment..
Proceeds from notes payable........cmeneieennninioieiinn e,

NET CASH (USED IN) CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES.....ccocoiiireeereeeseresnieenerenns

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and dividends on INVESHMENES......ccvecvvevereecierneerises e

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES............

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. ..ot v srevvesssivesnnas

Cash and cash equivalents at October L........ooovecvieeeiicceevneri i,

Cash and cash equivalents at September 30.........ccccvevnnivvnniininne

SPORTS
COMPLEX,
CONVENTION  MOTOR TOTALS
CENTER AND VEHICLE MAYPORT
AUDITORIUM INSPECTION __ FERRY 2005 2004
$ 15462 $ 484 $1,045  $16991 $ 14,498
(8,337) (155) (704) (9,196) (10,267)
(12,274) (336) (891)  (13,501) (11,752)
- - - - (19)
(3,553) (4) (132) (3,689) (1,147)
(8,702) (11) (682) (9,395) (8,687)
8,573 - 739 9,312 9,002
8573 - 739 9,312 9,002
) (48) (314) (363) (392)
(1,402) - - (1,402) -
(211) 48 243 80 243
- - . - (73)
(1,614) - 1) (1,685) (222
15 2 5 22 5
15 2 5 22 5
(1,728) (9) (©) (1,746) 98
2,636 52 83 2,771 2673
$ 908 $ 43 $ 74 _$ 1,025  § 277
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SPORTS

COMPLEX,
CONVENTION MOTOR TOTALS
CENTERAND VEHICLE MAYPORT
AUDITORIUM INSPECTION FERRY 2005 2004

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING (LOSS) TO NET
CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)...oiiiiiiriiieniinicncrceneeenneeeremnneineenns ($ 8,483) ($ 74) ($_996) ($ 9,553) ($ 9,588)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (10ss)
to net cash (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amoOrtiZzation..........ccceverirverereermererrcersersasseissren 1 48 314 363 392

Other non-operating revenue/(expenses) - - - - (19)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other
CUITENE ASSELS, NEL.vvuviuiniiisimvsriis s st s s srneenens (1,057) 3 - (1,054) (438)
Increase {decrease) in due from other governments - - - 10
Decrease (increase) in inventories : - 5 - 5 (8)
(Increase) in prepaid EXPenses......c.cveeverirerrerenrens 13 - 93 106 (174)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued exXpenses.........ovuvunvaivinns 2,793 2 (98) 2,697 964
Increase (decrease) in deposit held for cosntruction & events.......... (1,870) - (1,870) -
(Decrease) in deferred TEVENUE.. ..o ieicieniistee e ceraeeeescerenesees (99) - 5 (94) 179
Increase in accrued compensated absences - 5 - 5 (7)
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS. ..cvecvimiriimresnmniismnisimisnssin s (219) 63 314 158 901
NET CASH (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES.......ccoivvrcrnrenercernie e cenene ($ 8,702) % 11 $ 682) ($ 9,395) ($ 8,687)
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Change in the fair value of INVeSUMENS.....cccervrivrcrrrerccn e rrsreesesensenns (% 6) $ - $ - (% 6) ($ 3)
TOTAL NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES........oeerirenierniesreessnsnssersssses s ssscsssssssnssnsesessarssnns. ($ 6) $ - $ - ($ 6) ($ 3)

(continued)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods and services provided by one
City department or agency to other City departments or agencies on a cost-reimbursement
basis. Descriptions of individual funds in this category are presented below.

The Fleet Management Fund accounts for the operation of the City's fleet of police cars,
fire and rescue vehicles, public works and public utilities trucks, and many other automotive
on and off road type equipment.

The Copy Center Fund accounts for the operation of the centralized copy center, mail and
messenger service functions for City agencies.

The Information Technologies Fund accounts for centralized information management and
computer services that includes data processing, central telephone and network
communications, and other voice/data electronic media services.

The Legal Fund accounts for centralized legal services to all City departments and agencies
through the Office of General Counsel.

The Self-Insurance Fund accounts for centralized risk management and safety and loss
prevention services to all City departments self-insured for workers' compensation, public,
and general and vehicle liability.

The Group Health Fund accounts for employee health and life insurance premiums and
manages third party health care contracts to all City employees.

The Insured Programs Fund accounts for providing all forms of property and casualty,
commercial liability and other types of coverage to City departments.

The Internal Loan Pool accounts for commercial paper issued for short intermediate life
assets such as personal computers, vehicles, application software, equipment, etc.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

SEPTERBER 30,2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

FLEET COPY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT CENTER TECHNOLOGIES
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Equity in cash and investments..........cceiniicniennrinnsoneninnn, $ 3,986 $ 129 $ 4642
Accounts receivable - - -
Other reCeivables. ..o s st inaenas - - -
Due from other funds......ccocoei i - - -
Due from independent agencies and other governments.... 863 - 586
Advances to other funds...........c.coooovriiriinnc e - - -
THVENEOIIES v cuveeerereisceceteencinacacaesrene et et rerenssse s sssasnes 1,468 - 381
Prepaid expenses and other assets........ccoovevvevevrcrnnnrererscenieeenn: - - -
Total Current ASSELS, . ouvieimiuereroiieiiiierimssersismsisensereseresensonnsns 6,317 129 5,609
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Other receivables - NONCUITENL.....ovu i ieeicreereeeererensenesnnrerrans - -
Total NONCUITEN ASSELS..uvueiirirrierinrisnisimseiesinresisienssrnasiesneansess - - -
CAPITAL ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE (Note 1)
Land and work in progress.....cccoeververeneen. 36 - 22
Other capital assets, net of depreciation.... 37,300 1 9,303
Total Capital ASSEIS, NEL .viviviireirice e esre e s e eenevrenns 37,336 1 9,325
TOTAL ASSETS 43,653 130 14,934
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities.....ccciecvvvievvierevieniennn. 1,656 44 2,634
Due to independent agencies and other governments..............., 47 - -
Capitalized lease obligations, current portion - - 78
Deposits....covriviiniiinneee s - - -
Deferred TEVENUE. ... vvvv et e e s sessnesesesssases st ssnsnns - - -
Accrued compensated absences, current portion........c.eeeeeeen. 250 14 353
Total Current Liabilities......cvivieiiceeeeceerienieeerieer v erssressercsnes 1,953 58 3,065
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Notes payable. ... e - - -
Estimated liability for self-insured 108SeS.......ccc.cocevivnrnreccsnnnnen - - -
Accrued compensated absences.......c..ccccoeveene 584 33 824
Capitalized lease obligations........ . 143
Total Long-Term Liabilities..........ccoeereeerrrenrracnsreneiverernssessssessessnenes 584 33 967
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,537 91 4,032
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt........c.cooevervenenne, 37,336 1 9,325
Unrestricted 3,780 38 1,677

TOTAL NET ASSETS (deficit).

$ 41,116

$ 39

$ 10,902




TOTALS

SELF- GROUP INSURED INTERNAL

LEGAL INSURANCE HEALTH PROGRAMS LOAN POQOL, 2005 2004
$ 2,535 $ 32,494 $ 103 $ 543 $§ 25171 $ 69,603 $ 60,201
- 83 - - - 83 93
- 2,221 - - - 2,221 2,336
- 968 - - - 968 3,027
589 1,249 - - - 3,287 3,110
- 10,991 - - - 10,991 11,548
- - - - - 1,849 1,444
- 325 - 1,897 1,826 4,048 2,449
3,124 48,331 103 2,440 26,997 93,050 84,208
- 15,834 - - - 15,834 16,159
- 15,834 - - - 15,834 16,159
- - - - 1,355 1,413 58
40 6 5 2 32,669 79,326 61,740
40 6 5 2 34,024 80,739 61,798
3,164 64,171 108 2,442 61,021 189,623 162,165
205 147 83 102 1,629 6,500 12,730
- 80 - - - 127 426
- - - - - 78 3,628
- - 2 - - 2 2
- - - 1,897 - 1,897 982
238 9 22 9 - 895 904
443 236 107 2,008 1,629 9,499 18,672
- - - - 58,565 58,565 -
- 58,595 - - - 58,595 55,397
555 21 51 20 - 2,088 2,112
- - - - - 143 13,639
555 58,616 51 20 58,565 119,391 71,148
998 58,852 158 2,028 60,194 128,890 89,820
40 6 5 2 - 46,715 61,798
2,126 5,313 (55) 412 827 14,018 10,547
$ 2,166 $ 5,319 $ (50 $ 414 $ 827 60,733 $ 72,345

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

FLEET COPY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT CENTER TECHNOLOGIES
OPERATING REVENUE:
Charges fOr SEIVICES. ...ccvv i inrererint et ssen e ras s s esnss st $ 24,194 $ 1,221 $ 35,855
Charges for services for independent authorities.. 7,076 27 4,560
OHRET .o s ers s 1,543 - 3,678
Total Operating REVENUE..........cccoreererevremrenniverissreesssessessseeasvarsavesmsssssssens, 32,813 1,248 43,993
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal SEIVICES. ......ocomrriirreree it arasbrr e 8,278 228 11,084
Supplies and Materials. ... 16,799 588 858
CenMIAL SEIVICES. 11eviireerreecrrieeesrrsserinissvesseresneansserassasssssmssssssssastssssraressesse 396 106 1,760
Other services and Charges........ccoovo vt 4,431 320 17,015
DEPIeciation. uiuriiiiineieiineeree s rmeresensrssneraeseeressesssessessessessensssssessns 13,812 - 1,636
COUTt PEPOITEL SEIVICES.c.c.veririirerie e e rrss e rrs bt sasensrsnsnnes - - -
Claims and 10SSES.....c.meeeeriericrermrnieremres et cee s s e arss s sacnsens - - -
Insurance premiums and participant dividends..........coevveverieeieniernr 127 1 58
Total Operating EXPENSES........coruiroeaeroremimrerrerisermississsmsssssersessssrssesesstosene 43,843 1,243 32,311
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (11,030) 5 11,682
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
INEETESE TEVEIUR.......cveerrreieemeeerer et se et smars s resnss s ass s en st s ser s bans 66 2 18
OREL, 111 ititen e ssasssesessessee s e s se et tesesseeseeseesae ress s eaee e seenensnsen (1,276) (56) {1,328)
Total Non-Operating Revenue (EXPENSES) ....vvvioviiriivirieeseereeeeeneresssesseessnes (1,210) (54) (1,310)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND
OPERATING TRANSFERS (12,240) (49) 10,372
TTANSTETS ittt st et sen et asr s e 141 3 525
Transfers out (5,520) - (1,500)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (17,619) (48) 9,397
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 58,735 85 1,506
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 41,116 $ 39 $ 10,902

- 178 -



TOTALS

SELF- GROUP INSURED INTERNAL
LEGAL INSURANCE HEALTH PROGRAMS LOANPOQL 2005 2004

$ 7,029 $ 29,312 $ 65,260 $ 6,559 $ 9,652 $ 179,082 $ 139,202
2,039 - - - - 13,702 17,298
2 2 27 - . 5,152 107
9,070 29,314 65,287 6,559 9,652 197,936 156,607
6,131 601 733 266 - 27,321 23,479
81 63 31 11 - 18,431 15,776

502 1,297 494 58 - 4,613 4,058
1,253 5,204 460 279 441 29,403 27,377
21 3 7 5 7,730 23,114 21,062

50 - - - - 50 25
21,817 - - - 21,817 15,735

16 250 63,620 6,880 - 70,952 59,340
8,054 29,235 65,345 7,499 8,171 195,701 166,852
1,016 79 (58) (940) 1,481 2,235 (10,245)
23 1,173 160 66 583 2,091 1,421
(288) (574) (266) 471 (1,237) (4,554) (1,520)
(265) 599 (108) 537 (654) (2,463) (99)
751 678 (164) (403) 827 (228) (10,344)

30 3,435 130 2 - 4,266 2,779
- (6,146) {500) (1,984) - (15,650) (55,2686)
781 (2,033) (534) (2,385) 827 (11,612) (62,831)
1,385 7,352 484 2,798 - 72,345 135,176

$ 2,166 $ 5,319 ($ 50) $ 414 $ 827 $ 60,733 $ 72,345

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

FLEET COPY
MANAGEMENT CENTER
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from custormers......... e b et e s en e e et e r e e see e e narane $ 32,860 $1,248
Payments t0 SUPPHETS. .ot csencrtesra st e sreenniss e e re s sen b ensvsrasnsssestasse arassnas (26,056) (1,030)
Payments t0 @MPIOYEES.........cccv it ivrtieectesnrse e e s e s e saetevea e st e eeberneananeas (8,294) (224)
Internal activity- payments to other funds..........cceoeininiii e e - -
BT TECRIPLS v vaveerrerererereserrieretinieesnreneraesessrerars st ssbesbesbatRsaa bt sr b bhmt s ae et s o4 saem borenrsoeeree (1,276) (56)
Other operating cash PAYMEnts.........ccocvienininecse s s cnessevessessesassess 47 -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES................. (2,719) (62)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received through transfers from other funds..........coeicreeeciccniceiee s 141 3
Cash payments through transfers to other funds.................cccvrveerireeniimrririne (5.520) -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES........ccccovtiermrvereeensrnrerinrrenseriasnanne (5,379) 3
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and equUIPMENt........ccceeeveeeeieceeeeerre et (5,701) (1)
Additions to land & improvements..........c.ccou... - -
Increase in capitalized lease obligations - -
Proceeds from notes payable...................... - -
Principal paid on long-term obligations........cccveeirieenriernriensinneienerenensissesassie s snnions - 17
NET CASH (USED IN) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES........cccvimmrmmmeresreressrenmsmarsmssens (5,701) 16
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and DIVIDENAS.......coviriiieneniienicnnern st seese e ettt saesenssesssspeers srvans 66 2
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES......coicivirer i sessesssssesesssasssssssssnns 66 2
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASHEQUIVALENTS ... .ottt rnrsas s sss s ir s s nasas e sas b raesssearan, (13,733) (41)
Cash and cash equivalents at OCLODEL L......ovivieiireeeee it ereresesre e s 17,719 170
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30.......cc.cocorvereineieinne e, $ 3,986 $ 129

INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGIES

$ 43,869
(19,375)
(11,018)

(1,328)

12,148

525

(1,500

975

5,403

(3,550)

(13,496)

(11,643)

18
18

(452)
5,094

$ 4642
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TOTALS

SELF- GROUP INSURED INTERNAL

LEGAL INSURANCE HEALTH PROGRAMS LOAN POOI, 2005 2004
$ 9,020 $ 30,227 $ 65,312 $ 6,805 $ 7,826 $ 197,167  $ 159,224
(1,827) (6,820) (69,048) {7,133) 1,188 {130,101) (101,965)
(6,222) (607) (724) (265) - (27,354) (23,523)
- - - - - - (158)
(288) (574) (266) 471 {1,237 (4,554) (1,520)
- (18,227) - 2,236 - (15,944) (13,896)
683 3,999 {4,726) 2,114 7,777 19,214 18,162
30 3,435 130 2 - 4,266 2,779
- {6,148) (500) (1,984) - {15,650) (55,266)
30 2,711) 370 (1,982) - (11,384) (52,487)
2 - 4 - (40,399) (40,700) {19,525)
- - . - (1,355) (1,355) -
- . . - - (3,550) 62
- - - - 58,565 58,565 -
i ) ; - - (13,479) (2,250)
2 - (@) - 16,811 (519) (21,713)
23 1,173 160 66 583 2,091 1,421
23 1,173 160 66 583 2,001 1,421
738 2,461 (4,940) 198 25,171 9,402 (54,617)
1,797 30,033 5,043 345 - 80,201 114,818
$ 2,535 $ 32,494 $ 103 $ 543 $ 25171 $ 69,603 $ 60,201

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands; continued)

FLEET COPY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT CENTER TECHNOLOGIES

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating inComE (10SS) wovviviirimmieeni it es s s sens s s sb s sesesnas ($11,030) $ 5 $ 11,682
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization. ... sssrnsses e, 13,812 - 1,536
Other non-operating revenue/(EXPENSES)......cvvviirvereiseeieininenssssesesresasroseersesnes (1,276) (56) (1,328)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in receivables and other current assets, Netu.....veenniennnnnnes - - -
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds.......c.cccevvvvvieviccecrcniincnnsn e - - -
Decrease (increase) in due from independent agencies and other governments...... 47 - (124)
Decrease (INCTease) i INVENTOMIES. ..vcvirvrirrierirserrresirees s s erie e ssessssessisssssrarionies (397) - (8)
(Increase) in receivables-non-current......... - - -
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses - - -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
ACCIUEH EXPRIISES. 1 ererrveeirvaersesssesisteisisssrestsssnssnsans e s et baseasasessassbeveabrasstesasssnsnn (3,906) (15) 324
Increase {(decrease) in due to other funds.....ccccocoviviniiinicnincn - - -
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences.... (16) 4 66
Increase in due to independent agenCies......vviveviirininemnsinmnei s 47 - -
Increase in deferred rEVENUE.......ovecvvrrec i e ssresesasaestaens - - -
(Decrease) in liability for self-insured 1085€S....vevicrerineiicniiiii e - - -
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS......c.coitctniicrentrienteeienenrresenieins e titas hsssavss sasssnns 8,311 (67) 466
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES.....ccoiiirer et sssssassesnenas $ 2719) $ 62 $ 12,148
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Change in the fair value of InVESMENIS. ......ccviviiviinin s ($ 50) 6 1) (3 43)
Change in capital 1ease Obligations. ........ccovoevrr vt - - (17,047)
TOTAL NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES. ......ccrrrerieienisiienicnisssessasises s sseesiesseas ($___50) % 1) (17,090
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TOTALS

SELF- GROUP INSURED INTERNAL

LEGAL INSURANCE HEALTH PROGRAMS LOAN POOL 2005 2004
$ 1,016 $ 79 $ 58 ($ 940) $ 1,481 $ 2235 (10,245)
21 3 7 5 7,730 23,114 21,062
(288) (574) (266) 471 (1,237) (4,554) (1,520)
- 101 - - . 101 396
- 1,295 - 1,321 . 2,616 1,319
(50) (51) 1 - - (177) 2,311
- - - - - (405) (29)
- 325 24 - . 349 282
- (19) - 246 (1,826) {1,599) (908)
75 (6) (4,443) 95 1,629 (6,247) 4,640
- (346) - - . (346) (791)
(91) (6) 9 1 - (33) (44)
- - - - - 47 -
. - 915 . 915 (712)
3,198 - - . 3,198 2,399
333 3,920 (4,668) 3,054 6,296 16,979 28,407
$ 683 $ 3,999 $ (4,726) $ 2,114 $ 7.777 $ 19214 § 18,162
($ 23) (8 144 $ 5 $ 4 $ - (¢ 270) ($ 287)
- - - - - (17,047) -
$ 23) $ 144 ¢ __ 5 ¢4 $ - §_17.317) $ 287

(continued)

- 183 -



(This page is intentionally left blank.)



FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. Below are
descriptions of the generic fund types within this category and specific funds within each
fund type.

PENSION TRUST FUNDS are funds administered by independent boards for which the
City performs a fiduciary role under a defined benefit program. The participant's retirement
annuity is based on a statutory formula utilizing such factors as age, average salary, length of
service and others. The City has two pension trust funds as described below.

The Jacksonville Retirement System Fund includes resources accumulated to pay present
and future retirement annuities to eligible employees of the City except for sworn officers of
the Office of the Sheriff and the firefighters in the Department of Fire and Rescue.

The Police and Fire Pension Trust Fund accounts for a single employer, contributory
defined benefit plan for City police officers and firefighters.

AGENCY FUNDS are funds which hold monies in an agency capacity for various
government units, individuals or funds. Individual fund descriptions follow.

The Treasurer Fund is the clearing fund used to account for all cash received and disbursed
on behalf of the City's payroll.

The Tax Collector Fund accounts for assets and liabilities from the collection of all taxes,
revenues and other cash amounts on behalf of the City and various of its agencies,
authorities, organizations, individuals, and funds.

Clerk of the Circuit Court accounts for assets and liabilities from revenues collected on
behalf of the state and the city by the court system for various judgments, fines, bonds, fees
and licenses and other miscellaneous amounts.

Plat Deposits Fund accounts for the deposits placed with the City as collateral to insure the
completion of improvements in the event of default by a developer or failure by the
developer to complete improvements within the time specified by the ordinance approving
the Final Plat.

The Duval County School Readiness Coalition Fund accounts for the assets and liabilities
from revenues collected on behalf of the Duval County School Readiness Coalition from the

State, pursuant to Florida Statute 411,01, to provide comprehensive programs of readiness
services to children.

The Florida Retirement System Fund accounts for a multiple-employer, cost-sharing
defined benefit plan for certain City employees who elected to remain with the State of
Florida Retirement System.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS -

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
JACKSONVILLE POLICE TOTALS
RETIREMENT AND FIRE
SYSTEM PENSION PLAN 2005 2004
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments........ .o $ 126,965 $ 25457 $ 152,422 $ 108,963
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectible):
Interest and divIAends... ..ot e 6,31 3,150 8,541 9,395
ACCOUNLS. ...oiiiiiiiiriiie s e e - 164 164 238
Total 1eceivables......coo i e 5,391 3,314 8,705 9,633
Investments, at fair value:
U.S. Government 0bligations. . ....ccovveivnniiniincnineinncc e, 362,421 170,585 533,006 476,897
Municipal Bonds..........c.ocooiininia e e 4,106 3,204 7,310 2,656
Domestic corporate bonds..........oocciiiinii e, 223,706 108,685 332,401 371,162
Commercial PAPET.......c.coocirrri e e 37,999 - 37,999 25,672
Domestic stocks.......... 649,851 551,119 1,200,970 1,145,358
International stocks..... 222,479 - 222,479 257,620
Real Estate...........cccccovnen - 61,900 61,900 8,560
TOtal INVESIMENLS. . .vviiiierrevreerireitr e re e irrree st irnt e s aeeseesensasessrs 1,500,562 895,503 2,396,065 2,287,825
Capital assets:
Other capital assets, net of depreciation..........c..ccccvevvvcveneencne 18 143 161 175
Net capifal BSSES.....coiiviiiimiiiiiiiii e e 18 143 161 175
Securities Lending Collateral...........c.cocooiviiniocn e 236,285 - 236,285 -
TOTAL ASSETS 1,869,221 924,417 2,793,638 2,406,596
LIABILITIES
Obligations Under Securities Lending Agreement.......cccoevevennnn. 236,285 - 236,285 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.............oocinvneininnnen, 4,474 927 5,401 3,279
Accrued Compensated ADSENCES. ..co.coverermreiiiiieieeeeece e, 12 20 32 57
Terminal Leave - Group Care.......coccoeeeviee e e e 361 548 909 612
Terminal Leave - Pending.......... 250 - 250 242
Due to Drop Participants........c.coviiiiiinnininioiencienene - 127,555 127,555 115,666
TOTAL LIABILITIES 241,382 129,050 370,432 119,856
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS........ $ 1,627,839 $ 795,367 $ 2,423,206 $ 2,286,740

(See schedule of funding progress on pages 143 - 144,
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)

ADDITIONS

Contributions:
EINPIOYEL .1t vviririisener e ar e e sasesbe e essebe s rens e e s enaneseans
Plan Member
Total CONLIIDULIONS. ... vvvvrierierersirirre s s sresressessaerrenns

Other additions:

State insurance CoNtribUIONS........ccc.ccveeiiviieinv e

Court fines & penalties......c.coooci i

Parking reVenues........cc.ccooivirviee e e

Miscellaneous............

Operating transfers in.........coc.ceevcenne

Gain/Loss on Sale of Fixed ASSets........oovvivvniiniioiicnnininn
Total other additions.......cccceveeiiecrein e

Investment income:
Net appreciation (depreciation)
in fair value of INVEStMENtS.........c.oceeeeeerecerr i
Interest

Rental Income.........c.cooceiveninenne
Earnings other Miscellaneous
Total investment iNCOME........cccviiniieeieriinicee e
Less InVEStMEnt EXPENSE. ...c.cccverereremereereieriencrnressessnsassnss
Less rental expense
Net investment iNCOME........c..uoivcrerriereeerserenr s

From Securities Lending Activities:
Securities Lending......cccevivreninneniensine s seeeeseenen
Securities Lending Expenses........cccccovnveinnen
Interest Expense (returned to borrower)
AZENt FEES,. v sern v e
Total securities lending activities .......cccccecevivenceninrnnnn,

TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS

Benefits payments... ..o e
Refunds of contributions.....
Administrative eXpenses..........co.eeveverenrnerrecsrnnins

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

Net change in NEt @SSeLS....ovreeverr e

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

PENSTON TRUST FUNDS
POLICE
JACKSONVILLE AND FIRE TOTALS
RETIREMENT  PENSION
SYSTEM PLAN 2005 2004
$ 14,913 $ 25851 $ 40,764 $ 20336
21,929 10,884 32,813 29,515
36,842 36,735 73,577 49,851
. 7,187 7,187 6,655
338 1,325 1,663 2,914
. - - 156
. 4,080 4,080 47
- . - 25 587
- . - (2)
338 12,502 12,050 35,357
102,265 70,226 172,491 175,440
32,154 12,711 44,865 46,009
12,904 9,369 22,273 17,734
204 1,940 2,144 461
. 809 809 535
. 369 369 729
147,527 95,424 242,951 240,008
(6,282) (3,671) (9,953) (7,744)
- (648) (648) (152)
141,245 91,105 232,350 233,012
5,579 . 5,579 -
(4,931) - (4,931) -
(163) - (163) .
485 - 485 -
178,910 140,432 319,342 318,220
94,418 82,711 177,127 166,773
3,137 180 3,317 3,124
882 1,550 2,432 2,216
98,435 84,441 182,876 172,113
80,475 55,991 136,466 148,107
1,547,364 739,376 2,286,740 2,140,633
$ 1,627,839 $ 795,367 $ 2,423 206 $ 2,286,740
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2004 (in thousands)
CLERK
OF THE
TAX CIRCUIT

TREASURER COLLECTOR COURTS

ASSETS:
Equity in cash and inVestmentS....u v vmrerermmmmrecrosiimienn $ 27 $ 15,336 $22912
Receivables (net, where applicable, of
allowances for uncollectibles):

ACCOUNLS.coevetiitiere et i ctisraesis s evrsneeseserecaerasbestaesmesmsne e srensns 14 3,389 589
TOTAL ASSETS $ 41 $ 18,725 $ 23,51
LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued Habilities..........covviivrreereosiins $ 4 $ - $ -
Due to independent agencies and other governments............... - 10,002 10,662
Due to individuals.......ccoivereeierniererseneeneninneenee e eseses - 758 1,624
Deposits held in escrow 7,965 11,215
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 4 $ 18,725 $ 23,501
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DUVAL CO

SCHOOL FLORIDA TOTALS

PLAT READINESS RETIREMENT
DEPOSITS COALITION SYSTEM 2005 2004
$ 267 $ 22 $ 38 $ 38,602 $ 18,767
- 1 - 3,993 3,408
$ 267 $ 23 $ 38 § 42,595 $22175
$ - $ 23 $ - $ 64 $ 318
- - 38 20,702 11,573
- - 2,382 740
267 19,447 9,544
$ 267 $ 23 $ 38 $ 42,595 $22,175

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, SEPTEMBER 30,
2004 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2005
TREASURER
ASSETS

Equity in cash and investments $ 275 $ 648,975 $ 649,223 $ 27
ACCOUNES rECEIVADIE. .ccceeice e es s e 18 29 33 14
TOTAL ASSETS.....covvoerevvereeesees s ssssssnssesssssesesnsnnssanses $ 293 $ 649,004 $ 649,256 $ 41

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. ... 3 293 $ 180,770 $ 181,022 5 41
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..o, 3 293 $ 180,770 $ 181,022 $ 4

TAX COLLECTOR
ASSETS

Equity in cash and investments............covmeviiiccninarincanne $ 18,083 $ 821427 $ 824,174 $ 15,336
Accounts receivable........oocccei e, 3,389 - - 3,389
TOTAL ASSETS..c.ooivmininnmmmmmimmmimnemmimen e $ 21,472 $ 821427 $ 824,174 $ 18,725

LIABILITIES
Due to independent agencies and other governments...... $ 11,546 $ (3,379) $ (1,835) $ 10,002
Due t0 Individuals.......cc.oeeieereercnriceennnsnerseresnneees s 740 (1,052) (1,070) 758
Deposits held in €SCIoOW.....covciivccecerecrccr e cevieenene 9,186 821,016 822,237 7,965
TOTAL LIABILITIES.........cciimrieritnenncnatninersriins $ 21,472 $ 816,585 $§ 819,332 $ 18,725

- 190 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, SEPTEMBER 30,
2004 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2005
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments.......ccovveerineererenrenicenesnsinenne $ - $ 22912 - $ 22912
Accounts receivable....... i - 589 - 589
TOTAL ASSETS. ...t e, $ - $ 23501 - $ 23,501
LIABILITIES
Due to independent agencies and other governments.......... 3 - $ 10,662 - $ 10662
Due to INdividuals..........ccoveirimrrecnnecreeeccrneene - 1,624 - 1,624
Deposits held in eSCIOW....vnvmiic s - 11,215 - 11,215
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......coooorerene e recsennene $ - $ 23,501 - $ 23501
PLAT DEPOSITS
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments............cccocervevcmniiicnnencnnn 3 360 $ 273 366 $ 267
TOTAL ASSETS....coi i 3 360 $ 273 366 $ 267
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities......cooconiiierecnnennn $ 2 $ 364 366 $ -
Deposits held i 88CTOW. ..vviievveeerre e veereer e ressseseeservens s 358 273 364 267
TOTAL LIABILITIES........cccooemecrceencreecemeeerses e $ 360 $ 637 730 $ 267
DUVAL CO SCHOOL READINESS COALITION
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments...........c..cccvrererernrinnsncrnnreenns $ 22 $ - $ 22
ACCOUNLS FECEIVADIC......cuiuieire et ettt 1 - - 1
TOTAL ASSETS. ...ttt 3 23 $ - $ 23
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.......ooovicrereennancen, $ 23 $ - $ 23
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......ccovvmnmeimimnnnnesinsieeresninnianssens $ 23 $ - $ 23
(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS (in thousands; continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, SEPTEMBER 30,
2004 ADDITIONS  DEDUCTIONS 2005
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments..........co.coovrevreeersrennicens 3 27 3 528 $ 517 $ 38
TOTAL ASSETS...c.is e ren e $ 27 $ 528 $ 517 $ 38
LIABILITIES
Due to independent agencies and other governments..... 3 27 $ 512 $ 501 3 38
TOTAL LIABILITIES......ccorriieimrimrrrnrss e v rversesenes 5 27 $ 512 $ 501 $ 38
TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Equity in cash and investments..............coveceeeersvrevenene $ 18,767 $ 1,494,115 $ 1,474,280 $ 38,602
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIR......oiiireereriereere e e e e s st emrenenes 3,408 618 33 3,993
TOTAL ASSETS .ot cennnrnessesess e essnsessenes $ 22175 $ 1,404,733 $ 1,474,313 $ 42,595
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...ivororinsernnenn, $ 318 $ 181,134 $ 181,388 $ 64
Due to independent agencies and other governments..... 11,573 7,795 (1,334) 20,702
Due to individuals.........ccoviiiiiniioiiiii it 740 572 (1,070) 2,382
Deposits held in eSCTOW......cooveeveviiieinsenrensenivceereresennsen: 9,544 832,504 822,601 19,447
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......oicirr e essese e raeseas $ 22,175 $ 1,022,005 $ 1,001,585 $ 42,595

{continued)
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COMPONENT UNITS

Component Units are legally separate organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting majority of the
component unit's governing body with certain exceptions, and either (a) the ability to impose will by
the primary government, or (b) the potential for the organization to provide financial benefits to, or
impose financial burdens on the primary government. The city's non major component units follow:

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS:

The Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority provides money for loans and technical
assistance for construction and rehabilitation of housing to alleviate a shortage of housing
and capital for investment in housing in Jacksonville.

The Jacksonville Economic Development Commission provides a focal point for
economic development in the City that results in a centralization of economic development
programs.

The Downtown Vision, Inc. provides community enhancements, such as, security,
hospitality and clean teams, within the downtown area.

The Water and Sewer Expansion Authority (WSEA) allows property owners an
opportunity to finance water and/or sewer infrastructure in their existing developed
neighborhoods on a voluntary basis.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -
NON MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
JACKSONVILLE WATER
JACKSONVILLE ECONOMIC AND SEWER
HOUSING FINANCE DEVELOPMENT DOWNTOWN  EXPANSION
AUTHORITY COMMISSION VISION, INC. AUTHORITY TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents..........coceeei e, $ 8399 $ 11,607 $ 698 $ - $ 20,704
Cash in escrow with fiscal agent..................... 1,135 - - - 1,135
Due from other governmental agencies.......... - 664 - - 664
Accounts and interest receivable..................... - - 592 2 594
Mortgage receivables 10,407 - - - 10,407
Other receivables............. - 17,104 - 1 17,105
Other a85618....v.cvirecrrererrc e 1,013 - 3 - 1,016
Capital assets:
Equipment.......cocoviniiiniiie e 103 110 138 - 351
Construction work in progress........c..e.ee... - - - 593 593
Less: accumulated depreciation................., (82) (99) (98) - (279)
Total capital assets, net of depreciation. 21 i1 40 593 665
Total aSSetS....vviveieeeveivrecreei et eerreen 20,975 29,386 1,333 596 52,290
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses......... 1,065 431 30 - 1,526
Deposits........c..coerr - 550 - - 550
Deferred revenue....... - 17,104 - - 17,104
Total liabilities 1,065 18,085 30 - 19,180
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.. 21 11 - 593 625
Unrestricted. ...oeevreevienieeeesreseserneesreeeeresrae s 19,889 11,290 1,303 3 32,485
Total Net ASSeLS..ccviriivriiniiiieeeie e W 8§ 11,301 —W $ 596 $ 33,110
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES -

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

PROGRAM REVENUES
CHARGES OPERATING CAPITAL
FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND

EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS

NON MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority.........c.cccveeen, $ 1,586 5 - $ 494 $ -
Jacksonville Economic Development Commission..... 11,066 667 8,604 634
Downtown Vision, InC.....c..cocciimnpnnni e cenenerepenes 1,145 849 - 375
Total non-Major COMPONENt UNILS.....vvuvevicorernresinnrivennnes $ 13,797 $ 1,516 $ 9,098 $ 1,009

General revenues:

Unrestricted earnings on investments......
Other non-tax general revenues...............

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS......ccccoeoinrerrrennn
BEGINNING NET ASSETS.......ccorvineiniinns

ENDING NET ASSETS
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NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
JACKSONVILLE JACKSONVILLE
HOUSING ECONOMIC

FINANCE DEVELOPMENT DOWNTOWN
AUTHORITY COMMISSION VISION, INC. TOTAL
$ 1,092 $ - $ - $ 1,002
- (1,161) - (1,161)
- - 79 79
(1,002) (1,161) 79 (2,174)
198 430 24 652
5,083 200 - 5,283
4,189 (531) 103 3,761
15,721 11,832 1,200 28,753
$ 19,910 $ 11,301 $ 1,303 $ 32,514

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

NON MAJOR BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT UNITS (in thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

OPERATING REVENUE:

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal SErVICES. ...t
Supplies and materials
Central services
Interdepartmental Charges........coceiveeiireicennenrenemecrcr e e e e
Other services and Charges........ovevveeeenienn e
Depreciation and amortization

Total Operating EXPENSes....cov oo esesnsssasses

OPERATING GAIN (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
Interest revenue
Interest expense
Payments from other OVernments.........ccocoeeueerercnrererenecrsseenens
Contributions to other FOVEIMMENtS.....ue i iesieeisremsssiererinns
Loss on sales of assets

GAIN (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions

....................................................................

Prior Period Adjustment.

TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED.......

TOTAL NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

WATER AND
SEWER
EXPANSION
AUTHORITY

$

302

(300)

(300)
896

596

596

TOTAL

238

59
302

(300)

(300)
896

596

596

See accompanying notes,
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

The Supplemental Information provided herein contains schedules
of the Debt Service Funds bonded indebtedness and debt service
requirements detail and Self Insurance Fund schedules detailing ten
year trend information of general liability and workers compensation
claims development.

Due to rounding, the figures presented in the following schedules
may not foot.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM BONDED INDEBTEDNESS (in thousands)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE
SOURCES OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, SEries 1993......ccvririicenerirensssmsrssesiivsssnsn s siossssen:
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1994.......covieiviiineniicicniirincniinisreissierees
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1994
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995, .. ..o viiicivieivccnienesesveniesesesemseesesnens
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1995.......cvvvevviivennes .
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A...... s s
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1995A...........cocovvevirvevene.
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1995B (AMT)..
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1996, ... sessessiereesasesssesssssssesssesens
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, SEries 1996C ... iiirecceienr v e sssssss s sesssiens
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1997..
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-1......... rereer et et e ennse st raanees
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-2......cocrivniimmrvininenenmrenscsieenesereesssssessnrosisston:
Capital Improvement and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998......cccvevveivecnvismreeneninne
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 1999A................
Local Government Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001
Excise Taxes Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 A.......ccoiivvirineveiscsesniniesnereseisssnssensesesstsssesios
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B......c...coovvoiiinisisiensieinesssnessersssssssssssssssssssnns
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002A...............
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002...............
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A........covcvieeeenereiieiree e ceeeeeees v snesens
Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Crossover Series 2002B..........ooee.....
Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Crossover Series 2002C
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2002B.......c..ccovvevrcniniinneinncsiesinsvnisnennns
Local Government Sales Tax Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002...............c......
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A. .. i nssisesmseessessessessessiaseanns
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2003B
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003C (AMT)....coeovivereeveeennne

Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-3.....ccccovivvninenciensenssrenns
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2002-1.....c.ciiiiieeccreecniecnsereisrseisenereereverossstasionesns

TOTAL PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM OTHER SPECIFIC REVENUE
SOURCES OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:

Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 200 L...c.iiiviviiicrreeerrecrrsresressissssssssssiessesssssentensas
Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001.........occocoriceneneeiiinnnnesrnies e,
Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2003........cocooveicvereeneceneeieesessscsresseenns
Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004.................

Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 (Auction Rate Securities).......coevvevverveerverceseene.
Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A (Auction Rate Securities)......oiviiveineercevieenen.
Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B (Auction Rate Securities).......ccvvevvieeierierrvarens
Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A (Auction Rate Securities)......cvoerveveererreevninnan.

TOTAL PAYABLE FROM OTHER SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES.....civuummaes

TOTAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS

The above rates represent assumed rates on variable rate debt for coverage analysis or other purposes.
Total authorization of $99,000,000

Total authorization of $130,000,000

Total anthorization of $90,300,000

Total authorization of $70,000,000

Total authorization of $750,000,000

Total authorization of $1,500,000,000

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8) Total authorization of $94,000,000

P N e
AN R s e

INTEREST PAYMENT ISSUE
RATES DATES DATE
6.200-6.300% 4/1; 10/1 02/23/93
5.050-5.875% 4/1; 10/1 08/17/94
9.200% (1) Monthly 08/24/94
5.250-5.875% 4/1; 10/1 03/14/95
5.000% 4/1; 10/1 06/28/95
4.625-5.125% 4/1; 10/1 01/04/96
5.500-5.650% 4/1; 10/1 10/05/95
5.750% 4/1; 10/1 10/05/95
4.700-5.125% 4/1; 10/1 01/07/97
4.750-4.850% 4/1; 10/1 11/05/96
4.500-5.250% 4/1; 10/1 03/11/97
7.810% (1) Monthly 01/22/98
8.890% (1) Monthly 11/04/99
4.200-5.000% 4/1; 10/1 08/26/98
3.800-5.000% 4/1; 10/1 03/09/99
3.600-5.500% 4/1; 10/ 04/24/01
5.000% 4/1; 10/1 07/03/01
4.000-5.125% 4/1; 1011 04/01/02
5.000-5.500% 415 10/1 07/03/02
3.000-5.375% 4/1; 101 07/03/02
2.375-5.000% 4/1; 101 09/09/02
2.000-5.250% 4/1; 10/ 09/09/02
2.375-5.250% 4/1; 10 09/09/02
3.000-5.375% 4/1; 101 11/26/02
3.000-5.375% 4/1; 10/ 12/16/02
3.000-4.500% 4/1; 101 12/29/03
3.000-5.000% 4/1; 10 07/03/03
2.000-5.250% 4/1; 101 07/03/03
7.900% (1) Monthly 09/25/03
7.5875% (1) Monthly 09/21/04
3.600-5.500% 4/1; 10/ 06/05/01
3.600-5.500% 4/1; 101 06/05/01
2.000-5.250% 4/1; 10M 02/19/03
2.000-5.000% 4/1; 101 03/02/04
4.010% (1) 35 day ARS 07/01/03
4.810% (1) 35 day ARS 09/25/03
4.810% (1) 35 day ARS 09/25/03
3.455% (1) 35 day ARS 09/30/04
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FINAL

MATURITY

DATE AUTHORIZED ISSUED RETIRED OUTSTANDING
10/01/20 $ 43,605 $ 43,605 $ 36,060 $ 7,545
10/01/19 74,995 74,995 74,995 -
09/15/06 10,075 9,825 8,830 995
10/01/25 27,855 27,855 2,755 25,100
10/01/05 100,000 100,000 96,100 3,900
10/01/09 7,580 7,580 - 7,580
10/01/114 9,050 9,050 670 8,380
10/01/15 15,945 15,945 6,995 8,950
10/01/18 65,640 65,640 59,370 6,270
10/01/06 4,055 4,055 3,035 1,020
10/01/25 8,285 8,285 1,180 7,105
10/01/17 99,000 (2) 30,000 6,025 23,975
10/01/22 N/A (2) 45,000 4,000 41,000
10/01/25 37,310 37,310 1,625 35,685
10/01/19 75,880 75,890 33,530 42,360
10/01/18 127,000 103,725 560 103,165
10/01/09 49,000 42,485 8,640 33,845
10/01/32 49,000 46,735 - 46,735
10/01/13 65,000 56,685 9,450 47,235
10/01/32 125,000 115,265 4,060 111,205
10/01/30 130,000 (3) 54,135 - 54,135
10/01/19 N/A (3) 42,170 - 42,170
10/01/25 N/A (3) 26,920 - 26,920
10/01/26 90,300 (4) 68,475 2,480 65,995
10/01/18 70,000 63,060 5,070 57,990
10/01/23 18,745 18,745 - 18,745
10/01/11 70,000 (5) 17,535 2,545 14,990
10/01/20 N/A (5) 34,540 330 34,210
10/01/25 N/A (2) 24,000 - 24,000
10/01/34 94,000 (8) 54,000 - 54,000

$ 1,467,330 $ 1,323,510 $ 368,305 $ 955,206
10/01/31 $ 750,000 (6) $ 179,280 $ 4,690 $ 174,590
10/01/30 1,500,000 (7) 218,430 12,585 205,845
10/01/30 N/A (7) 211,080 6,925 204,125
10/01/30 N/A (7) 218,755 - 218,755
10/01/20 N/A (6) 47,775 2,785 44,990
10/01/32 N/A (6) 76,825 - 76,825
10/01/32 N/A (8) 76,800 - 76,800
10/01/27 N/A (8) 80,275 400 79,875

$ 2,250,000 $ 1,109,190 $ 27,385 $ 1,081,805

$ 3,717,330 $ 2,432 700 $ 395,690 $ 2,037,011

{continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM BONDED INDEBTEDNESS (in thousands; continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Seties 1995 A, eveeeaens
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1990A .. ..v v inssnoniissieensans
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 1999B................
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2003B.........ccovvevevivennenee.

TOTAL PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS

PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE:

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1995 (Coach)....cccovevinenecrvrninecreenninenne
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996 (Sally Beauty).........couvrervreverrsnsnsens
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996-B (Hilton)
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (LaVilla)......cc.oovvvveeirecrinnreveerenne,
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (HTV Associates).......vevveivevennenne
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Armor Holdings)..
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Hampton Inns)........oceeceeeeseervinrnns

TOTAL PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE

NOTES PAYABLE FROM OTHER SPECIFIC REVENUE
SOURCES OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:

State Infrastructure Bank Loan

TOTAL NOTES PAYABLE FROM OTHER SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES..............

NOTES PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES:

Commercial Paper

TOTAL NOTES PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES.....c.coossusmesnsrscssssass.

TOTAL BONDED INDEBTEDNESS

) The above rates represent assumed rates on variable rate debt for coverage analysis or other purposes,
}  Total authorization of $92,000,0600

) Total authorization of $130,000,000

) Total authorization of $90,300,000

) Total authorization of $70,000,000

}  Total asthorization of $750,000,000

} Total authorization of $1,500,000,000

}  Total authorization of $94,000,000

INTEREST PAYMENT ISSUE
RATES DATES DATE
4.500-5.125% 4/1; 101 01/04/96
4.250-5.500% 4/1; 101 02/28/96
4.400-5.750% 4/1; 101 09/23/99
3.000-5.000% 411,10/ 07/03/03
3.09-519% 21, 8/1 02/01/95
6.46 -6.88 % 2/1; 81 12/18/96
6.46-7.03 % 2/1; 81 11/20/96
6.46 - 7.08 % 2/1; 81 02/19/97
6.46 - 6.78 % 2/1; 81 04/02/97
6.46 - 7.08 % 2/1; 81 10/28/97
6.46 - 7.03 % 2/1; 81 10/28/97
2.000 % 101 07/28/05

2.45 - 2.70% Monthly 11/04/04
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FINAL

MATURITY

DATE AUTHORIZED ISSUED RETIRED OUTSTANDING
10/01/09 $ 12,270 $ 12,270 $ 1,450 $ 10,820
10/01/16 19,965 19,965 3,890 16,076
10/01/18 40,835 40,835 8,115 32,720
10/01/11 N/A (5) 9,630 1,156 8,375

$ 73,070 $ 82,600 $ 14,610 $ 67,990

08/01/14 $ 3,845 $ 3,845 $ 575 $ 3270
08/01/12 1,065 1,065 525 540
08/01/15 2,850 2,850 545 2,305
08/01/16 1,700 1,700 725 975
08/01/10 700 700 365 335
08/01/16 775 775 130 645
08/01/15 560 550 100 450

$ 11,485 $ 11,485 $ 2965 $ 8,520

10/01/14 $ 40,000 $ 18,319 3 - $ 18,319
$ 40,000 $ 18,319 $ - $ 18,319

12/31/34 $ 150,000 $ 65,000 $ 6,435 $ 58,565
$ 150,000 $ 65,000 $ 6435 $ 58,565

$ 3,991,885 $ 2610,104 $ 419,700 $ 2,190,404

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
COMPARED TO CASH IN SINKING FUND
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

Special Obligation Bonds Payable from Specific Revenue Source other than Ad Valorem Taxes:

Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, STIes 1993, st ciseces st stsssssssessesssnssrssnssseseenns
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1994.........ocvcvervivosirenverereeressesseseres
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995........cccervveeecrcnennnne. .
Sales Tax Revenue BOnds, SETIEs 1095, . it iie et iiteeinteessesessees s res s saassessessesssasssesssessnsesssassesssssesssess
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, SEries 1995 A, .. it ereereesrveresrereseressessenssnssssssenessenne
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1995A...........
Sunshine State Governmental Finance Commission Bonds, Series 1995B (AMT)..
Sales Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996.........ovcieimivirininnninineenrnnis e evesmssessnenesserens
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 1996C........coivmiiieiercrineneseesses e sseseserers
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1997
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-1.....cciiiiiiiiiies it ctsrcetstsessissseesisssssesssesnosssnons
Capital Project Revemie Bonds, Series 1007-2..,.ccciiimriiimiinisesiesensisesrsrssssens stssteoemsssesosessossamenssesans
Capital Improvement and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 1999A.
Local Government Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001.....
Excise Taxes Refunding Bonds, Series 2001A..........ccceeeeiiivnneininee
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B.......cccovvveeeicnivecinerrnnnnas .
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 20024, .. .. oovvveeeeveveseireerserssessserssesenns
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002.......coeiveienieisecsnrrer o
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A..........coooeirierieceeeeiereeeeniens
Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Crossover Series 2002B...
Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Crossover Series 2002C ..o o ovoverriseererereseesonnnnns
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2002B......cciiiieiiicvinverevniiecse s
Local Government Sales Tax Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002...
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2003B.......
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003C (AMT)..............
Capital Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-3...cccccvvvvevievnennee

Special Obligation Bonds Payable from Other Specific Revenue Source other than Ad Valorem Taxes:
Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2001, .o ssesessssssssssasesssssssossssemsmnans
Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001...........
Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2003..................
Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 (Auction Rate Securities)...
Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A (Auction Rate Securities)
Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B (Auction Rate Securities)
Better Jacksonville Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004......coovvvvennn
Transportation Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 (Auction Rate Securities)...

Payable from Enterprise Funds:
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995A . ... it eee e seeee s e seeeeeeereneessersrens
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1996A.....ocoiiiieeeeeenveeserernrens .
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 1990B...cuuvoverevrreeecrrsreissneees
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2003B.......o.oceveicvnvieieereereseneneesens

Other Long - Term Obligations:
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1995 (COACh).cc.veiiieresrererresseeererereseesesesensieesseaseesens
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996 (Sally Beauty)............ccovuuee.

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1996-B (Hilton).......coecveveueeeecvcevenrierns
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (LaVilla)............
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (HTV Associates)..

U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Armor Holdings)..
U.S. Government Guaranteed Note Payable, Series 1997 (Hampton Inns)..

Naotes Payable from Other Specific Revenue Source other than Ad Valorem Taxes:
State Infrastructure Bank Loan

Notes Payable from Specific Revenue Source other than Ad Valorem Taxes:
COMIMETCIAL PAPET ..ttt errereit et e sie et ee et st s st b st s s 10 eeeeetem e eeeeanaess et enasaseasesensesesseeseaseessnssseasenssassrseesens

PRINCIPAL
OUTSTANDING

$ 7,545,140
995,000
25,100,000
3,900,000
7,580,000
8,380,000
8,950,000
6,270,000
1,020,000
7,105,000
23,975,000
41,000,000
35,685,000
42,360,000
103,165,000
33,845,000
46,735,000
47,235,000
111,205,000
54,135,000
42,170,000
26,920,000
65,995,000
57,990,000
14,990,420
34,210,000
24,000,000
18,745,000
54,000,000

$ 955,205,560

$ 174,590,000
205,845,000
204,125,000

44,990,000
76,825,000
76,800,000
218,755,000
79,875,000

$ 1,081,805,000

$ 10,820,000
16,075,000
32,720,000

8,374,580

$ 67,989,580

$ 3,270,000
540,000
2,305,000
975,000
335,000

645,000
450,000

$ 8,520,000

$ 18,319,261

$ 18,319,261

$ 58,565,000

$ 58,565,000

$ 2,190,404,401




TOTAL
INTEREST

TO MATURITY

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE
REQUIREMENTS
TO MATURITY

$ 18,784,859
91,540
18,875,390
97,500
1,274,947
1,478,121
4,466,312
2,347,429
49,460
4,566,159
12,657,630
43,114,366
28,927,574
10,744,026
40,759,941
4,623,125
40,297,040
10,491,675
94,732,775
60,075,168
18,293,934
16,367,124
40,251,706
24,872,794
1,667,711
23,402,166
31,732,549
8,844,700
107,436,066

$ 671223786

$ 26,329,999
1,086,540
43,975,390
3,997,500
8,854,947
9,858,121
13,416,312
8,617,429
1,089,460
11,671,159
36,632,630
84,114,366
64,612,574
53,104,026
143,924,941
38,468,125
87,032,040
57,726,675
205,937,775
114,210,168
60,463,934
43,287,124
106,246,706
82,862,794
16,558,131
57,612,166
55,732,549
27,589,700
161,436,066

$ 1,626,429,346

$ 185,134,043
171,044,742
161,504,536

19,106,648
76,178,976
76,142,300
145,603,353
38,852,771

$ 873,667,368

$ 359,724,043
376,889,742
365,629,536

64,096,648
153,003,976
152,942,300
364,358,353
118,727,771

$ 1,683,306
5,250,213
11,870,026
1,364,457

$ 1,955,372,368

$ 20,168,001

$ 12,503,306
21,325,213
44,590,025

9,738,037

$ 910,755
148,001
987,457
478,939

75,611

311,390
197,985

$ 88,157,581

$ 3,111,138

$ 4,180,785
689,001
3,292,457
1,453,939
410,611

956,390
647,985

$ 1,352,771

$ 11,631,138

$ 19,672,032

$ 1,352,771

$ 3,827,896

$ 19,672,032

$ 62,392,896

$ 3,827,896

$ 62,392 896

$ 1,573,250,960

$ 3,763,655,361

CASHIN
SINKING
FUND

$ 555
80,229
1,245,899
3,997,500
255,280
1,250,969
395,410
2,687,511
524,483
383,388
1,137,328
1,596,641
570,529
8,997,320
2,765,552
6,093,625
894,687
6,280,800
4,772,231
1,323,241
1,630,381
605,514
3,473,608
3,735,213
1,223,886
1,682,405
666,072
1,593,728
193,001

NET
DEBT

$ 60,056,986

$ 26,329,444
1,006,311
42,729,491
8,699,667
8,607,152
13,020,902
5,929,918
544,978
11,287,771
36,495,302
82,517,724
64,042,045
44,106,706
141,159,389
32,374,500
86,137,353
51,445,875
201,165,544
112,886,927
58,833,653
42,681,610
102,773,098
79,127,681
15,334,245
55,929,761
55,066,477
25,995,972
161,243,065

$ 1,549,602
9,145,255
9,145,255

516,534
516,534
516,534
9,145,255
516,534

$ 1,666,372 361

$ 31,051,503

$ 358,174,441
367,744,487
356,484,281

63,580,114
152,487,442
152,425,766
365,213,097
118,211,237

$ 687,110
1,416,666
2,929,720
2,626,281

$ 1,924320,864

$ 7,659,776

$ 11,816,196
19,908,547
41,660,305

7,112,756

$ 137,032
391

12,041
145

$ 80,497,805

$ 149610

$ 4,043,723
688,610
3,292,457
1,453,939
398,570
956,245
647,985

$ 11,481,528

b 19,672,032

$ 25,377,080

b 19,672,032

$ 25,377,080

$ 37,015,818

$ 124,294,955

$ 37,015,816

$ 3,639,360,407
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
Purpose: Development of Third Construction of the Superstructure
Terminal for Operation by the Automated Skyway Express Renovation of the
Jacksonville Port Authority River Crossing Leg ALLTEL Stadium

Excise Taxes

Sunshine State Governmental

Revenue Bonds, Finance Commission Capital Improvement
Series 1993 Bonds, Series 1994 Revenue Bonds, Series 1995

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006 $ 995,000 $ 91,540 $ 510,000 $ 1,443,256
2007 560,000 1,415,029
2008 610,000 1,383,719
2009 670,000 1,348,824
2010 $ 190,465 $ 334,536 735,000 1,309,819
2011 1,076,112 2,103,888 805,000 1,266,296
2012 1,061,197 2,273,803 880,000 1,218,274
2013 1,352,429 3,167,570 955,000 1,165,738
2014 1,313,363 3,401,636 1,040,000 1,107,731
2015 1,288,056 3,631,944 1,130,000 1,043,988
2016 1,263,518 3,871,482 1,230,000 974,663
2017 1,320,000 899,756
2018 1,345,000 821,472
2019 1,370,000 741,719
2020 1,400,000 660,350
2021 1,430,000 577,219
2022 1,455,000 492 472
2023 1,485,000 406,109
2024 1,510,000 318,131
2025 2,210,000 208,856
2026 2,450,000 71,969
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035

$ 7,545,140 $ 18,784,859 $ 995,000 $ 91,540 $ 25,100,000 $ 18,875,390

Interest Rates:

6.20 - 6.30%

Variable Rate
Assumed at 9.20%

5.25-56.875%
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River City

Renaissance

Projects

To Partially Refund
Excise Taxes Revenue

Refunding Bonds, Series 1988A

Excise Taxes Revenue

Closure of

North Landfill

Sunshine State Governmental

Expansion of Trail
Ridge Landfill

Sunshine State Governmental

Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Finance Commission Finance Commission

Series 1995A Bonds, Series 1995A Bonds, Series 1995B (AMT)

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 3,900,000 97,500 $ 379,181 $ 1,180,000 $ 415,683 $ 514,625
379,181 1,240,000 352,232 514,625
$ 2,850,000 309,713 1,310,000 287,828 514,625
2,995,000 163,497 1,380,000 217,335 514,625
1,735,000 43,375 1,460,000 140,097 514,625
1,545,000 57,460 514,625
265,000 7,486 $ 1,370,000 475,237
1,735,000 385,969
1,835,000 283,331
1,945,000 174,656
2,065,000 59,369
$ 3,900,000 $ 97,500 $ 7,580,000 $1,274,947 $ 8,380,000 $ 1,478,121 $ 8,950,000 $ 4,466,312

5.00 - 6.00% 4,625 -5.125% 5.50 - 5.65% 5.75%

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -

SPECTAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
Purpose: River City Jacksonville Superstructure
Renaissance Beach Downtown Renovation of the
Projects Revitalization ALLTEL Stadium
Excise Taxes
Sales Tax Revenue Revenue Bonds Capital Improvement
Bonds, Series 1996 Series 1996C Revenue Bonds, Series 1997
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006 $ 2,570,000 $ 250,021 $ 505,000 $ 36,971 $ 200,000 $ 361,148
2007 189,625 515,000 12,489 210,000 351,817
2008 189,625 215,000 341,935
2009 189,625 230,000 331,363
2010 189,625 240,000 319,962
2011 189,625 250,000 307,833
2012 189,625 265,000 294,825
2013 189,625 275,000 280,986
2014 189,625 290,000 266,365
2015 189,625 305,000 250,819
2016 860,000 167,588 320,000 234,412
2017 900,000 122,488 340,000 217,087
2018 945,000 75,210 355,000 198,844
2019 995,000 25,497 375,000 179,681
2020 395,000 159,469
2021 415,000 138,206
2022 435,000 115,894
2023 460,000 92,400
2024 485,000 67,594
2025 510,000 41,475
2026 535,000 14,044
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
$ 6,270,000 $ 2,347,429 $ 1,020,000 $ 49,460 $ 7,105,000 $ 4,566,159
Interest Rates: 4.70 - 5.125% 4.75 - 4.85% 4,50 - 5.25%
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Drainage and Drainage and To Refund a Portion To Refund a Portion
General Capital General Capital of Capital Improvement of Excise Taxes Revenue
Programs Programs Revenue Bonds, Series 1994 Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A
and 1991, and Preservation

Capital Project Capital Project Capital Improvement Excise Taxes Revenue
Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds and Refunding Revenue Refunding & Capital Improvement
Series 1997 - 1 Series 1997 -2 Bonds, Series 1998 Bonds, Series 1999A
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 1,365,000 $ 1,774,603 $ 900,000 $ 3,571,466 $ 165,000 $ 1,689,718 $ 8,075,000 $ 1,721,215
1,430,000 1,663,337 1,000,000 3,483,297 175,000 1,682,577 7,385,000 1,383,165
1,495,000 1,548,399 1,000,000 3,397,490 180,000 1,675,078 3,670,000 1,125,140
1,666,000 1,423,898 1,100,000 3,294,312 190,000 1,667,167 3,815,000 975,440
1,640,000 1,297,615 1,100,000 3,199,548 195,000 1,658,793 1,410,000 870,940
1,720,000 1,163,797 1,200,000 3,093,598 205,000 1,649,890 1,465,000 811,608
1,805,000 1,024,296 1,200,000 2,989,638 215,000 1,640,332 1,530,000 747,965
1,895,000 875,128 1,300,000 2,869,439 225,000 1,630,100 1,590,000 680,473
1,995,000 720,783 1,400,000 2,748,350 235,000 1,619,231 1,665,000 608,030
2,095,000 557,805 1,400,000 2,623,890 245,000 1,607,525 1,740,000 530,548
2,205,000 386,641 1,500,000 2,493,535 260,000 1,594,900 1,820,000 447,758
2,320,000 205,632 1,600,000 2,347,594 270,000 1,581,650 1,905,000 359,744
2,445,000 15,695 1,700,000 2,199,362 285,000 1,567,775 1,995,000 264,625
4,400,000 1,827,930 300,000 1,553,150 2,095,000 162,375
4,600,000 1,421,718 315,000 1,638,169 2,200,000 55,000
4,900,000 986,067 5,035,000 1,411,106
5,200,000 526,946 5,330,000 1,164,937
5,500,000 40,188 5,640,000 904,400
5,870,000 628,663
5,640,000 352,925
4,610,000 109,488
$ 23,975,000 $ 12,657,630 $ 41,000,000 $ 43,114,366 $ 35,685,000 $ 28,927 574 $ 42,360,000 $ 10,744,026
Variable Rate Variable Rate 4,20 - 5.00% 3.80 - 5.00%
Assumed at 7.81% Assumed at 8.89%
(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

Purpose:

To Refund a Portion
of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds,

Series 1995 and 1996

Local Government Sales Tax
Refunding Revenue Bonds,

To Refund a Portion
Excise Taxes Revenue

Bonds, Series 1996B

Excise Taxes Refunding

To Fund a Redevelopment
Agreement for the

Riverfront Development

of the Jacksonville Shipyards

Excise Taxes Revenue

Series 2001 Bonds, Series 2001A Bonds, Series 20018

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006 $ 175,000 $ 5,197,954 $ 5,260,000 $ 1,560,750 $ 850,000 $ 2,283,772
2007 6,965,000 5,064,210 5,950,000 1,280,500 880,000 2,249,173
2008 7,230,000 4,743,829 6,710,000 964,000 915,000 2,213,272
2009 7,600,000 4,402,041 7,530,000 608,000 955,000 2,175,395
2010 7,905,000 4,087,001 8,395,000 209,875 995,000 2,134,674
2011 8,230,000 3,751,130 1,035,000 2,091,277
2012 8,580,000 3,342,350 1,080,000 2,045,265
2013 9,050,000 2,857,525 1,130,000 1,996,080
2014 9,545,000 2,346,162 1,180,000 1,943,515
2016 10,075,000 1,806,613 1,235,000 1,887,353
2016 6,405,000 1,353,413 1,290,000 1,827,370
2017 6,760,000 991,375 1,355,000 1,763,212
2018 7,125,000 609,538 1,420,000 1,694,515
2019 7,520,000 206,800 1,490,000 1,621,765
2020 1,565,000 1,544,608
2021 1,645,000 1,462,547
2022 1,730,000 1,376,062
2023 1,815,000 1,285,222
2024 1,910,000 1,189,769
2025 2,010,000 1,089,319
2026 2,110,000 983,744
2027 2,220,000 872,787
2028 2,335,000 756,066
2029 2,450,000 633,450
2030 2,580,000 504,556
2031 2,710,000 369,000
2032 2,850,000 226,525
2033 2,995,000 76,747
2034
2035

$ 103,165,000 $ 40,759,941 $ 33,845,000 $4,623,125 $ 46,735,000 $ 40,297,040

Interest Rates: 3.60 - 5.50% 5.00% 4.000% - 5.125%
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To Refund Excise
Taxes Revenue Refunding

Bonds, Series 1992 and
Animal Care and Control Facility

Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding and Improvement

To Refund Guaranteed

Entitlement Revenue Refunding

Bonds, Series 1992A and
Various Other Projects

Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue

Refunding and Improvement

Capital Improvements

at Alltel Stadium

Capital Improvement

Revenue Bonds,

Bonds, Series 2002A Bonds, Series 2002 Series 2002A
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

$ 5,080,000 $ 2,299,600 $ 2,120,000 $ 5,297,663 $ 2,641,304
5,335,000 2,039,225 2,185,000 5,233,087 $ 595,000 2,634,238
5,605,000 1,758,719 2,250,000 5,165,156 560,000 2,619,613
5,895,000 1,486,319 2,320,000 5,089,400 505,000 2,604,478
6,155,000 1,199,481 2,400,000 5,006,800 455,000 2,589,509
6,465,000 868,206 2,485,000 4,918,206 395,000 2,575,203
6,805,000 511,362 2,580,000 4,821,625 335,000 2,562,260
2,865,000 245,438 2,680,000 4,718,038 290,000 2,550,865
3,030,000 83,325 2,785,000 4,608,737 220,000 2,541,100
2,895,000 4,493,328 165,000 2,533,600
3,015,000 4,352,591 75,000 2,529,000
3,180,000 4,186,100 2,527,500
3,350,000 4,010,606 2,527,500
3,530,000 3,825,706 2,527,500
3,720,000 3,630,863 2,527,500
3,920,000 3,425,537 2,527,500
4,130,000 3,216,938 2,527,500
4,335,000 3,005,312 2,527,500
4,555,000 2,783,063 2,527,500
4,780,000 2,549,687 2,527,500
5,020,000 2,304,688 945,000 2,503,875
5,270,000 2,047,438 8,975,000 2,255,875
5,535,000 1,777,313 9,425,000 1,795,875
5,810,000 1,491,375 9,900,000 1,312,750
6,105,000 1,188,506 10,395,000 805,375
6,415,000 869,756 10,910,000 272,750

6,745,000 534,206

7,090,000 181,050
$ 47,235,000 $ 10,491,675 $ 111,205,000 $94,732,775 $ 54,135,000 $ 60,075,168

5.00% - 5.50%

3.00% - 5.375%

2.375% - 5.00%

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES

OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

Purpose:;

To Crossover Refund

Capital Improvement Revenue

Bonds, Series 1994

Capital Improvement and
Refunding Revenue Bonds,

To Crossover Refund

Capital Improvement Revenue

Bonds, Series 1995

Capital Improvement and
Refunding Revenue Bonds,

To Fund a Grant

to

Shands Jacksonville
Medical Center, Inc

Excise Taxes

Revenue Bonds

Crossover Series 2002B Crossover Series 2002C Series 2002B

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006 $ 1,340,000 $ 1,900,981 $ 1,208,658 $ 1,965,000 $ 3,002,741
2007 1,915,000 1,864,841 $ 780,000 1,199,395 2,025,000 2,942,891
2008 2,000,000 1,815,100 820,000 1,179,063 2,085,000 2,881,241
2009 2,090,000 1,756,750 865,000 1,155,018 2,150,000 2,806,966
2010 2,195,000 1,689,731 920,000 1,127,093 2,235,000 2,719,266
2011 2,310,000 1,596,313 980,000 1,094,993 2,325,000 2,636,204
2012 2,465,000 1,476,938 1,045,000 1,059,033 2,400,000 2,549,841
2013 2,630,000 1,349,563 1,105,000 1,019,780 2,495,000 2,451,941
2014 2,810,000 1,210,050 1,175,000 975,838 2,595,000 2,346,898
2015 3,005,000 1,057,406 1,250,000 927,338 2,705,000 2,230,811
2016 3,210,000 894,263 1,335,000 867,294 2,825,000 2,106,466
2017 3,685,000 717,875 1,425,000 796,625 2,955,000 1,965,238
2018 3,920,000 527,750 1,440,000 725,000 3,110,000 1,804,638
2019 4,165,000 325,625 1,460,000 652,500 3,275,000 1,634,629
2020 4,430,000 110,750 1,485,000 578,875 3,450,000 1,454,835
2021 1,505,000 504,125 3,635,000 1,264,426
2022 1,520,000 428,500 3,830,000 1,076,730
2023 1,540,000 352,000 4,010,000 891,488
2024 1,555,000 274,625 4,200,000 691,250
2025 2,245,000 179,625 4,410,000 476,000
2026 2,470,000 61,750 4,630,000 250,000
2027 2,685,000 67,125
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035

$ 42,170,000 $ 18,293,934 $ 26,920,000 $ 16,367,124 § 65,995,000 $ 40,251,706

Interest Rates:

2.00% - 5.25%

2.375% - 5.25%

3.00% - 5.375%
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To Refund Commercial To Refund a Portion

Paper Notes and to Fund of Excise Taxes To Refund Excise Taxes Drainage and
Veterans Memorial Revenue Refunding Revenue Bonds, General Capital
Wall Plaza and Library Bonds, Series 1993A Series 1993 (AMT) Programs
Systems Improvements
Local Government Excise Taxes Revenue
Sales Tax Refunding Refunding and Excise Taxes Revenue Capital Project
and Improvement Improvement Bonds, Refunding Bonds, Revenue Bonds
Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 Series 2003B Series 2003C (AMT) Series 1997 -3
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 2,440,000 $ 2,568,825 $ 2,840,420 $ 567,211 $ 360,000 $ 1,743,794 $ 1,896,000
2,515,000 2,494,500 2,805,000 416,075 405,000 1,735,891 1,896,000
2,585,000 2,418,000 2,950,000 301,700 435,000 1,726,150 1,897,732
2,675,000 2,337,428 3,115,000 210,725 475,000 1,713,588 1,894,268
2,755,000 2,249,141 3,280,000 82,000 15,000 1,706,219 1,896,000
2,850,000 2,150,994 15,000 1,705,713 $ 200,000 1,881,499
2,950,000 2,041,806 15,000 1,705,150 500,000 1,845,628
3,065,000 1,922,975 20,000 1,704,450 800,000 1,781,057
3,195,000 1,797,775 20,000 1,703,638 700,000 1,726,745
3,315,000 1,652,013 20,000 1,702,813 800,000 1,664,195
6,845,000 1,387,803 20,000 1,701,963 700,000 1,609,710
7,210,000 1,015,438 5,380,000 1,560,300 600,000 1,558,764
7,595,000 624,403 5,895,000 1,264,331 600,000 1,512,796
7,995,000 211,694 6,445,000 940,406 500,000 1,472,647
7,030,000 586,688 400,000 1,441,710
7,660,000 201,075 300,000 1,414,751
200,000 1,399,599
1,398,300
5,700,000 985,877
5,900,000 519,665
6,100,000 39,608
$ 57,990,000 $ 24,872,794 $ 14,990,420 $ 1,567,711 $ 34,210,000 $ 23,402,166 $ 24,000,000 $ 31,732,549
3.000% - 5.375% 3.000% - 5.000% 2.000% - 5.250% Variable Rate

Maximum Assumed at 7.90%

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -

SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES

OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

Purpose:

To Fund a Grant to
Shands Jacksonville

Medical Center, Inc
(Proton Beam)

Excise Taxes
Revenue Bonds

Drainage and
General Capital

Programs

Capital Project
Revenue Bonds

Series 2003A Series 2002-1 Total

Fiscal Principal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest and Interest
2006 $ 722,670 $ 4,093,478 $ 92,117,747
2007 722,670 4,097,250 92,167,320
2008 $ 300,000 718,170 4,097,250 91,047,546
2009 880,000 700,470 4,101,022 92,167,954
2010 905,000 673,695 4,093,478 88,658,362
2011 935,000 646,095 4,097,250 77,662,812
2012 960,000 616,470 4,097,250 77,842,655
2013 990,000 583,545 4,101,022 74,974,736
2014 1,025,000 547,770 4,093,478 74,923,474
2015 1,065,000 509,618 4,097,250 71,841,272
2016 1,105,000 468,920 4,097,250 71,774,908
2017 1,145,000 425,598 4,101,022 69,692,997
2018 1,190,000 379,470 4,093,478 69,632,007
2019 1,235,000 330,353 4,097,250 69,487,226
2020 1,285,000 278,050 4,097,250 52,360,835
2021 1,340,000 222,590 4,101,022 50,021,171
2022 1,400,000 163,490 4,093,478 41,812,545
2023 1,460,000 100,745 4,097,250 41,345,913
2024 1,525,000 34,313 4,097,250 41,008,034
2025 4,101,022 39,751,074
2026 4,093,478 38,302,644
2027 $ 5,200,000 4,097,250 33,690,475
2028 5,400,000 3,702,700 30,726,954
2029 5,600,000 3,296,007 30,493,682
2030 5,800,000 2,865,434 30,243,871
2031 6,000,000 2,428,000 29,974,506
2032 6,200,000 1,972,750 18,528,481
2033 6,400,000 1,503,708 18,246,505
2034 6,600,000 1,015,789 7,615,789
2035 6,800,000 515,950 7,315,950

$ 18,745,000 §$ 8,844,700 $ 54,000,000 $ 107,436,066 $ 1,626,429,346

Interest Rates: 3.000% - 4.5% Variable Rate

Maximum Assumed at 7.5875%
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES - BETTER JACKSONVILLE PLAN

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
Purpose: Better Jacksonville Better Jacksonville Better Jacksonville
Transportation Infrastructure Infrastructure
Projects Projects Projects
Transportation Better Jacksonville Better Jacksonville
Revenue Bonds Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
Series 2001 Series 2001 Series 2003

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006 $ 2,410,000 $ 8,693,940 $ 3,730,000 $ 10,362,230 $ 4,395,000 $ 9,209,501
2007 2,555,000 8,602,015 3,900,000 10,179,775 4,480,000 9,210,751
2008 2,595,000 8,501,570 4,095,000 9,979,900 4,570,000 9,117,395
2009 2,730,000 8,393,705 4,300,000 9,779,025 4,670,000 8,998,789
2010 8,337,740 4,500,000 9,577,365 4,810,000 8,856,589
2011 8,337,740 4,705,000 9,373,047 4,955,000 8,703,920
2012 9,080,000 8,120,129 4,905,000 9,149,265 5,115,000 8,533,889
2013 7,902,519 5,150,000 8,885,015 5,295,000 8,345,095
2014 7,902,519 5,435,000 8,693,928 5,490,000 8,141,504
2015 7,902,519 5,735,000 8,286,752 5,700,000 7,923,194
2016 7,902,519 6,050,000 7,962,665 5,930,000 7,653,531
2017 7,902,519 6,380,000 7,622,090 6,240,000 7,334,069
2018 7,902,519 6,730,000 7,262,815 6,565,000 6,997,938
2019 7,902,519 7,100,000 6,882,490 6,910,000 6,662,613
2020 7,902,519 7,490,000 6,492,500 7,240,000 6,309,569
2021 7,902,519 7,880,000 6,092,880 7,620,000 5,919,494
2022 3,415,000 7,815,009 8,290,000 5,680,750 8,015,000 5,509,075
2023 3,625,000 7,636,875 8,705,000 5,255,875 8,440,000 5,087,681
2024 10,980,000 7,271,750 9,140,000 4,809,750 8,860,000 4,657,544
2025 11,520,000 6,709,250 9,600,000 4,341,250 9,300,000 4,205,906
2026 12,090,000 6,119,000 10,080,000 3,849,250 9,765,000 3,729,684
2027 12,685,000 5,499,625 10,580,000 3,332,750 10,250,000 3,230,269
2028 13,315,000 4,832,981 11,110,000 2,790,500 10,760,000 2,706,038
2028 20,260,000 3,951,638 11,665,000 2,221,125 11,300,000 2,165,000
2030 21,325,000 2,860,031 12,250,000 1,623,250 11,865,000 1,575,875
2031 22,440,000 1,739,250 26,340,000 658,500 25,585,000 639,625
2032 23,565,000 589,125
2033

Interest Rates:

$ 174,590,000

§ 185,134,043

$ 205,845,000

$ 171,044,742

$ 204,125,000 3 161,504,536

3.60 - 5.50%

3.60 - 5.50%

2.00 - 5.25%
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To currently refund State of Florida, Full
Faith and Credit, Jacksonville Transportation
Authority, Senior Lien Refunding Bonds,
Series 1992A and other Better Jacksonville

Transportation Projects

Transportation Revenue
Bonds, Series 2003
(Auction Rate Securities)

Better Jacksonville

Transportation
Projects

Transportation Revenue
Series 2003A

Bonds

{Auction Rate Securities)

Better Jacksonville

Transportation
Projects

Transportation Revenue Bonds

Series 2003B

(Auction Rate Securities)

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ - $ 1,832,570 $ 3,695,283 $ 3,694,080
1,475,000 1,774,525 3,605,283 3,694,080
1,540,000 1,714,075 3,695,283 3,694,080
1,610,000 1,650,917 3,695,283 3,694,080
1,670,000 1,585,153 3,695,283 3,694,080
1,745,000 1,516,682 3,695,283 3,694,080
1,810,000 1,445,405 3,695,283 3,694,080
1,890,000 1,371,220 3,695,283 3,694,080
2,300,000 1,287,210 3,695,283 3,694,080
2,385,000 1,193,276 $ 2,375,000 3,638,164 $ 2,375,000 3,636,961
2,495,000 1,095,432 2,500,000 3,520,920 2,500,000 3,519,718
4,990,000 945,358 2,100,000 3,410,290 2,100,000 3,409,088
5,190,000 741,249 2,125,000 3,308,679 2,125,000 3,306,875
5,405,000 528,819 2,225,000 3,204,061 2,225,000 3,201,055
5,135,000 317,492 2,550,000 3,089,223 2,550,000 3,086,216
5,350,000 107,268 2,625,000 2,964,764 2,625,000 2,962,359
3,800,000 2,810,243 3,800,000 2,807,838
3,925,000 2,624,456 3,925,000 2,622,051
4,075,000 2,432,056 4,075,000 2,430,253
4,225,000 2,232,441 4,225,000 2,231,840
4,375,000 2,025,611 4,375,000 2,026,213
4,500,000 1,812,168 4,500,000 1,812,769
4,650,000 1,592,110 4,650,000 1,591,509
4,825,000 1,364,236 4,825,000 1,363,034
5,000,000 1,127,945 5,000,000 1,126,743
5,175,000 883,236 5,175,000 882,034
5,350,000 630,110 5,350,000 628,908
10,425,000 250,721 10,400,000 250,120
$ 44,990,000 $ 19,106,648 $ 76,825,000 $ 76,178,976 $ 76,800,000 $ 76,142,300

Auction Rate Securities

Assumed at 4.01%

Auction Rate Securities

Assumed at 4,.81%

Auction Rate Securities

Assumed at 4.81%

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONYVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES - BETTER JACKSONVILLE PLAN

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
Purpose: Better Jacksonville Better Jacksonville
Infrastructure Transportation
Projects Projects
Better Jacksonville Transportation Revenue Bonds

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

Series 2004

Series 2004 {Auction Rate Securities) Total

Fiscal Principal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest and Interest
2006 $ 5,185,000 $ 8,409,045 $ - $ 2,766,591 $ 64,473,240
2007 5,290,000 8,302,295 400,000 2,752,771 66,311,495
2008 5,400,000 8,181,395 400,000 2,738,951 66,222,648
2009 5,530,000 8,045,095 2,775,000 2,684,103 68,555,996
2010 5,665,000 7,909,648 2,825,000 2,587,363 65,713,220
2011 5,795,000 7,772,063 2,950,000 2,487,600 65,730,415
2012 5,945,000 7,617,881 3,050,000 2,383,950 74,544,881
2013 6,105,000 7,444 563 3,175,000 2,276,413 65,229,186
2014 6,290,000 7,250,775 3,300,000 2,164,558 65,544,855
2015 6,495,000 7,038,959 3,400,000 2,048,815 70,133,640
2016 6,710,000 6,811,931 3,525,000 1,929,186 70,105,901
2017 6,950,000 6,568,538 3,650,000 1,805,238 71,407,188
2018 7,205,000 6,298,469 3,800,000 1,676,539 71,235,081
2019 7,490,000 6,004,569 3,925,000 1,543,089 71,209,214
2020 7,790,000 5,698,969 4,075,000 1,404,889 71,131,376
2021 8,100,000 5,381,169 4,225,000 1,261,507 71,016,958
2022 8,430,000 5,045,300 4,375,000 1,112,942 70,206,156
2023 8,770,000 4,685,069 4,550,000 958,763 70,810,770
2024 9,145,000 4,304,375 4,700,000 798,969 77,679,696
2025 9,530,000 3,895,619 4,900,000 633,129 77,549,435
2026 9,960,000 3,450,869 5,075,000 460,811 77,381,438
2027 10,425,000 2,979,466 5,300,000 281,583 77,188,628
2028 10,910,000 2,486,094 5,500,000 95,013 76,989,244
2029 11,410,000 1,977,075 77,317,108
2030 11,920,000 1,452,150 77,125,994
2031 26,310,000 591,975 116,419,620
2032 36,113,143
2033 21,325,841

$ 218,755,000 $ 145,603,353 $ 79,875,000 $ 38,852,771 $ 1,955,372,368

Interest Rates:

2.00 - 5.00%

Auction Rate Securities
Assumed at 3.455%

-218 -



(This page is intentionally left blank.)



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
PAYABLE FROM ENTERPRISE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
Purpose To Refund Parking and Excise To Partially Refund
Taxes Revenue Refunding Excise Taxes Revenue
Bonds, Series 1987 Bonds, Series 1991A
Excise Taxes Excise Taxes
Revenue Refunding Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1995A Bonds, Series 1996A
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006 $ 485,000 $ 524,384 $ 1,010,000 $ 774,600
2007 1,500,000 477,544 1,085,000 717,538
2008 2,800,000 373,669 1,120,000 662,490
2009 2,935,000 230,209 1,175,000 609,117
2010 3,100,000 77,500 1,230,000 551,985
2011 1,285,000 490,983
2012 1,350,000 425,750
2013 1,420,000 356,500
2014 1,490,000 283,750
2015 1,565,000 207,375
2016 1,645,000 127,125
2017 1,720,000 43,000
$ 10,820,000 $ 1,683,306 $ 16,075,000 $ 5,250,213
Interest Rates: 4.50 - 5.125% 4.25 - 5.50%

-220 -



To Partially Refund
Excise Taxes Revenue
Bonds, Series 1991B
and Construction of Trail

To Partially Refund
Excise Taxes Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1993A

Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding and Improvement

Ridge Landfill
Excise Taxes Revenue
Refunding and Capital
Improvement Bonds, Series 19998
Principal Interest
$ 2,055,000 $ 1,688,753
2,145,000 1,592,912
2,245,000 1,489,990
2,355,000 1,379,268
2,465,000 1,260,240
2,590,000 1,127,390
2,730,000 981,090
2,880,000 823,215
3,050,000 652,728
3,220,000 478,100
3,400,000 295,960
3,585,000 100,380

$ 32,720,000 $ 1

1,870,025

4.40 - 5.75%

Bonds, Series 2003B
Principal Interest

$ 974,580 $ 314,307
1,195,000 300,925
1,245,000 252,375
1,215,000 210,475
1,195,000 157,375
1,245,000 96,375
1,305,000 32,625

$ 8,374,580 $ 1,364,457

3.00 - 5.00%

Total
Principal
And Interest

$ 7,826,624
8,993,919
10,188,524
10,109,069
10,037,100
6,834,748
6,824,465
5,479,715
5,476,478
5,470,475
5,468,085

5,448,380

$ 88,157,581

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
PAYABLE FROM GENERAL REVENUE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
Purpose: HUD Section 108 HUD Section 108 HUD Section 108 HUD Section 108
Program Loan for Program Loan for Program Loan for Program Loan for
Coach Distribution Project Sally Beauty Project Hilton Hotel Project LaVilla Project

U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note

U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note

U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note

U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note

Payable, Series 1995 Payable, Series 1996 Payable, Series 1996-B Payable, Series 1997
Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2006 $ 170,000 $ 150,484 $ 70,000 $ 36,099 $ 140,000 $ 157,106 $ 45,000 $ 66,927
2007 235,000 145,231 75,000 31,577 160,000 148,062 55,000 64,019
2008 285,000 136,724 75,000 26,709 175,000 137,678 60,000 60,450
2009 335,000 125,324 80,000 21,752 195,000 126,110 60,000 56,484
2010 385,000 110,852 80,000 16,392 215,000 113,046 70,000 52,464
2011 420,000 93,258 80,000 10,968 250,000 98,468 90,000 47,718
2012 455,000 73,140 80,000 5,604 275,000 81,394 100,000 41,571
2013 500,000 50,572 295,000 62,473 110,000 34,691
2014 485,000 25172 300,000 42,030 125,000 27,088
2015 300,000 21,090 130,000 18,343
2016 130,000 9,204
$ 3,270,000 $ 910,755 $ 540,000 $ 149,001 $ 2,305,000 $ 987,457 $ 975,000 $ 478,939
Interest Rates: 3.09-5.19% 6.46 - 6.88% 6.46 - 7.03% 6.46 - 7.08%
(Taxable) (Taxable) (Taxable) (Taxable)
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HUD Section 108 HUD Section 108 HUD Section 108

Program Loan for Program Loan for Program Loan for
HTYV Associates Project Armor Holdings Hampton Inns
U.S. Government U.S. Government U.S. Government
Guaranteed Note Guaranteed Note Guaranteed Note
Payable, Series 1997 Payable, Series 1997 Payable, Series 1997 Total
Principal
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest And Interest
$ 50,000 $ 22,246 $ 30,000 $ 44,237 $ 20,000 $ 30,721 $ 1,032,820
50,000 19,017 35,000 42,299 25,000 29,429 1,114,634
55,000 15,771 40,000 40,027 40,000 27,806 1,175,165
85,000 12,136 45,000 37,384 40,000 25,163 1,244,353
95,000 6,441 55,000 34,368 45,000 22,482 1,301,045
60,000 30,640 45,000 19,432 1,245,484
65,000 26,541 50,000 16,358 1,269,508
75,000 22,070 55,000 12,918 1,217,724
80,000 16,872 65,000 9,106 1,175,248
80,000 11,288 65,000 4,570 630,291
80,000 5,664 224,868
$ 335,000 $ 75,611 3 645,000 $ 311,390 $ 450,000 $ 197,985 $ 11,631,138
6.46 -6.78% 6.46 - 7.08% 6.46 - 7.03%
(Taxable) (Taxable) (Taxable)

(continued)
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -
NOTES PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES

OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES - BETTER JACKSONVILLE PLAN
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

Purpose Better Jacksonville
Infrastructure
Projects

State Infrastructure Bank

Loan, Due 10/1/2014 Total

Fiscal Principal
Year Principal Interest And Interest
2006 $ 2,398,825 $ 46,175 $ 2,445,000
2007 2,128,691 318,409 2,447,100
2008 2,172,665 275,835 2,448,500
2009 2,211,818 232,382 2,444,200
2010 2,258,155 188,145 2,444,300
2011 2,305,678 143,022 2,448,700
2012 2,350,391 96,909 2,447,300
2013 2,395,299 49,901 2,445,200
2014 99,738 1,995 101,732

$ 18,319,261 $ 1,352,771 $ 19,672,032

Interest Rates: 2.00%
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY -

NOTES PAYABLE FROM SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES
OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXES - LOAN POOL PROGRAM

Interest Rates:

Variable Rate

Assumed at 2.57%

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
Purpose To Fund the
Loan Pool Program
Commercial Paper Total
Fiscal Principal
Year Principal Interest And Interest
2006 $ 11,713,000 $ 1,368,002 $ 13,081,002
2007 11,713,000 1,086,791 12,779,791
2008 11,713,000 765,579 12,478,579
2009 11,713,000 464,368 12,177,368
2010 11,713,000 163,156 11,876,156
$ 58,565,000 $ 3,827,896 $ 62,392,898
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CITY OF JACKSONYVILLE, FLORIDA

SUMMARY OF PLEDGED REVENUES AND BOND COVERAGE

DISCLOSURE OBLIGATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

Pledged Revenue for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30

2001 2002 2003
Local Government 1/2 Cent Sales Tax:

Local Government 1/2 Cent Sales Tax (1) $ 67,487,001 $ 71,688,673 $ 73,677,299
7th Cent Gasoline Tax:

7th Cent Gasoline Tax $ 3,469,260 $ 3,585,283 $ 3,688,755
Excise Taxes:

Utilities Service Taxes:

City Water Department $ 4,890,098 $ 5,393,416 $ 5,659,797
Peoples Gas 904,315 593,671 677,108
Telecommunications Tax (3) 26,267,409 2,185,646 145,230
Communications Services Taxes (3) - 34,588,391 35,186,308
JEA (2) 43,336,805 42,857,680 45,981,688
Miscellaneous 3,087,032 2,111,122 1,954,161

Total Utilities Service Tax $ 78,485,659 $ 87,709,926 $ 89,604,292

Fuel Oil Tax 287,443 164,199 162,835

Occupational License Taxes 6,910,069 7,089,446 7,492,991
Total Excise Tax Pledged Revenues $ 85,683,171 $ 94,963,571 $ 97,260,118
Junior Lien Excise Taxes:

Total Excise Taxes $ 85,683,171 $ 94,963,571 $ 97,260,118
Total Junior Lien Excise Tax Revenues $ 85,683,171 $ 94,963,571 $ 97,260,118
Sports Facilities Capital Improvements:

Franchise Fees:

Peoples Gas $ 1,012,176 $ 553,140 $ 620,741
Southern Bell 3,524,759 1,180,053 -
Cable Television 3,309,345 1,029,768 -
Other Franchise Fees - - 304,963

Total Franchise Fees $ 7,846,280 $ 2,762,961 $ 925704

Communications Services Taxes (4) - 6,103,834 6,209,348

Sports Facility Sales Tax Rebate 1,833,202 2,000,004 2,000,004

Convention Development Tax (2%) 3,474,960 3,524,332 3,610,819

Sports Facility Tourist Development Tax (2%) 3,737,587 3,780,078 3,895,264
Total Sports Facility Capital Improvements Pledged Revenues $ 16,892,119 $ 18,171,209 $ 16,641,139
Infrastructure Improvements (Better Jacksonville Infrastructure):

Infrastructure Sales Tax (5) $ 38,496,315 $ 55,324,038 $ 57,970,655
Transportation Improvements (Better Jacksonville Transportation):

Transportation Sales Tax (1) $ 57,496,406 $ 57,471,472 $ 60,379,055

Gas Tax (Constitutional Fuel Tax) (1) 8,475,125 8,174,201 8,446,937
Total Transportation Improvements Pledged Revenues $ 65,971,531 $ 65,645,673 $ 68,825,992

(1) Recognition of revenue per GASB 33.

(2) Variance between 2000 and 2001 financial statements due to incorrect recognition of revenue.
(3) Beginning October 1, 2001 85% of the Communications Services Tax replaced the Telecommunications Tax.

(4) Beginning October |, 2001 15% of the Communications Services Tax replaced the franchise fees for Southern Bell

(5) The Infrastructure Sales Tax was approved by voters and is effective for a thirty-year period commencing January 1, 2001
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2004 2005
$ 76,155,237 $ 81,354,543
$ 3,870,166 $ 4,037,918
$ 6,161,879 $ 6,384,105
654,224 675,423
34,895,973 36,844,325
45,740,236 46,851,288
1,911,435 2,093,148
$ 89,363,747 $ 92,848,289
107,075 112,633
7,319,694 8,143,011
$ 96,790,516 $ 101,103,934
$ 96,790,516 $ 101,103,934
$ 96,790,518 $ 101,103,934
$ 1,050,527 $ 1,247,168
101,083 28,803
$ 1,151,610 $ 1,275,971
6,158,113 6,501,940
2,000,004 2,000,004
3,846,824 4,799,870
4,154,654 5,107,721
$ 17,311,205 $ 19,685,506
$ 60,132,294 $ 69,336,706
$ 61,649,656 $ 71,717,115
8,860,938 9,279,565
$ 70,510,694 $ 80,996,680

Maximum Pledged Additional

Annual Debt Revenue Bonds
Service Coverage Test

$ 17,399,950 4.68 x 1.35x
$ 1,145,320 3.53 x 1.50 x
$ 51,681,175 1.96 x 1.40%
$ 51,681,175 1.96 x 1.25x
$ 11,705,488 1.68 x 1.35x
$ 41,561,759 1.67 x 1.35x
$ 37,352,815 217 x 1.35x




CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SUMMARY OF PLEDGED REVENUES AND BOND COVERAGE

DISCLOSURE OBLIGATION (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

Guaranteed Entitlement Revenues:

County Revenue Sharing:
Cigarette Tax
Intangible Tax (1)
Sales Tax (1)

County Total

County Guaranteed

County Coverage

City Revenue Sharing:
Cigarette Tax (2)
Sales and Use Tax (2)

City Total

City Guaranteed

City Coverage

Aggregate City / County Guaranteed

Statewide Revenue Sharing - Counties:
Intangible Tax (1)
Cigarette Tax
Sales Tax (1)
Total Receipts
Guaranteed Entitlement for all Florida Counties
Average Coverage - All Florida Counties

State Revenue Sharing - Municipalities:
Cigarette Tax
&th Cent Motor Fuel Tax
Special Tax and Alternative Fuel User Decal Fee
Sales and Use Tax (2)
Total Receipts
Guaranteed Entitlement for all Florida
Average Coverage - All Florida Municipalities

JEA Contribution:
JEA Contribution - Electric Services
JEA Contribution - Water and Sewer
Total JEA Contribution

Pledged Revenue for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30

2001 2002 2003
$ 596,894 $ 579,774 $ 566,791
16,718,361 16,698,273 17,072,235
$ 17,315,255 $ 17,278,047 $ 17,639,026
$ 1,999,042 $ 1,999,042 $ 1,999,042
8.66 x 8.65 x 8.83 x
$ - $ - $ -
10,404,649 10,663,344 11,091,977
$ 10,404,649 $ 10,663,344 $ 11,091,977
$ 5,826,077 $ 5,826,077 $ 5,826,077
1.79 x 1.83 X 1.91x
$ 7,825,119 $ 7,825,119 $ 7825119
$ - 3 : $ .
11,149,461 11,229,107 11,046,778
306,361,416 309,765,152 318,054,685
$ 317,510,877 $ 320,994,259 $ 329,101,463
$ 95,086,330 $ 95,086,330 $ 95,086,330
3.34 x 3.38 x 3.47 x
$ - $ - $ .
80,474,387 82,184,764 84,519,288
1,060,517 953,804 1,135,259
145,896,115 147,517,049 151,462,709
$ 227,431,019 $ 230,655,617 $ 237,117,256
$ 112,304,159 $ 117,046,851 $ 113,749,426
2.03 x 1.97 x 2.09 x
$ 62,589,668 $ 65,489,557 $ 67,039,278
11,048,610 11,116,676 11,456,781
$ 73,638,278 $ 76,606,233 $ 78,496,059

(1) Prior to July 1, 2000 intangible tax revenues, not Sales Tax, funded the State Revenue Sharing Trust Fund for Counties

(2) Effective July 1, 2000 the New Guaranteed Entitlement Laws eliminated the cigarette tax and replaced it with 1,0175% of the

available proceeds of the sales and use tax,




2004 2005
3 728,084 $ 639,046
18,666,179 19,453,717
$ 19,389,263 $ 20,092,763
$ 1,999,042 $ 1,999,042
9.70 x 10.05 x
$ - $ -
13,421,241 19,234,478
$ 13,421,241 $ 19,234,478
$ 5,826,077 $ 5,826,077
2.30 x 3.30 x
$ 7,825,119 $ 7,825,119
$ - $ -
11,118,432 11,707,985
346,145,856 354,704,849
$ 357,264,288 $ 361,259,883
$ 95,086,330 $ 95,086,330
3.76 x 3.80 x
$ - $ -
88,531,815 92,375,629
1,393,234 1,240,339
164,842,349 234,068,559

$ 254,767,398
$ 114,793,146

$ 327,721,435
$ 117,644,655

2.22 2.79 x
$ 70,039,278 $ 68,676,624
13,148,260 17,260,920
$ 83,187,538 $ 85,937,544

Maximum Pledged Additional
Annual Debt Revenue Bonds
Service Coverage Test
$ 7,452,100 1.05 x 1.05 x
$ 13,922,886 6.17 x 8.26 x




CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF SELF-INSURANCE FUND
TEN YEAR CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION (in thousands)

WORKERS COMPENSATION
For the Year Ended September 30
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
Revenue $ 17,544 § 20,287 $ 19,262 § 15,584 § 17,257
Interest Revenue 3,562 4,380 4,684 2,802 3,491
Total Revenue $ 21,106 § 24,667 % 23,946 § 18,386 § 20,748
Unallocated Expenses $ 3232 § 1,725  § 3,997 §$ 3207 % 3413
Estimated Incurred Claims
and Expense, End of Policy Year $ 13,290 §$ 11,520 §$ 10630 § 10,200 § 9,574
Paid (Cumulative) as of:
End of Policy Year S 1,350 § 1,529 § 1,414 § 1,434 % 1,795
One Year Later 2,825 2,900 2,448 2,603 3,199
Two Years Later 3,775 4,247 2,843 3,251 4,074
Three Years Later 4,040 4,760 3,461 3,549 4,515
Four Years Later 4,388 5,326 3,832 4,037 4,988
Five Years Later 4,772 5,528 4,206 4,295 5,246
Six Years Later 5,409 5,848 4,479 4,642
Seven Years Later 5,833 6,375 4,844
Eight Years Later 6,166 6,657
Nine Years Later 6,549
Reestimated incurred
Claims and Expense:
End of Policy Year $ 13,290 § 11,520 § 10,630 § 10,200 $ 9,574
One Year Later 11,335 10,400 9,330 7,607 9,153
Two Years Later 10,200 10,335 7,043 7,102 8,123
Three Years Later 8,955 8,763 6,499 6,547 7,743
Four Years Later 7,748 9,034 6,245 6,571 7,673
Five Years Later 8,503 7,976 6,341 6,712 7,358
Six Years Later 8,873 7,729 6,336 6,949
Seven Years Later 8,609 8,152 6,757
Eight Years Later 8,346 7,635
Nine Years Later 9,015
Increase (Decrease) in
Estimated Incurred Claims and
Expense from End of Policy Year 3 (4,275) § (3,885) § (3,873) § (3,251) $ (2,216)
Available Funding 3 21,106 % 24,667 $ 23946 § 18,386 $ 20,748
Current Reestimated Incurred
Claims and Expense (9,015) (7,635) (6,757) (6,949) (7,358)
Excess (Deficit) Funding $ 12,091 % 17,032  § 17,189 § 11,437 § 13,390
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For the Year Ended September 30

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
$ 15,561  $ 17264 8 14714 $ 17329  $ 21,160
2,725 2,854 1,349 1,437 1,782
$ 18,286 $ 20,118 § 16,063 $ 18,766 S 22,042
$ 3616 4079 $ 4,094 $ 4411 4,389
$ 10,882 $ 11,180  §$ 11,725 §$ 10,766 $ 12,824
$ 2,122 $ 2,756 § 2,938 $ 2335 § 3,186
4,455 5,568 5,644 3,945
5,649 7,028 7,122
6,697 8,039
7,666
$ 10,882 §$ 11,180 8 11,725 § 10,766  $ 12,824
10,685 11,668 13,459 9,701
11,075 12,356 13,162
11,707 11,988
11,824
$ 942§ 808 § 1437 S (1,065) $ 0
$ 18286  $ 20,118 16,063 $ 18,766 $ 22,942
(11,824) (11,988) (13,162) (9,701) (12,824)
$ 6462 S 8,130 $ 2,901 $ 9,065 $ 10,118

Total Excess (Deficit) Funding of Reestimated
Incurred Claims - 10 Years Shown. $ 107,816

continued
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF SELF-INSURANCE FUND

TEN YEAR CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION (in thousands)

GENERAL LIABILITY

Revenue
Interest Revenue
Total Revenue

Unallocated Expenses

Estimated Incurred Claims
and Expense, End of Policy Year

Paid (Cumulative) as of:
End of Policy Year
One Year Later
Two Years Later
Three Years Later
Four Years Later
Five Years Later
Six Years Later
Seven Years Later
Eight Years Later
Nine Years Later

Reestimated incurred

Claims and Expense:

End of Policy Year

One Year Later

Two Years Later

Three Years Later

Four Years Later

Five Years Later

Six Years Later

Seven Years Later

Eight Years Later

Nine Years Later

Increase (Decrease) in

Estimated Incurred Claims and
Expense from End of Policy Year

Available Funding

Current Reestimated Incurred
Claims and Expense

Excess (Deficit) Funding

$

$

$

$

For the Year Ended September 30

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
6,295 $ 6,783  $ 6,664 3 6,448 $ 6,907
906 1,030 1,228 874 1,122
7201 $ 7813 $ 7802 S 7322 § 8,029
882 $ 965 § 860 $ 1220 § 1,169
4205 $ 3379 $ 3,504 $ 3,117 § 3,079
683 % 581 § 665 % 625 $ 683
1,065 1,011 980 868 928
1,754 1,950 1,134 1,662 1,613
2,031 1,987 2,005 2,372 2,152
1,940 2,305 2,266 2,489 2,561
1,993 2,391 2,384 2,576 2,308
2,103 2,449 2,642 2,620
2,104 2,476 2,726
2,104 2,530
2,114
4205 % 3379 § 3,504 $ 3,117 $ 3,079
3,688 2,664 2,968 2,751 2,690
2,967 2,699 2,713 3,094 2,768
2,869 2,640 2,770 2,945 3,146
2,341 2,514 2,780 2,881 3,263
2,330 2,531 2,735 2,816 3,058
2,316 2,501 2,811 2,865
2,312 2,509 2,733
2,115 2,541
2,114
(2,001) $ (838) $ (771) $ (252) $ (21)
7,201 S 7,813 § 7,892 $ 7322 $ 8,029
(2,114) (2,541) (2,733) (2,865) (3,058)
5087 § 5272 % 5159 $ 4457 $ 4,971
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For the Year Ended September 30

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
$ 7,413 3 7,600 $ 7,320 $ 8,713 8,535
933 1,025 547 592 601
$ 8,346 $ 8,625 $ 7,867 $ 9,305 9,136
5 1,567 $ 1,549 $ 1,461 $ 1,422 1,562
b3 4,096 $ 3,619 $ 2,989 $ 3,587 5,186
$ 968 § 984 § 720§ 737 1,166
1,359 1,249 956 1,318
1,943 1,672 1,808
2,394 2,306
3,145
3 4,096 § 3619 § 2,985 § 3,587 5,186
3,337 3,055 2,826 3,568
3,414 2,912 3,128
3,466 3,100
3,388
$ (709) § (519) § 139 $ (19) 0
b 8,346 $ 8,625 3 7,867 $ 9,305 9,136
(3,388) (3,100 (3,128) (3,568) (5,186)
5 4,958 $ 5,525 3 4,739 $ 5,737 3,950
Total Excess (Deficit) Funding of Reestimated
Incurred Claims - 10 Years Shown.

49,855

continued
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The Statistical Section presents comparative data for the past ten
years, and other pertinent information involving taxes, revenues,
expenditures, demographic data and other miscellaneous statistics.

The statistical data is presented to give report users a better historical
perspective and assist in assessing current financial status and trends
of the governmental unit. Economic data is presented to allow a
broader understanding of the economic and social environment in
which City government operates.



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (in thousands)

2005 % 2004 % 2003 % 2002 %

SOURCE
T $ 649,091 5240 $6026068 52.41 $581,289 53.85 $558090 5432
Licenses and Permits......c.ovvevevenreeerivsrvnnnenes 9,045 0.73 8,524 0.74 8,473 0.78 10,238 1.00
Intergovernmental..........cceeeiininenneiinnin. 302,213 24.40 297,639 25.89 264,146 24.47 327,358 31.87
Charges for Services.......covvviirsrerrsecnrecrenes 121,036 9.77 85,789 7.46 84,424 7.82 74,309 7.23
Fines and Forfeitures.......ccococvvvenneiiininnnne 6,192 0.50 10,771 0.94 11,218 1.04 10,946 1.07
Payment in Lieu of Taxes.......cccoccevviiiinncne 85,938 6.94 83,188 7.24 81,376 7.54 2,984 0.29
INEETESt.. vt 21,676 1.75 34,489 3.00 20,404 1.89 23,118 2.25
OMher..ciecin s 43,609 3.52 26,771 2.33 28,109 2.60 20,275 1.97

Total General Governmental Revenue....... $1,238,800 100.00 $1,149,777 100.00 §$1,079,439 100.00 §$ 1,027,318 100.00

Note: This schedule includes Revenues of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds,
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2001 % 2000 % 1999 % 1998 Yo 1997 % 1996 %
$507,253 58.63 $ 464,004 5§7.31 $425912 58.28 §406,372 57.60 $378665 56.87 § 370,590 59.11
14,808 1.71 13,970 1.73 13,194 1.81 13,028 1.85 12,499 1.88 12,128 1.93
210,053 2428 202,150 24.97 182,543 24.98 166,477 23.60 149,095 22.39 148,789 23.74
68,394 7.91 62,302 7.70 55,275 7.56 57,652 8.17 55,209 8.29 51,192 8.17
10,415 1.20 9,938 1.22 8,948 1.21 9,914 1.40 7,485 1.12 8,521 1.04
3,344 0.39 3,583 0.44 3,799 0.62 3,904 0.55 4,027 0.60 4,275 0.68
29,496 3N 29,864 3.69 22,373 3.06 22,055 3.13 18,900 2.84 19,217 3.07
21,361 2.47 23,790 2.94 18,820 2.58 26,068 3.70 38,992 6.01 14,161 2.26
$865,122 100.00 $809.601 100.00 $730,864 100.00 $705470 100.00 $665872 100.00 $ 626,874 100.00

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report,
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (in thousands)

2005 % 2004 % 2003 % 2002 %

FUNCTIONAL AREA
General Government.........cccecereveeerrcennneeineniens $ 139,092 10.36 § 117,428 875 $ 109,494 741 % 102,169 8.81
Human Services........cooeeeveeerneiieiniccieinnensens 107,104 7.74 100,212 7.47 99,206 6.72 94,375 8.14
Public Safety.......ccoccevviveremvernieneneresenerienens 412,054 29.77 358,964 26.75 341,473 23.12 327,634 28.27
Culture and Recreation..........ccoveevecienvenieencnnenns 78,066 5.64 78,392 5.84 59,538 4.03 49,592 428
Transportation..........cooceeerreerreseerescrieresseenareas 141,195 10.20 130,473 9.72 118,073 8.00 128,928  11.12
Economic Environment..........cooeoervereveniecsennnn, 78,323 5.66 68,675 5.12 74,242 5.03 78,241 6.75
Physical ENVIrONmMent........coveveeriineesioiereenenronenns 21,215 1.53 19,271 1.44 18,435 1.25 25,608 221
DEDt SErvice...ovcniveeiveiieieinierersssrsse s ierereveanns 148,167 10.70 130,631 9.73 98,590 6.68 93,050 8.03
Capital Outlay.......cccoceveennernnrecnienniriisanin, 259,078 18.72 337,896 25.18 557,727 37.77 259,486 22.39

Total General Governmental Expenditures... $ 1,384,294 100.00 $ 1,341,942 100.00 $1,476,778 100.00 $1,159,083 100.00

Note: This schedule includes Expenditures of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds.
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Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.

2001 % 2000 % 1999 % 1998 % 1997 % 1996 %
$ 100232 1059 92281 11.08 § 85213 11.07 $ 85213 1151 $ 75064  9.37 $ 69,054 945
90,601 957 81451 973 75358 979 71,290 963 63071  7.88 59,991  8.21
311,732 3293 208,131 3561 276361 3588 267,017 3604 257,565 3217 243139  33.26
44018 465 40,725 487 38350 498 36202 489 36413 455 33854 463
110,765 1170 119,741 1431 110,019 1429 106854 1443 106943 1338 103,606  14.17
57411 606 43206 517 44,555 579 40,663 549 43215 540 39,899 546
21,346 225 15352  1.83 13891 180 11,812 160 15220 190 15937  2.18
73670  7.78 70451 842 64443 837 59,147  7.99 104298  13.03 58145  7.95
136,910 _14.46 _ 75548 _ 9.03 _ 61826 _ 803 _ 62,330 _ 842 _ 98830 _ 12.34 _ 107,370 _ 14.69
$946,685  100.00 _$836,976 100.00 $770,016 100.00 $740528 _100.00 $800619 10000 $730,995 _100.00

- 239 -



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
TAX REVENUE BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2005 2004 2003 2002
Ad Valorem Taxes (1)
General Services DISITICL ..vvviiiiiverninriiassensensieieens $ 360,767,658 $ 338,758,481 $ 322,926,509 $ 310,460,077
Urban Services District.......ooueeeieieevee v ceeeeenrees e - - - -
Tax Increment DISIICt. ......covereveeercerieiinierieneesecrsiaennas 4,687,775 5,112,267 4,460,821 2,090,966
Total Ad Valorem Taxes.....coveeveieeeveeeereiressesnensns 365,455,433 343,870,748 327,387,330 312,551,043
Utility Service Taxes
Fuel Oil COmMPanies......ovuiiiniieesreeseeeessisssieseeanes 112,633 107,075 162,639 164,199
CHLY WALBT.ccevvereeircrree it sbe e b 6,384,105 6,161,879 5,659,797 5,393,416
LT o) S € T ST 675,423 654,224 677,108 593,671
Telecommunications. 43,346,265 41,054,086 41,540,886 42,857,871
IEA..... 46,851,288 45,740,236 45,981,688 42,857,680
OhETS et bbb 2,093,148 1,911,435 1,954,161 2,111,122
Total Utility Service Taxes......cocovevevevireeerieveivnnnnns 99,462,862 95,628,935 95,976,279 93,977,959
Tourist Development TaX.. i 10,215,442 8,308,635 7,790,503 7,559,593
Convention Development TaX.........covevieerveveerennenecvinenens 4,799,870 3,846,824 3,610,819 3,524,332
Local Option Gas Tax (2).eeveei e eeseseseeeeenns 28,103,441 29,169,856 28,174,024 27,681,053
Local Option Sales Tax - Transportation (3).....c.ccoeveennens, 71,717,115 61,649,656 60,379,055 57,471,472
Local Option Sales Tax - Infrastructure (4)......coevveevirnane. 69,336,706 60,132,294 57,970,655 55,324,038
Total Tax REVENUE......ocveeeeervirereereee e enens $ 649,090,869 $ 602,606,948 $ 581,288,665 $ 558,089,490

)]
@)
3)

1G]

Property taxes include interest and penalties on delinquent taxes.
A six cent local option gas tax was instituted in 1987 to fund capital road construction projects throughout Duval County.

A one-half cent local option sales tax was passed by Jacksonville voters in 1989 to replace bridge tolls. All revenue received
from this tax is remitted directly to the Jacksonville Transportation Authority (a component unit of the primary government)

to fund Duval County transportation operations,

A one-half cent sales tax was passed by Jacksonville voters in September, 2000 to fund the Better Jacksonville Plan,

Source: Tax Collector's Office
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2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
$ 293,080,537 $ 278,501,775 $ 266,765,762 $ 255,789,300 $ 231,645,388 $ 225,044,088
- - 24,024 1,887,009 1,735,471 1,794,848
6,251,919 4,263,409 5,441,737 3,996,224 4,569,270 4,355,758
299,332,456 282,765,184 272,231,523 261,672,533 237,950,129 231,194,694
287,443 245,233 232,255 237,661 212,660 366,168
4,890,098 4,878,361 4,633,183 4,408,512 4,136,209 3,833,754
904,315 1,068,503 1,120,391 1,135,414 1,091,841 1,390,202
26,267,409 23,894,566 23,013,614 19,370,288 17,387,934 16,689,932
39,815,943 44,486,956 36,265,365 36,068,367 37,217,093 39,975,747
3,087,032 2,534,348 2,764,122 3,217,673 3,183,882 3,329,476
75,252,240 77,107,967 68,018,930 64,437,915 63,229,619 65,685,279
7,477,106 6,729,490 6,570,683 6,189,018 5,478,886 4,853,878
3,474,960 3,134,146 3,058,553 2,883,981 2,542,967 2,253,466
25,723,304 27,408,778 24,055,882 22,948,341 24,228,183 22,508,967
57,496,406 66,858,197 51,976,595 48,240,640 45,235,670 44,193,979
38,496,315 - - -
$ 507,252,787 §$ 464,003,762 $ 425,912,166 $ 406,372,428 $ 378,665,454 $ 370,590,263

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Percent
Current Current Tax of Levy
Year Tax Levy (1) Collections Collected
1996 General Fund - General Services District $ 229,855,681 $221,114,198 96.2%
General Fund - Urban Services District 1,969,347 1,870,103 95.0%
Totals $ 231,825,028 $ 222,984,301 96.2%
1997 General Fund - General Services District $ 244,346,056 $ 234,578,690 96.0%
General Fund - Urban Services District 2,022,502 1,893,107 93.6%
Totals $ 246,368,558 $ 236,471,797 96.0%
1998 General Fund - General Services District $ 257,656,758 $ 244,965,131 95.1%
General Fund - Urban Services District 2,075,611 1,919,421 92.5%
Totals $ 259,732,369 $ 246,884,552 95.1%
1999 General Fund - General Services District $ 275,432,033 $ 261,480,331 94.9%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 275,432,033 $ 261,480,331 94.9%
2000 General Fund - General Services District $ 287,849,421 $ 274,189,507 95.3%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 287,849,421 $ 274,189,507 95.3%
2001 General Fund - General Services District $ 303,152,394 (3) $ 290,003,150 95.7%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 303,152,394 $ 290,003,150 95.7%
2002 General Fund - General Services District $ 317,428,233 $ 302,003,381 95.1%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 317,428,233 $ 302,003,381 95.1%
2003 General Fund - General Services District $ 336,340,414 $ 317,513,090 94.4%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 336,340,414 $ 317,613,090 94.4%
2004 General Fund - General Services District $ 348,345,910 $ 333,725,304 95.8%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 348,345,910 $ 333,725,304 95.8%
2005 General Fund - General Services District $ 367,688,578 $ 353,334,061 96.1%
General Fund - Urban Services District (2) - - 0.0%
Totals $ 367,688,678 $ 353,334,061

()

@)
3)

December - 3%
January - 2%
February - 1%

Figures have been updated to reflect 2003 tax roll.

Source: Tax Collector's Office

Beginning in 1999, the amounts for USD represent delinquent collections.

Tax levies are final certified amounts net of discounts allowed. The discount schedule is as follows:
For taxes paid in: November - 4%
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Delinquent
Tax

Collections

$ 8,129,025
94,724
3 8,223,749

$ 7,839,598
97,423
$ 7,937,021

$ 8,950,810
97,861
$ 9,048,671

$ 10,916,310
108,071
$ 11,024,381

$ 8,866,740
12,057

$ 8,878,797

$ 10,588,622
6,418
$ 10,595,040

$ 11,858,005
6,409

$ 11,864,414

$ 11,008,851
5,844
$ 11,014,695

$ 11,071,028
3,857
$ 11,074,885

$ 12,353,630

$ 1,583

$ 12,355,213

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.

@)

Total

Collections Outstanding
Total Tax as Percent of Delinquent
Collections Current Levy Taxes

$ 229,243,224 99.7% $ 8,741,482
1,964,827 99.8% 99,244
$ 231,208,051 99.7% $ 8,840,726
$ 242,418,109 99.2% $ 9,767,546
1,990,530 98.4% 129,395
$ 244,408,639 99.2% $ 9,896,941
$ 253,915,941 98.5% $ 12,691,627
2,017,282 97.2% 156,191
$ 255,933,223 98.5% $ 12,847,818
$ 272,398,641 98.9% $ 13,951,702
108,071 0.0% -
$ 272,504,712 98.9% $ 13,951,702
$ 283,056,247 98.3% $ 13,659,914
12,057 0.0% -
$ 283,068,304 98.3% $ 13,659,914
$ 300,591,772 99.2% $ 13,149,244
6,418 0.0% -
$ 300,598,190 99.2% $ 13,149,244
$ 313,861,386 98.9% $ 15,424,852
6,409 0.0% -
$ 313,867,795 98.9% $ 15,424,852
$ 328,521,942 97.7% $ 18,827,323
5,844 0.0% -
$ 328,527,786 97.7% $ 18,827,323
$ 344,796,332 98.0% $ 14,620,606
3,857 0.0% -
$ 344,800,189 99.0% $ 14,620,606
$ 365,687,691 99.5% $ 16,619,910
$ 1,583 0.0% -
$ 365,689,273 $ 16,619,910

Qutstanding
Delinquent

Taxes as Percent
of Current Levy

3.8 %
50 %
3.8 %

4.0 %
6.4 %
4.0 %

4.9 %
7.5 %
4.9 %

5.1 %
0.0 %
5.1 %

4.7 %
0.0 %
4.7 %

4.3 %
0.0 %
4.3 %

4.9 %
0.0 %
4.9 %

5.6 %
0.0 %
5.6 %

4.2 %
0.0 %
4.2 %

4.5 %
0.0 %
4.5 %
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUES OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (in thousands)

Assessed Taxable Values

Centrally Total Estimated Ratio of
Real Personal Assessed Taxable Actual Assessed to

Year Property (1) Property (2) Property (3) Property Values (4) Actual Values

1996 18,573,751 4,380,502 85,752 23,040,005 35,902,957 64.17%

1997 19,864,756 4,581,700 121,604 24,568,060 37,869,560 64.88%

1998 21,670,377 4,772,427 110,301 26,553,105 40,153,551 64.62%

1999 23,006,705 4,971,561 114,981 28,093,247 43,049,107 65.26%

2000 25,111,711 5,141,892 139,229 30,392,832 45,911,503 66.20%

2001 27,377,261 5,006,119 130,200 32,513,580 49,301,249 65.95%

2002 29,711,042 5,219,215 136,971 35,067,228 52,707,516 66.53%

2003 32,531,312 4,925,078 187,089 37,643,489 57,041,509 65.99%

2004 35,752,946 4,690,592 207,378 40,650,916 61,676,160 65.91%

2005 40,684,503 4,790,934 148,554 45,623,991 68,661,525 66.45%

(M Prior to fiscal year 1981, State Homestead Exemption Laws exempted from taxation the first $5,000 of assessed vi
qualified homeowners. For 1981, the homestead exemption was increased to $13,000; for 1982, it was increased t
$20,000; and for 1983 and subsequent years, it was increased to $25,000.

2) Personal property values are alsa net of certain allowable exemptions - primarily for inventories (which have not t
assessed since 1982) and government property.

(3) Centrally assessed property is primarily railroad property and private car line property, which must be separately a

4) Estimated actual values are the total "just" values or property subject to taxation, as defined by Section 193.011 of

Florida Statutes,

Source: Property Appraiser's Office

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Per $1,000 of Assessed Value)

City of Jacksonville Other Taxing Authorities
Water Combined
District Debt Management FIND Millage
Year (Note 1) Operations Service Total Schools District (Note 3) Total
1996 GSD(2) 11.1196 0.0962 11.2158 10.3070 0.4820 0.0400 22.0448
USD 11.6000 0.1877 11.7877 10.3070 0.4820 0.0400 22.6167
1997 GSD(2) 11.0866 0.0292 11.1158 10.0670 0.4820 0.0380 21.7028
Uush 11.6417 0.0460 11.6877 10.0670 0.4820 0.0380 22.2747
1998 GSD(2) 10.9883 0.0275 11.0158 9.8750 0.4820 0.0500 21.4228
UsSh 11.5602 0.0275 11.6877 9.8750 0.4820 0.0500 21,9947
1999 GSD (4) 10.8901 0.0257 109158 9.8560 0.4820 0.0470 21.3008
2000 GSD (4) 10.7618 0.0243 10.7861 9.3660 0.4820 0.0440 20.6781
2001 GSD (4) 10.5498 0.0225 10.5723 9.2580 0.4720 0.0410 20.3433
2002 GSD (4) 10.3465 0.0210 10.3675 8.8720 0.4620 0.0386 19.7401
2003 GSD (4) 9.8398 0.0000 9.8398 9.0510 0.4620 0.0385 19.3913
2004 GSD (4) 9.6879 0.0000 9.6879 8.5650 0.4620 0.0385 18.7534
2005 GSD 4) 9.6500 0.0000 9.6500 8.4250 0.4620 0.0385 18.5755
(1) The GSD (General Services District) millage rate is a county-wide rate which applies to most taxpayers in the City of Jacksonville,

Due to the existence of six other taxing districts, a total of seven combined millage rates apply to taxpayers in the City of Jacksonville.
The two most prevalent millage rates are shown here.

The USD (Urban Services District 1) millage rates apply to the area of the preconsolidation City of Jacksonville. The
millage rates shown include the GSD rate,

@) Beginning in 1981, as the result of a double-taxation suit settlement, the four independent Urban Services Districts within
Duval County began paying 18.8% less than the GSD millage rate, subject to a limit of 10.0000 mils plus debt service.
Each of the four levies additional taxes for its own municipal services,

(3) Florida Inland Navigational District

(4) Beginning in 1999, the same rates apply to the consolidated City of Jacksonville.

Source: Property Appraiser's Office

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT

TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

()

(@)
(3)

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report,

Gross general obligation bonded debt represents bonds payable from ad valorem taxes only.

Assessed values are the final adjusted appraisals as reported by the Duval County Property Appraiser,

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Net General Obligation
Gross Less Bonded Debt
General Respective
Obligation Debt Ratio to
Assessed Bonded Service Assessed Per

Year Population (1} Value (2) Debt (3) Funds Amount Value Capita
1996 740,870 21,447,954,000 4,190,000 4,190,000 0.02% 5.66
1997 754,048 22,682,652,000 3,260,000 3,260,000 0.01% 4.32
1998 766,705 24,038,888,000 2,785,000 2,785,000 0.01% 3.63
1999 778,341 25,741,803,000 2,285,000 2,285,000 0.01% 2.94
2000 791,507 27,374,151,000 1,755,000 1,755,000 0.01% 2.22
2001 793,898 29,545,454,000 1,195,000 1,195,000 0.00% 1.51
2002 807,012 31,749,501,000 605,000 605,000 0.00% 0.75
2003 826,951 37,643,489,000 . - 0.00% 0.00
2004 837,037 40,650,216,000 - - 0.00% 0.00
2005 840,474 45,623,990,950 - - 0.00% 0.00

Population estimates for Duval County from the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research,
as revised after the 2000 census analysis. General obligation bonded debt applies to all of Duval County.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

Percentage City of
Applicable to Jacksonville's
Name of Governmental Debt City of Share of
Apency Qutstanding (1) Jacksonville (2) Gross Debt
City of Jacksonville, Florida $ - 100% $
Duval County School Board 88,546,491 100% 88,546,491
$ 88,546,491

(1) The gross debt outstanding includes debt which is secured by the authority to levy taxes on real estate

(2) The applicable percentage is based on the municipality's geographical boundaries within Duval County

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
LEGAL DEBT LIMIT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

Neither the City of Jacksonville charter or code nor the Florida State Statutes limits the amount of debt the City of
Jacksonville can issue.

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL
OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Total Ratio of
General Obligation Debt General Debt Service
Governmental to General
Expenditures (1) Governmental
Year Principal Interest Total (in thousands) Expenditures
1996 2,145,000 260,424 2,405,424 730,995 0.33%
1997 930,000 178,905 1,108,905 799,495 0.14%
1998 475,000 154,144 629,144 740,528 0.08%
1999 500,000 128,550 628,550 770,016 0.08%
2000 530,000 101,613 631,513 836,976 0.08%
2001 560,000 72,900 632,900 946,685 0.07%
2002 590,000 42,713 632,713 1,100,498 0.06%
2003 605,000 13,613 618,613 1,476,778 0.04%
2004 - - - 1,341,942 0.00%
2005 - - - 1,384,294 0.00%

(1) Includes General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds.

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE - PARKING SYSTEM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Net Revenue
Available for
Year Revenue (1) Expenses (2) Debt Service
1996 122,927,000 63,086,000 59,841,000
1997 (4) 84,019,000 45,413,000 38,608,000
1998 (4) 5,508,000 2,473,000 3,035,000
1999 (4)(5) (6,071,000) 2,392,000 (8,463,000)
2000 4,373,000 2,917,000 1,456,000
2001 3,112,000 2,710,000 402,000
2002 4,085,000 2,951,000 1,134,000
2003 4,376,000 3,091,000 1,285,000
2004 4,570,000 3,187,000 1,383,000
2005 5,632,000 3,917,000 1,715,000
(1) Revenue includes interest earned and other non-operating revenue.
(2) Expenses exclude depreciation and interest expense.
3) Coverage is an expression of the number of times "Net Revenue Available for Debt Service” exceeds
"Debt Service Requirements” (P & I).
(4 Reduced amounts reflect the transfer of the Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund to JEA on June 1, 1997;

the "Debt Service Requirements” shown here are not covered by Enterprise Fund pledged revenues.

(5) Parking Garage given to Adam's Mark Hotel.
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Debt Service Requirements

Principal

8,231,974
1,665,000
1,740,000
1,830,000
1,925,000
2,115,000
3,315,000
3,745,000
4,125,000

4,310,000

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.

Interest

13,048,240
3,840,694
3,698,168
3,508,238
4,027,263
4,204,152
4,089,647
3,936,991
3,584,831

3,604,083

Totals

21,280,214

5,505,694

5,338,168

5,338,238

5,952,263

6,319,152

7,404,647

7,681,991

7,708,831

7,814,083

Coverage (3)

2.81
7.01
0.57
(1.59)
0.24
0.06
0.15
0.17
0.18

0.22
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (in thousands)

New Construction (1) Real Property (3)
Additions/ Bank

Year Residential Commercial Alterations (1) Deposits (2) Commercial Residential Nontaxable

1996 510,739 162,925 370,106 8,118,088 8,034,155,678 16,121,151,945 4,381,582,635
1997 453,670 301,780 671,128 8,683,244 8,445,725,666 17,207,002,871 5,978,050,566
1998 472,076 309,018 753,198 10,973,592 9,108,427,299 18,789,586,995 4,362,323,727
1999 594,438 376,159 479,738 10,127,170 9,688,132,022 20,147,735,943 4,357,721,556
2000 600,833 259,934 854,827 9,780,491 10,610,894,987 21,736,221,819 4,362,900,928
2001 622,959 374,950 688,407 8,882,117 11,330,305,166 24,657,180,107 4,364,901,962
2002 711,968 232,161 853,260 11,648,987 12,179,411,401 27,207,404,144 4,483,005,286
2003 902,891 451,668 616,691 14,653,021 12,774,546,196 30,971,999,836 4,814,862,197
2004 1,227,675 372,373 547,300 16,240,346 13,431,483,203 34,800,076,676 4,956,996,404
2005 1,909,429 432,979 1,311,678 20,352,368 14,406,678,855 40,299,325,141 5,212,968,040

Source (1) Building and Zoning Division

(2) Florida Bankers Association

(3) The Property Appraiser's Office

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report,
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
POPULATION
Year JACKSONVILLE DUVAL COUNTY
1910 57,699 75,163
1920 92,588 113,540
1930 129,549 155,503
1940 173,065 210,143
1950 204,517 304,029
1960 201,030 455,411
1970 504,265 (1) 528,865
1980 540,920 (1) 571,003
1990 635,230 (1) 672,971
1995 690,996 (1) 732,034
2000 747,270 (1)(2) 791,507 (2)
2001 750,513 (1)(2) 793,898 (2)
2002 762,369 (1)(2) 807,012 (2)
2003 782,064 (1)(2) 826,951 (2)
2004 792,260 (1)(2) 837,037 (2)
2005 817,210 (1)(2) 840,474 (2)

(1) After Consolidation
(2) Asof April 1

POPULATION PROJECTIONS (3)

YEAR DUVAL COUNTY STATE OF FLORIDA
2005 859,361 17,616,732
2010 910,562 18,338,200
2015 962,943 19,390,300
2020 1,013,469 20,457,100
2025 1,059,293 21,490,000
2030 1,098,897 22,436,900

(3) Five year projections estimated from 2003

POPULATION DISTRIBUTION BY AGE*

AGE DUVAL COUNTY STATE OF FLORIDA
0-04 7.25% 5.94%
5-17 18.27% 16.54%

18-34 24.50% 21.07%

35-54 29.93% 28.23%

55-64 9.32% 10.80%

85+ 10.73% 17.42%

*April 1, 2003 Estimates

Source: University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research
City of Jacksonville, Planning and Development Department
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLLORIDA

TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Percentage

Bell South/Jacksonville MSA Limited.................. Communications $ 391,409,715 0.86%
Anheuser-Busch/Metal Container Corp................ Manufacturing 294,771,519 0.65%
Flagler Development Company.........c.ccovervevervrenes Real Estate Mngmt/Development 213,906,010 0.47%
Vistakon/Johnson & Johnson Vision..........c.crveee Manufacturing 200,328,816 0.44%
Blue Cross & Blue Shield.....o..oooovviviinniviiniininnn Insurance 198,293,871 0.43%
Liberty Property Limited Partnership.................... Real Estate Mngmt/Development 184,991,932 0.41%
Cedar Bay Generating Co....eeeverevvreesroeeesvnreveenns Utilities 164,279,314 0.36%
First States INVESTOrS....covvveiveerereieeereceeeseveise e Investment/Banking 142,788,636 0.31%
Wal-Mart Properties/Stores..........ccvueerererrcinsrsennnne Retail 140,418,952 0.31%
Winn Dixie Stores/ZSF WD Jacksonville............. Retail 135,345,849 0.30%
Total Taxable Assessed Value of 10 Largest Taxpayers 2,066,534,614 4.53%
Total Taxable Assessed Value of Other Taxpayers 43,570,769,386 95.47%
Total Taxable Assessed Value of All Taxpayers $ 45,637.,304,000 100.00%

Source: Property Appraiser's Office

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
MISCELLANEQUS STATISTICAL DATA

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
First Charter February 11, 1832
Consolidation October 1, 1968
Form of Government Mayor and City Council
Area of City 840.1 square miles
Miles of Streets: 3,480.1
Streets - Paved 3,485.0
Streets - Unpaved 4.1
State Maintained Primary 371.0
Interstate 95.1
Wastewater System:
Number of Treatment Plants 13
Total Miles of Sewer Lines 3,180
Fire Protection:
Stations 51
Marine Based Stations 2
Employees -Full-time 1289
Employees - Volunteers 19
Fire Rescue:
Rescue units in Fire Stations 30
Police Protection:
Employees - Appointed 89
Employees - Civilian 440
Employees - Corrections 626
Employees - Police 1,545
Vehicular Patrol Units - Patrol Cars 1,418
Motorcycles 16
Other Vehicles 222
Unmarked 255
Horse Patrol 6
Electric Utility Customers 397,149
Water Utility Customers 286,407
Sewer Utility Customers 213,563
Recreation:
Acreage of parks and open spaces 10,352
Basketball courts 151
Boat ramps 29
Community Centers 53
Softball and baseball diamonds 277
Swimming pools 35
Tennis Courts 158
Soccer Fields 76

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Major Governmental Funds General Fund
General Services District 011
Mosquito Control State I 012
Urban Service District 014
Property Appraiser 015
Clerk of the Court 016
Tax Collector 017
Debt Service Funds
Special Bonded Debt Obligations Funds
1992 ETR Refunding S/F 221
1993 Excise Tax Revenue Bonds S/F 222
1993A ETR Refunding S/F 223
ETR Refunding 1984C New Money S/F 224
Sales Tax Ref & Imp Rev Bonds, Series 2002 225
1988A ETR Refunding S/F 226
ETRRIG, Series 2003B & 2003C 227
1991 ETR Refunding S/F 228
2003A ETR S/F 229
Criminal Justice Bond S/F 22A
1992 Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue 22D
1995A ETR Refunding S/F 22F
1994 Municipal Stadium Capital Improvement Bonds S/F 22F
1995 Sales Tax Bonds (RCR) S/F 22G
1996 Sales Tax (RCR) S/F 221
1995 Municipal Stadium Capital Improvement Bonds S/F 22]
1995A Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding S/F 22K
1996B ETR Bonds S/F 22L
1996C ETR Bonds S/F 22M
1995 Sunshine State S/F 22N
2002A, B & C Capital Improvement & Refunding
Revenue Bonds S/F 220
1997 Municipal Stadium Capital Improvement Bonds S/F 22P
1997 Capital Project Revenue Bonds S/F 22R
1998 Alltel Stadium S/F 228
1999A ETR Refunding S/F 22T
2001 Sales Tax Refunding 22U
2001A ETR Refunding S/TF 22V
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B S/F 22W
ETR Revenue Refunding & Improvement Bonds,
Series 2002A S/F 22X
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding &
Improvement Bonds, 2002 S/F 22Y
ETR Bonds Series 2002B (Shands Jacksonville Loan) 227
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Major Governmental Funds (continued) Debt Service Funds(continued)

Special Bonded Debt Obligations Funds(continued)
Sunshine State S/F 231
Capital Improvement 2002A Reserve Account 271

Special Bonded Debt - Better Jax Obligations Fund
BJP Transportation Series 2001 241
BIP Infrastructure Series 2001 242
BJP Transportation Series 2001 Reserve 243
BJP Infrastructure Series 2001 Reserve 244
BJP Infrastructure Swap 245

Capital Projects Funds

Bond Projects Fund
1983 Capital Improvement Revenue Construction 31
1985A Excise Tax Revenue Bond Construction 312
1986A ETR Excise Taxes Evenue Bonds 313
1988A ETR Refunding Construction 314
1988B ETR Bond Construction 315
1991 ETR Refunding Construction 316
1992 ETR Refunding Construction, 1986A 317
1992 ETR Refunding Construction, 1988B 318
1993 ETR Bond Construction 319
1993A ETR Bond Construction 31A
Streets and Drainage Bond Construction 31B
1994 Alltel Stadium Bond Construction 31C
1996B ETR Bonds Construction Fund 31D
1996C ETR Bond Construction Fund 31E
1988 Capital Improvement Revenue Construction 31F
Criminal Justice 1987A Construction 31G
1995A ETR Refunding Construction 31H
1995 Alltel Stadium Bond Construction 311
1995 Sunshine State Construction 31
1997 Alltel Stadium Bond Construction Fund 31K
Capital Project Revenue Bond Construction 31L
1999 Alltel Stadium Construction 31IM
2001A ETR Refunding Bonds 3IN
Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B 310
2002 Guaranteed Entitlement Construction Fund 31p
2003B ETRRIB Series Bond 31Q
1999A ETR Bond Construction 31R
ETR Refunding & Improvement Bonds, Series 2002A 318
Series 2002A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 31T
Series 2002B & C Capital Improvement & Refunding

Revenue Bonds 31U
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Major Governmental Funds (continued) Capital Projects Funds (continued)
Bond Projects Fund{continued)
2002 Local Government Sales Tax Ref and Imp Bds 31V
2002B Excise Taxes Revenue Bonds 31w
ETRRB Series 2003C 361
ETR Bond Loan Fund 362
ETR 2004 363
General Projects Fund
River City Renaissance Pay-As-You-Go 321
General Capital Projects 322
First Municipal Loan Construction 323
Jacksonville Environmental Land Acquisition 324
St Andrews Church Renovation 325
Recreation Lands and Park Acquistion 1D3
Better Jacksonville Plan Construction Project Fund
City/JTA Transportation Projects Pay-As-You-Go 351
City/JTA Transportation Projects Bonds 352
Better Jax Projects Pay-As-You-Go 353
Better Jax Projects Bonds 354
BJP Accounting for GASB 34 356
Major Enterprise Funds Public Parking System Fund
Public Parking System 411
Parking Garage Revenue 412
Parking & ETR S/F RSV 413
1986 Parking & ETR Construction 414
1987 Parking & ETR Refunding S/F 415
Solid Waste Disposal Fund
Solid Waste Disposal 441
Contamination Assessments 442
Landfill Closure 443
Solid Waste Grants 444
Solid Waste Facilities Mitigation 445
Solid Waste Class III Mitigation 446
1991A Excise Tax Bonds S/F 447
1991B Excise Tax Bonds S/F 448
1991A Construction 449
1991B Construction 44A
1996A ETR Refunding S/F 44B
1999B ETR Construction 44C
1999B ETR Refunding S/F 44D
Downtown Garbage Can Trust Fund 44F
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Special Revenue Funds
Concurrency Management
Concurrency Management System 112
Concurrency Management Traffic Data 113
Fair Share Sector Areas Transportation Improvement 114
Gate Parkway Extension 115
Fair Share Specific Projects 116
Air Pollution Control and Monitoring Fund
Air Pollution Tag Fee 121
Air Pollution EPA 122
Air Monitoring 123
Ambient Air Monitoring 124
Title V 125
Air Monitoring - Grants 126
Air Pollution EPA 127
Ambient Air Monitoring 128
Sports, Convention and Tourism Development Fund
Alltel Stadium Revenue 131
Tourist Development Council 132
Convention Development 133
Special Events 134
Neighborhood Services Community Activities 135
Tourist Development Special Revenue 136
Sports Complex Trust Fund 137
Transportation Fund
Streets & Highways 5-Year Road Program 141
Local Option 1/2 Cent Transportation 142
Local Option Gas Tax 143
General Government Fund (Budgeted)
Tax Collector / JEA Modernization 151
Local Government Criminal Justice 152
Construction Trades Qualifying Board 153
Hazardous Waste Program 154
Gas Storage Tank Inspections and Cleanup 155
Duval County Drug Abuse Program 156
Alcoholic Rehabilitation Trust 157
Court Facilities/Civil Trust 158
Building Inspection 159
Environmental Protection 15A
Duval County Law Library 15B
Family Mediation/County Mediation 15C
Animal Care and Control 15D
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds (continued) Special Revenue Funds (continued)
General Government Fund (Budgeted) (continued)
Victim Assistance Services 15E
Tree Protection & Related Expense 15K
Veterinary Services 15G
Environmental Protection 15H
Tax Collector / JEA Modernization 151
Court Capital Improvement 157
County Mediation 15K
Duval County Teen Court Programs 15L
Gas Storage Tank Inspections and Cleanup I5M
Tree Mitigation and Related Expense 15N
Mayor's Commission on Status of Women 15P
Court Innovations 15Q
Legal Aide ISR
Clerk-Technology Recording Fees 155
Court Cost, Courthouse Trust Fund 15T
Recording Fees Technology 15U
Public Safety Fund 161
Emergency 9-1-1
911 Emergency User Fee 171
911 Capital Equipment Replacement 172
E911 Emergency Wireless User Fees 173
E911 Wireless Capital Equipment Replacement 174
Tax Increment Districts Fund
USDI1 C Northeast Tax Increment 181
USD1 A Southside Tax Increment 182
USD1 B Northwest Tax Increment 183
JIA Area Redevelopment Trust 185
Jacksonville Children's Commission
Jacksonville Children's Commission 191
Jacksonville Children's Commission Grants 192
Jacksonville Children's Commission Projects 193
Community Development Block Grant Fund
Community Development 1Al
Job Training Partnership Act Grant Fund
JTPA Title I ABC & 111 1C1
Maintenance, Parks and Recreation Fund
Huguenot Park 1D1
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds (continued) Special Revenue Funds (continued)

Maintenance, Parks and Recreation Fund(continued)
Kathryn A. Hanna Park Improvement 1D2
Metropolitan Park Maintenance 1D4
Recreation Maintenance and Improvements 1D35
Parks and Recreation Facilities Trust 1D6
Woodstock Park Development Trust 1D7
FL Boating Improvement Program 1D8
Sisters Creek Park Maintenance and Improvements 1D9
Cecil Field Commerce Center 1DA
103rd Street Go Kart Track Trust 1DB
Cecil Gym Capital Improvement Trust 1IDC
Cecil Equestrian Center Capital Improvement Trust 1DD

Metropolitan Planning Organization Fund 1E1

Other Federal, State and Local Grants Fund
Miscellaneous Federal Projects 1F1
Prepaid Grants 1F2
Beach Erosion - State 1F3
Beach Erosion - Local 1F4
Library Grants (Council Appropriated) 1F5
Community Service Grants 1F6
Sheriff's Office Grants 1F7
Library Grants (Self-Appropriated) 1F8
Fire and Rescue Grants 1F9
Parks, Recreation and Enterntainment Grants 1IFA
Regulatory and Environmental Grants IFB
Supervisor of Election Grants 1FC

Better Jacksonville Plan Trust Fund 111

Jacksonville Housing Commission
Housing Services IN1
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 1N4
Home Investment Program IN5
Emergency Shelter Grant IN6
Rehabilitation Loan Program IN8
Hope Program IN9
Housing UDAG INA
Rental Rehabilitation INB

State Housing Initiative Partnership IN7

General Government Fund (Non-Budgeted)
Animal Care and Control Programs 1H2
Legal Aid Program 1H3
Senior Services 1H4
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds (continued) Special Revenue Funds (continued)
General Government Fund (Non-Budgeted) (continued)
Fire/Rescue Production Revolving Fund 1H6
Parks & Recreational Activities 1H7
Handicap Parking Fines 1H8
City Wellness and Fitness Fund 1H9
Driver Education Safety Trust Fund 1HA
Police Athletic League (PAL) 1HB
Choose Life Trust Fund 11
Derelict Vessel Removal Fund 1K1
Special Assessment Fund 1L1
Mayor's Hispanic Advisory Board Trust Fund 1M1
Pickettville Rd Dump Site 641
Cemetery Perpetual Care and Maintenance 642
City Council Parks Acquisition, Development
and Maintenance 643

Treaty Oak Park Trust 644
Jacksonville Veterans Memorial Wall Trust 645
Child Services Trust 646
City Access Cable Enhancement Trust 647
Mimi & Lee Adams Trust 648
Board of Library Trustees Trust 649
Sheriff's Trusts (Carryforward/Council-appropriated) 64A
Sheriff’s Trusts (Lapse/Self-appropriated) 641
Sheriff's Trusts {Carryforward/Self-appropriated) 64C
Sherift’s Trusts (Lapse/Council-appropriated) 64D
Federal Forfeitures Trust 64E
General Trust & Agency (Carryforward/Council-app) 64F
General Trust & Agency (Carryforward/Self-app) 64G
Gereral Trust & Agency (Lapse/Council-app) 64H
General Trust & Agency (Lapse/Self-appropriated) 641
Flexible Spending Plan 64]
Lavilla Cultural and Heritage District Trust 64L.
Youth Travel Trust (Jacksonville Children's Comm.,) 64M
Artin Public Places Trust Fund 64N
Balis Estate Trust Fund 64P
Sheriff's Trusts (Carryforward/Self-appropriated) 64Q
Golf Club of Jacksonville Trust Fund 64R
Sheriff's Trusts (Carryforward/Self-appropriated) 645
Unclaimed Checks 662
Tax Deed Sale - Surplus 663
Outstanding Checks - Treasury 664
Duplicate Checks- Treasury 666
Unclaimed Refunds 60Y
Execution Funds 5 Year 667
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA
FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Nonmajor Governmental Funds (continued)
Court Systems Use Only
Public Records Modernization 1H1
CSE Trust Fund 1P2
Administration 811
Systems Management 812
Jury and Witness 813
Circuit Courts - Criminal 821
Circuit Courts - Civil 822
Circuit Courts - Family 823
Circuit Courts - Juvenile 824
Circuit Courts - Probate 825
County Court - Criminal 831
County Court - Civil 832
County Court - Traffic 833
Debt Service Funds
General Bonded Debt Obligations Fund 211
Other Non-Bonded Debt Obligations Fund
River City Renaissance Bond S/F 232
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Vistakon 233
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Coach Distribution 234
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Southside Harbor 235
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Hilton Hotel 236
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Southside Harbor 235
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Hilton Hotel 236
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Sally Beauty 237
HUD 108 Loan S/F - LaVilla 238
HUD 108 Loan S/F - HTV Associates 239
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Jax Landing 23A
HUD 108 Loan S/F - American Body Armor 23B
HUD 108 Loan S/F - Hampton Inn 23C
Capital Projects Funds
Grant Capital Improvements Projects Fund 331
River City Renaissance Bond Construction Project Fund
River City Renaissance Bond Construction 341
2001 Sales Tax Refunding 342
Permanent Fund
Cemetary Maintenance Trust 652
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CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds Sports Complex, Convention Center and Auditorium Fund
Sports Complex 421
Convention Center and Auditorium 422
SMG-Jacksonville 423
Alltel Stadium 424
Equesterian Center 425
Motor Vehicle Inspection Fund 431
Mayport Ferry 451
Internal Service Funds Fleet Management Fund
Motor Pool 511
Motor Pool - Vehicle Replacement 512
Copy Center Fund
Copy Center 521
Storeroom/Printing 522
Information Technologies Fund
Information Technologies 531
Information Technologies (Lapse/Self-appropriating) 532
Communications 533
Communications - Radio Replacement 534
Office of General Counsel 551
Self Insurance Fund 561
Group Health Fund 571
Insured Programs Fund 581
Internal Loan Pool ‘ 591
Fiduciary Funds Pension Trust Funds

General Employees Pension

General Employees 611
General EE Post Retirement Trust 612
Correctional Officers Pension Trust 613

Police and Fire Pension
Police and Fire 621
Police & Fire Post Retirement Trust 622
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CITY OF JACKSONYVILLE, FLORIDA

FUND CONVERSION TABLE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SUBFUND
CATEGORY FUND TITLE NUMBERS
Fiduciary Funds (continued) Private Purpose Trust Funds
James Brady Disabled Scholarship 1H5
Michael Jackson Music Scholarship Trust 651
J. B. Smith Memorial Scholarship Trust 653
Lex Hester Memorial Scholarship Trust Fund 654
Agency Funds
Treasurer Agency Fund 661
Plat Deposits 665
Tax Collector Agency Fund 671
Clerk of the Circuit Court Agency Fund 681
Florida Retirement System 6A1
Duval Co School Readiness Coalition, Inc 6B1
Discretely Presented Jacksonville Housing Finance Authority
Component Units Jacksonville Housing Finance Commission IN2
Housing Tax Credit MF Rental IN3
Duval County Housing Finance Authority
Jax Housing Finance Auth Loan Trust FD 723
Jacksonville Economic Development Commission
Jacksonville Economic Development Commission 751
Sports Development Events 752
Jacksonville Film & Television Office Trust 753
International Marketing Trust 754
SS Redevelopment Trust Parks and Recreation 755
Greenleaf/Jacobs Clock Restoration 756
JEDC Prepaid Grants 757
JEDC Miscellaneous Federal/State/Local Grants 758
JEDC Cecil Field Trust 759
Downtown Historic Preservation & Revitalization 75A
Downtown Economic Development Fund 75B
Jacksonville Game Trust Fund 760
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